
 

Jeff Vincent, Chair  Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Vice Chair  Randy Dorn, Superintendent of Public Instruction  
Dr. Bernal Baca  Amy Bragdon  Warren T. Smith Sr. Connie Fletcher  Dr. Sheila Fox  Phyllis Bunker Frank  Jared Costanzo  

Bob Hughes  Eric Liu  Dr. Kristina Mayer  John C. "Jack" Schuster  Anna Laura Kastama  Mary Jean Ryan  Edie Harding, Executive Director  
 (360) 725-6025  TTY (360) 664-3631  FAX (360) 586-2357  Email: sbe@k12.wa.us  www:sbe.wa.gov 

 

Anacortes ESD 189 
1601 R Avenue 

Anacortes, Washington 
Reid Harbor Room 

Contact: Joni Morrell 
360-299-4002 

 
 

July 13-15, 2010 
 

AGENDA 
 

  
Tuesday July 13, 2010 

1:00 p.m. Call to Order for Regular Board Meeting 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Welcome by Dr. Jerry Jenkins, Superintendent, ESD 189 
Agenda Overview 
 Time allowing, videos will be shown from the recent Student Arts Video 

Contest throughout the Board Meeting 
 
Consent Agenda 

 The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to act upon routine matters in an 
expeditious manner. Items placed on the Consent Agenda are determined by the 
Chair, in cooperation with the Executive Director, and are those that are 
considered common to the operation of the Board and normally require no 
special Board discussion or debate. A Board member; however, may request that 
any item on the Consent Agenda be removed and inserted at an appropriate 
place on the regular agenda. Items on the Consent Agenda for this meeting 
include: 

 
• Approval of Minutes from the May 13-14, 2010 Meeting (Action Item) 
• Approval of Minutes from the June 15, 2010 Special Meeting (Action 

Item) 
• Private Schools (Action Item) 

 
1:10 p.m. Required Action District Draft Rules for Implementation 
  Ms. Edie Harding, Executive Director 

Ms. Tonya Middling, Director, School and District Improvement Project 
Development, OSPI  

 
  Board Discussion 
 
1:45 p.m. Recognition Awards for 2010 
  Dr. Pete Bylsma, Consultant, SBE 
  Mr. Aaron Wyatt, Communications Manager 
 
 



 

Jeff Vincent, Chair  Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Vice Chair  Randy Dorn, Superintendent of Public Instruction  
Dr. Bernal Baca  Amy Bragdon  Warren T. Smith Sr. Connie Fletcher  Dr. Sheila Fox  Phyllis Bunker Frank  Jared Costanzo  

Bob Hughes  Eric Liu  Dr. Kristina Mayer  John C. "Jack" Schuster  Anna Laura Kastama  Mary Jean Ryan  Edie Harding, Executive Director  
 (360) 725-6025  TTY (360) 664-3631  FAX (360) 586-2357  Email: sbe@k12.wa.us  www:sbe.wa.gov 

2:00 p.m. Math Rule Revision 
  Dr. Kathe Taylor, Policy Director 
 
2:15 p.m. 180 Day Waivers 
  Mr. Brad Burnham, Policy and Legislative Specialist 
 
2:30 p.m. Break 
 
2:45 p.m.  Core 24/Graduation Requirement Revisions  
  Dr. Kathe Taylor, Policy Director 
 

. Board discussion 
 

4:30 p.m. Public Comment 
 
4:50 p.m. Executive Director Evaluation Instrument 
  Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Vice-Chair 

 
5:00 p.m. Adjourn  
  

 
Wednesday, July 14, 2010 

9:00 a.m. Briefing on World Language Competencies 
 Dr. Kathe Taylor, Policy Director 
 Dr. Michele Aoki, Program Supervisor, World Languages, OSPI 
  Ms. Marilee Scarbrough, Director, Policy and Legal Services, WSSDA 
 
10:00 a.m. Break  
 
10:15 a.m. Core 24/Graduation Requirement Revisions Continued 
 

. Board discussion 
 
11:45 a.m. Public Comment 
 
12:15 p.m. Lunch  



 

Jeff Vincent, Chair  Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Vice Chair  Randy Dorn, Superintendent of Public Instruction  
Dr. Bernal Baca  Amy Bragdon  Warren T. Smith Sr. Connie Fletcher  Dr. Sheila Fox  Phyllis Bunker Frank  Jared Costanzo  

Bob Hughes  Eric Liu  Dr. Kristina Mayer  John C. "Jack" Schuster  Anna Laura Kastama  Mary Jean Ryan  Edie Harding, Executive Director  
 (360) 725-6025  TTY (360) 664-3631  FAX (360) 586-2357  Email: sbe@k12.wa.us  www:sbe.wa.gov 

1:00 p.m. Business Items 
• Decision on State Board of Education FY 2011 Budget (Action Item) 
• Decision on Revised Provisional Graduation Requirements Framework 

(Action Item) 
• Decision on Resolution for Competency Credits (Action Item) 
• Decision on Draft Required Action District Rule (Action Item) 
• Decision on Draft Revision of Math Credit Rule (Action Item) 
• Decision on 180 Day Waiver Requests (Action Item) 
• Decision on Recognition Awards for 2010 (Action Item) 
• Decision on Executive Director Evaluation Instrument (Action Item) 

 
2:30 p.m. Break 
 
3:00 p.m.  Common Core Standards Update 
 Dr. Alan Burke, Deputy Superintendent, OSPI 
 Ms. Jessica Vavrus, Assistant Superintendent for Teaching and Learning, OSPI 
 
3:30 p.m. Race to the Top and Education Reform Plan Status 

Ms. Edie Harding, Executive Director 
 
 Board discussion 
 
4:00 p.m.  Public Comment 
 
4:30 p.m.  Adjourn 
 



 

Jeff Vincent, Chair  Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Vice Chair  Randy Dorn, Superintendent of Public Instruction  
Dr. Bernal Baca  Amy Bragdon  Warren T. Smith Sr. Connie Fletcher  Dr. Sheila Fox  Phyllis Bunker Frank  Jared Costanzo  

Bob Hughes  Eric Liu  Dr. Kristina Mayer  John C. "Jack" Schuster  Anna Laura Kastama  Mary Jean Ryan  Edie Harding, Executive Director  
 (360) 725-6025  TTY (360) 664-3631  FAX (360) 586-2357  Email: sbe@k12.wa.us  www:sbe.wa.gov 

 
Thursday, July 15, 2010   

9:00 a.m.  Welcome and Agenda Overview 
Mr. Jeff Vincent, Chair 
Ms. Bonnie Berk, Berk & Associates 

9:10 a.m. Draft Plan Review and Comment – Interactive Session 
 Bonnie Berk, Berk & Associates 
 Natasha Fedo, Berk & Associates 

Workshop: Each Board member reviews draft plan and marks which objective 
and actions need more discussion 

• What’s missing? 
• What needs to be clarified? 
• Other comments and questions? 

9:35 a.m. Group Discussion of Draft Plan: Comments and Questions   

10:30 a.m.     Break  

10:45 a.m. Continued Discussion of Draft Plan: Comments and Questions 

12:00 p.m. Working Lunch (Staff denotes level of effort for each Goal) 

1:00 p.m. SBE Staff Presents Estimated Level of Effort for Each Objective 
 Edie Harding, Executive Director 

1:20 p.m. Board Develops 1 and 2 Action Year Plans 
 
2:15 p.m.  Break 
  
2:30 p.m.  Roundtable Review and Reflection  

3:00 p.m.  Adjourn 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 
May 13-14, 2010 

Northeast Washington Educational Services District 101 
Spokane, Washington 

 
MINUTES 

 
Attending: Vice Chair Steve Dal Porto, Dr. Sheila Fox, Dr. Bernal Baca, Ms. Amy 

Bragdon, Dr. Kris Mayer, Mr. Randy Dorn, Mr. Eric Liu, Ms. Connie Fletcher, 
Ms. Phyllis Bunker Frank, Mr. Jack Schuster, Mr. Bob Hughes, Ms. Anna 
Laura Kastama, Ms. Mary Jean Ryan, Mr. Jared Costanzo, Ms. Austianna 
Quick (15) 

 
Absent: Chair Jeff Vincent (excused), Mr. Warren Smith (excused) (2) 
 
Staff Attending: Ms. Edie Harding, Dr. Kathe Taylor, Ms. Loy McColm, Ms. Colleen Warren, 

Mr. Brad Burnham, Ms. Sarah Rich, Mr. Aaron Wyatt (7) 
 

Staff Absent: Ms. Ashley Harris (excused) (1) 
 

 
May 13, 2010 

 
Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Vice Chair Steve Dal Porto. 
 

 
Announcements 

Dr. Mike Dunn, Superintendent of NEWESD 101, gave the welcome saying that it’s a privilege 
to have the Board in Spokane and commended the Board on its work for the kids of our state. 
 
Mr. Jared Costanzo was introduced as the new student Board member from Eastern 
Washington. Mr. Costanzo attends Chiawana High School in Pasco, Washington and looks 
forward to his tenure on the SBE. 
 

 
Approval of Minutes from the March 17-18, 2010 Meeting 

Motion was made to approve the minutes as presented 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried 



 

Dr. Kathe Taylor, Policy Director 
High School Graduation Requirements Update: Core 24 Update and Next Steps 

Mr. Jack Schuster, Board Co-lead 
Dr. Steve Dal Porto, Board Co-lead 
Dr. Mark Mansell, Core 24 Implementation Task Force Co-chair 
Ms. Jennifer Shaw, Core 24 Implementation Task Force Co-chair 
 
Dr. Taylor presented a PowerPoint that summarized and updated the evidence that shaped the 
Meaningful High School Diploma (MHSD) work and gave rise to the Core 24 framework. The 
Board defined the MHSD as one that would leave all options open for students and provide 
graduates with the skills and knowledge necessary for postsecondary education, training, and 
careers. 
 
The presentation recalled the Board’s reframing of the vision for college/career readiness as 
follows: 
 

FROM TO 
Minimum graduation requirements Essential or core graduation requirements 
High school graduation as an ending High school graduation as a beginning 
A K-12 system view A P-20 system view 
 
It also put the pace of change in perspective, with the following overview: 
 
1985 19 credits, 150 hours per credit were established 
2000 Culminating Project and High School and Beyond Plan were added, 

along with clarification of high school-level standards. 
2007 Meaningful High School Diploma Committee began. 
2008 Culminating Project and High School and Beyond Plan became 

graduation requirements. The Board rewrote the purpose of the diploma 
and adopted the Core 24 Framework and added one math credit. 

2009 The Core 24 Implementation Task Force (ITF) began their work. 
2010 The Core 24 ITF will complete their work and the Board will consider the 

ITF recommendations and stakeholder feedback. 
2011 The Board will adopt new graduation requirements rules. The legislature 

appropriates funding necessary for graduation requirements. 
2016-2017 The graduation requirements will go into effect for the class of 2016 or 

2017. 
 
The presentation reviewed the demands of the different entities that receive high school 
graduates (e.g., work/apprenticeship requirements, two-year and four-year college admission 
requirements, and military admission requirements). It also compared Washington’s position on 
a variety of national rankings. For instance, Washington State is 22nd in the nation in state 
success indicators leading to education beyond high school, full-time work, and a living wage. It 
is 43rd in the nation in high school graduation rates and 42nd in the nation in college participation 
rates for students from low-income families. 
 
The presentation also compared the Class of 2013 state graduation requirements with the 
minimum Washington four-year public college admission requirements and cited data from the 
Board’s transcript study of 2008 graduates to demonstrate that fewer American Indian, African 
American, and Hispanic students than White and Asian students were taking the courses that 
would put them in the pipeline for admission to a four-year college: 



 
Subject 2013 state-mandated 

minimum credits to 
graduate from high 
school 

2012 Higher Education 
Coordinating Board-mandated 
minimum four-year public college 
admission credit requirements 

English 3 4 
Math 3 3-4 (requires Algebra II) 
Science 2 (1 lab) 2-3 (2 labs) 
Social Studies 2.5 3 
Arts 1 0-1 
World Language 0 2 
Health and Fitness 2 0 
Occupational Education 1 0 
Electives 5.5 0 
Total 20 15-16 
 
The presentation concluded by summarizing the primary concerns voiced by stakeholders in the 
past two years and reviewed the next steps for the Board, according to the Core 24 work plan. 
 
Concerns included: 

1. Insufficient flexibility because of too many state-mandated credits: 
• Not enough room for support/credit recovery classes. 
• Leaves less opportunity for local control. 
• May keep students from skill centers. 
• Difficult for small school districts with limited staff. 

2. Credits should be allocated differently: 
• Arts and career concentration. 

3. Will increase the achievement gap. 
4. Confusing. 
5. Funding: 

• Need resources for staff, facilities, and guidance. 
 
Next steps
 

  

May 2010 The Board received and discussed Core 24 Implementation 
Task Force recommendations and other stakeholder input. 

July 2010 The Board will take action on Core 24 framework. 
Late summer/fall 2010 Public outreach on Core 24 framework approved in July. 
September/November 2010 Review and approve draft rule. 
2010/2011 Work with Quality Education Council (QEC) to include funding 

in 2011-2013 biennial ESHB 2261 budget package. 
2011 Legislative Session Discuss proposed changes with legislature and advocate for 

funding. 
Summer 2011 Finalize the rule, assuming legislative approval of funding. 
 

 
Core 24 Implementation Task Force (ITF) Report 

Dr. Mansell was joined by fellow ITF members Ms. Bridget Lewis, Ms. Karen Madsen, and Mr. 
Sergio Hernandez to present the Core 24 ITF recommendations. Ms. Jennifer Shaw was unable 
to co-present with Dr. Mansell as planned. 
 
The Board created the Core 24 Implementation Task Force (ITF) to examine the implementation 
issues associated with the Core 24 high school graduation requirements framework, passed by 
the Board in July 2008. The Board chartered the ITF to advise them on strategies needed to 
implement the requirements, including a phase-in process that would begin with the graduating 
class of 2013. The Board charged the ITF to produce the following deliverables: 



 

1. Recommendations with analyses of advantages and disadvantages related to the issues 
itemized in Motion #3 passed in July 2008. 

2. Recommendations with analyses of advantages and disadvantages related to other 
relevant issues the ITF identifies. 

3. Regular feedback from the field on Core 24 perceptions, concerns, and support. 
 
The Board asked the ITF to look at the issue of automatic enrollment and to recommend a 
process connected to the High School and Beyond Plan for students to elect and formally 
declare a college or career emphasis if they want to elect an alternative to pursuing the default 
college and career ready requirements. 
 
On March 15, 2010, the ITF voted on each recommendation using an audience response 
system to tally the votes. The recommendations are as follows: 

1. Phase-in Policy.  
2. Two-for-one policy. 
3. Redefine “credit” in WAC policy. 
4. Limited local waiver authority policy. 
5. Competency-based credit policy. 
6. Career concentration policy. 
7. Credit recovery advocacy. 
8. High School and Beyond Plan starting at middle school policy. 
9. Flexibility to meet high school requirements at middle level standards policy. 
10. Automatic enrollment policy. 

 
The ITF considered, but did not formally vote on the possibility that local administrators could 
waive state-mandated graduation requirements for students who receive an international 
Baccalaureate Diploma or Cambridge Diploma. 
 
Mr. Schuster commended the ITF for their exceptional work. 
 

 
Public Comment 

 
Robert Douthitt, Spokane Public Schools 

The Spokane Public Schools agrees with the Board regarding its recommendations for Core 24 
as follows: 

1. The purpose of a diploma as defined in January 2008. 
2. The concept that higher standards encourage high achievement. 
3. Aligning high school graduation requirements with college admission standards as noted 

in the July 2008 Memo titled “Meaningful High School Diploma. 
4. The concept of multiple pathways to a diploma. 
5. The six guiding principles on page 15 of the July 2008 Board meeting memo. 

 
Core 24 is not flexible under the current framework. The Spokane School Board submitted a 
letter outlining solutions to promote more flexibility in three key areas: 1) removing some of the 
current requirements on a second credit of art and the career concentration concept; 2) 
addressing the costs and logistics in larger schools and districts to implement 24 credits; 3) 
addressing the need for time for successful implementation of the High School and Beyond Plan 
and Culminating Project. The Spokane Public Schools has one philosophical disagreement with 
the proposal and believes that there is one methodological flaw, which causes the Board to 
seriously underestimate the cost and logistics of implementation in larger districts and larger 
schools. They think the Board should recognize that the requirements for a Culminating Project 
and a High School and Beyond Plan require time in and of themselves. The Board should 
budget for such time as part of its proposal, particularly if it wants these requirements to be 
consistently implemented in a meaningful way throughout the state. 



On behalf of the Washington State Skills Center Association, Mr. Kampe expressed concerns 
and voiced suggestions on changes that the Association feels will improve the Core 24 proposal 
for all students if adopted by the Board. Core 24 should not be implemented until it is funded 
and there is a seven period day. The Association has supported the efforts of the Board in its 
Core 24 six guiding principles and three of the four key tenets. The Association, and many 
others within the career and technical education field, have testified to the Board and presented 
to the ITF sharing their concerns and ideas as to how to improve the final Core 24 proposal. The 
Association asks that as the Board moves forward to strengthen the language within the 
proposal that it will ensure that all career concentration credits will meet the first guiding 
principle to shape Core 24 to equip all students. 

Dennis Kampe, Clark County Skills Center 

 

We’re on the point of a threshold. We all know the world of credits and what we’re doing is 
making a change in our world view from seat time to competencies. We should ask ourselves 
“how do I behave and how can I do things differently.” He asked the Board to ask the same 
questions. Maybe the time has come to do some implementation simulation. The Board is at the 
point to take the bold step and put implementation in motion. The principals say, move boldly 
ahead and see how it really works.  

Bob McMullen, Association of Washington State Principals (AWSP) 

 

Ms. McMullen commended the Task Force for the excellent recommendations. Regarding 
waivers for various issues – the ITF recommends giving authority to administrators and Ms. 
McMullen suggested giving the authority to districts, which would give them the opportunity to 
set policies in place for when waivers are given or not given. There’s a concern about keeping 
kids in school. Requirements should not directly translate to credits. The districts can give them 
discipline and learning and Ms. McMullen asked the Board to clarify what high schools should 
look like. She suggested “learning centers” rather than a checklist of requirements. She asked 
the question: “How do we balance making sure that kids are learning and reaching competency 
with on time graduation”. It might be different in each district and should be clarified. 

Cindy McMullen, Central Valley School District 

 

As a parent of kids in schools, Ms. Walsh encouraged the Board to adopt the ITF 
recommendations made because there is flexibility and options. There is concern about funding, 
but it’s very hard to advocate for funding to the legislature without knowing what you want 
funding for. By adopting the recommendations, it will be easier to go after the funding. Don’t 
sacrifice what’s good, because you are looking to attain something that is absolutely perfect. 

Lorna Walsh, Parent and Member of Stand for Children 

 

Dr. Barlow gave background of his experience, which has given him the opportunity to view 
education from a different perspective. While Core 24 will enable students to be better prepared 
to achieve at a higher level and give them career exploration opportunities at an earlier age, we 
must be vigilant and involved. We need to continue to focus on the dropout problem because 
we are losing too many students before graduation and this is not acceptable. 

Don Barlow, Former Legislator and Former School Board Member 

 

The LEV urges the Board to keep focusing on Core 24. This is not the time to retreat on higher 
graduation requirements. It’s important to set kids up to succeed. We are not growing enough 
home grown talent. Other states have raised the standards on dropout rates and have 
increased graduation rates at the same time. Looking at the new initiative can be daunting but if 
we can give the legislature a clear product, we have the opportunity to get the legislative 
funding. We need to be specific with what we’re doing with our dollars. It is important to have 
clarity of purpose. 

Frank Ordway, League of Education Voters (LEV) 

 
 
 



 

Mr. DePaul thanked the Board for its work and raising the understanding of the purpose of 
graduation requirements. He said that he has mentored students in the foster care system for 
many years. He talked about the challenging courses he took for his education because of the 
standards being raised. Students and teachers will rise to the challenge. Good communication 
with parents will benefit all communities. 

Austin DePaul, College Success Foundation 

 

Ms. Brower is excited about her oldest child starting middle school because of the new 
requirements and high standards that the Board is moving toward. Students deserve this. She 
thanked Ms. Bragdon for attending a citizen’s advisory committee and for the time she took to 
listen to the group. She is concerned about the dropout rate and asked the Board to work to 
keep it from happening in the future. Students need connections with their clubs, which is 
important for their high school experience. She commended the Board for being on the right 
path to higher standards. 

Deana Brower, Parent and Active Volunteer 

 

 
Board Discussion on Graduation Requirements 

The Board continued its discussion on graduation requirements and decided to convene a 
special meeting in June to continue the discussion to allow for more dialogue. 
 
Lunch Recognition 
 
Ms. Quick was recognized for her service as a student Board member for the past two years. 
 
Math Standard Setting Plan for Grades 3-8 and Race to the Top Assessment Grant 
Dr. Joe Willhoft, Assistant Superintendent, OSPI 
Dr. Thomas Hirsch, Co-founder, Assessment and Evaluation Services 
 
The Board is required to develop performance standards and levels for the statewide 
assessments. To develop these standards and levels, the Board will work in collaboration with 
the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI). OSPI, along with its National 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), is currently developing the math standards setting plan 
for the new state math assessments, “Measurements of Student Progress,” for grades three 
through eight. Standard setting is a formalized process to determine how students need to 
perform on an assessment to be classified into performance levels. 
 
The grade three through eight standard setting process includes: 

• Students in grades three through eight are taking the new Measurements of Student 
Progress in mathematics. 

• The Board is authorized to set passing scores and performance levels on Washington’s 
achievement tests. 

• Six standard-setting panels with thirty educators each are convened in late July or early 
August. 

• Recommendations to the Board come from grade level panels and a cross grade 
articulation committee. 

• Superintendent Dorn also provides recommendations from a policy panel. 
• The Board sets standards in a special meeting scheduled for August 10, 2010. 

 
The Colorado Growth Model is currently being used in several states. The Model has been 
developed by the National Center for the Improvement of Educational Assessment. 
Washington’s National TAC has vetted the model and approves its use. 
 



The roll-out plan for Washington’s Growth Model includes the following: 
• Use 2010 (and earlier) test scores to produce individual student-level scores. 
• Release student-level scores in late fall and early winter 2010. 
• Train state TAC (assessment and curriculum coordinators from across the state) as 

regional experts. 
• Use December WERA/OSPI conference as a training opportunity. 
• During 2010-2011, develop and implement training vehicles for district staff, teachers, 

and parents. 
• Establish roll-out of school and district level reports during 2010-2011. 

 
Washington Education Reform Plan and Race to the Top Update 
Ms. Edie Harding, Executive Director 
 
Washington is completing its Round Two application for RTTT, which is due June 1, 2010 to the 
U.S. Department of Education. Winners for Round Two will be announced on September 30, 
2010. 
 
The Board Chair is one of three signatures required for the RTTT application, along with the 
Governor and the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Washington could potentially gain up to 
$250 million to use for four years to implement Washington’s education reform agenda. This 
includes: 

• $137 million for districts that sign partnership agreements. 
• $55 million for innovation clusters to districts. 
• $58 million for state capacity partnership and implementation of the four federal 

assurances, which are:  
1. Develop and adopt common standards and assessments. 
2. Data systems for increased access and use. 
3. Support of effective teachers and school leaders. 
4. Turn around struggling schools. 

 
The U.S. Department of Education will score all applications, based on a 500 point scale. The 
points are divided into six criteria and one competitive priority as follows: 
 
Criteria Points 
Criteria A: State Success Factors 125 
Criteria B: Standards and Assessments  70 
Criteria C: Data systems to drive instruction 47 
Criteria D: Great teachers and leaders 138 
Criteria E: Turning around the lowest achieving schools 50 
Criteria F: General criteria 55 
Competitive Priority: STEM 15 
 
Outreach includes the following: 
 
Week of April 26 Requests for letters of support sent. 
Weeks of April 12, 19, 26/ May 3 and 10 Calls, meetings, presentations, press 

conferences, and media interviews regarding 
partnership agreement signatures. 

May 17 Letter from Governor Gregoire going to 
districts who have yet to sign on. 

Week of May 17 Use of web, twitter, Facebook, media 
advisories, and networks to communicate 
status. 

Week of May 17 Collecting letters of support 
 



 

Partnership Agreement  
 
The essence of a partnership agreement includes: 

1. Generally, a state action is linked to a similar district action. 
2. The idea is to build on current programs and practices and not necessarily start 

programs from scratch. 
3. Emphasis is on enhancing existing programs and filling gaps. 
4. Many items are required by state law, many are included in the recently passed E2SSB 

6696. 
 
The state’s role in the partnership agreement is: 

1. Work collaboratively with district in carrying out the plan outlined in the partnership 
agreement. 

2. Distribute district RTTT funds in a timely manner. 
3. Provide feedback and status reports. 
4. Provide technical assistance. 

 
The district’s role in the partnership agreement is: 

1. Implement the plan outlined. 
2. Participate in RTTT sharing activities. 
3. Follow the U.S. Department of Education’s guidelines for posting products developed 

through RTTT and completing evaluation requirements. 
4. Be supportive and committed to working on all or a significant portion of the state reform 

plan. 
5. Provide a final scope of work to the state no later than 90 days following the grant 

award. 
6. Align provisions of RTTT with applicable district/association collective bargaining 

agreement. 
7. Four-year grant. 
8. Agreement null and void if grant is not awarded. 

 
Education Reform Plan Framework 
 
Washington has four goals for the Education Reform Plan Framework that all Washington 
students will: 

1. Enter kindergarten prepared for success. 
2. Complete in math and science nationally and internationally. 
3. Attain high academic standards regardless of race, ethnicity, income or gender and 

close the achievement gap. 
4. Graduate able to succeed in college, training, and careers. 

 
Our kindergarten students are often unprepared for success. Despite some success on national 
measures, our students struggle to meet the state’s academic standards, most often in math 
and science. There is a significant and persistent achievement gap and graduation and dropout 
rates are constant. Washington ranks 45th in high school students that go directly to college, 
compared to other states. Ms. Harding gave examples of the strategies to obtain the four goals 
listed. 
 
Next Steps 
 
Current Review by the Attorney General’s office 
Weeks of May 10 and 17 Drafts of narrative budgets, appendices, tables, and 

charts being cross checked and aligned with 
narratives 

May 23 Finalize the draft Education Reform Plan Framework 



May 21-25 Reviews and edit draft application 
May 26-28 Assemble application 
June 1 Submit grant to the U.S. Department of Education 
June 2010 Develop a plan for finalizing the Education Reform 

plan completion 
July 2010 Finalists announced 
September 2010 Grantee winners announced 
Summer 2010 – winter 2011 Formalize draft components, plan broad based 

constituent discussions, cart recommendations, take 
to legislature, QEC and others 

September – November 2010 Washington districts develop 90 day plans 
December 2010 – March 2011 (TBD) Innovation clusters grant process 
 
Elementary and Secondary Education Reauthorization and U.S. Department of Education 
Discussion of SBE Accountability Index 
Ms. Edie Harding, Executive Director 
Ms. Sarah Rich, Research Director 
 
In March 2010, the Obama Administration unveiled a Blueprint for Reform, which is a proposal 
for Elementary and Secondary Education (ESEA) reauthorization. ESEA, which was called No 
Child Left Behind (NCLB) in its most recent iteration, has been up for renewal since 2007. The 
Blueprint has spurred a series of congressional committee hearings, public debates, and news 
coverage. The goal for the administration is to keep what was positive about NCLB, while 
addressing the major criticisms of the existing laws. The proposal intends to eliminate the 
perverse incentives in NCLB, which encouraged states to lower standards and focus on test 
preparation. 
 
The Blueprint has been received positively by the Council of Chief State School Officers, 
National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE), National School Boards 
Association (NASBA,) the Alliance for Excellent Education and other policy groups. OSPI has 
issued a set of legislative recommendations that are aligned to the Blueprint themes.  
 
The National Education Association (NEA) and the American Federation of Teachers (AFT) 
oppose linking teacher evaluation to student achievement. They argue that teachers have too 
much responsibility and not enough authority. Only teachers’ unions have expressed overall 
opposition to the Blueprint. 
 
The Board will need to monitor changes closely and consider postponing major policy decisions 
such as revisions to the school improvement plans and other elements of the reauthorization 
process until it has been finalized. Congress is expected to take action on ESEA 
Reauthorization in 2011, although timing is unpredictable. 
 
System Performance Accountability (SPA) Update  
(Recognition for Achievement Gap Awards) 
Ms. Edie Harding, Executive Director 
Dr. Kris Mayer, Board Lead 
Dr. Pete Bylsma, Board Consultant 
 
Using the SBE Accountability Index, the OSPI and SBE recognized 174 schools through their 
new joint recognition program, which occurred on May 5, 2010. The possible awards were as 
follows: 

1. Language arts (reading and writing combined). 
2. Math. 
3. Science. 
4. Extended graduation rate. 
5. Gifted programs. 



 

 
The plan was to recognize schools that closed the socioeconomic achievement gap, but the 
criteria established to receive this award were determined as too stringent, so no schools met 
the criteria and no recognition was given. 
 
At the April 13 SPA meeting, two awards for closing the achievement gap were recommended: 

1. Use the Accountability Index matrix; look at gap based on socioeconomic status (SES). 
2. Use modified matrix for subgroups; look at gap based on race/ethnicity. 

 
In addition, the SPA Work Group suggested an award for improvement as well as not awarding 
schools on overall excellence if they had a significant achievement gap. 
 
Board members want to understand more about OSPI’s English Language Learner (ELL) data 
and progress toward closing the achievement gap for those students. It was suggested that the 
Board meet with the Achievement Gap Advisory Group to work on this together.  
 
Public Comment 
 
Tim Knue, Washington Association of  Career and Technical Education (WACTE) 
Mr. Knue thanked the Board for the work on Core 24, saying that flexibility is not only key, but 
paramount to achieving Core 24. The WACTE always stands ready on where Core 24 is going 
to go. The Board has raised the rigor by advancing to career – not just college – to fully 
understand next steps that are available. When we create choices, we inadvertently put a value 
on statements, such as “opt-out of default curriculum.” We have to be careful when rolling out 
the choices.  
 
Elissa Dyson, Onion Creek School District, School Board Member 
Ms. Dyson thanked the Board for the many hours of devotion to our children’s needs. She 
thanked Ms. Amy Bradgon for her recent visit to Onion Creek. Ms. Dyson has been fortunate to 
visit 75 small districts in the state and said that education is a central part of her life. As the 
years and initiatives come and go, she is concerned about the bad rap that students are getting 
from the discussion of failing schools. If we produce higher test scores, we may be providing our 
students with a worse education. The expectations go way beyond passing a test. She 
encouraged the Board to define what a good education for students should be during the 
strategic planning session on Friday.  
 
Kim Howard, Washington State Parent Teacher Association (WSPTA) 
Some PTA members have expressed strong support for the implementation of Core 24 because 
they are involved parents whose children come into the system prepared. They also continue to 
support their children through the K-12 experience. This group of children typically does well in 
the current system. Many parents indicated that they could benefit from increased rigor and 
challenge. They want their kids to be prepared for success in the 21st century and understand 
that our current system is not adequate in meeting today’s needs. Our concern is that if we 
impose additional requirements for high school graduation on a system that is already 
inadequately funded to meet the needs of many students, we are creating an inherently unfair 
burden on students and districts. We must advocate for adequate resources to support the 
needs of both those students who come into the system prepared and those who need 
additional support to succeed. When adequate support and funding are available for all 
students, the WSPTA will fully support the implementation of Core 24. Our kids deserve no less. 
 
Arden Watson, Marysville School District Teachers Association 
Ms. Watson is a fourth grade teacher. She indicated that one of the roles of the Board is reform 
around struggling schools. She shared her experience in Marysville, saying that there are two 
schools identified for a school improvement grant – Tulalip Elementary School and Totem 
Middle School. When she learned about the two schools as being identified as the lower five 



percent she knew the tribes would be very concerned. The tribes care about their children and 
have invested time and energy in the schools. She’s been involved in meetings with the school 
district and OSPI staff who gave support going through the process. The collaboration between 
the association and district is critical for working together to figure it out. The district chose the 
transformation model. The way Washington looks at school achievement is ‘right on’. The 
district is trying to manage data that is time consuming for teachers who don’t have a lot of time. 
Teachers need time to collaborate with each other; otherwise we’re not going to get there. We 
continue to lose funding and have no more learning improvement days left. Waivers and early 
release days is where we’re stuck when there are no resources. Teachers got layoff notices in 
Marysville this week and classified staff will be cut in the next couple of weeks. We need to find 
a way to fix the funding issues in the state.  
 
180 Day Waiver Requests 
Mr. Brad Burnham, Policy and Legislative Specialist 
 
The new waiver options for districts include: 

1. Long standing procedure will continue where districts can propose requests without 
restrictions to number of days and types of strategies and activities. Requests are 
approved by the full Board during a regular Board meeting. 

2. Waivers for economy and efficiency, where districts can propose requests for the 
purposes of economy and efficiency. There are no restrictions of number of days and 
types of strategies and activities and requests are approved by the full Board during a 
regular Board meeting. 

3. The new “fast track” option approved by the Board in March 2010 includes: 
 Staff reviews districts’ plans to ensure they meet the criteria and eligibility 

requirements. 
 The Board does not review plans for approval if plans meet the criteria and eligibility 

requirements. 
 The maximum days requested are three. 
 Districts must use one or more of the specified strategies and activities. 

 
Mr. Burnham presented the eight districts requesting waivers for consideration during the 
business meeting on Friday and gave an overview of each request. Those requesting waivers 
include:  

1. Colton School District 
2. Elma School District 
3. Granite Falls School District 
4. Oakesdale School District 
5. Riverside School District 
6. Rosalia School District 
7. St. John-Endicott School District 
8. White Pass School District 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. by Vice-chair Steve Dal Porto. 
 
May 14, 2010 
 
Attending: Chair Jeff Vincent, Vice Chair Steve Dal Porto, Dr. Sheila Fox, Dr. Bernal 

Baca, Ms. Amy Bragdon, Dr. Kris Mayer, Mr. Randy Dorn, Mr. Eric Liu,  
Ms. Connie Fletcher, Ms. Phyllis Bunker Frank, Mr. Jack Schuster, Mr. Bob 
Hughes, Ms. Anna Laura Kastama, Ms. Mary Jean Ryan, Mr. Jared Costanzo 
(15) 

 
Absent: Ms. Austianna Quick (excused), Mr. Warren Smith (excused) (2) 
 



 

Staff Attending: Ms. Edie Harding, Dr. Kathe Taylor, Ms. Loy McColm, Ms. Colleen Warren, 
Mr. Brad Burnham, Ms. Sarah Rich, Mr. Aaron Wyatt (7) 
 

Staff Absent: Ms. Ashley Harris (excused) (1) 
 
Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Chair Jeff Vincent. 
 
Announcements 
 
Chair Vincent announced that the special Board meeting for further discussion on Core 24 
graduation requirements is scheduled for June 15. 
 
Wrap Up from 2010 Session: Budget and Key Legislation 
Mr. Brad Burnham, Policy and Legislative Specialist 
 
The House and Senate budget-writers worked to complete a compromise tax package to raise 
approximately $800 million. The legislature closed the $2.8 billion budget gap by: 

• Reducing expenditures by approximately $755 million. 
• Incorporating approximately $618 million of approved or anticipated additional federal 

relief to Washington State.  
• Transferring $690 million in the Budget Stabilization Account and other funds to the state 

general fund. 
• Raising $757 million in new revenue. 

 
The legislature protected spending on all programs considered basic education. They continue 
to fully fund basic education programs such as the highly capable or gifted program, all day 
kindergarten for the 20 percent of schools with the highest poverty levels, and children’s food 
programs. Key policy bills passed that affect the SBE include the education reform bill under  
SB 6696 with its accountability provision, including required action intervention, a STEM work 
group, creation of a biology end of course assessment and dropout reengagement programs.  
 
SBE will sustain a two percent cut overall and must also cut its staff compensation using ten 
furlough days unless an alternate plan is approved.  
 
SBE Strategic Planning 
Ms. Bonnie Berk, Berk & Associates 
Ms. Natasha Fedo, Berk & Associates 
 
The elements to consider in the Board’s Strategic Planning process are to develop a common 
understanding of the policy environment. The four federal assurances were noted as follows: 

1. Standards and assurances. 
2. Data systems to support instruction. 
3. Great teachers and leaders. 
4. Turning around lowest-achieving schools.  

 
The members broke out in five groups and discussed the goals of the Board and came together 
for discussion on the outcomes of each group. The goals that were presented after the breakout 
session are as follows: 
 

1. Be a top state for post secondary attainment, the 21st century world of work and 
citizenship. 

2. Close the achievement gap for all students. 
3. Most effective teacher workforce. 



4. Build public/private partnership through the STEM Center by 2011. 
5. A rational, accountable, and effective governance structure for public education. 

 
Ms. Fedo and Ms. Berk will prepare draft 1.0 from today’s discussion, which will be sent out to 
the Members by close of business Monday, May 17. 
 
The five groups will meet together to discuss further ideas on their goals (what’s missing, how 
we can make goals actionable). Feedback should be sent to Ms. Harding who will then send it 
on to Ms. Berk and Ms. Fedo. A team lead was identified for each goal to refine for 2.0 version 
of goals with actionable strategies and timelines. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Jim Kowalkowski, Rural Education Center and Davenport School District 
 
Mr. Kowalkowski commended the Board for the work it’s doing for kids. He thanked the nine 
Board members who met with ESD superintendents on May 12 and said he appreciated that the 
Board members listened to what the superintendents had to say. He supports the Core 24 ITF 
recommendation to change the definition of credit, saying it’s not about seat time it’s about 
competency. The credit recovery advocacy was a 15 to 0 vote. He thinks that needs to be in 
place before anything else. Districts are struggling with this. Credit and competency can be 
used interchangeably. He supports credits and competencies in middle school. The high school 
and beyond plan vote is good. Discussion has to take place at an early age.  
 
Wally Endicott, Kids at Hope 
 
Hope is a powerful concept that we learn rather than being born with it. High school kids have 
been tracked for some time, looking at their tests, college entry, etc. to determine success in 
college. From research, we know that we believe in the success of our children and kids need 
meaningful, sustainable relationships with adults, to define their success. We need to bring a 
culture together and create communities.  
 
Business Items 
 
Math Standard Setting Plan for Grades 3-8 
 
Motion was made to adopt the math standard setting plan for the new math assessments for 
grades 3-8. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried with Ms. Ryan and Chair Vincent abstaining 
 
Authorization of State Board of Education Chair to Sign Race to the Top Education Reform 
Grant Application 
 
Motion was made to authorize the Board’s Chair to sign the Washington Race to the Top 
Education Reform Grant Application, provided that the Chair deems the following three 
conditions are met: 
 

1. The Race to the Top application clearly shows: 
a. How the state education agency will organize itself to implement the state’s 

education reform plan; and 
b. How the state will organize the overall governance structure to oversee the execution 

of the state’s education reform plan. 



 

2. The Race to the Top application contains clear baseline information, action strategies, 
and ways to measure progress for each of the state’s four major reform goals. 

3. A final state education reform plan complete with implementation detail will be completed 
by September 15, 2010 with a more full, robust engagement with our stakeholders. Work 
plan tasks and timelines will be signed off by each member of the steering committee 
prior to the Race to the Top application sign-off. 

 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried 
 
Authorization of State Board of Education Chair to Sign Race to the Top Assessment Program 
Grant Application 
 
Motion was made to authorize the Board’s Chair to sign Washington State’s Race to the Top 
Assessment Program Grant Application 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried 
 
180 Day Waiver Requests 
 
Motion was made to approve Colton, Elma, Granite Falls, Oakesdale, Riverside, Rosalia, St. 
John-Endicott, and White Pass School District’s request for waivers from the 180 school day 
requirement for the number of days and school years requested in their applications to the 
Board. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried with Ms. Bragdon, Chair Vincent, and Dr. Mayer abstaining 
 
Evergreen School District Basic Education Compliance 
 
Motion was made to certify Evergreen School District of Clark County as being in compliance 
with the basic education allocation entitlement requirements for the 2009-10 school year. 
 
Motion seconded 
 
Motion carried with Ms. Bragdon and Chair Vincent abstaining 
 
Arts Contest 
Ms. Anna Laura Kastama, Student Board Member 
Mr. Jared Costanzo, Student Board Member 
Mr. Aaron Wyatt, Communications Manager 
 
Students were asked to create a short video addressing this year’s question: “Why are the Arts 
Important to Students?” There were 28 entries in the contest and Best in Show Awards were 
given to: 
 Vashon High School to participating students Leah Andrews, Corrine Pruett, and Conrad 

Pearson. 
 Oakland Bay Junior High School, in the Shelton School District, to participating students 

Coreless Fletcher, Colby Fuller, and Priscilla Ramirez. 
 
There were twelve other schools receiving Honorable Mention. 



 
Since this year’s student video contest was a success, it will become a yearly event. Each 
year’s topic will revolve around one component of our high school graduation requirements 
framework. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Jeff Vincent. 
 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 
June 15, 2010 

Puget Sound Educational Services District 
Renton, Washington 

 
MINUTES 

 
Attending: Chair Jeff Vincent, Dr. Sheila Fox, Dr. Bernal Baca, Ms. Amy Bragdon,  

Mr. Randy Dorn, Mr. Eric Liu, Ms. Connie Fletcher, Ms. Phyllis Bunker Frank, 
Mr. Jack Schuster, Mr. Bob Hughes, Ms. Anna Laura Kastama, Ms. Mary 
Jean Ryan, Mr. Jared Costanzo, Mr. Warren Smith (14) 

 
Absent: Vice Chair Steve Dal Porto (excused), Dr. Kris Mayer (excused) (2) 
 
Staff Attending: Ms. Edie Harding, Dr. Kathe Taylor, Mr. Aaron Wyatt (3) 

 
Staff Absent: Ms. Ashley Harris (excused), Ms. Loy McColm (excused), Mr. Brad Burnham 

(excused), Ms. Sarah Rich (excused), Ms. Colleen Warren (excused) (5) 
 

 
June 15, 2010 

 
Summary of HECB Education Committee and SBE Executive Committee Joint Meeting  

Mr. Vincent reviewed the highlights of the joint meeting with the Higher Education Coordinating 
Board (HECB). He noted that the minutes from the joint meeting were provided in the packet for 
the members’ review. The purpose of the meeting was to explore potential alignment issues 
between HECB college admission and the SBE high school graduation requirements. There is a 
fragmented system and the key is to get a common alignment between the SBE and the HECB. 
The members of both committees agreed to look at a three credit science requirement and 
directed staff to develop a proposal for concurrent implementation of a third credit of science. 
 
Twenty credits were suggested as a reasonable target for a common set of requirements. There 
was discussion regarding the Core 24 Implementation Task Force (ITF) discussion about 
removing the 150 hour time basis for a credit. The HECB does not anticipate a big concern but 
they were not ready to go to a competency-based system that would allow students to earn 
credit without seat time. One exception might be competency-based credit in world languages; 
further discussion will occur on this. Regarding the discussion about a two-for-one policy, the 
HECB was willing to look at two-for-one for Career and Technical Education (CTE)-equivalent 
courses. The two committees agreed to meet again in August to move forward. There will be 
additional feedback after the July Board meeting, which will be provided at the August meeting.  
 
Board members expressed interest in meeting with the leadership of other boards, as well. 
 

 
Discussion of Core 24 Implementation Task Force Recommendations 

The special meeting was called to provide direction to staff on the graduation requirements 
framework and related policy recommendations that the Board would like to consider at the July 
2010 Board meeting. This is in keeping with the timetable already established. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Following, is the Core 24 Implementation Task Force Recommendations and Board member 
discussion pertaining to each recommendation: 

Policy Recommendation/Description Board Discussion During Meeting 
Redefine “Credit” in WAC Policy  
 
Eliminate the time-based (150 hours) 
definition of a credit (a) and maintain the 
competency-based definition of a credit (b).  
High school credit is defined in rule by the 
State Board of Education as: 
(a) One hundred fifty hours of planned 
instructional activities approved by the 
district; or 
(b) Satisfactory demonstration by a student 
of clearly identified competencies 
established pursuant to a process defined 
in written district policy. 

• Twenty-three states do not require a time based credit. Of 
those that do, Washington is at the high end in terms of hours 
required  

• Striking (a) sends a message for districts to pay more attention 
but doesn’t preclude what they’re already doing. 

• The district can establish the time depending on what it 
chooses to do.  

• 150 hours is based on what districts have become comfortable 
with.  

• The actual hours provided per credit differs by districts, 
depending on their bell schedule. Are we getting closer to 
districts working together on competency based credit? End-of-
course exams will add a standardized assessment that could 
be used for awarding credit. 

• The Board should review Evergreen School District’s process 
to talk about the challenges they had developing the 
competencies. 

• Substituting a non time-based description for the time-based 
description such as the one Maryland uses may provide an 
alternative to a strictly competency-based definition. 

• Suggested a comparison of other states. 
• Would like to see on July Board meeting agenda. 
• Examine one to three other states that have moved away from 

a time-based credit. 
Automatic Enrollment 
 
Define automatic enrollment to mean all 
students take the core 18 credits: 

• English = 4 
• Math = 3 
• Science = 3 
• Social Studies = 3 
• Fitness = 1.5 
• Health = .5 
• Arts = 2 
• Career Concentration = 1 

• Put on hold until later in the day. 

Limited Waiver Authority 
 
Authorize school boards to delegate limited 
waiver authority to local administrators 
within designated parameters. 

• Need to define the parameters of waivers. Start with the 
parameters suggested by the ITF. 

• Ability to have a lot of flexibility can be in the model.  
• Talked earlier about using election rather than waiver to signify 

choice. If the word ‘waiver’ is used there needs to be a better 
definition. 

• There may be considerable variation in policies adopted by 
each district. Will there be a different policy in every district or 
will there be a template to follow? 

• Don’t waive the HSBP or culminating project. 
Two-for-One 
 
Students earn one credit and satisfy two 
requirements when taking either a CTE 
equivalent course or another course that 
has been designated by the district to be 
equivalent to a graduation requirement. 

• As long as a student is meeting the standards of two courses, 
what’s the concern about what the classes are? 

• We would need to be very clear about expectations. 
• The HECB may not recognize “two-for-one” credits. In the end, 

the HECB will have separate issues than the Board will have 
and it’s important for students to know what the differences are. 



 
 

Policy Recommendation/Description Board Discussion During Meeting 
Competency-based Credit Policy 
 
Authorize, through rule, the opportunity 
for students who meet standard on 
state-approved end-of-course 
assessments to earn credit for the 
associated course, even if the student 
fails the class. 

• We should look at another way to verify that a learner has 
knowledge and skills. 

• Research shows there is little correlation between grades and 
performance on assessments, but we need to have confidence 
in the assessments. It is possible for a student to have the 
knowledge and skills but not react favorably to an instructor. 

• What if the student doesn’t take the course at all? 
• It probably wouldn’t happen very often, but would send a 

symbolic message that we’re pushing the system toward 
competency. 

High School and Beyond Plan 
(HSBP) Starting at Middle School 
 
Start the High School and Beyond Plan 
at middle school by focusing on 
exploring students’ options and 
interests. 

• What are the consequences for a student in middle school who 
doesn’t have a high school and beyond plan and has no idea 
what they want to do? It will be a requirement of the school to 
interact with that student to offer options to think about. 

• It’s critical to have a concrete understanding of where students 
are who are in schools that are shutting down or those who 
don’t have a concept of what they will do in the future. 

• The intention is to connect with students where they are right 
now and take responsibility to set up a system that will work for 
all students. 

• It’s going to take money to do what we need to do. 
• The HSBP is not a silver bullet to fix all wrongs. If a student 

enters middle school academically behind, a mentor or adult 
needs to ask children what they want to be or where they want 
to go, and then help them see how to get there. What happens 
if we don’t ask those questions? 

Flexibility to Meet High School 
Requirements at Middle Level 
Standards 
 
Provide opportunities for students to 
begin meeting high school graduation 
requirements at the middle level when 
courses meet rigorous standards as 
determined by local districts. 

• Do we allow high school credits for things that don’t meet high 
school standards? 

• Students earn a credit for taking world language in 8th grade 
because it’s taught to a high school standard. 

• The state law requires that students study the Washington 
State constitution. It doesn’t require that students earn a credit. 

• High school credit should not be awarded for non-high school 
work. 

• Suggested separation of requirement and credit.  
Career Concentration 
 
Define “career concentration” as: 
 
Fulfill three credits of career 
concentration courses that prepare 
students for postsecondary education 
and careers on their identified program 
of study in their high school and 
beyond plan. One of the three credits 
shall meet the standards of an 
exploratory Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) course, as currently 
defined in the SBE’s graduation 
requirement WAC 180-51-066. 

• How did this recommendation interact with the automatic 
enrollment policy?  
 

Credit Recovery Advocacy 
 
Advocate for: 

• The Board has supported advocacy for resources necessary to 
assist struggling schools since it approved Core 24. 

• If there is a shift from 24 credits to 20 credits, then we would 



 

1) The resources needed to 
implement and staff programs 
necessary to assist struggling 
students in credit recovery. 

2) A database of intervention options 
so that each district has possible 
models to implement. 

need to think strategically about what to advocate for. 
• Suggested broadening this further than credit recovery. We 

have to address helping kids get on grade level rapidly. If 
they’re in middle school and are behind, intervention is needed 
that is strong enough to help them get on track.  

• The Urban Scholars Program helps middle school students who 
are coming in to Garfield High School and are very behind to 
get them up to speed during the 9th grade year. 

• The English Language Learner (ELL) allocation and the 
Learning Assistance Program (LAP) allocations will be 
discussed when Quality Education Council (QEC) convenes in 
the fall. 



 
Graduation Requirement Decision Points 

Kathe presented a progression of decision points as follows:  
 

Subject Credits Benefits to Students Notes 
• English 
• Math 
• Science 
• Social Studies 

4 
3 
3 
3 

1. Meets HECB college 
academic distribution 
requirements (CADRs) 
in these subjects 
(exceeds in science). 

2. Provides knowledge 
base comparable to 
students nationally by 
matching the credit 
requirements of a 
majority of state. 

• A third credit of social studies must 
include civics 

• World 
Languages 

• Math-based 
Quantitative 
Class in Senior 
Year (math, 
science, or 
math-based 
CTE 

• Arts 

2 
0-1 (depend-
ing on when 
student takes 
math & 
science 
requirements
) 
2 

1. Completes alignment 
with HECB CADRs 
(exceeds in arts) thereby 
keeping all options open 
post high school. 

• HECB requires math in senior year 
(could be a physics class). 

• World languages could potentially fall 
into the waiver category. 

 
 

• Career 
Concentration 
(with Occ. Ed) 

• Health & 
Fitness 

• Electives 

1 + 2 
 
 
2 
1-2 

1. Increases breadth of 
preparation. 

2. Career concentration 
creates room in 
schedule for electives 
that correspond to a 
student’s educational 
and career goals. 

• Looking at requirements nationally – in 
30 states, there are fewer requirements 
in health and fitness. Career 
concentration is oftentimes a choice. 

• Culminating 
Project 

 1. Provides an opportunity 
for students to 
demonstrate applied 
academic skills and 
learning competencies 
that will be needed in 
life, work, and/or 
education. 

 

• High School 
and Beyond 
Plan 

 1. Provides regular 
opportunities to 
experience personalized 
guidance, connect K-12 
preparation with post 
high school goals, and 
refine goals. 

 

 



 

 
Straw Proposal for Revised Framework 

Jeff reminded the group that the framework needs to be centered on the Board’s (and 
legislature) definition of a meaningful high school diploma: getting high school graduates ready 
for postsecondary learning, careers and citizenship. Kathe presented for discussion a Straw 
Proposal of 20 essential college and career ready requirements as follows: 
 

Subject Credits Definition Board Discussion 
English 
Math 
Science  
Social Studies 
Arts 
World 
Language 

4 
3 
3 
3 
1 
2 

Meets or 
exceeds the 
minimum 
four-year 
college 
academic 
distribution 
requirements 
(CADRs). 

• Kathe took many factors into account, both with stakeholder 
feedback and other states to determine what is essential to 
Washington students. 

• The art credits are part of recognizing the creativity and 
innovation of students.  

• The arts are about creating well rounded kids in the world. 
There’s not a subject matter area that is more likely to keep 
kids in school than the arts. 

• The original Core 24 was created to make sure all options 
are available to students. We should acknowledge that as a 
default we want to try and prepare students for four-year 
college unless they choose not to attend college. 

• Students who submitted videos for the arts contest 
expressed the importance of art in their education. It’s 
important to remember that. 

• How many credits should there be to graduate in 
comparison to how much instruction time should the state 
pay for?  

• If students are planning to attend a competitive college, they 
need 24 credits. The state is required, in HB 2261, to pay for 
24 credits. 

• World languages should be part of the high school and 
beyond plan. 

• The Task Force did a great job of finding ways for flexibility. 
• Our state should pay for what we are capable of providing 

our kids, which is the opportunity to have 24 credits in a six-
period day.  

• We need to encourage kids to look ahead but it can’t be 
done without counselors and they’re being cut daily. 

• World language should be an elementary school 
requirement rather than a high school requirement. 

• We need to define the essential 20 credits and advocate for 
Core 24 when it’s funded. We should be looking at a phase-
in process. 

• How can we take side by side recommendations and 
communicate them to the legislature, schools, and 
communities to let them know what it will take to fund this 
and make our students successful? 

• Concern about the word “default” being used in relation to 
options for students. Default, by definition, means failure 
and should not be used when working with students on their 
career path. 

• Students should have options to go the direction they 
choose and be respected for their choices. 

• Suggested considering the Task Force recommendations 
and using them to continue talking about other options, such 

Health and 
Fitness 

1  

Career 
Preparation 
Career 
Pathway 
Electives 
(connected to 
the High 
School and 
Beyond Plan) 

1 
2 

Provides 
room for 
students to 
pursue a 
CTE 
program of 
study. 

Total Credits    20 
 



as: is there a core of 18 or 20 that are essential?  
• The framework takes college and career readiness into 

account – college in the greatest sense of postsecondary 
education of some kind and recognition that career 
readiness involves opportunities for CTE study.  

• The Core does not become core if everything can be 
waived. 

• The field is concerned about three credits of science and 
how lab is defined, whether two credits of world language 
will be required of all students, and whether we really need 
two credits of arts. 

• We should “beta test” any proposal with a large school 
district. 

 



 

 
Public Comment 

Mr. Kowalkowski thanked the Board for their work for kids in our state, saying nothing 
worthwhile is easy. He was glad that the Board is talking to the HECB and said that there needs 
to be more collaboration with higher education. He asked the Board not to use the term ‘default’ 
because it portrays failure. He asked the Board not to waive the culminating project 
requirement. Each district has its own unique process for their culminating project. He also 
asked the Board not to waive the requirement for the high school and beyond plan, saying that 
it’s flexible and should be required starting in middle school. He supports doing away with the 
150 hours of planned instructional activities. Educators across the state agree that sitting in high 
school for a minimum of 150 hours is a thing of the past. The reality is that funding levels are 
declining so the Board has some time to do a pilot program in districts to determine the way to 
go. Whatever bar the Board sets, districts will raise it. The credit recovery option is essential. If 
we raise the bar and require more from kids, more kids will drop out. The dropout is not due to 
disinterest, but to lack of credits. He encouraged the Board to raise the arts credit to two. 

Jim Kowalkowski, Davenport School District and Rural Education Center 

 

It was said earlier that Core 24 was set around having a meaningful high school diploma. A 
student can go through the Washington State system with all D’s and none of these kids will get 
into a four year university. The problem is we don’t have high expectations. There should be a 
requirement that students have at least all C’s in order to receive a high school diploma. The 
HECB revised the CADRs for quality rather than adding to a number of credits. He asked the 
Board where it says that the state legislature is willing to fund 24 credits when we have not been 
adequately funding 19 credits. When adding credits, he is supportive of it being student driven. 
Let the students choose what their interests are. If we force a number of electives it won’t do 
any good. 

Ricardo Sanchez, Latino Education Achievement Project 

 

Ms. Eisenhauer is well aware of the need for extra support for students and is advocating for 
every kid in the state. There are many kids who do not have an advocate and if adults would be 
more creative in solving the problems in the system, kids would be more successful. Our 
struggles come in trying to resolve challenging problems. We should respect multiple needs and 
should speak with a voice of truth. The Core 24 process is logistical. A six period, 24 credit 
process will not succeed. Many people do not know how to make arts education work with what 
they’ve been given, since there are those who don’t think arts education matters. Tacoma is 
going through a difficult process right now with restructuring their schools; however, the lowest 
five percent performing schools in Tacoma will still have the arts as part of their credits. Arts 
education is not the only answer but the support is needed in what we teach, how we teach, and 
when we teach it, rather than basing everything on the funding. 

Lynn Eisenhauer, Tacoma Public Schools, ArtsEd of Washington, Core 24 Task Force 

 

Where our students will live and work and the jobs that will be available to them in the future do 
not yet exist. They are opportunities and challenges we have yet to realize. She referenced a 
research document that was recently sent to the members from The Conference Board titled, 
“Ready to Innovate” where in 2008 both superintendents and staff agreed that creativity is 
important in the work place. The results were 99 and 97 percent, respectively. Despite the 
ongoing research, a challenge still exists of putting it into practice. With the two credits of art, 
ArtsEd of Washington encourages the Board to follow the goal. The arts can help students to be 
tenacious, team oriented problem solvers and confident and able to think creatively.  

Una McAlinden, ArtsEd of Washington 

 

Ms. Luce thanked the Board for the work on the meaningful high school diploma. The 
Partnership for Learning supports the work so far but has concerns about implications of 
requiring 24 credits. She reminded the Board about the state American Diploma Project (ADP) 

Anne Luce, Partnership for Learning 



and what that means here. She encouraged the Board as they begin to deliberate on alternative 
paths to Core 24 that they consider how Washington’s requirements compare to other states. 
Washington State needs to ensure that our students are receiving what they need to be college 
and career ready. 
 

Mr. Douthitt is excited to see the straw proposal and the flexibility reflected in the proposal. He is 
happy the Board is looking at new information and taking that into account. In reviewing the ITF 
recommendation, he asked the Board to be cautious with decision making in terms that it could 
likely be unevenly applied in districts. He does not support going to two art credits, Washington 
would be in a class by itself since other states have no more than 1.5 arts credits. It has been 
suggested that arts is the only way to develop creativity; however, there are many other ways to 
promote creativity, such as: social studies, science, math, and law.  

Bob Douthitt, Spokane School District 

 

 
Board Reflections 

• Mr. Schuster – asterisk world languages and continue to advocate for Core 24. 
• Mr. Liu – retain two credits in arts. Taking the core 18 that the Task Force has suggested 

and supplementing that with two world languages is the best balance for electives and is the 
best balance for structure and flexibility. 

• Mr. Hughes – due to lack of time, half of the districts in the state make the culminating 
project out of a collection of works. The intent was to try to simulate the real world with real 
world problems and this is not being done. The culminating project is still treated as a step 
child and needs more focus. Board should consider making it a credit based requirement. 
Moving the high school and beyond plan to middle school is an excellent idea.  

• Mr. Smith – diverse students are not only related to ethnicity. The students we’re talking 
about reference our diverse students, not just ethnicity. Everyone has goals and passions in 
life and it includes those collecting our garbage, delivering our mail, etc. They are as 
valuable as those who have the opportunity to attend a four year college. 

• Ms. Bragdon – we should go back and define what basic education is and what we think is 
the heart of the content of learning. She agrees with the 13 core subject requirements with 
11 additional ones being opportunities for personalization for the kids. If we leave a number 
of credits open it will make those kids seek help and will help counselors in their work with 
the kids. We need to think outside the box. We need to be strong in what we put out. Amy 
stressed the need to hold firm on the core courses. In the straw plan, it would have been the 
13 credits and she stressed that those “core” credits of 13, or whatever it ends to be, cannot 
be waived. They are fundamental courses that ALL students need and are therefore the 
foundation and are non-negotiable. The remainder of the courses becomes "requirements" 
for college entrance or "requirements" for career technical or whatever other post secondary 
plans are, as designated in their high school and beyond plan. These "requirements" might 
become courses that might become waived or negotiated. 

• Mr. Costanzo – there should be two credits in the arts.  
• Ms. Kastama – necessity of arts is important. The discussion that creativity can be 

accomplished in arts is not true. There is creativity in all subjects and that’s what keeps kids 
interested in school. 

• Ms. Fletcher – are we willing to support the 24 credits or are we willing to talk about the 
essential 20? We should stay with 24. 

• Ms. Frank – asterisk world languages, which keeps the playing field level. She needs a 
better understanding on how a lab science can be authenticated in the credits. She wants to 
be assured that in the name of all children being successful that the HECB is moving toward 
establishing a third credit of science for college admission. She likes the core and supports 
24 credits. 

• Ms. Ryan – likes the suggestion of beta testing for early adopters. In the past she has used 
the “safe harbor.” She does not think the system provides guidance to lower income children 
and particularly children of color. She advocates for preparing students for college; however, 
understands that not all kids are college bound. She is concerned about the earning 
potential of kids who do not attend college. She is passionate about the need to protect the 



 

interests of children who do not have a high school and beyond plan. We need to fund 
instructional time. We need some set of credits that are not waivable. 

 
More time will be given to this discussion at the July 2010 Board meeting. 
 



Prepared for July Board Meeting 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
APPROVAL OF PRIVATE SCHOOLS 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

Each private school seeking State Board of Education approval is required to submit an 
application to the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. The application materials 
include a State Standards Certificate of Compliance and documents verifying that the school 
meets the criteria for approval established by statute and regulations. A more complete 
description is attached for reference. 
 
Enrollment figures, including extension student enrollment, are estimates provided by the 
applicants. Actual student enrollment, number of teachers, and the teacher preparation 
characteristics will be reported to OSPI in October. This report generates the teacher/student 
ratio for both the school and extension programs. Pre-school enrollment is collected for 
information purposes only. 
 
Private schools may provide a service to the home school community through an extension 
program subject to the provisions of Chapter 28A.195 RCW. These students are counted for 
state purposes as private school students. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
Approval under RCW 28A.195.040 and Chapter 180-90 WAC. 
 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
The schools herein listed, having met the requirements of RCW 28A.195 and are consistent with the 
State Board of Education rules and regulations in chapter 180-90 WAC, be approved as private schools 
for the 2010-11 school year. 
 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  1 

Academic Institute 
Sherrill O’Shaughnessy 
13400 NE 20th  Suite 47 
Bellevue WA 98005-2023 
425.401.6844 

6-12 0 30 0 King 

Academy for Precision Learning 
Jennifer Annable 
5032 University Way NE 
(Mail: PO Box 51241 Seattle 98115-1241) 
Seattle WA 98105-4341 
206.427.0115 

K-5 0 35 0 King 

Academy NW/Family Academy 
Diana McAlister 
23420 Jordan Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 66839  Seattle 98106) 
Arlington WA 98223-9584 
360.435.9423 

K-12 0 10 350 Snohomish 

Academy Schools/Children’s Academy 
Janelle Neil 
318 5th Ave S 
(Mail: PO Box 1072  Kent 98035-1072) 
Kent WA 98032-5717 
253.852.4949 

P-12 8 40 0 King 

Alcuin School 
Christine Williams 
216 W Boston 
Seattle WA 98119-2641 
206.286.0771 

P-12 8 2 0 King 

Alger Learning Center 
John Lackey 
121 Alder Dr 
Sedro-Woolley WA 98284-8862 
360.595.2630 

K-12 0 5 20 Whatcom 

All Saints Catholic School 
Kathy Hicks 
3510 E 18th Ave 
Spokane WA 99223-3813 
509.534.1098 

P-8 50 430 0 Spokane 

All Saints School (8128) 
Stephen Morissette 
504 2nd St SW 
Puyallup WA 98371-5801 
253.845.5025 

3-8 0 250 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  2 

All Saints School (8469) 
Stephen Morissette 
2323 54th Ave E 
Fife WA 98424-1918 
253.922.5360 

P-2 36 150 0 Pierce 

Alta Vista School 
Charles Shores 
245 4th St   Suite 303 
Bremerton WA 98337-1801 
360.479.7438 

7-12 0 12 0 Kitsap 

Amazing Grace Christian School 
Dr. David-Paul Zimmerman 
10056 Renton Ave S 
Seattle WA 98178-2255 
206.723.5526 

P-8 75 190 0 King 

American Academy 
Brent Davis 
7834 SE 32nd St  Suite 204 
Mercer Island WA 98040-2972 
206.230.5672 

K-12 0 11 11 King 

Annie Wright School 
Rick Clarke 
827 Tacoma Ave N 
Tacoma WA 98403-2899 
253.284.5420 

P-12 30 440 0 Pierce 

Archbishop Thomas J Murphy High School 
Robert Graby 
12911 39th Ave SE 
Everett WA 98208-6159 
425.379.6363 

9-12 0 520 0 Snohomish 

Arlington Christian School 
Arthur Watson 
2425 200th NE 
(Mail: PO Box 3337  Arlington 98223-3337) 
Arlington WA 98223-9757 
360.652.2988 

P-12 10 75 0 Snohomish 

Assumption Catholic School 
Rose Goeres 
2116 Cornwall Ave 
Bellingham WA 98225-3699 
360.733.6133 

P-8 30 250 0 Whatcom 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  3 

 
Assumption Grade School 
John Lesko 
2066 E Alder St 
Walla Walla WA 99362-2699 
509.525.9283 

p-8 50 230 0 Walla 
Walla 

Assumption School 
Sonia Flores-Davis 
3618 W Indian Trail Rd 
Spokane WA 99208-4734 
509.328.1115 

P-8 22 125 0 Spokane 

Assumption St. Bridget School 
Kathi Hand 
6220 32nd Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98115-7233 
206.524.7452 

K-8 0 540 0 King 

Auburn Adventist Academy 
Samir Berbawy 
5000 Auburn Way S 
Auburn WA 98002-7204 
253.939.5000 

9-12 0 286 0 King 

Auburn Gateway School 
Emily Gomes 
410 H Street NE 
Auburn WA 98002-4369 
253.735.2242 

P-5 50 100 0 King 

Baker View Christian School 
W. Keith Lindsey 
5353 Waschke Rd 
Bellingham WA 98226-9212 
360.384.8155 

P-12 12 32 0 Whatcom 

Bellarmine Preparatory School 
Christopher Gavin 
2300 S Washington St 
Tacoma WA 98405-1399 
253.752.7701 

9-12 0 1035 0 Pierce 

Bellevue Children’s Academy 
Yuka Shimizu 
14600 NE 24th St 
Bellevue WA 98007-3723 
425.556.0791 

P-6 80 340 80 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  4 

 
Bellevue Christian Mack Elementary 
Ron Taylor 
18250 168th Pl NE 
(Mail: 1601 98th Ave NE  Clyde Hill 98004-3400) 
Woodinville WA 98072-9616 
425.485.1824 

P-6 80 151 0 King 

Bellevue Christian School 
Ron Taylor 
1601 98th Ave NE 
Clyde Hill WA 98004-3400 
425.454.4402 

7-12 0 442 0 King 

Bellevue Montessori School 
Christine Hoffman 
2411 112th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98004-2048 
425.454.7439 

P-6 130 62 0 King 

Bellingham Christian School 
Bob Sampson 
1600 E Sunset Dr 
Bellingham WA 98226-5631 
360.733.7303 

P-8 20 182 0 Whatcom 

Bel-Red Bilingual Academy 
Sue Tang 
15061 Bel-Red Rd 
Bellevue WA 98007-4211 
425.283.0717 

P-3 30 35 0 King 

Bertschi School 
Rachel O’Loughlin 
2227 10th Ave E 
Seattle WA 98102-4177 
206.324.5476 

P-5 16 216 0 King 

Bethany Lutheran Elementary 
Timothy Ties 
151 Tremont St W 
Port Orchard WA 98366-3737 
360.876.1300 

P-8 15 65 0 Kitsap 

Bethlehem Lutheran School 
Eric Haan 
1409 S Garfield St 
Kennewick WA 99337-4766 
509.582.5624 

P-8 62 143 0 Benton 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  5 

 
Billings Middle School 
Ted Kalmus 
7217 Woodlawn Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98115-5335 
206.547.4614 

6-8 0 90 0 King 

Bishop Blanchet High School 
Dr. Kris Brynildsen-Smith 
8200 Wallingford Ave N 
Seattle WA 98103-4599 
206.527.7711 

9-12 0 994 0 King 

BK Play Academy for Gifted Children 
Ben Kwak 
6236 122nd Ave SE 
Bellevue WA 98006-4445 
425.747.4775 

P-3 14 6 0 King 

Bridgeway Christian Academy 
Roxann Rose 
858 W Smith Rd 
Bellingham WA 98226-9613 
360.384.5923 

K-3 0 24 0 Whatcom 

Bright Futures Christian School (formerly Bright 
Futures Learning Center ) 
Cindie Boyles 
717 SE Everett Rd 
Camas WA 98607-7164 
360.835.0558 

P-3 70 50 0 Clark 

Bright Water School 
Laura Crandall 
1501 Tenth Ave E  Suite100 
Seattle WA 98102-4256 
206.624.6176 

P-8 17 129 0 King 

Brighton School 
David Locke 
6717 212th St SW 
Lynnwood WA 98036-7325 
425.672.4430 

P-8 75 225 0 Snohomish 

Brooklake Christian School 
Brian Donovan 
629 S 356th St 
Federal Way WA 98003-8651 
253.517.8198 

P-6 60 200 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  6 

 
Buena Vista SDA School 
Ron Trautwein 
3320 Academy Dr SE 
Auburn WA 98092-7341 
253.833.0718 

P-8 10 190 0 King 

Burley Christian School 
Dennis Myers 
14687 Olympic Dr SE 
(Mail: PO Box 729  Port Orchard 98366-0729) 
Port Orchard WA 98367-8918 
253.857.6200 

P-12 6 100 0 Kitsap 

Calvary Chapel Christian School 
Jim Fitzpatrick 
16409 E Broadway Ave 
Spokane Valley WA 99037-9542 
509.921.9460 

P-6 20 20 0 Spokane 

Calvary Christian Academy 
Jeanene Lorey 
3332 Colby Ave 
Everett WA 98201-4309 
425.481.9136 

P-2 10 10 0 Snohomish 

Calvary Christian School 
Robb Wallace 
2001 S Tweedt St. 
Kennewick WA 99338-1999 
509.735.1002 

P-8 15 130 0 Benton 

Can Learn Academy 
Carli Robinson 
8415 N Wall St 
(Mail: PO Box 9233  Spokane 98208-9233) 
Spokane WA 99208-6108 
509.624.3109 

P-12 1 11 4 Spokane 

Carden Country School 
Christopher Harvey 
6974 Island Center Rd NE 
(Mail: PO Box 10160  Bainbridge 98110-1618) 
Bainbridge WA 98110-1618 
206.842.2721 

K-12 0 40 5 Kitsap 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  7 

 
Carpe Diem Primary School Inc 
Janice Campbell 
10014 SW Bank Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 141 Vashon 98070-0141) 
Vashon WA 98070-4646 
206.463.1998 

K-3 0 24 0 King 

Cascade Christian Academy 
Brian Harris 
600 N Western Ave 
Wenatchee WA 98801-1204 
509.662.2723 

P-12 45 142 0 Chelan 

Cascade Christian Junior High/High School 
Terry Broberg 
811 21st St SE 
Puyallup WA 98372-4760 
253.445.9706 

7-12 0 531 0 Pierce 

Cascade Christian Schools-Puyallup Elem 
Joyce Blum 
601 9th Ave SE  Suite B 
Puyallup WA 98372-3832 
253.841.1776 

K-6 0 348 0 Pierce 

Cascade Christian Schools-Frederickson 
Elementary 
Mary Severeid 
17408 36th Ave E 
(Mail: 3425 176th SE  Tacoma 98446-1209) 
Tacoma WA 98446-1353 
253.537.9339 

P-6 95 180 0 Pierce 

Cascade Christian Schools-Tacoma Elem 
Bonita Cheshier 
1819 E 72nd St 
Tacoma WA 98404-5406 
253.841.1776 

P-6 31 101 0 Pierce 

Cascade Independent High School 
Joel Black 
1849 Marshall Ave 
Enumclaw WA 98022-3106 
360.825.0865 

3-12 0 3 2 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  8 

 
Cascadia Montessori School 
Marilyn Franklin 
4239 162nd Ave NE 
Redmond WA 98052-5469 
425.881.2885 

K-4 0 65 0 King 

Cascadia School 
David Drakos 
10606 NE 14th St 
Vancouver WA 98664-4304 
360.944.8096 

1-8 0 120 0 Clark 

Cataldo School 
Stephanie Johnson 
455 W 18th Ave 
Spokane WA 99203-2099 
509.624.8759 

P-8 42 267 0 Spokane 

Cedar Crest Academy    Initial 
Gail Domingos 
10406 NE 37th Circle 
Kirkland WA 98033-7924 
425.889.1111 

P-1 99 22 0 King 

Cedar Park Christian School (8771) 
Dr. Clinton Behrends 
16300 112th Ave NE 
Bothell WA 98011-1535 
425.488.9778 

P-12 60 1100 0 King 

Cedar Park Christian School (8537) 
Dr. Clint Behrends 
13000 21st Dr SE 
(Mail: PMB 641 13300 Bothell-Everett Hwy  Mill Creek 
98012-5312) 
Everett WA 98208-7103 
425.337.6992 

P-8 30 130 0 Snohomish 

Cedar Park Christian Schools—Lynnwood 
Campus 
Clint Behrends 
17932 64th Ave W 
Lynnwood WA 98037-7106 
425.742.9518 

P-6 40 100 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  9 

 
Cedar Park Christian School—Bellevue 
Campus (formerly Neighborhood Christian School) 
Karen Ingle 
625 140th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98005-3498 
425.746.3258 

P-6 25 50 0 King 

Cedar River Montessori School 
Charis Sharp 
15828 SE Jones Rd 
Renton WA 98058-8141 
425.271.9614 

P-6 46 76 0 King 

Cedar Tree Classical Christian School 
Tom Bradshaw 
20601 NE 29th Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 65520  Vancouver 98665-0018) 
Ridgefield WA 98642-8675 
360.887.0190 

K-12 0 146 0 Clark 

Cedar Tree Montessori 
Kim Feerer 
2114 Broadway Ave 
Bellingham WA 98225-3308 
360.714.1762 

1-6 0 47 0 Whatcom 

Cedar Valley Academy (formerly Calvary 
Academy) 
Dr. Valerie Witt 
268 Big Hanaford Rd 
Centralia WA 98531-9113 
360.736.1700 

3-12 0 30 26 Lewis 

Cedarhome Adventist Christian School 
Frank Meidell 
28505 68th Ave NW 
Stanwood WA 98292-9401 
360.629.5340 

1-8 0 10 0 Snohomish 

Centralia Christian School 
Denny Taylor 
1315 S Tower Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 1209  Centralia 98531-0726) 
Centralia WA 98531-2340 
360.736.7657 

P-8 28 180 0 Lewis 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  10 

 
Charles Wright Academy 
Robert Camner 
7723 Chambers Creek Rd W 
University Place WA 98467-2099 
253.620.8311 

P-12 24 648 0 Pierce 

Chestnut Hill Academy 
Jodel Kovich 
2610 116th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98004-1422 
425.576.1212 

K-1 0 80 0 King 

Chestnut Hill Academy South Campus 
Holly Senga 
13633 SE 26th St 
Bellevue WA 98005-4209 
425.372.2800 

K-8 0 200 0 King 

Child School—New Heights School at 
Children’s Institute 
Trina Westerlund 
4030 86th Ave SE 
Mercer Island WA 98040-4198 
206.323.8680 

P-12 5 45 0 King 

Children’s Garden Montessori 
Kathleen Kehl 
2440 Garlick Blvd 
Richland WA 99354-1786 
509.375.1638 

1-2 0 24 0 Benton 

Children’s School of Excellence 
Trina Greenbury 
13411 Cedar Grove Ln SE 
(Mail: PO Box 1065  Rainier 98597-2036) 
Rainier WA 98576-9558 
360.446.1100 

K-6 0 60 0 Thurston 

Christ the King Academy 
DeAnna Henning 
705 NE Lincoln Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 2460  Poulsbo 98370-0921) 
Poulsbo WA 98370-7512 
360.779.9189 

K-8 0 145 0 Kitsap 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  11 

 
Christ the King Lutheran School 
Bruce Babler 
8065 Chico Way NW 
Bremerton WA 98312-1049 
360.692.8799 

P-8 15 60 0 Kitsap 

Christ the King School (8003) 
Joe Jisa 
1122 Long Ave 
Richland WA 99354-3315 
509.946.6158 

K-8 0 431 0 Benton 

Christ the King School (8031) 
Terence Maguire 
415 N 117th St 
Seattle WA 98133-8309 
206.364.6890 

P-8 31 154 0 King 

Christian Faith School 
Natalie Ellington 
33645 20th Ave S 
Federal Way WA 98003-7743 
253.943.2500 

P-12 30 300 25 King 

Christian Heritage School 
Martin Klein 
48009 Ida Ave E 
(Mail: PO Box 118  Edwall 99008-0118) 
Edwall WA 99008-8502 
509.236.2224 

K-12 0 98 0 Lincoln 

Christian Worship Center Elementary 
Judy Wangemann 
204 Cheyne Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 747  Zillah 98953-0747) 
Zillah WA 98953-9764 
509.829.6965 

P-12 6 47 0 Yakima 

Chrysalis School (8766) 
Karen Fogle 
18720 142nd Ave NE 
(Mail: 14241 NE Woodinville Duvall Rd  Woodinville 
98072-8564) 
Woodinville WA 98072-8464 
425.481.2228 

9-12 0 140 10 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  12 

 
Chrysalis School (8897) 
Karen Fogle 
7005 140th ave NE 
(Mail: 14241 NE Woodinville Duvall Rd  Woodinville 
98072-8564) 
Woodinville WA 98072-6902 
425.481.2228 

K-8 0 50 10 King 

Columbia Adventist Academy 
Matthew Butte 
11100 NE 189th St 
Battle Ground WA 98604-9496 
360.687.3161 

9-12 0 105 0 Clark 

Colville Valley Junior Academy 
Richard Bergeson 
139 E Cedar Lp 
Colville WA 99114-9237 
509.684.6830 

1-8 0 12 0 Stevens 

Community Christian Academy 
Richard Graham 
4706 Park Center Ave NE 
Lacey WA 98516-5338 
360.493.2223 

K-8 50 210 0 Thurston 

Community Montessori 
CathyRaye Hyland 
1407 South I St 
Tacoma WA 98405-5026 
253.627.7554 

P-8 15 5 5 Pierce 

Concordia Lutheran School (8134) 
Al Hagen 
202 E 56th St 
Tacoma WA 98404-1298 
253.475.9513 

P-8 8 240 0 Pierce 

Concordia Lutheran School (8032) 
David Meyer 
7040 36th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98115-5966 
206.525.7407 

P-8 65 50 0 King 

Cornerstone Academy 
Michelle Jones 
14377 Freylands Blvd SE 
Monroe WA 98272-2917 
425.892.3030 

P-6 56 46 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  13 

Cornerstone Christian Academy 
David Kistler 
1801 E 29th Ave 
Spokane WA 99203-3916 
509.835.1235 

P-8 5 50 0 Spokane 

Cornerstone Christian School 
Otto Bouwman 
8872 Northwood Rd 
Lynden WA 98264-9363 
360.318.0663 

1-12 0 110 0 Whatcom 

Cornerstone Christian School (8683) 
Ralph Cassel 
7708 NE 78th St 
Vancouver WA 98662-3632 
360.256.9715 

K-8 0 300 0 Clark 

Cornerstone Christian School (8966) 
Debbie Solie, Interim 
5501 Wiggins Rd SE 
Olympia WA 98501-5057 
360.923.0071 

P-8 15 65 0 Thurston 

Cougar Mountain Academy 
Donna Ballard 
5410 194th Ave SE 
Issaquah WA 98027-8626 
425.641.2800 

P-5 25 75 0 King 

Countryside Montessori School 
Teresa Smith 
13630 100th Ave NE  Building 2 
Kirkland WA 98034-5200 
425.823.2211 

P-3 73 20 0 King 

Covenant Christian School 
Fred Hanko 
9088 Northwood Rd 
Lynden WA 98264-9389 
360.354.5436 

K-8 0 30 0 Whatcom 

Covenant High School 
Richard Hannula 
620 S Shirley St 
Tacoma WA 98465-2531 
253.759.9570 

9-12 0 105 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  14 

 
Crestview Christian School 
Melissa Wallen 
1601 W Valley Rd 
Moses Lake WA 98837-1466 
509.765.4632 

1-9 0 38 0 Grant 

Crosspoint Academy 
Eric Rasmussen 
4012 Chico Way NW 
(Mail: PO Box 330303 Seattle 98133-9703) 
Bremerton WA 98312-1334 
206.546.7211 

K-12 0 266 0 Kitsap 

Cypress Adventist School 
Lowell Dunston 
21500 Cypress Way 
Lynnwood WA 98036-7999 
425.775.3578 

K-8 0 65 0 Snohomish 

Dartmoor—Bellevue (8933) 
Jeffrey Woolley 
13401 Bel-Red Rd 
Bellevue WA 98005-2322 
425.603.1975 

K-12 0 30 0 King 

Dartmoor—Issaquah 
22500 SE 65th Pl  #130 
(Mail: 13401 Bel-Red Rd   Bellevue 98005-2322) 
Issaquah WA 98027-8111 
425.603.1975 

K-12 0 15 0 King 

Dartmoor School—Redmond 
Jeffrey Woolley 
7735 178th Pl NE 
(Mail: 13401 Bel-Red Rd   Bellevue 98005-2322) 
Redmond WA 98052-4921 
425.885.1123 

K-12 0 10 0 King 

Dartmoor—Seattle 
Jeffrey Woolley 
9818 Roosevelt Way NE 
(Mail: 13401 Bel-Red Rd  Bellevue 98005-2322) 
Seattle WA 98115-2236 
425.603.0313 

K-12 0 30 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  15 

 
Dartmoor—Woodinville 
Jeffrey Woolley 
17305 139th Ave NE 
(Mail: 13401 Bel-Red Rd  Bellevue 98005-2322) 
Woodinville WA 98072-8571 
425.603.1975 

K-12 0 19 0 King 

Der Kinderhuis Montessori 
Kari Sanders 
900 SE Dock St 
Oak Harbor WA 98277-4063 
360.675.4165 

P-5 85 10 0 Island 

Des Moines Creek Academy 
John Savage 
18635 8th Ave S 
Des Moines WA 98148-1915 
206.824.4468 

K-8 0 50 0 King 

DeSales Catholic School 
John Lesko 
919 E Sumach 
Walla Walla WA 99362-1349 
509.525.3030 

9-12 0 100 0 Walla 
Walla 

Discovery Depot Montessori 
Constance Falconer 
7333 Tracyton Blvd 
Bremerton WA 98311-9036 
360.337.1400 

P-3 45 35 0 Kitsap 

Discovery Montessori 
Karen Nelson 
1026 Sidney Ave  #160 
Port Orchard WA 98366-9036 
360.337.5745 

P-6 60 45 0 Kitsap 

Discovery School 
Gayle Peterson 
323 S Grant 
Spokane WA 99204-2601 
509.838.0606 

P-6 30 70 0 Spokane 

Eagle View Christian School    Initial 
Barbara Ballou 
13036 Morris Rd SE 
Yelm WA 98597-9211 
360.458.3090 

P-12 14 110 3 Thurston 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  16 

 
Eastside Academy 
Toni Esparza 
1717 Bellevue Way NE 
Bellevue WA 98004-2853 
425.452.9920 

9-12 0 40 0 King 

Eastside Catholic School 
Sr. Mary Tracy SNJM 
232 228th Ave SE 
Sammamish WA 98074-7207 
425.295.3000 

6-12 0 800 0 King 

Eastside Christian School 
Dr. Brian Fitch 
14615 SE 22nd St 
Bellevue WA 98007-6242 
425.641.5570 

P-8 84 230 0 King 

Eastside Learning Community    Initial 
Laura Thompson 
12443 Bel-Red Rd  Suite 380 
Bellevue WA 98005-2534 
425.453.6227 

6-8 0 12 0 King 

Eastside Montessori Education Foundation 
Mary O’Brien 
1107 228th Ave SE 
Sammamish WA 98075-9509 
425.392.3866 

P-6 24 41 0 King 

Eastside Preparatory School 
Dr. Terry Macaluso 
10635 NE 38th Pl 
Kirkland WA 98033-7927 
425.822.5668 

5-12 0 201 0 King 

Ebenezer Christian School 
Jim Buss 
9390 Guide Meridian Rd 
Lynden WA 98264-9798 
360.354.2632 

P-8 9 88 0 Whatcom 

Educational Advancement Academy (8384) 
Ruth Wilson 
9750 Third Ave NE  Suite 102 
Seattle WA 98115-2022 
206.284.2300 

6-12 0 11 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  17 

 
Educational Advancement Academy (8534) 
Ruth Wilson 
12360 NE 8th St  Suite 210 
Bellevue WA 98005-4801 
425.373.0800 

6-12 0 4 0 King 

Educational Advancement Academy (1406) 
Ruth Wilson 
711 228th Ave NE 
Sammamish WA 98074-7223 
425.836.1600 

6-12 0 7 0 King 

Ellensburg Christian School 
Anna Ng 
407 S Anderson St 
(Mail: PO Box 426  Ellensburg 98926-0426) 
Ellensburg WA 98926-3805 
509.925.2411 

P-12 10 102 0 Kittitas 

Emerald Heights Academy 
Jeanne Belmonte 
3850 156th Ave SE 
(Mail: PNB 2144 140 NW Gilman Blvd #2  Issaquah 
98027-5394) 
Bellevue WA 98006-1760 
425.643.1671 

P-8 10 61 0 King 

Epiphany School 
Matt Neely 
3710 E Howell St 
Seattle WA 98122-3471 
206.323.9011 

P-5 28 197 0 King 

ETC Preparatory Academy 
Ruth Hayes-Short 
9655 SE 36th St  Suite 101 
Mercer Island WA 98040-3798 
206.236.1095 

K-12 0 100 0 King 

Eton School 
Patricia Feltin 
2701 Bel-Red Rd 
Bellevue WA 98008-2253 
425.881.4230 

P-8 93 221 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  18 

 
Everett Christian School 
Matthew Kamps 
2221 Cedar St 
Everett WA 98201-2599 
425.259.3213 

P-8 7 78 0 Snohomish 

Evergreen Academy 
Dana Mott 
16017 118th Pl NE 
Bothell WA 98011-4151 
425.488.8000 

P-6 125 184 0 King 

Evergreen Academy of Arts & Sciences 
Mary Ann White 
506 S Washington Ave 
Centralia WA 98531-2622 
360.330.1833 

P-7 12 31 0 Lewis 

Evergreen Christian School (8332) 
Cyndi Pollard 
1010 Black Lake Blvd SW 
Olympia WA 98502-5723 
360.357.5590 

P-8 120 320 0 Thurston 

Evergreen Christian School  (branch campus  
of Lynden Christian School) 
Mary Enfield 
567 E Kellogg Rd 
Bellingham WA 98226-8181 
360.738.8248 

P-8 25 110 0 Whatcom 

Evergreen Lutheran High School 
Gregory Thiesfeldt 
2021 S 260th St 
Des Moines WA 98198-9025 
253.946.4488 

9-12 0 105 0 King 

Evergreen School  
Margaret Wagner 
15201 Meridian Ave N 
Shoreline WA 98133-6331 
206.957.1524 

P-8 42 376 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  19 

 
Explorations Academy/Global Community 
Institute 
Daniel Kirkpatrick 
1701 Ellis St 
(Mail: PO Box 3014  Bellingham 98227-3014) 
Bellingham WA 98225-4617 
360.671.8085 

8-12 0 20 0 Whatcom 

Explorer West Middle School 
Evan Hundley 
10015 28th Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98146-3708 
206.935.0495 

6-8 0 95 0 King 

Fairview Christian School (North Sound Christian 
Schools) 
Sharliee West 
844 NE 78th St 
Seattle WA 998115-4202 
206.526.0762 

P-8 30 70 0 King 

Faith Christian School 
Anita Utley 
12928 N Yale Rd 
Mead WA 99021-9063 
509.979.9270 

P-12 1 3 0 Spokane 

Faith Lutheran School 
Philip Adickes 
113 S 96th St 
Tacoma WA 98444-6502 
253.537.2696 

P-8 8 72 0 Pierce 

Faith Lutheran School of Redmond 
Barbara Deming 
9041 166th Ave NE 
Redmond WA 98052-3709 
425.885.1810 

P-3 62 25 0 King 

Family Academy/Academy NW 
Candice Childs 
14629 20th Ave SW 
(Mail: PO Box 66839  Seattle 98166-0839) 
Seattle WA 98166-3709 
206.246.9227 

K-12 0 5 350 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  20 

 
Family House Academy 
Lisa Mustion 
1220 Carroll Rd 
Kelso WA 98626-9467 
360.425.7481 

K-8 0 35 0 Cowlitz 

Farmington SDA School 
Jennifer Wintermeyer 
403 N Second 
(Mail: PO Box 187  Farmington 99128-0187) 
Farmington WA 99128 
509.287.2601 

1-8 0 6 0 Whitman 

Firm Foundation Christian School 
Scott Grove 
19919 NE 107th Ave 
Battle Ground WA 98604-7451 
360.687.8382 

P-12 32 330 0 Clark 

First Place School 
Dr. Doreen Cato 
172 20th Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 22536  Seattle 98122-0536) 
Seattle WA 98122-5862 
206.3223.6715 

P-6 24 60 0 King 

First Presbyterian Christian School 
Tracy Blue 
318 S Cedar 
Spokane WA 99201-7030 
509.747.9192 

P-2 145 75 0 Spokane 

Five Acre School 
William Jevne 
515 Lotzgesell Rd 
Sequim WA 98382-8072 
360.681.7255 

P-6 24 64 0 Clallam 

Foothills Christian School 
William McKenzie 
208 Snoqualmie St 
(Mail: PO Box 2537  Mt Vernon 98273-2537) 
Mount Vernon WA 98273 
360.420.7949 

P-8 5 35 0 Skagit 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  21 

 
Forest Park Adventist School 
Shannon Whidden 
4120 Federal Ave 
Everett WA 98203-2117 
425.258.6911 

K-8 0 45 0 Snohomish 

Forest Ridge School of Sacred Heart 
Mark Pierotti 
4800 139th Ave SE 
Bellevue WA 98006-3015 
425.641.0700 

5-12 0 387 0 King 

Franklin Academy 
Stephen Halliday 
283 E Reata Rd 
Kennewick WA 99338-8873 
509.628.9265 

P-12 15 25 12 Benton 

Freedom Academy 
Leonard Edlund 
9512 186th St Ct E 
Puyallup WA 98375-6303 
253.875.6626 

K-12 0 3 3 Pierce 

French Immersion School of Washington 
Veronique Dussud 
4211 W Lake Sammamish Parkway SE 
Bellevue WA 98008-5936 
425.653.3970 

P-5 64 129 0 King 

French-American School of Puget Sound 
Andrée McGiffin 
3795 E Mercer Way 
Mercer Island WA 98040-3849 
206.275.3533 

P-8 79 221 0 King 

Gardenview Montessori 
Kelda Adair 
3242 Firwood Ave 
Bellingham WA 98225-1424 
360.527.9638 

P-1 32 8 0 Whatcom 

Gardner School 
Mark McGough 
16413 NE 50th Ave 
Vancouver WA 98686-1843 
360.574.5752 

P-8 33 70 0 Clark 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  22 

 
Giddens School 
Robert Kogane 
620 20th Ave S 
Seattle WA 98144-2209 
206.324.4847 

P-5 65 110 0 King 

Gig Harbor Academy 
Vince Fragasso 
6820 33rd St NW 
Gig Harbor WA 98335-6417 
253.265.2150 

P-5 85 50 0 Pierce 

Glendale Lutheran School 
Karin Manns 
13455 2nd Ave SW 
Burien WA 98146-3320 
206.244.6085 

P-8 20 45 0 King 

Goldendale Christian School 
Bob Kindler 
1180 S Roosevelt 
(Mail: PO Box 603  Goldendale 98620-0603) 
Goldendale WA 98620 
509.773.0232 

P-12 6 19 0 Kittitas 

Gonzaga Preparatory School 
Kevin Connell, S.J. 
1224 E Euclid Ave 
Spokane WA 99207-2899 
509.483.8511 

9-12 0 965 0  Spokane 

Gospel Outreach 
David Hill 
1925 South Bay Rd 
Olympia WA 98506 
360.786.0070 

1-12 0 49 15 Thurston 

Grace Academy 
Timothy Lugg 
8521 67th Ave NE 
Marysville WA 98270-7855 
360.659.8517 

P-12 18 310 0 Snohomish 

Grace Lutheran School 
Matthew Fager 
1207 S 7th Ave 
Yakima WA 98902-5567 
509.427-6611 

P-8 10 35 0 Yakima 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  23 

 
Grandview Adventist Junior Academy 
Sandra Olson 
106 N Elm St 
Grandview WA 98930-1009 
509.882.3817 

P-8 10 240 0 Yakima 

Grays Harbor Adventist Christian School 
Adria Hay 
1216 State Route 12 
Montesano WA 98563 
360.249.1115 

K-8 0 16 0 Grays 
Harbor 

Greater Trinity Christian Learning Academy 
Paul Stoot Sr. 
11229 4th Ave W 
Everett WA 98204-4928 
425.355.9871 

P-1 30 20 0 Snohomish 

Green Pastures Learning Center 
Bruce Whitmore 
71 Green Meadows Dr 
Yakima WA 98908-9602 
509.966.1234 

K-12 0 2 0 Yakima 

Green River Montessori School 
Diana Holz 
922 12th St NE 
Auburn WA 98002-4246 
253.833.7010 

P-12 50 30 0 King 

Guardian Angel St Boniface School 
Lori Becker 
306 Steptoe St 
(Mail: PO Box 48   Colton 99113-0048) 
Colton WA 99113 
509.229.3579 

K-8 0 26 0 Whitman 

Hamlin Robinson School 
Jean Beauregard 
1700 E Union St 
Seattle WA 98122-4140 
206.763.1167 

1-8 0 116 0 King 

Harbor Christian Schools 
Bonnie Mudge 
4819 NW Hunt St 
(Mail: PO Box 2135  Gig Harbor 98335-4135) 
Gig Harbor WA 98335-4135 

P-12 8 50 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  24 

 
Harbor School 
James Cardo 
15920 Vashon Hwy SW 
(Mail: PO Box 1912   Vashon 98070-1912) 
Vashon WA 98070 
206.567.5955 

4-8 0 47 0 King 

Harbor Montessori School 
Sonya Cary 
5414 Comte Dr 
Gig Harbor WA 98335-7424 
253.851.5722 

P-9 20 100 0 Pierce 

Harrah Community Christian School 
Marie Wegmulller 
121 W Pioneer St 
(Mail: PO Box 68  Harrah 98933-0068) 
Harrah WA 98933 
509.848.2418 

P-8 10 45 0 Yakima 

Heritage Christian Academy 
Holland Clifford Ridgely 
10310 NE 195th St 
Bothell WA 98011-2930 
425.485.2585 

P-9 115 115 0 King 

Heritage Christian School (8296) 
Glenn Fisher 
5412 67th Ave W 
University Place WA 98467-2246 
253.564.6276 

K-8 0 160 0 Pierce 

Highland Christian Schools 
Kevin Reimer 
135 S French 
Arlington WA 98223-1698 
360.403.8351 

K-12 0 100 0 Snohomish 

Hillcrest Academy 
Martha Smith 
9306 8th St SE 
Everett WA 98205-3831 
425.334.9686 

K-12 0 3 20 Snohomish 

Hillside Student Community School 
Kael Sherrard 
5027 159th Pl SE 
Bellevue WA 98006-3636 
425.747.6448 

5-12 0 45 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  25 

Holy Family Parish School 
Jackie Degel 
7300 120th Ave NE 
Kirkland WA 98033 
425.827.0444 

P-8 46 255 0 King 

Holy Family School (8041) 
Frank Cantwell 
9615 20th Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98106-2786 
206.767.6640 

P-8 20 150 0 King 

Holy Family School (8098) 
Daniel Hill 
505 17th St SE 
Auburn WA 98002-6895 
253.833.8688 

P-8 16 170 0 King 

Holy Family School (8340) 
Barbara Dettlaff 
2606 Carpenter Rd SE 
(Mail: PO Box 3700  Lacey 98509-3700) 
Lacey WA 98503-3999 
360.491.7060 

P-8 10 100 0 Thurston 

Holy Family School (8000) 
Marybeth Richardson 
1002 Chestnut St 
Clarkston WA 99403-2595 
509.758.6621 

P-6 30 100 0 Asotin 

Holy Innocents School of Northwest 
Dennis Cantwell 
2530 S 298th St 
Federal Way WA 98003-4219 
253.839.0788 

K-12 0 30 0 King 

Holy Names Academy 
Elizabeth Swift 
728 21st Ave E 
Seattle WA 98112-4058 
206.323.4272 

9-12 0 670 0 King 

Holy Rosary Elementary 
Dr. Randal Peters 
4142 42nd Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98116-4202 
206.937.7255 

K-8 0 496 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  26 

 
Holy Rosary School 
Rudy Navarro 
504 S 30th St 
Tacoma WA 98402-1104 
253.272.7012 

P-8 15 135 0 Pierce 

Holy Rosary, Edmonds 
Dr. Kathleen Carr 
770 Aloha St 
(Mail: PO Box 206  Edmonds 98020-0206) 
Edmonds WA 98020-3019 
425.778.3197 

P-12 15 249 0 Snohomish 

Holy Trinity Lutheran School 
Stephan Rodmyre 
2021 S 260th St 
Des Moines WA 98198-9025 
253.839.6516 

P-8 12 135 0 King 

Home Port Learning Center 
Ralph Smallwood 
707 Astor St 
Bellingham WA 98225-4048 
360.715.8860 

7-12 0 24 0 Whatcom 

Hope Lutheran School 
Jeff Allen 
4456 42nd Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98116-4223 
206.935.8500 

P-8 40 160 0 King 

Horizon School 
Suzanne McArthur 
1512 NW 195th St 
Shoreline WA 98177-2820 
206.546.0133 

P-1 50 12 0 King 

Hosanna Christian School 
Steve Briner 
4120 NE St. Johns Rd 
Vancouver WA 98661-3226 
3630.906.0941 

P-8 22 150 0 Clark 

Hyla Middle School 
Thomas Weber 
7861 Bucklin Hill Rd NE 
Bainbridge WA 98110-2603 
206.842.5988 

6-8 0 86 0 Kitsap 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  27 

 
Imagination School of Education 
Fralisa McFall 
14917 9th Ave Ct E 
Tacoma WA 98445-2586 
253.535.2522 

P-10 4 20 0 Pierce 

Immaculate Conception Regional School 
Kathleen Cartee 
1321 E Division St 
Mount Vernon WA 98274-4132 
360.428.3912 

P-8 32 220 0 Skagit 

Immaculate Conception/Our Lady of 
Perpetual Help 
Donna Ramos 
2508 Hoyt Ave 
Everett WA 98201-2906 
425.349.7777 

P-8 35 272 0 Snohomish 

Islamic School of Seattle 
Ann El-Moskimany 
720 25th Ave 
Seattle WA 98122-4902 
206.329.5735 

P-8 18 43 10 King 

Island Christian Academy 
Karen Norton 
5373 S Maxwelton Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 1048  Langley 98260) 
Langley WA 98260-9521 
360.221.0919 

P-12 5 110 0 Island 

Jefferson Community School 
Linda Maquire 
280 Quincy St 
Port Townsend WA 98368-5782 
360.385.0622 

6-12 0 27 0 Jefferson 

Jewish Day School 
Maria Erlitz 
15749 NE 4th St 
Bellevue WA 98008-4317 
425.460.0200 

P-8 30 200 0 King 

John F Kennedy Catholic High School 
Michael Prato 
140 S 140th St 
Burien WA 98168 
206.246.0500 

9-12 0 950 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  28 

Johnson Christian School 
760 E Columbia 
(Mail: PO Box 583  Colville 99114-0583) 
Colville WA 99114-9766 
509.684.8631 

P-12 15 50 5 Stevens 

Jubilee Academy 
Rick Griffin 
29 Jubilee Circle 
Prescott WA 99348-8607 
509.749.2103 

9-12 0 50 0 Walla 
Walla 

Kapka Cooperative Primary School 
Kathi Bulfin 
4918 Linden Ave N 
Seattle WA 98103-6537 
206.522.0350 

K-2 0 42 0 King 

Kelso Longview Adventist School 
Tracy Lang 
96 Garden St. 
Kelso WA 98626-1969 
360.423.9250 

P-8 10 45 0 Cowlitz 

Kentwood Christian Academy 
Leta Johnson 
26225 164th Ave SE 
Covington WA 98042 
253.631.8853 

6-12 0 50 20 King 

Kings Schools 
Eric Rasmussen 
19303 Fremont Ave N 
(Mail: PO Box 330303  Seattle 98133-9703) 
Seattle WA 98133-3800 
206.546.7211 

P-12 84 1106 0 King 

King’s Way Christian School 
Ron Franklin 
3300 NE 78th St 
Vancouver WA 98665-0656 
360.574.1613 

K-12 0 600 0 Clark 

Kingspoint Christian School 
Georgia Perkins 
7900 W Court St 
Pasco WA 99301-1771 
509.547.6498 

K-12 0 170 0 Franklin 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  29 

 
Kirkland SDA School 
Linda Tabor 
5320 108th Ave NE 
Kirkland WA 98033-7517 
425.822.7554 

K-8 0 115 0 King 

Kitsap Adventist Christian School 
Heather Phelps 
5088 NW Taylor Rd 
Bremerton WA 98312-8803 
360.377.4542 

1-8 0 20 0 Kitsap 

La Escuela/Language Academy Inc 
Nathan Wilson 
7703 NE 72nd Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 821384  Vancouver 98682-0031) 
Vancouver WA 98661-1634 
360.883.5658 

P-6 20 20 0 Clark 

La Salle High School 
Br James Joost, FSC 
3000 Lightning Way 
Union Gap WA 98903-2213 
509.225.2900 

9-12 0 190 0 Yakima 

Lake Forest Park Montessori 
Eve Buckle 
19935 19th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98155-1243 
206.367.4404 

P-12 1 1 0 King 

Lake Washington Girls Middle School 
Patricia Hearn 
810 18th Ave 
Seattle WA 98122-4747 
206.709.3800 

6-8 0 54 0 King 

Lakeside School 
Bernie Noe 
14050 1st Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98125-3099 
206.368.3600 

5-12 0 790 0 King 

Lakeview Academy 
Barry Rodland 
512 Ave H 
Snohomish WA 98290-2315 
360.568.1604 

5-12 0 3 30 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  30 

Lakewood Lutheran School 
Alexander Ring 
10202 112th St SW 
Lakewood WA 98498-1699 
253.584.6024 

P-3 14 12 0 Pierce 

Lewis County Adventist School 
Dan Baker 
2104 Scheuber Rd S 
(Mail: PO Box 1203  Chehalis 98532-1203) 
Chehalis WA 98532-9635 
360.748.3213 

K-10 0 50 0 Lewis 

Liberty Christian School 
Robin Keala Hoe 
3172 Peppers Bridge Rd 
Walla Walla WA 99362-7005 
509.525.5082 

P-8 10 70 0 Walla 
Walla 

Life Christian School 
Ross Hjelseth 
1717 S Union Ave 
Tacoma WA 98405-1997 
253.756.2462 

P-12 100 800 0 Pierce 

Light of Faith Christian Academy 
Claudia Zimmerer 
18008 Bothell-Everett HW  #H 
Bothell WA 98012-6842 
425.412.4192 

P-12 1 3 0 Snohomish 

Lighthouse Christian School 
Stephen Roddy 
3008 36th St NW 
Gig Harbor WA 98335-8256 
253.858.5962 

K-8 0 300 0 Pierce 

Little Oak Montessori School 
Chelsey Moss 
1054 SE Oak St 
(Mail: PO Box 530 White Salmon 98672-0530) 
White Salmon WA 98672 
509.281.1721 

P-3 17 6 0 Clark 

Living Wisdom School of Seattle 
Catharine Steenstra 
2800 NE 200th St 
(Mail: 20715 Larch Way  #2  Lynnwood 98036-6854) 
Shoreline WA 98155-1418 
425.772.9862 

P-6 12 16 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  31 

 
Louis Braille School 
Carolyn Meyer 
10130 Edmonds Way 
Edmonds WA 98020-5130 
425.776.4042 

K-12 0 8 0 Snohomish 

Lynden Christian Schools 
Henry Kok 
417 Lyncs Dr 
Lynden WA 98264-1649 
360.318.9525 

P-12 104 1047 0 Whatcom 

Madrona School 
Gordon Parke 
291 Madison Ave N 
(Mail: PO Box 11371  Bainbridge 98110) 
Bainbridge WA 98110-2503 
206.855.8041 

P-8 26 95 0 Kitsap 

Marlin Hutterite School 
Peter Gross/Gaynor Edwards 
21344 Rd 18 NE 
Warden WA 98832 
509.345.2390 

P-12 1 1 0 Grant 

Mason County Christian School 
David Roller 
470 E Eagle Ridge Dr 
Shelton WA 98584-7897 
360.426.7616 

P-12 20 60 0 Mason 

Matheia School 
Allison Soules 
2205 NW 67th St 
Seattle WA 98117-5737 
206.283.1828 

K-5 0 48 0 King 

Meadowglade SDA School 
Brian Allison 
18717 NE 109th Ave 
Battle Ground WA 98604-6115 
360.687.5121 

K-8 0 220 0 Clark 

Meridian School 
Ron Waldman 
4649 Sunnyside Ave N   Suite 242 
Seattle WA 98103-6900 
206.632.7154 

K-5 0 183 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  32 

 
Methow Valley Community School 
Deb Jones Schuler 
#2 Johnson Lane 
(Mail: PO Box 3013  Winthrop 98862-3002) 
Winthrop WA 98862 
509.996.4447 

1-6 0 42 0 Okanogan 

Mid Columbia Christian School 
Dave Anderson 
910 E Elm 
(Mail: PO Box 713  Othello 99344-0713) 
Othello WA 99344 
509.488.2554 

P-12 10 16 0 Adams 

Monroe Christian School 
Elaine Obblink 
1009 W Main St 
Monroe WA 98272-2017 
360.794.8200 

P-8 30 152 0 Snohomish 

Montessori Children’s House 
Jennifer Wheelhouse 
5003 218th Ave NE 
Redmond WA 98053-2429 
425.868.7805 

P-6 100 38 0 King 

Montessori Children’s School of Wenatchee 
LLC 
Debora Abbott-Nuckolls 
151 Worthen St 
(Mail: 538 Highland Dr  Wenatchee 98801-2957) 
Wenatchee WA 98801-3025 
509.663.5687 

P-6 28 16 0 Chelan 

Montessori School of Yakima 
Antoinette Stroscher 
511 N 44th Ave 
Yakima WA 98908-2608 
509.966.0680 

P-3 50 42 0 Yakima 

Montessori Schools of Snohomish County 
Kathleen Gunnell 
1804 Puget Dr 
Everett WA 98203-6600 
425.355.1311 

P-12 75 75 1 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  33 

 
Morningside Academy 
Kent Johnson 
201 Westlake Ave N 
Seattle WA 98109-5217 
206.709.9500 

1-10 0 100 0 King 

Moses Lake Christian Academy 
David White 
1475 Nelson Rd NE 
Moses Lake WA 98837-1400 
509.765.9704 

P-12 25 180 0 Grant 

Mount Vernon Christian School 
Patrick De Jong 
820 W Blackburn Rd 
Mount Vernon WA 98273-9596 
360.424.9157 

P-12 25 310 0 Skagit 

Mountain View Christian School (8709) 
Mrs. Michelle Geer 
2810 NE 259th St 
Ridgefield WA 98642-9761 
360.887.4019 

P-8 80 50 0 Clark 

Mountain View Christian School (8315) 
Brian Gang 
255 Medsker Rd 
Sequim WA 98382-8516 
360.683.6170 

1-8 0 21 0 Clallam 

Mount Olive Lutheran School   Initial 
Margarete Dohring 
206 E Wyandotte 
Shelton WA 98584-3610 
360.427.3165 

K-1 0 10 0 Mason 

Mount Rainier Lutheran High School 
Steve Thomas 
7306 Waller Rd E 
Tacoma WA 98443-1105 
253.284.4433 

9-12 0 125 0 Pierce 

Mukilteo Academy 
Victoria Michael 
13000 Beverly Park Rd 
Mukilteo WA 98275-5849 
425.347.3665 

P-1 55 12 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  34 

 
Muslim Youth Academy 
Ariij Al-Qanuni 
11650 Beacon Ave S 
Seattle WA 98178-2881 
206.721.1900 

K-12 0 185 30 King 

New Horizon School 
Marla Veliz 
1111 S Carr Rd 
Renton WA 98055-5839 
425.226.3717 

6-12 0 60 0 King 

New Life Christian School 
Joseph Johnson 
911 E Division 
Ephrata WA 98823-1965 
509.754.5558 

P-12 20 100 0 Grant 

Newport Children’s School 
Cynthia Chaney 
12930 SE Newport Way 
Bellevue WA 98006-2078 
425.641.0824 

P-1 190 30 0 King 

Nile Christian School/Hope Academy 
Bruce Gillespie 
370 Flying H Loop 
Naches WA 98937-9440 
509.658.2990 

K-12 0 15 0 Yakima 

North Bend Montessori Inc. 
Susan Weigel 
248 Ballarat Ave N 
(Mail: PO Box 2300  North Bend 98045-8610) 
North Bend WA 98045 
425.831.5766 

P-1 100 25 0 King 

North Country Christian School 
Margo Thompson 
737 Mary Ann Creek Rd 
Oroville WA 98844-9643 
509.485.2011 

P-12 1 2 30 Okanogan 

North Sound Christian Schools—Jr/Sr High 
Campus 
Patrick Russell 
23607 54th Ave W 
Mountlake Terrace WA 98043-5238 
425.774.7773 

7-12 0 155 25 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  35 

North Wall Elementary 
Jan Swanson 
9408 N Wall St 
Spokane WA 99218-2245 
509.466.2695 

P-5 76 16 0 Spokane 

North Whidbey Christian High School 
David Keith McFaul 
675 E Whidbey Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 2471  Oak Harbor 98277-6471) 
Oak Harbor WA 98277-5901 
360.675.5352 

9-12 0 12 0 Island 

Northshore Christian Academy 
Holly Leach 
5700 23rd Dr W 
Everett WA 98203-1570 
425.407.1119 

P-8 90 749 0 Snohomish 

Northwest Academy 
Dr. Melodee Loshbaugh 
17907 145th Pl NE 
Woodinville WA 98072-9244 
425.483.1353 

P-12 1 8 2 King 

Northwest Christian High School 
Dr. Terry Ketchum 
4710 Park Center Ave NE 
Lacey WA 98516-5587 
360.491.2966 

9-12 0 200 0 Thurston 

Northwest Christian School (8129) 
Marshall Merklin 
904 Shaw Rd 
Puyallup WA 98372-5211 
253.845.5722 

P-8 20 100 0 Pierce 

Northwest Christian School (8270) 
Jack Hancock 
5104 Bernhill Rd 
Colbert WA 99005-9005 
509.238.4005 

7-12 0 335 0 Spokane 

Northwest Christian School (8182) 
Jack Hancock 
1412 W Central Ave 
Spokane WA 99205-9005 
509.238.4005 

P-6 48 249 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  36 

 
Northwest Free School 
Lara Randolph 
1427 Queen Ave NE 
Renton WA 98056-3340 
425.228.0345 

K-8 0 4 0 King 

Northwest Liberty School 
Robert Hagin 
13120 NE 177th Place  A-104 
Woodinville WA 98072-5725 
206.914.3809 

7-12 0 35 0 King 

Northwest School 
Ellen Taussig 
1415 Summit Ave 
Seattle WA 98122-3619 
206.682.7309 

6-12 0 460 0 King 

Northwest School for Hearing Impaired 
Karen Appelman 
15303 Westminster Way N 
(Mail: PO Box 31325  Seattle 98103-1325) 
Shoreline WA 98133-6126 
206.364.4605 

P-8 12 48 0 King 

Northwest Yeshiva High School 
Rabbi Bernie Fox 
5017 90th Ave SE 
Mercer Island WA 98040-4709 
206.232.5272 

9-12 0 95 0 King 

Nova School 
Jack Fallat 
2020 22nd Ave SE 
Olympia WA 98501-3102 
360.491.7097 

6-8 0 105 0 Thurston 

Oak Harbor Christian School 
Dave Zylstra 
675 Whidbey Ave 
Oak Harbor WA 98277-2596 
360.675.2831 

P-8 80 145 0 Island 

Oakridge Ranch—Montessori Farm Schl 
Judy Lefors 
11002 Orchard Ave 
(Mail: 6403 Summit View  Yakima 98908-1362) 
Yakima WA 98908-9102 
509.966.1080 

1-8 0 55 0 Yakima 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  37 

O’Dea High School 
Br Dominic Murray CFC 
802 Terry Ave 
Seattle WA 98104-1294 
206.622.6596 

9-12 0 455 0 King 

Olympia Christian School 
Anita McKown 
1215 Ethel St NW 
Olympia WA 98502 
360.352.1831 

K-10 0 45 0 Thurston 

Olympia Community School 
Melissa Beard 
1601 North St SE 
(Mail: PO Box 12436   Olympia 98508-2436) 
Olympia WA 98501-3666 
360.866.8047 

K-5 0 33 0 Thurston 

Olympia Waldorf School 
Timothy Morrissey 
8126 Normandy St SE 
(Mail: PO Box 130  East Olympia 98540-0638) 
Olympia WA 98501-9623 
360.493.0906 

P-8 14 130 0 Thurston 

Olympic Christian School 
Brian Clark 
43 O’Brien Rd 
Port Angeles WA 98362-9225 
360.457.4640 

P-12 64 130 0 Clallam 

Omak Adventist Christian School 
Jennifer Hoffpauir 
425 W 2nd Ave 
(Mail: PO Box 3294 Omak 98841-3294) 
Omak WA 98841 
509.826.5341 

1-8 0 18 0 Okanogan 

Open Window School 
Wilder Dominick 
6128 168th Place SE 
Bellevue WA 98006-5679 
425.747.2911 

K-7 0 306 0 King 

Orcas Christian School 
Thomas Roosam 
107 Enchanted Forest Rd 
Eastsound WA 98245-8905 
360.376.6683 

K-12 0 98 0 San Juan 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  38 

Our Lady of Fatima School 
Susan Burdett 
3301 W Dravus St 
Seattle WA 98199-2624 
206.283.7031 

K-8 0 310 0 King 

Our Lady of Guadalupe School 
Kristin Dixon 
3401 SW Myrtle St 
Seattle WA 98126-3399 
206.935.0651 

P-12 27 233 0 King 

Our Lady of Lourdes School 
Brian Anderson 
4701 NW Franklin St 
Vancouver WA 98663-1798 
360.696.2301 

P-8 50 308 0 Clark 

Our Lady of the Lake 
Vince McGovern 
3520 NE 89th St 
Seattle WA 98115-3648 
206.525.9980 

P-12 61 191 0 King 

Our Lady Star of the Sea School 
Sally Merriwether 
1516 5th St 
Bremerton WA 98337-1216 
360.373.5162 

K-8 0 197 0 Kitsap 

Overcomer Academy (formerly Stepping Stones 
Christian School) 
Nick Lembo 
33415 Military Rd S 
Auburn WA 98001-9603 
253.939.0553 

P-4 30 40 0 King 

Overlake School 
Frank Grijalva 
20301 NE 108th St. 
Redmond WA 98053-7499 
425.868.1000 

5-12 0 535 0 King 

Pacific Crest Academy 
Dr. Leslie White 
324 NE Oak St 
(Mail: PO Box 1031  Camas 98607-0031) 
Camas WA 98607-1439 
360.834.9913 

P-7 30 110 0 Clark 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  39 

 
Pacific Crest Schools 
Jacquie Maughan 
600 NW Bright St 
Seattle WA 98107-4451 
206.789.7889 

P-8 100 113 0 King 

Pacific Learning Center NW 
Daniel Hanson 
21316 66th Ave W 
Lynnwood WA 98036-7327 
425.672.6805 

K-12 0 40 0 Snohomish 

Palisades Christian Academy 
Stephanie Gates 
1115 N Governmental Way 
Spokane WA 99224-5247 
509.325.1985 

P-10 10 125 0 Spokane 

Parkland Lutheran School 
Rev. Glen Obenberger 
120 123rd St S 
Tacoma WA 98444-5060 
253.537.1901 

P-8 10 105 0 Pierce 

Peace Lutheran School 
Doug Eisele 
1234 NE Riddell Rd 
Bremerton WA 98310-3668 
360.373.2116 

P-8 56 140 0 Kitsap 

Peaceful Glen Christian School 
Kathleen Biehl 
604 C St 
(Mail: PO Box 710  Snohomish 98291-0710) 
Snohomish WA 98290 
360.563.0131 

P-8 22 60 0 Snohomish 

Perkins School 
Donna Rowland 
9005 Roosevelt Way NE 
Seattle WA 98115-3030 
206.526.8217 

K-5 0 50 0 King 

Pioneer School 
Betty Burley-Wolf 
618 N Sullivan Rd 
Veradale WA 99037-8528 
509.922.7818 

K-5 0 60 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  40 

 
Planet Kids Bellevue 
Afrose Amlani 
2253 140th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98005-1819 
425.373.5437 

P-1 50 10 0 King 

Pope John Paul II High School 
Ronald Edwards 
5608 Pacific Ave SE 
(Mail: PO Box 3248  Lacey 98509-3248) 
Lacey WA 98503-1258 
360.438.7600 

9-12 0 30 0 Thurston 

Poulsbo SDA School 
Susan Schilt 
1700 Lincoln Rd NE  Suite 1 
Poulsbo WA 98370-8549 
360.779.6290 

1-8 0 19 0 Kitsap 

Praise Christian Academy 
Dr. Cheryl Baker 
1022 SW 151st St 
Burien WA 98166-1840 
206.612.9102 

P-12 4 6 0 King 

Prism School 
Diane Zahland 
15319 E 8th Ave 
(Mail: 1912 S Conklin Rd  Spokane Valley 99037-9085  
Spokane Valley WA 99037-8828 
509.994.0404 

K-3 0 19 0 Spokane 

Privett Academy 
Carol Meyer 
9311 SE 36th St 
(Mail: PO Box 42  Mercer Island 98040-0042) 
Mercer Island WA 98040-3740 
206.232.0059 

6-12 0 12 0 King 

Providence Classical Christian School 
Ryan Evans 
21500 Cypress Way  Suite B 
Lynnwood WA 98036-7939 
425.774.6622 

P-12 9 176 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  41 

 
Providence Christian School 
Gerard Ball 
12420 Evergreen Dr  
(Mail: PO Box 383  Mountlake Terrace 98043-0383) 
Mukilteo WA 98275-5708 
425.248.5489 

P-12 6 40 4 Snohomish 

Providence Classical Christian School NW 
Kathy VanderPol 
5942 Portal Way 
(Mail: PO Box 180  Ferndale 98248-0180) 
Ferndale WA 98248 
360.318.1347 

K-12 0 20 1 Whatcom 

Puget Sound Adventist Academy 
Linda Taber 
5320 108th Ave NE 
Kirkland WA 98033-7517 
425.822.7554 

9-12 0 90 0 King 

Puget Sound Christian School 
Shana Kinsella 
1740 S 84th St 
Tacoma WA 98444-3114 
253.537.6870 

P-6 40 50 0 Tacoma 

Puget Sound Community School 
Steve Miranda 
660 S Dearborn St 
Seattle WA 98134-1328 
206.324.4350 

6-12 0 33 0 King 

Pullman Christian School 
Sherri Goetze 
345 SW Kimball 
Pullman WA 99163-2146 
509.332.3545 

K-12 0 52 0 Whitman 

Queen Anne Community School 
Stacy Little 
557 Roy St 
(Mail: 550 Mercer St  Seattle 98109) 
Seattle WA 98109-4219 
206.282.2997 

K-5 0 15 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  42 

 
Queen of Angels School 
Debra Brines 
1007 S Oak St 
Port Angeles WA 98362-7742 
360.457.6903 

P-8 25 110 0 Clallam 

Quincy Valley School 
Harriet Weber 
715 Central Ave N 
(Mail: PO Box 1109  Quincy WA 98848-1109) 
Quincy WA 98848-1053 
509.787.5928 

P-4 112 25 0 Grant 

Rainier Christian High School 
Ted Madden 
19830 SE 328th Pl 
Auburn WA 98092-2212 
253.735.1413 

9-12 0 125 0 King 

Rainier Christian Middle School 
Glenn Olson 
26201 180th Ave SE 
Covington WA 98042-4917 
253.639.7715 

7-8 0 107 0 King 

Rainier Christian Schools—Highland Elem 
Paula Satterberg 
850 Union Ave NE 
(Mail: PO Box 2578  Renton 98056-0578) 
Renton WA 98059-4503 
425.228.9897 

P-6 65 95 30 King 

Rainier Christian Schools—Ken View Elem 
Tess Johnson 
20 49th St NE 
Auburn WA 98002-1201 
253.852.5145 

P-6 75 225 0 King 

Rainier Christian Schools—Maple Valley 
Elementary 
Weldo Melvin 
16700 174th Ave SE 
(Mail: PO Box 58129  Renton 98058-1129) 
Renton WA 98058-9546 
425.226.4640 

P-6 25 165 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  43 

 
Rainier View Montessori Academy 
Kimille Douglas 
9716 224th St E 
Graham WA 98338-9161 
253.262.3292 

P-1 20 5 0 Pierce 

Renton Christian School 
Dr. Erik Konsmo 
15717 152nd Ave SE 
Renton WA 98058-6330 
425.226.0820 

P-8 30 390 0 King 

Rising Tide School 
Abbe Vogels 
114 20th Ave SE 
(Mail: 512 Central St NE  Olympia 98506) 
Olympia WA 98501 
360.339.2416 

K-12 0 17 0 Thurston 

Riverside Christian School 
Richard Van Beek 
721 Keys Rd 
Yakima WA 98901-9560 
509.965.2602 

P-12 30 450 0 Yakima 

Riverside SDA Christian School 
Dan Wister 
463 N Shepherd Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 367  Washougal 98671-0367) 
Washougal WA 98671-8318 
360.835.5600 

P-8 10 45 0 Clark 

Rock Creek Hutterite 
Herb Walter 
2194 N Schoonover Rd 
Odessa WA 99159-9729 
509.982.2257 

K-12 0 15 0 Lincoln 

Rogers Adventist School 
James Weller 
200 SW Academy Way 
College Place WA 99324-1275 
509.529.1850 

K-8 0 309 0 Walla 
Walla 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  44 

 
Royal Garrison School 
Peter Warwick 
115 NW State St  #207 
(Mail: PO Box 127  Pullman 99163-0127) 
Pullman WA 99163-2616 
509.332.0556 

K-12 0 24 5 Whitman 

Sacred Heart School 
David Burroughs 
9450 NE 14th St 
Clyde Hill WA 98004-3497 
425.451.1773 

P-8 16 380 0 King 

Saddle Mountain School 
Phyllis Magden 
2451 W Bench Rd 
Othello WA 99344-8901 
509.488.5474 

1-12 0 50 0 Adams 

Saint George’s School 
Mo Copeland 
2929 W Waikiki Rd 
Spokane WA 99208-9209 
509.466.1636 

K-12 0 353 0 Spokane 

Salmonberry School 
Eliza Morris 
867 N Beach Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 1197  Eastsound 98245-1197) 
Eastsound WA 98245-9711 
360.376.6310 

P-5 10 24 0 San Juan 

Sammamish Christian School & Noah’s Ark 
Linda Gibbs 
4221-B 228th SE 
Issaquah WA 98029-9264 
425.392.7470 

P-3 150 30 0 King 

Seabury School 
Sandra Wollum 
1801 NE 53dr St 
Tacoma WA 98422-1916 
253.952.3111 

P-5 15 60 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  45 

 
Seabury School—Middle School Campus 
Sandra Wollum 
925 Court C 
(Mail: 1801 53rd St NE  Tacoma 98422-1916) 
Tacoma WA 98402 
253.952.3111 

6-8 0 45 0 Pierce 

Seattle Academy of Arts & Sciences 
Joe Puggelli 
1201 E Union St 
Seattle WA 98122-3925 
206.323.6600 

6-12 0 600 0 King 

Seattle Area German American School 
Michael Brandstetter 
5031 University Way NE 
Seattle WA 98105-4341 
206.235.5969 

P-1 39 10 0 King 

Seattle Christian School 
Gloria Hunter 
18301 Military Rd S 
Seattle WA 98188-4684 
206.246.8241 

K-12 0 615 0 King 

Seattle Country Day School 
Michael Murphy 
2619 4th Ave N 
Seattle WA 98109-1903 
206.284.6220 

K-8 0 327 0 King 

Seattle Girls School 
Rafael del Castillo 
2706 S Jackson St 
(Mail: PO Box 22576  Seattle 98122-0576) 
Seattle WA 98144-2442 
206.709.2228 

5-8 0 120 0 King 

Seattle Hebrew Academy 
Rivy Poupko Kletenik 
1617 Interlaken Dr E 
Seattle WA 98112-3499 
206.323.5750 

P-8 580 160 0 King 

Seattle Jewish Community School 
Shoshi Bilavsky 
12351 8th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98125-4805 
206.522.5212 

K-5 0 90 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  46 

Seattle Lutheran High School 
Mark Henderson 
4141 41st Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98116-4216 
206.937.7722 

9-12 0 140 0 King 

Seattle Prep/Matteo Ricci College 
Kent Hickey 
2400 11th Ave E 
Seattle WA 98102-4016 
206.577.2102 

9-12 0 680 0 King 

Seattle Urban Academy 
Sharon Okamoto 
3800 S Othello St 
Seattle WA 98118-3562 
206.723.0333 

9-112 0 36 0 King 

Seattle Waldorf School 
Geraldine Kline 
2728 NE 100th St 
Seattle WA 98125-7712 
206.524.5320 

P-12 32 304 0 King 

Selah Covenant Christian School 
Linda Leigh 
560 McGonagle Dr 
Selah WA 98942-8828 
509.697.6116 

1-4 0 13 0 Yakima 

Serendipity Children’s Center 
Lynnette McCarty 
4841 Tumwater Valley Dr SE 
(Mail: 4833 Tumwater Valley Dr SE  Tumwater WA 
98501-4583) 
Tumwater WA 998501 
360.786.0197 

K-4 0 32 0 Thurston 

Seton Catholic College Preparatory High  
Ed Little 
811 NE 112th Ave   #200 
Vancouver WA 98684-5115 
360.258.1932 

9-12 0 80 0 Clark 

Shamrock Educational Academy 
Thomas Carter 
13032 N March Horse Ln 
Newman Lake WA 99025-8420 
509.226.3662 

7-12 0 14 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  47 

 
Shelton Valley Christian School 
Judy McCain 
201 W Shelton Valley Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 773  Shelton 98584-0773) 
Shelton WA 98584-8722 
360.426.4198 

K-8 0 45 0 Mason 

Shoreline Christian School 
Timothy Visser 
2400 NE 147th St 
Seattle WA 98155-7395 
206.364.7777 

P-12 30 203 0 King 

Shorewood Christian School 
Tim Lorenz 
10300 28th Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98146-1211 
206.933.1056 

P-11 12 185 0 King 

Silverwood School 
Susan Radtke 
14000 Central Valley Rd NW 
Poulsbo WA 98370-8146 
360.697.7526 

1-6 0 70 0 Kitsap 

Skagit Adventist School 
Doug White 
530 N Section St 
Burlington WA 98233-1568 
360.755.9261 

P-12 5 145 0 Skagit 

Skys the Limit Montessori Inc 
Regina Maloney 
11220 8th St E 
(Mail: 4514 S 313th St  Auburn 98001-2652) 
Edgewood WA 98372-1145 
253.942.7677 

P-6 24 10 1 Pierce 

Slavic Christian Academy—Edgewood 
Vadim Hetmanh 
10622 8th St E 
(Mail: 8913 N Nettleton Ln  Spokane 99208-8001) 
Edgewood WA 98372-1133 
253.952.7163 

P-12 12 110 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  48 

 
Slavic Christian Academy—Spokane 
Elena Solodyankin 
8913 N Nettleton Ln 
Spokane WA 99206-8001 
509.924.4618 

P-12 9 89 12 Spokane 

Slavic Christian Academy—Tacoma 
Elena Solodyankin 
2014 S 15th St 
(Mail: 8913 N Nettleton Ln  Spokane 99206-8001) 
Tacoma WA 98415-2905 
253.272.0173 

P-12 10 50 0 Pierce 

Sno-King Academy 
Dr. Alice Westcott 
19741 53rd Ave NE 
(Mail: 23632 Hwy 99  Suite F PMB 223  Edmonds WA 
98026-9205) 
Lake Forest Park WA 98155-3031 
425.697.4021 

3-12 0 5 15 King 

Solomon Christian School 
Lee Richard 
8021 230th St SW 
Edmonds WA 98026-8730 
425.640.9000 

7-12 0 70 0 Snohomish 

Soundview School 
Inae Piercy 
6515 196th St SW 
Lynnwood WA 98036-5921 
425.778.8572 

P-8 17 123 0 Snohomish 

South Kitsap Christian School 
Sandra Jennings 
1780 SE Lincoln Ave 
Port Orchard WA 98366-3054 
360.876.5595 

P-12 95 50 0 Kitsap 

South Sound Christian Schools—New Hope 
Campus 
Debbie Schindler 
25713 70th Ave E 
Graham WA 98338-9324 
253.847.2643 

P-6 17 139 0 Pierce 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  49 

 
South Sound Christian Schools—Tacoma 
Baptist Campus 
Debbie Schindler 
2052 S 64th St 
Tacoma WA 98409-6899 
253.475.7226 

P-12 16 320 0 Pierce 

Southside Christian School 
Heidi Bauer 
401 E 30th Ave 
Spokane WA 99203-2590 
509.838.8139 

P-8 100 125 0 Spokane 

Spectrum Academy 
Uzma Butte 
2576 152nd Ave NE 
Redmond WA 98052-0702 
425.885.2345 

P-1 80 20 0 King 

Spokane Christian Academy 
Cheryl Gade 
8909 E Bigelow Gulch Rd 
Spokane WA 99217-9559 
509.924.4888 

K-8 0 60 0 Spokane 

Spokane Valley Adventist School 
Terry Lee 
1603 S Sullivan Rd 
Spokane WA 99037-9012 
509.926.0955 

K-9 0 45 0 Spokane 

Spring Street International School 
Louis O’Prussack 
505 Spring St 
Friday Harbor WA 98250-8057 
360.378.6393 

6-12 0 65 0 San Juan 

Spring Valley Montessori 
Gulsevin Kayihan 
36605 Pacific Hwy S 
Federal Way WA 98003-7499 
253.927.2557 

P-8 28 80 0 King 

Spruce Street School 
Briel Schmitz 
914 Virginia St 
Seattle WA 98101-1426 
206.621.9211 

K-5 0 97 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  50 

St. Aloysius Catholic School 
Kerrie Rowland 
611 E Mission Ave 
Spokane WA 99202-1917 
509-489-7825 

P-8 30 303 0 Spokane 
 

St. Alphonsus School 
Maureen Reid 
5816 15th Ave NW 
Seattle WA 98107-3096 
206.782.4636 

P-12 20 168 0 King 

St. Anne School 
Mary Sherman 
101 W Lee St 
Seattle WA 98119-3321 
206.282.3538 

K-8 0 244 0 King 

St. Anthony School 
Sr. Linda Riggers, SNJM 
336 Shattuck Ave S 
Renton WA 98057-2499 
425.255.0059 

K-8 0 514 0 King 

St. Basil Academy of Classical Studies 
Joyce Thompson-Blake 
2346 S Wilbur 
Walla Walla WA 99362-9746 
509.525.9380 

K-8 0 22 0 Walla 
Walla 

St. Benedict School 
Maureen Blum 
4811 Wallingford Ave N 
Seattle WA 98103-6899 
206.633.3375 

P-8 32 191 0 King 

St. Bernadette School 
Bob Rutledge 
1028 SW 128th St 
Seattle WA 98146-3198 
206.244.4934 

P-12 26 215 0 King 

St. Brendan School 
Ms. Chris Lunn 
10049 NE 195th St 
Bothell WA 98011-2931 
425.483.8300 

K-12 0 245 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  51 

 
St. Catherine School 
Kris Brown 
8524 8th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98115-3099 
206.525.0582 

P-8 40 234 0 King 

St. Cecilia Elementary School 
Elizabeth Chamberlin 
1310 Madison Ave 
Bainbridge WA 98110-1898 
206.842.2017 

P-8 20 80 0 Kitsap 

St. Charles Borromeo School 
Patrick Feist 
7112 S 12th St 
Tacoma WA 98465-1797 
253.564.5185 

P-8 40 500 0 Pierce 

St. Charles School 
Skip Bonuccelli 
4515 N Alberta St 
Spokane WA 99205-1598 
509.327.9575 

P-8 70 203 0 Spokane 

St. Christopher Academy 
Darlene Jevne 
4141 41st Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98116-4216 
206.246.9751 

9-12 0 22 0 King 

St. Edwards School 
Mary Lundeen 
4200 S Mead St 
Seattle WA 98118-2795 
206.725.1774 

P-8 16 150 0 King 

St. Frances Cabrini School 
Stephanie Van Leuven 
5621 108th St SW 
Lakewood WA 98499-2205 
253.584.3850 

P-8 24 216 0 Pierce 

St. Francis of Assisi 
Sheila Keaton 
15216 21st Ave SW 
(Mail: PO Box 870  Seahurst 98062-0870) 
Burien WA 98166-2008 
206.243.5690 

K-8 0 475 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  52 

 
St. George School 
Bernadette O’Leary 
5117 13th Ave S 
Seattle WA 98108-2309 
206.762.0656 

P-8 24 200 0 King 

St. John of Kronstadt Orthodox Christian 
School 
Elizabeth Fitzgerald 
706 Stewart St 
Yakima WA 98902-4473 
509.452.0177 

K-8 0 18 10 Yakima 

St. John School 
Agnes Jacobson 
120 N 79th St 
Seattle WA 98103-4688 
206.783.0337 

P-8 62 473 0 King 

St. John Vianney School 
Joe Bell 
501 N Walnut Rd 
Spokane WA 99206-3899 
509.926.7987 

P-8 40 160 0 Spokane 

St. Joseph Catholic School of Issaquah 
Peg Johnston 
200 Mountain Park Blvd 
Issaquah WA 98027-3647 
425.313.9129 

P-8 55 290 0 King 

St. Joseph Marquette Middle School 
Gregg Pleger 
202 N 4th St 
Yakima WA 98901-2426 
509.575.5557 

P-8 32 290 0 Yakima 

St. Joseph School (8120) 
Dr. Gary Udd 
123 6th St 
Chehalis WA 98532-3203 
360.748.0961 

P-8 17 101 0 Lewis 

St. Joseph’s School (8004) 
Sr. Agueda Durazo 
600 Saint Joseph Pl 
Wenatchee WA 98801-6299 
509.663.2644 

P-5 44 110 0 Chelan 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  53 

St. Joseph’s School (8002) 
Ralph LeCompte 
901 W 4th Ave 
Kennewick WA 99336-5535 
509.586.0481 

P-8 114 258 0 Benton 

St. Joseph School (8070) 
Rick Boyle 
700 18th Ave E 
Seattle WA 98112-3900 
206.329.3260 

K-8 0 620 0 King 

St. Joseph School (8010) 
Lesley Harrison 
6500 Highland Dr 
Vancouver WA 98661-7637 
360.696.2586 

P-8 25 390 0 Clark 

St. Louise School 
Dan Fitzpatrick 
133 156th Ave SE 
Bellevue WA 98007-5399 
425.746.4220 

K-8 0 440 0 King 

St. Luke School 
Dr. Karen Matthews 
17533 Saint Luke Pl N 
Shoreline WA 98133-4799 
206.542.1133 

P-8 15 340 80 King 

St. Madeleine Sophie School 
Daniel Sherman 
4400 130th Pl SE 
Bellevue WA 98006-2014 
425.747.6770 

P-8 20 160 0 King 

St. Mark School 
Kathryn Palmquist-Keck 
18033 15th Pl NE 
Shoreline WA 98155-3894 
206.364.1633 

P-8 18 165 50 King 

St. Mary School 
Katie Beyer 
518 North H St 
Aberdeen WA 98520-4012 
360.532.1230 

P-8 30 125 0 Grays 
Harbor 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  54 

 
St. Mary’s Catholic School 
Lauri Nauditt 
14601 E 4th Ave 
Spokane WA 99216-2194 
509.924.4300 

P-8 40 220 0 Spokane 

St. Mary’s Christian School 
Glen Lutz 
10630 Gravelly Lake Dr NW 
Lakewood WA 98499-1328 
253.984.9475 

P-5 14 60 0 Pierce 

St. Mary Magdalen School 
Sr. Joanne McCauley 
8615 7th Ave SE 
Everett WA 98208-2043 
425.353.7559 

P-8 51 340 0 Snohomish 

St. Matthew Lutheran School 
David Sauer 
6917 N Country Homes Blvd 
Spokane WA 99208-4216 
509.327.5601 

P-8 36 50 1 Spokane 

St. Matthew School 
Lillian Zadra 
1230 NE 127th St 
Seattle WA 98125-4021 
206.362.2785 

P-8 12 210 0 King 

St. Michael Catholic School 
Suzanne Siekowitch 
1514 Pine Ave 
Snohomish WA 98290-1826 
360.568.0821 

P-6 26 50 0 Snohomish 

St. Michael School 
Jack Nelson 
1204 11th Ave SE 
Olympia WA 98501-1627 
360.754.5131 

K-8 0 266 0 Thurston 

St. Michael’s Academy 
Sr Mary Petra Knoll 
8500 N St Michael’s Rd 
Spokane WA 99217-9333 
509.467.0986 

K-12 0 175 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  55 

 
St. Monica School 
Pamela Dellino 
4230 87th Ave SE 
Mercer Island WA 98040-4128 
206.232.5432 

P-8 15 225 0 King 

St. Nicholas School 
Michael Sweeney 
3555 Edwards Dr 
Gig Harbor WA 98336-1163 
253.858.7632 

P-8 15 135 0 Pierce 

St. Patrick Catholic School 
Rev. Victor Blazovich 
2706 E Queen Ave 
Spokane WA 99217-6191 
509.487.2830 

P-8 20 117 0 Spokane 

St. Patrick School (8143) 
Francie Jordan 
1112 North G St 
Tacoma WA 98403-2518 
253.272.2297 

P-8 75 385 0 Pierce 

St. Patrick School (8018) 
Antonio Vegas 
1016 N 14th Ave 
Pasco WA 99301-4191 
509.547.7261 

P-8 50 225 0 Franklin 

St. Paul School 
Kris Brynildsen-Smith 
10001 57th Ave S 
Seattle WA 98178-2299 
206.725.0780 

P-8 20 164 25 King 

St. Paul’s Academy 
Stephanie Sadler 
3000 Northwest Ave 
Bellingham WA 98225-1607 
360.733.1750 

P-12 120 250 0 Whatcom 

St. Paul Cathedral School 
Buck Marsh 
1214 W Chestnut Ave 
Yakima WA 98902-3170 
509.575.5604 

P-8 20 190 0 Yakima 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  56 

 
St. Paul’s Lutheran School 
Morgan Kingrey, Chair, School Board 
312 Palouse St 
(Mail: PO Box 2219  Wenatchee 98807-2219) 
Wenatchee WA 98801-2641 
509.662.3659 

P-6 60 65 0 Chelan 

St. Philomena School 
Jean Zoet 
1815 S 220th St 
Des Moines WA 98198-7998 
206.824.8051 

K-8 0 240 0 King 

St. Pius X School 
Ruth Foisy 
22105 58th Ave W 
Mountlake Terrace WA 98043-3898 
425.778.9861 

P-8 4 110 0 Snohomish 

St. Rose of Lima School 
Amy Krautscheid 
520 Nat Washington Way 
Ephrata WA 98823-2287 
509.754.4901 

P-6 28 70 0 Grant 

St. Rose School 
Rosemary Griggs 
720 26th Ave 
Longview WA 98632-1856 
360.577.6760 

P-8 20 185 0 Cowlitz 

St. Therese School 
Joseph Budde 
900 35th Ave 
Seattle WA 98122-5299 
206.324.0460 

K-8 0 140 0 King 

St. Thomas Day School 
Dr. Kirk Wheeler 
8300 NE 12th St 
Medina WA 98039-3100 
425.454.5880 

P-6 87 192 0 King 

St. Thomas More School (8200) 
Douglas Banks 
515 W St Thomas More Way 
Spokane WA 99208-6026 
509.466.3811 

P-8 35 260 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  57 

 
St. Thomas More School (8169) 
Teresa Fewel 
6511 176th St SW 
Lynnwood WA 98037-2929 
425.743.4242 

P-8 30 245 0 Snohomish 

St. Vincent De Paul School 
Wanda Stewart 
30527 8th Ave S 
Federal Way WA 98003-4100 
253.839.3532 

K-12 0 290 0 King 

Stahlville School 
Anna Lobe 
33 E Snowden Rd 
(Mail: 1485 BN Hoffman Rd  Ritzville 99169-8723) 
Odessa WA 99159-9745 
509.659.0108 

K-12 0 1 0 Lincoln 

Stillpoint School 
Margaret Bryan Hodgkin 
775 Park St  
(Mail: PO Box 576  Friday Harbor 98250-0576) 
Friday Harbor WA 98250-9609 
360.378.2331 

K-6 0 18 0 San Juan 

Summit Academy 
Jane Cassady 
7430 276th St NW 
Stanwood WA 98292 
360.202.5710 

K-3 0 30 0 Snohomish 

Summit Classical Christian School 
Steve Kosted 
1556 Boalch Ave NW 
(Mail: 7829 Center Blvd #363 Snoqualmie 98065-9096  
North Bend WA 98045-9426 
206.374.8500 

K-3 0 40 0 King 

Sunfield Farm School  (Initial) 
Gail Endres 
111 Sunfield Ln 
(Mail: PO Box 85  Port Hadlock 98339-0085) 
Port Hadlock WA 98339 
360.385.3658 

P-6 5 76 0 Jefferson 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  58 

 
Sunnyside Christian School 
Del Dykstra 
811 North Ave 
Sunnyside WA 98944-1194 
509.837.3044 

P-8 35 233 0 Yakima 

Sunnyside Christian School (2nd Location) 
Del Dykstra 
1820 Sheller Rd 
Sunnyside WA 98944-9283 
509-837-8995 

9-12 0 79 0 Yakima 

Sunrise Beach School 
Roxanne Reis Cox 
333 Kaiser Rd NW 
(Mail: 6101 Mink St NW  Olympia 98502-9542) 
Olympia WA 98502 
360.866.1343 

P-12 2 60 21 Thurston 

Swan School 
Russell Yates 
2345 Kuhn St. 
Port Townsend WA 98368-6227 
360.385.7340 

P-6 15 50 0 Jefferson 

Sylvan Way Christian School 
Judith Belcher 
900 Sylvan Way 
Bremerton WA 98310-2825 
360.373.5028 

P-8 80 100 0 Kitsap 

Tacoma Waldorf School 
Melissa Turner 
3315 S 19th St 
(Mail: 2710 N Madison  Tacoma 98407) 
Tacoma WA 98405-1904 
253.383.8711 

P-4 15 45 0 Pierce 

Tall Cedars Academy 
William Alsdurf Jr. 
15315 First Ave NE #10 
(Mail: PO Box 132  Duvall 98019-0132) 
Duvall WA 98019 
425.788.6800 

K-6 0 20 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  59 

 
The Bear Creek School 
Karen Blankenbeckler 
8905 208th Ave NE 
Redmond WA 98053-4506 
425.898.1720 

P-12 66 680 0 King 

The Bush School 
Frank Magusin 
3400 E Harrison 
Seattle WA 98112-4268 
206.322.7978 

K-12 0 554 0 King 

The Children’s Inn Academy 
Cindie Grassi 
1939 Karen Frazier Rd SE 
Olympia WA 98501-3244 
360.709.9769 

P-6 10 15 0 Thurston 

The Clearwater School 
Dr. Stephanie Sarantos 
1510 196th St SE 
Bothell WA 98012-7107 
425.489.2050 

K-12 0 54 0 King 

The Island School 
Trish King 
8553 NE Day Rd 
Bainbridge WA 98110-1395 
206.842.0400 

K-5 0 95 0 Kitsap 

The Little School 
Margaret Fitzgerald 
2812 116th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98004-1421 
425.827.8078 

P-6 59 111 0 King 

The Ohana Education Center 
Andrea Denny 
1465 Poplar  
Clarkston WA 99403-2347 
509.758.6410 

P-6 20 20 0 Asotin 

Theresa and Elizabeths School 
Theresa Boutillier 
23816 165th Ave SE 
Monroe WA 98272-9116 
425.844.2808 

K-12 0 4 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  60 

 
Three Cedars Waldorf School 
Briana Bennitt 
556 124th Ave NE 
Bellevue WA 98005-3100 
425.401.9874 

K-8 0 110 0 King 

Three Points Elementary 
Ron Taylor 
7800 NE 28th St 
(Mail: 1601 98th Ave NE  Clyde Hill 98004-3400) 
Medina WA 98039-1536 
425.454.3977 

P-6 38 204 0 King 

Three Rivers Christian School—Kelso Jr/Sr 
High 
Wayne Hayes 
1209 Minor Rd 
(Mail: PO Box 33  Kelso 98626-0002) 
Kelso WA 98626-5647 
360.636.1600 

7-12 0 105 0 Cowlitz 

Three Rivers Christian School—Longview 
Elementary 
James Chenoweth 
2610 Ocean Beach Hwy 
Longview WA 98632-3598 
360.423.4510 

P-6 35 160 0 Cowlitz 

Three Tree Montessori 
Paula Walters 
220 SW 160th St 
Burien WA 98166-3026 
206.242.5100 

P-6 74 36 0 King 

Tilden School 
Monica Riva 
4105 California Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98116-4101 
206.938.4628 

K-5 0 90 0 King 

TLC Academy 
Janet Bequette 
21512 NE 16th St 
Sammamish WA 98074-6728 
425.868.1943 

P-3 100 20 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  61 

 
Torah Day School of Seattle 
Rabbi Sheftel Skaist 
3612 S Juneau St 
Seattle WA 98118-2600 
206.722.1200 

P-8 20 68 0 King 

Tri-Cities Prep 
Arlene Jones 
9612 St Thomas Dr 
Pasco WA 99301-4744 
509.546.2465 

9-12 0 150 0 Franklin 

Tri-City Junior Academy 
Anthony Oucharek 
4115 W Henry St 
Pasco WA 99301-2999 
509.547.8092 

P-10 11 105 0 Franklin 

Trinity Catholic School 
Sandra Nokes 
1306 W Montgomery Ave 
Spokane WA 99205-4300 
509.327.9369 

P-8 50 140 0 Spokane 

Trinity Reformed Christian School 
Maaike Van Wingerden 
1505 Grant Ave 
Sunnyside WA 98944-1662 
509.837.2880 

1-8 0 5 0 Yakima 

University Child Development School 
Paula Smith 
5062 9th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98105-3605 
206.547.8237 

P-5 59 251 0 King 

University Cooperative School 
Gwen Herron-Moon 
5601 University Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98105-2619 
206.524.0653 

K-5 0 71 0 King 

University Preparatory School 
Erica Hamlin 
8000 25th Ave NE 
Seattle WA 98115-4600 
206.525.2714 

6-12 0 508 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  62 

 
Upper Columbia Academy 
Todd Patzer 
3025 E Spangle Waverly Rd 
Spangle WA 99031-9703 
509.245.3612 

9-12 0 245 0 Spokane 

Upper Columbia Academy Elementary 
Karen Sharp 
3025 E Spangle Waverly Rd 
Spangle WA 99031 
509.245.3629 

1-8 0 21 0 Spokane 

Upper Valley Christian School 
John Bangsund 
111 Ski Hill Dr 
Leavenworth WA 98826-1031 
509.548.5290 

K-12 0 80 0 Chelan 

Valley Christian School  (8360) 
Derick Tabish 
10212 E 9th Ave 
Spokane WA 99206-6944 
509.924.9131 

K-12 0 160 50 Spokane 

Valley Christian School  (8443) 
Gloria Butz 
1312 2nd St SE 
Auburn WA 98002-5755 
253.833.3541 

P-8 40 125 0 King 

Valley School 
Robert Schultz 
309 31st Ave E 
Seattle WA 98112-4819 
206.328.4475 

P-5 14 90 0 King 

Vancouver Christian High School 
Roger Miller 
8205 E Fourth Plain Blvd 
(Mail: PO Box 87625 Vancouver 98687-7625) 
Vancouver WA 98662-7254 
360.735.7915 

9-12 0 130 0 Clark 

Villa Academy 
Jo Ellen Elsner 
5001 NE 50th St 
Seattle WA 98105-2899 
206.524.8885 

P-8 48 334 0 King 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  63 

 
Visitation School 
Sheila Harrison 
3306 S 58th St 
Tacoma WA 98409-5306 
253.474.6424 

P-8 35 140 0 Pierce 

Vista Hermosa Elementary School 
Nicholas Zavala 
74 Sara Legend Ln 
(Mail: 1111 Fishhook Pk Ln  Prescott 99348-9618) 
Prescott WA 99348 
509.749.2138 

P-6 37 80 0 Walla 
Walla 

Walla Walla Valley Academy 
John Deming 
300 SW Academy Way 
College Place WA 99324-1283 
509.525.1050 

9-12 0 190 0 Walla 
Walla 

Warden Hutterian School 
Albert Wollman 
1054 W Harder Rd 
Warden WA 98857-9650 
509.349.8045 

K-12 0 21 0 Adams 

West Seattle Montessori School 
Angela Sears 
11215 16th Ave SW 
(Mail: 13428 108th Ave SW  Vashon 98070-3314) 
Seattle WA 98146-3564 
206.935.0427 

P-8 160 75 0 King 

West Sound Academy 
Joe Kennedy 
16571 Creative Dr NE 
(Mail: PO Box 807  Poulsbo 98370-0807) 
Poulsbo WA 98370 
360.598.5954 

6-12 0 110 0 Kitsap 

Westgate Christian School 
Mendi Juntunen 
7111 N Nine Mile Rd 
Spokane WA 99208-3881 
509.325.2252 

P-6 36 60 0 Spokane 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  64 

 
Westpark Christian Academy 
Colleen Sheahan 
3902 Summitview Ave 
Yakima WA 98902-2717 
509.966.1632 

P-12 12 70 0 Yakima 

Westside School 
Jo Ann Yockey 
7749 34th Ave SW 
Seattle WA 98126 
206.932.2511 

P-5 37 195 0 King 

Whatcom Day Academy 
Susan Donnelly 
5217 Northwest Rd 
Bellingham WA 98226-9050 
360.312.1103 

P-12 35 72 0 Whatcom 

Whatcom Hills Waldorf 
Kathleen Fraser 
941 Austin St 
Bellingham WA 98229-2705 
360.733.3164 

P-8 16 170 0 Whatcom 

Whole Earth Montessori School 
Dianna Galante 
2930 228th St SE 
Bothell WA 98021-8927 
425.486.3037 

P-12 75 25 0 King 

Woodinville Montessori School 
Mary Schneider 
19102 North Creek Parkway 
Bothell WA 98011-8005 
425.482.3184 

P-9 84 177 0 King 

Yakima Adventist Christian School 
Patrick Frey 
1200 City Reservoir Rd 
Yakima WA 98908-2144 
509.966.1933 

K-10 0 90 0 Yakima 

Zion Lutheran School 
Lynne Hereth 
3923 103rd Ave SE 
Lake Stevens WA 98258-5763 
425.334.5064 

P-8 25 160 0 Snohomish 



Private Schools for Approval 
 

2010-11 
  
School Information 
 

Grade  
Range 

Projected 
Pre-school 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Enrollment 

Projected 
Extension 
Enrollment 

County 

 

  65 

 
Zion Preparatory Academy 
Douglas Wheeler 
4730 32nd Ave S 
Seattle WA 98118-1702 
206.271.1586 

P-3 60 110 0 King 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

 

 

 

 
REQUIRED ACTION DISTRICT IMPLEMENTATION 

 
BACKGROUND 

The 2010 Legislature passed E2SSB 6696 creating Required Action Districts that contain persistently 
lowest achieving (PLA) Title I or Title I eligible schools in the bottom 5 percent of performance on state 
assessments for all students in math and reading. The following steps take place to determine which 
districts could become Required Action Districts: 
 

• By December 2010, and annually thereafter, the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction 
(OSPI) shall develop a list of the 5 percent persistently lowest achieving Title I or Title I eligible 
schools.  

 
• By January 2011, and annually thereafter, the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction 

(OSPI) shall recommend to the State Board of Education (SBE) Required Action Districts based 
on the availability of federal funds for school improvement and OSPI criteria as defined in rule
 

.  

•  In January 2011, and annually thereafter, provided federal funds are available the SBE will 
designate the Required Action District(s) based on OSPI’s recommendations.  
 

Once the SBE designates one or more Required Action Districts, those districts must follow a schedule 
set in rule to complete a Required Action Plan. The SBE approves the Required Action District’s plan. 
OSPI must also ensure the Required Action District will meet the requirements of the Federal School 
Improvement guidelines to receive funding.  
 
Provisions are made in law for mediation or superior court review if the local parties are unable to agree 
on a Required Action Plan or the district does not submit a Required Action Plan.  
 
Upon SBE approval, each Required Action District will receive the federal grant to implement its 
Required Action Plan using one of the four federal models for intervention over a three year period. 
OSPI will report on the progress of the Required Action District schools twice a year to the SBE based 
on the Required Action District’s plan and metrics.  
 
After three years, OSPI will make a recommendation to the SBE as to whether the Required Action 
District should be released. The primary deciding factor will be if the lowest achieving schools in the 
Required Action District have improved their student achievement for all students in math and reading 
by: 1) a positive performance trend for three years and 2) a review of their combined math and reading 
scores to indicate they are not on the current list of lowest 5 percent PLAs. The SBE will then release 
the district from designation as a Required Action District.  If the Required Action District is not 
released, then it will have to develop a new or revised plan.  
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
The SBE and OSPI are drafting rules to implement the Required Action District provision. SBE’s rules 
address the schedule for the Required Action process. OSPI’s rules address the criteria for selection 
and deselection into and out of required action. OSPI and SBE will issue more detailed joint guidelines 
that describe the full process for Required Action separately from the rules issued. See Attachment A 
for the draft SBE rule.  
 
SBE Process Criteria: 
 
The SBE rule outlines the actions and dates for the Required Action Process, which includes: 
 

• Designation of Required Action District.  
• Process for Submittal and Approval of Required Action Plan.  
• Process for Submittal and Approval of Required Action Plan When Mediation or Superior Court 

Review is Involved.  
• Failure to Submit or Receive Approval of a Required Action Plan.  
• Release of a School District from Designation as a Required Action District. 

 
See Attachment A for the proposed SBE rule language. Attachment B provides the details of the 
Required District Action process as passed in E2SSB 6696 (Chapter 235). 
 
OSPI Selection Criteria: 
 
OSPI will consider school districts for required action designation, provided those school districts with 
PLAs demonstrate the greatest need for required action as determined by the following draft OSPI 
concepts: 
 
(a)  The criteria for the January 2011 recommendation shall be: 
 (i) The school district has one or more schools on the persistently lowest achieving list; 
 (ii)The school district declined the voluntary option to apply for a school improvement grant in 
the 2009-10 school year application period; 
 (iii) The school or schools in the district are in the lowest 20 percent of the schools on the 
persistently lowest achieving list;                      

(iv) The school or schools have a declining achievement in reading/math on state assessments 
for all students below the statewide average over the last three years; and 
 (v) Federal funds are available to fund assistance for the required action district. 

 
(b)  The criteria for the January 2012 recommendations and thereafter shall be: 
 (i) The school district has one or more schools on the persistently lowest achieving list; 
 (ii) The school or schools in the district are in the lowest 20 percent of the schools on the 
persistently lowest achieving list;                      

(iii) The school or schools have a declining achievement in reading/math on state assessments 
for all students below the statewide average over the last three years; and 
 (iv) Federal funds are available to fund assistance for the required action district. 

 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

OSPI Deselection Criteria: 
 
OSPI will recommend to SBE that a school district is no longer in required action after three years 
implementation if: 
 
(a) It has no school or schools on the list of PLA; and  

 
(b) The school or schools in the Required Action District have a positive performance trend in reading 

and mathematics on the state's assessment in the “all students” category based on a three-year 
average.  

 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
The SBE will consider approval of its draft rule on Required Action District process (Attachment A) at 
the July meeting. The final SBE rule will have a public hearing and consideration of final adoption at the 
September meeting. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

Attachment A 

 
SBE ACCOUNTABILITY RULES (E2SSB 6696) 

 
 
WAC XXX-XX-XXX Designation of Required Action Districts 
 
In January of each year, the State Board of Education shall designate as a required action district a 
school district recommended by the Superintendent of Public Instruction for such designation. 
 
WAC XXX-XX-XXX Process for Submittal and Approval of Required Action Plan  
 
(1)  Except as otherwise provided in WAC XXX-XX-XXX, school districts designated as required action 
districts by the state board of education shall develop and implement a required action plan according 
to the following schedule:  
 
      (a)  By April 15 of the year in which the district is designated, a school district shall submit a 
required action plan to the superintendent of public instruction to review and approve that the plan is 
consistent with federal guidelines for the receipt of a School Improvement Grant. The required action 
plan must comply with all of the requirements set forth in Section 105, Chapter 235, Laws of 2010.   
 
     (b)  By May 1 of the year in which the district is designated, a school district shall submit a required 
action plan approved by the Superintendent of Public Instruction to the State Board of Education for 
approval.      
 
(2)  The State Board of Education shall, by May 15 of each year, either: 
 
      (a)   Approve the school districts required action plan; or 
 
      (b)   Notify the school district that the required action plan has not been approved stating the 
 reasons for the disapproval.    
 
(3)  A school district notified by the state board of education that its required action plan has not been 
approved under section (2)(a) shall submit by July 1 a revised required action plan to the 
superintendent of public instruction to review and approve as consistent with federal guidelines for the 
receipt of a School Improvement Grant.  The state board of education shall approve the districts 
required action plan by July 15 if it meets all of the requirements set forth in Section 105, Chapter 235, 
Laws of 2010. 
 
WAC XXX-XX-XXX Process for Submittal and Approval of a Required Action Plan When 
Mediation or Superior Court Review is Involved 
 
(1)  By April 1 of the year in which a school district is designated for required action, it shall notify the 
superintendent of public instruction and the state board of education that it is pursuing mediation with 
the public employment relations commission in an effort to agree to changes to terms and conditions of 
employment to a collective bargaining agreement that are necessary to implement a required action 
plan.  Mediation with the public employment relations commission must commence no later than April 
15.   
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

plan.  Mediation with the public employment relations commission must commence no later than April 
15.   
 
(2)  If the parties are able to reach agreement in mediation, the following timeline shall apply: 
 

(a)  A school district shall submit its required action plan according to the following schedule: 
  

(i) By June 1, the school district shall submit its required action plan to the superintendent 
of public instruction for review and approval as consistent with federal guidelines for the 
receipt of a School Improvement Grant. 
 

(ii) By June 10, the school district shall submit its required action plan to the state board of 
education for approval.  

 
(b) The state board of education shall, by June 15 of each year, approve a plan proposed by a 

school district only if the plan meets the requirements in Section 105, Chapter 235, Laws of 
2010 and provides sufficient remedies to address the findings in the academic performance 
audit to improve student achievement.  
 

 (3)  If the parties are unable to reach an agreement in mediation, the school district shall file a petition 
with the superior court for a review of any disputed issues under the timeline prescribed in Section 105, 
chapter 235, Laws of 2010.  After receipt of the superior court’s decision, the following timeline shall 
apply: 
 

(a)  A school district shall submit its revised required action plan according to the following 
schedule: 

   
(i) By June 30, the school district shall submit its revised required action plan to the 

superintendent of public instruction for review and approval as consistent with federal 
guidelines for the receipt of a School Improvement Grant. 
 

(ii) By July 5, the school district shall submit its revised required action plan to the state 
board of education for approval.  

 
(b) The state board of education shall, by July 15 of each year, approve a plan proposed by a 

school district only if the plan meets the requirements in Section 105, Chapter 235, Laws of 
2010 and provides sufficient remedies to address the findings in the academic performance 
audit to improve student achievement. 

 
WAC XXX-XX-XXX Failure to Submit or Receive Approval of a Required Action Plan 
 
The state board of education shall direct the superintendent of public instruction to require a school 
district that has not submitted a final required action plan for approval, or has submitted but not 
received state board of education approval of a required action plan by the beginning of the school year 
in which the plan is intended to be implemented, to redirect the district’s Title I funds based on the 
academic performance audit findings.   
 
WAC XXX-XX-XXX Release of a School District from Designation as a Required Action District 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

(1)  The state board of education shall release a school district from designation as a required action 
district upon recommendation by the superintendent of public instruction, and confirmation by the 
board, that the district has met the requirements for release set forth in Section 110, Chapter 235, Laws 
of 2010. 
 
(2)  If the board determines that the required action district has not met the requirements for a release 
in Section 110, Chapter 235, Laws of 2010, the school district shall remain in required action and 
submit a new or revised required action plan under the process and timeline as prescribed in WAC 
XXX-XX-XXX or WAC XXX-XX-XXX. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
      
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

Attachment B 

 
Summary of Chapter 235, 2010 Laws, E2SSB 6696 
with a section-by-section summary of Part I  

Part I: 
Accountability 
Framework  
Section 101: Intent  

State's responsibility to create a coherent and effective accountability 
framework for the continuous improvement for all schools and 
districts. This system must provide an excellent and equitable 
education for all students; an aligned federal/state accountability 
system; and the tools necessary for schools and districts to be 
accountable. These tools include the necessary accounting and data 
reporting systems, assessment systems to monitor student 
achievement, and a system of general support, targeted assistance, 
and if necessary, intervention. 
 
Definition of roles of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) and 
the State Board of Education (SBE) for accountability outlined. 
Phase I will recognize schools that have done an exemplary job of 
raising student achievement and closing the achievement gaps 
through SBE Accountability Index. SBE will have ongoing 
collaboration with the achievement gap oversight and accountability 
committee regarding the measures used to measure the closing of 
the achievement gaps and the recognition provided to the school 
districts for closing the achievement gaps. Phase I will also use 
federal guidelines to identify the lowest five percent of persistently low 
achieving schools to use federal funds and federal intervention 
models beginning in 2010 (voluntary) and 2011 (required). 
 
Phase II will implement SBE Accountability Index for identification of 
schools including non Title I schools in need of improvement and 
develop state and local intervention models with state and local funds 
beginning in 2013. Federal approval of the state board of education's 
accountability index must be obtained or else the federal guidelines 
for persistently low-achieving schools will continue to be used. 
 
The expectation from implementation of this accountability system is 
the improvement of student achievement for all students to prepare 
them for postsecondary education, work, and global citizenship in the 
twenty-first century. 
 

Section 102: 
Identification of the 
Persistently Lowest 
Achieving Schools 

Beginning no later than December 1, 2010, and annually thereafter, 
OSPI will use the federal criteria set forth in the final federal rules for 
school improvement to identify the persistently lowest achieving 
schools and their districts. The criteria for determining whether a 
school is among the persistently lowest-achieving five percent of Title 
I schools, or Title I eligible schools, shall be established by OSPI. The 
criteria must meet all applicable requirements for the receipt of a 
federal school improvement grant under the American recovery and 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

reinvestment act of 2009 and Title I of the elementary and secondary 
education act of 1965, and take into account: 
• The academic achievement of the "all students" group in a school in 

terms of proficiency on the state's assessment, and any alternative 
assessments, in reading and mathematics combined; and  

• The school's lack of progress on the mathematics and reading 
assessments over a number of years in the "all students" group. 
 

Section 103: 
Required Action 
Districts 

Beginning in January 2011, OSPI shall annually recommend to SBE 
districts for designation as required action districts based on the 
availability of federal funds and criteria developed by SPI.  Districts 
must have at least one of the persistently lowest achieving schools. 
School districts that have volunteered in 2010 or have improved shall 
not be included in this designation. SBE may designate a district that 
received a school improvement grant in 2010 as a required action 
district if after three years of voluntarily implementing a plan the 
district continues to have a school identified as persistently lowest-
achieving and meets the criteria for designation established by the 
superintendent of public instruction. 
 
OSPI will provide districts with written notice. School districts may 
request reconsideration of this designation within ten days. 
SBE will annually designate those districts recommended by OSPI. 
Districts must notify all parents with students in persistently low 
achieving schools that the district is in required action. 

Section 104: 
Academic 
Performance Audit 

OSPI will contract with an external review team to conduct an 
academic performance audit of the required action district. The review 
team shall have expertise in comprehensive school and district reform 
and shall not be from OSPI, SBE, or school district subject to audit. 
 
OSPI shall establish audit criteria. The audit shall include, but not be 
limited to: student demographics, mobility patterns, school feeder 
patterns, performance of different student groups on assessments, 
effective school leadership, strategic allocation of resources, clear 
and shared focus on student learning, high standards and 
expectations for all students, high level of collaboration and 
communication, aligned curriculum, instruction and assessment to 
state standards, frequency of monitoring learning and teaching, 
focused professional development, supportive learning environment, 
high level of family and community involvement, alternative 
secondary schools best practices, and any unique circumstances or 
characteristics of the school or district. 
 
Audit findings shall be made available to the local school district, its 
staff, community, and the State Board of Education. 
 

Section 105: 
Required Action 
Plan 

The local school district superintendent and local board of a required 
action district shall submit a required action plan to SBE upon a 
schedule SBE develops.  
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

The required action plan must be developed in collaboration with 
administrators, teachers, staff, parents, union (representing any 
employees in district), students, and representatives of the local 
community.  OSPI will assist district as requested in plan 
development. The local school board will hold a public hearing on the 
proposed required action plan.  
 
The required action plan must address the concerns raised in the 
audit and include: 
a) Implementation of one of four federal intervention models, 

including turnaround, restart, closure, and transformation (no 
charters unless expressly authorized by legislature). The 
intervention model selected must address the concerns raised in 
the academic performance audit and be intended to improve 
student performance to allow a school district to be removed from 
the list of districts designated as a required action district by the 
state board of education within three years of implementation of 
the plan. 

b) An application for a federal school improvement grant to OSPI. 
c) Budget for adequate resources to implement. 
d) Description of changes in district or school policies and practices 

to improve student achievement. 
e) Metrics used to assess student achievement to improve reading, 

math, and graduation rates. 
 

The plan will have to be implemented over a three year period. OSPI 
will review the local school district required action plan and approve 
that it is consistent with federal guidelines prior to the local 
superintendent and Board submitting the plan to the SBE. 
 
Expiring collective bargaining agreements for all school districts that 
are designated required action districts as of the effective date of this 
section must have the authority to reopen its collective bargaining 
agreements if needed to develop and implement an appropriate 
required action plan.  
 
If no agreement can be reached between district and employee 
organizations, then:  

• Mediation through the Public Employment Relations 
Commission must start no later than April 15 and be 
completed by May 15.  

• Or it will be go to Superior Court with decision by June 15.  
If it goes to Superior Court, then: 

• The school district must file a petition with the superior court 
by May 20, and  

• Within seven days of filing the petition each party must file a 
proposal to be implemented in a final required action plan.  

• The court's decision must be issued no later than June 15th. 
 
Each party will bear its own costs for mediation or courts. All 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

mediation shall include employer and representatives of all affected 
bargaining units.  

Section 106: SBE 
Approves Required 
Action Plan  

SBE shall approve the local district required action plan if it meets the 
requirements identified in Section 105 and provides sufficient 
remedies to address the findings in the academic performance audit 
to improve student achievement. The SBE must accept for inclusion 
any final decision by the superior court.   
                                                            
The required action plan goes into effect for the next school year 
(thus a district designated in January 2011 would implement the plan 
in the immediate school year following designation as a required 
action district). Federal funds must be available to implement the plan 
or else it will not go into effect. 
 
Any addendum to the collective bargaining agreement related to 
student achievement or school improvement shall not go into effect 
until SBE approves the plan. 
 
If SBE does not approve the plan. SBE must notify the district in 
writing and provide reasons. The district may either: 

• Submit new plan within 40 days with OSPI assisting the 
district with resubmission of the plan; or 

• Submit a request to the Required Action Plan Review Panel 
(established under section 107) for reconsideration of SBE's 
rejection within ten days of the notification that the plan was 
rejected. 

If federal funds are not available, the plan is not required to be 
implemented until such funding becomes available. If federal funds 
for this purpose are available, a required action plan must be 
implemented in the next immediate school year. 

Section 107: 
Required Action 
Review Panel 

A Required Action Review Panel is established and shall be 
composed of five individuals with expertise in school improvement, 
school and district restructuring, or parent and community 
involvement in schools. Two of the panel members shall be appointed 
by the speaker of the house of representatives; two shall be 
appointed by the president of the senate; and one shall be appointed 
by the governor. 
 
If SBE does not approve a district’s Required Action Plan, then the 
district may appeal the decision to the Panel for consideration. The 
Panel will be convened as-needed. 
 
The Panel may reaffirm the decision of SBE, recommend that the 
SBE reconsider the rejection, or recommend changes to the required 
action plan that should be considered by the district and SBE to 
secure approval of the plan. SBE shall consider the recommendations 
of the panel and issue a decision in writing to the local school district 
and the panel. If the school district must submit a new required action 
plan to the state board of education, the district must submit the plan 
within 40 days of the board's decision.  



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

SBE and OSPI must develop timelines and procedures for the 
deliberations under this section so that school districts can implement 
a required action plan within the time frame required under section 
106. 

Section 108: 
Redirect of Title I 
Funds if No 
Required Action 
Plan 

SBE may charge OSPI to redirect district’s Title I funds based on the 
academic performance audit findings if a school district has not 
submitted a required action plan for approval or the final plan 
submitted has not received approval by SBE.  

Section 109: 
Implementation of 
Required Action 
Plan 

A school district must implement a required action plan upon approval 
by the state board of education. OSPI must provide the required 
action district with technical assistance and federal school 
improvement grant funds or other federal funds for school 
improvement, if available, to implement an approved plan. 
 
The district will provide regular updates to OSPI on its progress in 
meeting the student achievement goals based on the state's 
assessments, identifying strategies and assets used to solve audit 
findings, and establishing evidence of meeting plan implementation 
benchmarks as set forth in the required action plan.  

Section 110: 
Biannual Reports 
and Delisting 
Districts 

OSPI will inform SBE at least biannually (twice a year) of the progress 
of the Required Action District’s progress on its plan implementation 
and metrics.  
 
OSPI will recommend to SBE that a district is no longer in required 
action after three years of district implementation based on 
improvement as defined by OSPI, in reading and mathematics on the 
state's assessment over the past three consecutive years.  
 
SBE will release a school district from the designation as a required 
action district upon confirmation that the district has met the 
requirements for a release or SBE will recommend that the district 
remain in required action. 

Sec. 111: 
Recognition of 
Exemplary 
Performance and 
Collaboration with 
the Achievement 
Gap Oversight and 
Accountability 
Committee 

SBE, in cooperation with OSPI, shall annually recognize schools for 
exemplary performance as measured on the state board of education 
accountability index. SBE shall have ongoing collaboration with the 
achievement gap oversight and accountability committee regarding 
the measures used to measure the closing of the achievement gaps 
and the recognition provided to the school districts for closing the 
achievement gaps. 

Sec. 112: Definitions Definitions for the Chapter: 
• "All students group" means those students in grades three 

through eight and high school who take the state's 
assessment in reading and mathematics; and  

• "Title I" means Title I, part A of the federal elementary and 
secondary education act of 1965. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

Sec. 113: Adopting 
Rules 

OSPI and SBE may each adopt rules in accordance with chapter 
34.05 RCW as necessary to implement this chapter. 

Sec. 114: Joint 
Select Committee 
on Education 
Accountability 

A joint select committee on education accountability is established 
beginning no earlier than May 1, 2012, to:  

• Identify and analyze options for a complete system of 
education accountability, particularly consequences in the 
case of persistent lack of improvement by a required action 
district; 

• Identify and analyze appropriate decision-making 
responsibilities and accompanying consequences at the 
building, district, and state level within such an accountability 
system; 

• Examine models and experiences in other states; 
• Identify the circumstances under which significant state action 

may be required; and 
• Analyze the financial, legal, and practical considerations that 

would accompany significant state action. 
The committee shall submit an interim report to the education 
committees of the legislature by September 1, 2012, and a final report 
with recommendations by September 1, 2013. 

 
 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

 
 

RECOGNITION AWARDS 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Using the State Board of Education’s Accountability Index, the Office of Superintendent of Public 
Instruction (OSPI) and the State Board of Education (SBE) recognized 174 schools through their new 
joint recognition program, “Washington Achievement Awards,” on May 5, 2010. There were six possible 
awards – one for overall excellence as well as five special recognition awards: language arts (reading 
and writing combined), math, science, the extended graduation rate, and gifted programs. While we 
planned to recognize schools that closed the socioeconomic achievement gap, the criteria established 
to receive this award ended up being too stringent, so no schools met the criteria and no recognition 
was given.  
 
SBE staff debriefed with OSPI and SBE members on the Washington Achievement Awards for 2009 as 
well as with the Systems Performance Accountability work group. Many people found the award 
ceremony and recognition very meaningful. They like the new Accountability Index and its measures. 
There were some concerns expressed about the timing for recognition at the ESD’s while the main 
ceremony was going on. Unfortunately, the May date did not permit all building staff to attend the 
ceremony due to state assessment testing. Some changes to the schedule and ceremonies are 
outlined in Attachment A.  
 
Additionally, suggestions were made to develop a more friendly way to look up a school’s scores on the 
SBE or OSPI websites. SBE staff has created a new lookup tool, which allows individuals to type in a 
school code and more easily obtain their ratings on the SBE website: www.sbe.wa.gov.  
 
Senate Bill 6696, from the 2010 Legislative Session, requires the State Board of Education to have 
ongoing collaboration with the Achievement Gap Oversight and Accountability Committee regarding 
measures used to compute the achievement gap and recognition for schools that close their 
achievement gaps. SBE staff, and its consultant, met with the Achievement Gap Oversight and 
Accountability Committee in May to discuss ways to recognize closing the achievement gap by income, 
race/ethnicity, and some of the proposed changes the Board reviewed at its May meeting: 
 

1. Add special recognition for improvement, using the same criteria as other awards, i.e. two year 
average of at least 6.00. 

2. Do not provide the overall excellence recognition award for schools that have a significant 
socio-economic or racial/ethnic gap. 

3. Highlight schools that receive multiple year awards. 
4. Add special recognition awards for achievement gap (SES and race/ethnicity), using a criterion 

based system. 
 
The Achievement Gap Oversight and Accountability Committee supported the SBE recommendations.  
OSPI staff examined 2009 enrollment data to determine how many schools would have results that 
could be used for the race/ethnic achievement gap awards, using the SBE modified accountability 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

index for subgroup accountability and if the subgroups were combined. Some slight modifications to the 
criteria may be needed, once the results from 2010 are available, to ensure an appropriate number of 
schools receive recognition. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
Under Attachment B is a memo from Pete Bylsma with his final recommendations for changes to the 
SBE Accountability Index. The key revisions are: 
 

1. Add special recognition for improvement, using the same criteria as other awards, i.e. two year 
average of at least 6.00, but include all schools regardless of their level of gifted students. 

2. Do not provide overall excellence recognition award for schools that have a significant socio-
economic or racial/ethnic gap1. 

3. Highlight schools that receive multiple year awards. 
4. Add special recognition awards for reducing the achievement gap (SES and race/ethnicity) 

using a criterion based system. 
5. Add a district summary of all schools and a statewide summary using the 2010 Accountability 

Index. 
 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
The Board will consider approval of the above key revisions to the joint OSPI/SBE Washington 
Achievement Awards for 2010.  Under revision # 3, staff recommends that the special recognition 
award for reducing the achievement gap for race and ethnicity use the third option recommendation in 
the Bylsma paper, which combines the detailed matrix under Option 1 to report results with the 
combined results under Option 2 for recognition purposes. 

                                                 
1 Staff will need to determine at a later date what “significant” socio-economic or racial/ethnic gap means in terms 
of a specific number(s). 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

Attachment A 
 

2010 WASHINGTON ACHIEVEMENT AWARD UPDATED JUNE 18, 2010 
Program Timeline 

 
TASK DUE DATE STAFF 

Raw assessment data and cut scores 
available for index calculation and 
delivered to State Board. 

September 30 2010 Sheri and Robin 

Review data for anomalies. October 2010 Sarah 

Criteria for achievement gap selection 
established. 

October  2010 Sarah, Aaron, Hilary, Edie, 
Alan 
(in collaboration with Student 
Information and CISL) 

Complete 08 – 09 and 09 – 10 indexes 
and 2-year averages delivered to State 
Board (Sarah). 
File should include School, district, 
ESD. 

December 10, 2010 Robin, Sherri 

Complete list of award winning schools 
delivered to Hilary and Aaron. 
File should include school, district, 
ESD, principal name, principal email(?). 

December 10, 2010 Robin, Sherri 

Review data again for quality check. December 2010 SBE 

Share overall data with schools to 
review and ensure data is correct. 

January 2011 Robin, Sherri, Sarah 

Formatted and searchable index 
complete. 

February 1, 2011 Sarah 

Ceremony date and location set. February 15, 2011 Hilary 

Recognition at ESD meetings set 
(various dates following awards 
ceremony). 

February 15, 2011 Hilary, Karen 

List of award winning schools 
presented to State Board. 

 Media Release. 
 Informational PDF. 

March 2011 Aaron, Hilary 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

 List of schools by category. 
 Invitation to event. 
 Event information sheet for 

awards ceremony. 

Award winning schools notified by 
Randy and Jeff via email. 
(simultaneous with board presentation) 

March 2011 Hilary 

Awards and banners ordered. Mid March 2011 Hilary 

Save the date email, request for 
personal stories and principal press 
packet (suggestions and tools for 
promoting the award in their 
communities). 

Mid March 2011 Hilary 

Print invitations mailed. March 18, 2011 Hilary 

Ceremony details set. 
 Presenters 
 Catering 
 Performances 
 Photography 
 Site visit 
 Staff support 

March 25, 2011 Hilary 

Media advisory for award ceremony 
sent out and ceremony promoted 
through various social media. (?) 

1 – 1 ½ weeks prior to awards 
ceremony 

Aaron, Hilary 

RSVP deadline for awards ceremony. 2 weeks prior to ceremony date Hilary, Karen 

Awards ceremony. March or April 2011 Hilary, Aaron 

Extra awards and banners shipped to 
ESD’s. 

One week after award ceremony Hilary, Karen (additional help 
from State Board?) 

Recognition for schools that did not 
attend awards ceremony at regional 
ESD meetings. 

Various (following awards 
ceremony) 

ESD’s 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

 Attachment B  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ACHIEVEMENT GAP RECOGNITION 
Pete Bylsma, EdD, MPA 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In March 2010 OSPI and State Board of Education (SBE) provided recognition to schools in six areas 
based on the Accountability Index. The Outstanding Overall Performance award was given to schools 
whose 2-year Index average put them in the top 5% of schools in the four grade bands (elementary, 
middle/junior, high and comprehensive). Special Recognition awards were given to schools with 
consistently high performance (a 2-year average of at least 6.00) in four outcome areas. These five 
awards required fewer than 10% of the students to be designated as gifted each year.2 To ensure that 
schools with a high concentration of gifted students were not excluded from the system, Special 
Recognition was given to any school with a gifted program that had a 2-year peer average of at least 6.00. 
The full criteria used for each type of recognition is shown below. 

 The Outstanding Overall Performance award was given to schools whose 2-year Accountability 
Index average put them in the top 5%, based on the number of schools in each of the four grade 
bands.3 To be eligible for this award, a school must have at least 10 cells of the 20-cell matrix rated 
and fewer than 10% students designated as gifted. (Note: One additional criterion is recommended for 
2010 as discussed below.) 

 Special Recognition awards were given to schools with very high performance in four outcome areas: 
language arts (reading and writing combined), math, science, and the extended graduation rate. 
To receive this award, a school’s overall (column) 2-year average for the outcome must be at least 
6.00, at least 2 of the 4 cells in the column must be rated each year, and there must be fewer than 10% 
students designated as gifted each year.4 

 The special recognition award for schools with a gifted program (i.e., those with at least 10% of the 
students designated as gifted each year) was given when the 2-year average peer (row) ratings was at 
least 6.00.5 

 
The matrix used to calculate the Accountability Index is shown below. The green cells relate to areas 
where recognition was given based on results from 2008 and 2009. 

                                                 
2 Statewide, roughly 3% of all students receive this designation, so schools with 10% or more gifted students have much higher 
concentrations of highly capable students. The exclusion criterion prevents a school from receiving recognition simply because 
of its student composition. 
3 The “2-year average” refers to the average of data from 2008 and 2009. The top 5% is based on the total schools at the 
grade band in the 2009 index (the total N includes schools that did not receive an index). 
4 For language arts, both reading and writing must have a 2-year average of at least 6.00 and at least 2 of the cells rated in 
each column each year. 
5 Results for the peer indicators control for the types of students attending the school (the percent gifted, low income, ELL, 
special education, and mobile). 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

 

 Outcomes  

Indicator Reading Writing Math Science 
Ext. Grad. 

Rate Average 

Non-low inc. 
achievement 

      

Low inc. ach.       

Ach. vs. peers      6.00* 
for gifted

Improvement       

Average 6.00* 6.00* 6.00* 6.00* Top 5%*

* Minimum 2-year average rating to earn recognition 
 
 
The table below shows how many schools received recognition in 2009. A total of 108 schools received 
the Outstanding Overall Performance award, and different index scores were required at each grade 
level because this award was given to the top 5%. A total of 125 awards were given to schools that met 
the Special Recognition criteria. A total of 174 different schools received recognition in 233 areas, and 
48 schools received recognition in more than one area. 
 

Grade Band  
  # in 
 top 5% 

Index 
cut-off  

Total 
awards   Focus 

Total 
awards 

 Elementary   53  5.280   70    Lang. Arts  36  
 Middle   19  4.875   26    Math   10  
 High   20  4.910   52    Science  24 
 Multiple   16  4.735   26    Grad rate  35 
 Total   108   174   Gifted  20 
      Total  125 

 
OSPI/SBE had planned to recognize schools that had closed the achievement gap. However, the criteria 
established to receive this award ended up being too stringent, so no schools met the criteria and no 
recognition was given.6 OSPI/SBE want to have a method to provide recognition next year to schools 
that have reduced or closed the achievement gap. 
 
                                                 
6 The initial criteria established to earn recognition for closing the achievement gap was rather complicated. It required a 
school to have at least 10 students in at least 2 of the 5 outcomes (columns) in both of the income-related cells (non-low 
income and low income), there could be no rating of 1 in any income-related cell or peer cell, there could be no more than a 
1-point difference in the rating between the two income-related cells (e.g., if the reading non-low income cell is rated 5, the 
reading low-income cell could be rated no lower than 4 and no higher than 6), and there had to be fewer than 10% students 
designated as gifted each year. Each of the above criteria had to be met two years in a row. Original estimates found that less 
than 1% of schools met these criteria using 2007 and 2008 data. 
 

INDEX 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Two types of Special Recognition are recommended that relate to the achievement gap. Both are 
criteria-referenced, so they are similar to the other types of Special Recognition. 

 Use the Accountability Index matrix to measure the achievement gap in terms of performance by 
students with different socioeconomic status (SES). 

 Use either the modified matrix created to examine subgroup results or the combined totals for the 
subgroups to measure the achievement gap in terms of performance by various racial/ethnic 
groups. 

Details for each type of recognition are provided below. 
 
For the socioeconomic gap, examine the difference in the averages of the non-low income and the low 
income rows (see yellow cells of the matrix below). Give recognition to any school that has a 
difference between the row averages of less than 1 in both years.7 The following minimum criteria 
should apply: 

1. The 2-year average for each row must be at least 4.00 (this ensures recognition is not given if 
performance is low); 

2. The Accountability Index must be at least 4.00 each year; 

3. At least 2 of the 5 cells in the row must be rated each year; and 

4. There must be fewer than 10% students designated as gifted each year. 
 

 Outcomes  

Indicator Reading Writing Math Science 
Ext. Grad. 

Rate Average 

Non-low inc. 
achievement 

     Compare 

Low inc. ach.       

Ach. vs. peers       

Improvement       

Average      

 
 
If the above criteria were used in 2009, 30 schools would have been recognized in 2009 (18 elementary, 
2 middle, 7 high, 3 comprehensive). This represents 1.4% of schools statewide. This form of recognition 
has the advantage of relying on the same Index matrix that is used for the other awards. It also 
recognizes that the achievement gap is driven primarily by differences in socioeconomic status. 

                                                 
7 This includes when the low income row has a higher rating than the non-low income row. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

There are two options to consider when giving recognition related to the racial/ethnic gap. 
 
1. Examine the average size of the gap between the groups that have historically underperformed 

(American Indian, Black, Hispanic, Pacific Islanders, multi-racial) and the two groups that have 
historically performed at higher levels (Asian, White).8 This system of recognition uses concepts in 
the modified matrix that was developed to examine subgroup results for possible AYP use.9 A “row 
average” is calculated for each subgroup, as shown in the table below for a hypothetical high 
school.10 Give recognition to any school that has less than a .50 difference between the row 
averages in two consecutive years. The following minimum criteria are also recommended in order 
for a school to receive recognition: 

 The 2-year average for each row must be at least 3.50; 

 At least 4 of the 9 cells in the row must be rated each year; and 

 There must be fewer than 10% students designated as gifted each year in the school. 
 

S ubg roup

Met S td. 
(All s tud.) Peers Improve .

Met S td. 
(All  s tud.) Peers Improve .

Met S td. 
(All s tud.) Peers Improve .

A merican  In d ian 4 4 4 1 5 4 1 4 4 3.44 0.33
Black 3 3 3 1 3 5 1 3 2 2.67 ‐1.00
His p an ic 3 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 4 3.22 ‐0.11
Pacific  Is lan d er 4 4 4 1 5 4 1 4 4 3.44 0.22
M u lti-rac ial 4 4 5 2 4 4 2 4 4 3.67 ‐0.22
Averag e 3.6 3.8 4.0 1.2 4.2 4.2 1.2 3.8 3.6 3.29 ‐0.13
W h ite 5 4 4 3 3 4 3 4 4 3.78 ‐0.22
A s ian 6 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 6 4.78 0.56
Averag e 5.5 4.0 4.5 3.5 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 4.28 0.17

READING MATH EXT. GRAD. RATE

Averag e  
rating

Chang e from 
previous  year

 
 
A total of 1,445 schools (67% of all schools statewide) would have enough students to generate results 
that could be used for this form of recognition. In 75% of these schools, data would be available to 
examine the difference between only a few groups (e.g., Hispanic vs. White) instead of all seven student 
groups. However, this simply reflects the enrollment patterns in the school. 
 
Results for the racial/ethnic subgroups have not yet been computed, so the number of schools that would 
have been recognized using these criteria is not yet known. The school shown in the example would not 
receive recognition because (a) some of the row averages fall below 3.5 and (b) the difference between 
the average ratings for the two groups is more than .50 (the difference in this year was 1.11, or 4.28 – 
3.17). Once results are available for the subgroups, some of the criteria may need to change to ensure an 
appropriate number of schools are recognized. While this type of recognition is more complicated than 
option 2 noted below, it has the advantage of making transparent the size of the achievement gap that 
has existed among the various racial/ethnic groups. The results using this method also give each 
subgroup the same level of importance, regardless of the number of students served. 
                                                 
8 Looking at the results of the special education or ELL groups is not recommended because students in both of these groups 
are also included in the other groups. 
9 This matrix uses the same concepts as the Accountability Index. For example, both use the same minimum N, benchmarks, 
and ratings, the results are combined across grades, and no margin of error is used. This matrix includes only the outcomes 
used for federal accountability (reading, math, extended graduation rate) and combines the two income-related indicators. 
10 This example reflects at least 10 students in each subgroup. However, only 13 school in the state (0.6%) have at least 10 
students in all seven subgroups. 

Compare 
these 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 
 

2. The second option uses the same matrix and eligibility criteria as Option 1, but it combines the results 
of all the groups into two major groups, those that have historically underperformed (American 
Indian, Black, Hispanic, Pacific Islanders, multi-racial) and those that have historically performed at 
higher levels (Asian, White). Hence, only two row averages are calculated, as shown in the table 
below. 

 

Group

Met S td. 
(All  s tud.) Peers Improve.

Met S td. 
(All  s tud.) P eers Improve.

Met S td. 
(All  s tud.) P eers Improve .

A merican  In d ian , 
Black, His p an ic , 
Pac . Is lan d ers , 
mu lti-rac ia l 3 4 4 2 3 3 1 4 3 3.00 ‐0.11
W h ite , A s ian 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4.11 0.11

READING MATH EXT. GRAD. RATE

Averag e 
rating

Chang e from 
previous  year

 
 
When combining the groups together, more schools (1,658 or 77% of all schools statewide) would have 
enough students to generate results that could be used for this form of recognition. Again, results using 
this system have not yet been computed, so the number of schools that would have been recognized 
using these criteria is not yet known. The school shown in the example would not receive recognition 
because (a) one row average falls below 3.5 and (b) the difference between the average ratings for the 
two groups is more than .50 (the difference in this year was .99, or 4.28-3.29). This option is less 
complicated than Option 1 and has the advantage of including more schools. However, the size of the 
achievement gap that exists among the various racial/ethnic groups is not shown. Results using this 
method are “weighted” so they reflect the relative proportion of students in each subgroup. 
 
3. A third option to consider is to report the results in the matrix from Option 1 but use the matrix in 

Option 2 for recognition purposes. This combines the best features of both options. 
 
Using Achievement Gap Criteria When Identifying Overall Outstanding Performance 
 
Another way to reinforce the importance of closing the achievement gap is to apply an additional 
criterion when determining schools that are recognized for Overall Outstanding Performance. 
Specifically, we recommend that in order to receive this type of recognition, a school must have a gap 
between the two socioeconomic groups that is no larger than 2. Of the 108 schools that were recognized 
this year for Overall Outstanding Performance, 25 had a gap between their non-low income and low 
income group averages that was larger than 2. 

Compare 
these 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
MATH RULE REVISIONS 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

In 2007, the Washington State Legislature directed the Board to increase the high school math 
graduation requirements from two to three credits (equivalent to three years of high school level 
math) and to determine the content of the three credits. The Board adopted a new math rule 
(WAC 180-51-066) in July 2008, effective for students in the graduating class of 2013. As 
practitioners have begun to work with the rule, questions have arisen that have required rule 
changes or guidance in the form of FAQs.1

 

 For instance, the Board amended the rule in July 
2009 to identify a clear path for students who took some of the required course work prior to 
ninth grade and did not request high school credit for it (see Attachment A, section (b)(v)).  

OSPI held a webinar on the new math rule and end-of-course math assessments on May 10, 
2010 attended by over 500 practitioners. During the course of that webinar, and in subsequent 
communications with SBE and OSPI staff, three implementation issues emerged that can only 
be addressed through a second amendment to WAC 180-51-066 (Attachment A shows the 
proposed new wording). 
 

 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 

The three implementation issues that the proposed rule amendment will address clarify: 
• Provisions for taking classes simultaneously. 
• What constitutes an appropriate sequence? 
• Provisions for placing out of required courses. 

 
In addition, some minor nomenclature changes are proposed. 
 
Provisions for taking classes simultaneously. The current rule language stipulates that 
mathematics courses must be taken in a progressive sequence, implying that courses must be 
taken one after another. Practitioners have asked whether the rule permits students who have 
failed all or part of a course (e.g., algebra 1) to enroll in the next course in the sequence (e.g., 
geometry) while they were retaking the failed course. 
 
Here is an excerpt from an e-mail we received about this issue: 
 

I have a question about a policy we currently use in progressing students on from algebra 1 
to geometry. Since algebra 1 is a building course, we currently allow students who fail 
semester one but pass semester two to progress on to the next course….Will our policy 
need to change since students in this case would have only earned a half credit?  

 

                                                
1 See the SBE website Math—Third Credit FAQs: http://www.sbe.wa.gov 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=180-51-066�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 

There appears to be no compelling educational reason to prohibit students from taking two 
courses simultaneously. Proposed sections (b)(iii)(A) and (B) address this issue (see 
Attachment A). 
 
What constitutes an appropriate sequence. The current rule requires math courses to be 
taken in a “progressive sequence,”2 and contains a provision that any combination of the three 
mathematics courses can be taken.3

• Allow flexibility for students to “mix and match” algebra/geometry courses with integrated 
courses, in the event that they moved between schools or districts that took different 
approaches.  

 The intention was to: 

• Stipulate that the courses needed to be taken in a progressive sequence, meaning a 
student who completed algebra 1 in District A would take integrated mathematics II in 
District B. 
 

Questions have been raised about whether a progressive sequence could also mean students 
could take: 
• Integrated mathematics I after completing algebra 1.  
• Algebra 1 after completing integrated mathematics I. 

 
Neither of the above examples are acceptable. The proposed rule change makes the 
expectations more explicit. Proposed revised sections (b)(i)(A-C) address this issue (see 
Attachments A). 
 
Provisions for placing out of required courses. Some schools/districts allow students to 
place out of lower level courses through formal or informal assessment procedures (e.g., 
placement test, teacher assessments, etc.). Students are not awarded credit; rather, the 
assessment is used to assure they take the level of math most suited to their abilities. 
 
Again, here is an excerpt from an e-mail we received: 
 

The ramifications of these new requirements are substantial for the PRISM program. In 
the past, students have been allowed to take placement tests to “skip” entire math 
classes (so that they were in their “just right” math class each year). According to these 
new WACs, there is no provision at all for skipping any of those three courses. In other 
words, even if students study over the summer, or go to summer math camps, etc., they 
cannot skip algebra or geometry or advanced algebra. Those courses (or their 
equivalents) must be taken. 
 

The Board addressed a similar issue when it modified the rule to outline the sequence of 
courses needed for students who took algebra 1/integrated math I and/or geometry/integrated 
math II prior to ninth grade but elected not to put the credit on their transcript. The difference in 
this instance is that students are not taking the course(s), but placing out of them.4

 

 The 
proposed new language of sections (b)(vi) and (b)(vii) mirrors the language of (b)(v)(B)(I) and 
(II), approved by the Board in July 2009. 

                                                
2 See (b)(i) of WAC 180-51-066 as adopted. (Attachment A) 
3 See (b)(i)(C) of WAC 18-51-066 as adopted. (Attachment A) 
4 Students will still need to take the end-of-course assessments in algebra1/integrated mathematics I and 
geometry/integrated mathematics II, even if they place out of the class. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Nomenclature changes. Minor nomenclature changes will more accurately reflect common 
usage in the field: changing algebra I to algebra 1; algebra II to algebra 2. In addition, the words, 
“high school-level” have been inserted in section (b)(ii) to reinforce the expectation that a third 
credit of mathematics other than algebra 2 or integrated mathematics III will be high school level 
math. 
 

 
EXPECTED ACTION 

Give staff direction about any revisions needed to the draft language and approve language for 
filing with the Code Reviser proposing amendments to WAC 180-51-066 in preparation for a 
public hearing in September 2010. 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 

 
Attachment A 

 
 

WAC 180-51-066 
Minimum requirements for high school graduation — Students entering the ninth grade on or 
after July 1, 2009. 
 
(1) The statewide minimum subject areas and credits required for high school graduation, beginning July 1, 2009, for 
students who enter the ninth grade or begin the equivalent of a four-year high school program, shall total 20 as listed 
below. 
 
. . . . 
 
(b) Three mathematics credits that align with the high school mathematics standards as developed and revised by 
the office of superintendent of public instruction and satisfy the requirements set forth below: 
 
   (i) Unless otherwise provided for in (b)(iii) or (iv) through (vii) of this subsection, the three mathematics credits 
required under this section must include mathematics courses taken in the following progressive sequence: 
 
   (A)  Algebra I1 or integrated mathematics I , geometry, and algebra II; or 
 
   (B)  Integrated mathematics I Geometry, or integrated mathematics II, and integrated mathematics III; or 
 
   (C)  Any combination of three mathematics courses set forth in (b)(i)(A) and (B) of this subsection 

and 

Algebra 2 or 
integrated mathematics III
 

. 

  (ii) A student may elect to pursue a third credit of high school-level

 

 mathematics, other than algebra II 2 or integrated 
mathematics III if all of the following requirements are met: 
 
   (A) The student has completed, for credit, mathematics courses in: 
 
   (I) Algebra I and geometry; or 
 
   (II) Integrated mathematics I and integrated mathematics II; or 
 
   (III) Any combination of two mathematics courses set forth in (b)(ii)(A)(I) and (II) of this subsection 

   (B) (A) The student's elective choice is based on a career oriented program of study identified in the student's high 
school and beyond plan that is currently being pursued by the student; 
 
   (C) (B) The student's parent(s)/guardian(s) (or designee for the student if a parent or guardian is unavailable) agree 
that the third credit of mathematics elected is a more appropriate course selection than algebra 2or integrated 
mathematics III because it will better serve the student's education and career goals; 
 
  (D) (C) A meeting is held with the student, the parent(s)/guardian(s) (or designee for the student if a parent or 
guardian is unavailable), and a high school representative for the purpose of discussing the student's high school and 
beyond plan and advising the student of the requirements for credit bearing two and four year college level 
mathematics courses; and 
 
  (E) (D)

 

 The school has the parent(s)/guardian(s) (or designee for the student if a parent or guardian is unavailable) 
sign a form acknowledging that the meeting with a high school representative has occurred, the information as 
required was discussed; and the parent(s)/guardian(s) (or designee for the student if a parent or guardian is 
unavailable) agree that the third credit of mathematics elected is a more appropriate course selection given the 
student's education and career goals. 

  (
 

iii) Courses in (b)(i) and (ii) may be taken currently in the following combinations: 

 
  (A) Algebra 1 or integrated mathematics I may be taken concurrently with geometry or integrated mathematics II. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

  (B) Geometry or integrated mathematics II may be taken concurrently with algebra 2 or integrated mathematics III, 
or a third credit of mathematics to the extent authorized by section (b)(ii). 
 
   (iii) (iv) Equivalent career and technical education (CTE) mathematics courses meeting the requirements set forth in 
RCW 28A.230.097 can be taken for credit instead of any of the mathematics courses set forth in (b)(i)(A) or (B) or 
(ii)(A)(I) or (II) of this subsection if the CTE mathematics courses are recorded on the student's transcript using the 
equivalent academic high school department designation and course title. 
 
  (iv) (v) A student who prior to ninth grade successfully completed algebra I1 or integrated mathematics I, ;and/or 
geometry or integrated mathematics II, or any combination of courses taken in a progressive sequence as provided in 
(b)(i)(C) of this subsection, but does not request high school credit for such course(s) as provided in RCW 
28A.230.090, may either: 
 
   (A) Repeat the course(s) for credit in high school; or 
 
   (B) Complete three credits of mathematics as follows: 
 
   (I) A student who has successfully completed algebra I or integrated mathematics I shall: 
 
   • Earn the first high school credit in geometry or integrated mathematics II; 
 
   • Earn a the second high school credit in algebra II 2 or integrated mathematics III; and 
 
   • Earn a the

 

 third high school credit in a math course that is consistent with the student's education and career 
goals. 
 
   (II) A student who has successfully completed algebra I or integrated mathematics I, and geometry or integrated 
mathematics II, shall: 
 
   • Earn the first high school credit in algebra II 2 or integrated mathematics III; and 
 
   • Earn the second and third credits in mathematics courses that are consistent with the educational and career 
goals of the student. 

  

 

(vi) A student who satisfactorily demonstrates competency in algebra 1 or integrated mathematics I pursuant to a 
written district policy, but does not receive credit under the provisions of WAC 180-51-050, shall complete three 
credits of high school mathematics in the following sequence: 

 

   • Earn the first high school credit in geometry or integrated mathematics II;  
 
   • Earn the second high school credit in algebra 2 or integrated mathematics III; and  
 
   • Earn the third high school credit in a mathematics course that is consistent with the student’s education and 
career goals. 

 

 (vii) A student who satisfactorily demonstrates competency in algebra 1 or integrated mathematics 1 and geometry 
or integrated mathematics II pursuant to a written district policy, but does not receive credit for the courses under the 
provisions of WAC 180-51-050, shall complete three credits of high school mathematics in the following sequence: 

  • Earn the first high school credit in algebra 2 or integrated mathematics III;  
 
  • Earn the second and third high school credits in courses that are consistent with the educational and career goals 
of the student.

 

  
     



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 

 

 

 
BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS WAIVERS 

SUMMARY OF POLICY ISSUE /STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION (SBE)  
 
The State Board of Education (SBE) may grant to schools and districts waivers from the 
requirements of the Basic Education Act (RCW 28A.150.200 through 28A.150.220). The 
waivers allow schools and districts to implement a local plan to enhance the educational 
program for each student (RCW 28A.305.140).  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At this meeting, SBE will be considering the following eight applications for waivers from the 180 
school-day calendar requirement of the Basic Education Act for all schools in each district:  
 

District 
Number 
of days 

School 
years 

New or 
renewal 

Accountability 
Information 

2009 Academic  
Achievement Award 

Auburn 5 2010-11 Renewal 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement: Step 2 
Tier I or II schools: No 

Auburn Mountainview High 
School: Extended Graduation 
Rate 

Battle 
Ground 

3 
2010-11, 
2011-12 

Renewal 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement: No   
Tier I or II schools: No 

CAM Junior Senior: Overall 
Excellence and Science; Battle 
Ground High School: Extended 
Graduation Rate 

Columbia 
(Hunters) 

3 2010-11 Renewal 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement: No   
Tier I or II schools: No 

 

Nespelem 6 
2010-11, 
2011-12, 
2012-13 

Renewal 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement:  No 
Tier I or II schools: No 

 

Orondo 1 2010-11 New 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement:  No 
Tier I or II schools: No 

 

Pomeroy 4 2010-11 New 
Made AYP: No 
Improvement:  No 
Tier I or II schools: No 

 

Tacoma 2 2010-11 Renewal 

Made AYP: No 
Improvement: Step 2 
Tier I or II schools: 4 
Tier II schools 

Skyline Elementary: Overall 
Excellence 

Thorp 2 2010-11 Renewal 
Made AYP: Yes 
Improvement:  No 
Tier I or II schools: No 

 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
The applications, in Attachment A, are accurate and the purposes of the proposals are to 
improve student achievement by enhancing the educational program for all students. In 
addition, each district has stated in their resolution that they will meet the minimum instructional 
hour offering. 
 
Since the Board set new parameters at its March 2010 Board meeting to create a streamlined 
process, five school districts (Bellingham, Columbia (Walla Walla), Curlew, Davenport, and 
Mukilteo) have chosen the new option. Staff are currently processing their waiver plans and 
preparing them for final review.  
 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
Approval of the applications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

District  Auburn School District #408  
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction Two half days 
Reduction None 
Remaining number of half days in calendar Two half days 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
The district, schools, departments, and individual teachers need time within the 180 day school 
year to restructure and implement school improvement plans in accordance and alignment to 
the District Strategic Improvement Plan. The District Plan sets the expectation and the 
accountability to assure that each student, regardless of ethnicity, language, disability, or 
income level achieves. Strategies incorporated into the district improvement plan represent 
research-based practices that provide appropriate interventions and extended learning 
opportunities so each student will achieve or exceed standards, graduate on time, and be 
successful beyond high school. 
 
In August 2008, the Auburn School Board of Directors authorized a District Strategic 
Improvement Plan be completed. A committee was commissioned and a three-year plan to 
improve student achievement throughout the district was completed in March 2009. On April 13, 
2009 the school board adopted and approved the 2009-2012 Auburn School District Strategic 
Improvement Plan for implementation September 2009 – August 31, 2012. The plan requires all 
twenty-two Auburn schools to align their improvement plans, resources, and efforts to the four 
goals of the District Strategic Improvement Plan.  
 
Goal One—Student Achievement 
With district support, leadership, and guidance each student will achieve proficiency in the 
Washington Comprehensive Assessment Program (WCAP) and all schools will meet Adequate 
Yearly Progress (AYP) by meeting or exceeding the Washington State uniform bar in reading 
and mathematics in grades 3-8 and 10. Related to this goal is the superintendent’s - Student 
Achievement and Accountability Goal One – superintendent implements district strategic 
improvement plan to establish professional learning communities, become a standards-based 
district, produce power standards, develop common assessments, monitor student 
achievement, and provide intervention for continuous improvement for ten percent more 
students at or above standards in reading and mathematics. 
 
Goal Two—Dropout Rate and On-time Graduation 
Schools will reduce dropout rates and meet additional AYP indicators as determined by a K-8 
attendance and on-time high school graduation rates. Related to this goal is the 
superintendent’s – Student Achievement and Accountability Goal Two – superintendent 
increases high school graduation rates to 95% and increasing high school aggregate credits 
earned and decreasing failing grades in the 9th grade. 
 
Goal Three—Parents/Guardians and Community Partnerships 
The district and schools will continue to develop partnerships to support student academic 
achievement and success. Related to this goal is the superintendent’s Community Relationships 
and Partnerships Goal One – superintendent engages the community by expanding 
partnerships, enhancing cultural competency, improving systems of communication, and 
increasing parent participation in all aspects of student achievement and support. 
 
Goal Four—Policies and Resource Management 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

The district will focus on improving student academic achievement and narrowing the 
achievement gaps in its policy and resource allocation. Related to this goal is the 
superintendent’s Policy and Guidance Goal two – superintendent maintains sound budgetary 
practices that address eminent fiscal challenges and provides a three to five percent ending 
fund balance. Effectively align and generate funds to support school district and school 
improvement plans. 
 
The Auburn School District strategic improvement plan provides for a systemic assessment 
system to monitor academic progress and produce diagnostic data for teachers to use in the 
classroom. The district strategic improvement plan calls for deep alignment of instruction to 
Washington State standards. Aligning classroom instruction to state standards requires more 
opportunities for teachers to articulate instruction and to collaborate through professional 
learning communities. This should result in increased personalization for student learners, 
refined curricula and effective instructional strategies, greater differentiation for individual 
learners and increased use of diagnostic assessment that guides instruction. Statistically, only 
30% of students in the 5th grade will remain in the Auburn School District when they reach the 
12th grade. This substantial mobility factor requires that the district restructure a system that 
effectively addresses the challenges of mobility in conjunction with high standards. The district 
strategic improvement plan stresses the importance of parent and community involvement. The 
need for restructured delivery models to effectively communicate with ELL families is significant. 
Waiver days are also needed to increase parent and community partnerships for students who 
come from families of poverty. Over 53% of the district’s elementary student body qualify for 
free and reduced lunch. The Auburn School District strategic plan for closing the achievement 
gap includes a focus on math and science; improvement in literacy; classroom based 
assessments (CBA/CBPA) in social studies, health, P.E. and the arts; development of 
instructional models that address student mobility; and the use of technology for differentiated 
instruction and assessment of student achievement. Waiver days will be utilized in these 
targeted areas for restructuring. The implementation of school math and literacy improvement 
plans is paramount. The Auburn School District targets the alignment and delivery of 
mathematics between the 7th and 10th grade as critical for addressing the achievement of 
students to the high standards of mathematics. Math and reading intervention models are being 
developed that will address the challenges of mobility and low-income demographics. A different 
system of delivering math instruction is warranted to address our students with mathematical 
learning needs. The  scope and sequence of the traditional mathematics model for college 
eligibility needs to be supported by a system of mathematical learning that aligns more intensely 
with the new state mathematics standards and addresses the episodic learning needs of a 
transitory, low-income demographic. Currently, time is needed to implement the goals and 
strategies of individual school improvement plans into every classroom culture. The Auburn 
School District has successfully piloted OSPI literacy intervention models in elementary and 
mid-level schools. These models focused on literacy to result in significant gains, and close 
achievement gaps. Waiver days are needed for the development of math intervention models 
across grade levels, particularly at the district’s secondary level. The development of delivery 
models to address the learning needs of our diverse and low-income population is significant in 
the district’s strategic improvement plan. Teachers need time to develop classroom systems 
that utilize effective assessment and provide individual student information to guide diagnostic 
instruction aligned to individual student performance and standards. Cultural competency and 
ELL accommodations are central elements for the implementation of differentiated instruction at 
the classroom level. The use of technology for the purpose of improving instruction, assessment 
of student achievement, and parent communication is important in the individualization of 
student learning and partnerships with parents. Teachers need time to hone their skills in the 
utilization of technology in its application for both instruction and assessment of student 
learning. Additionally, technology has great potential for the development of individualized 
learning plans for student performance and frequent communication with parents on student 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

progress toward achievement standards. 
 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
First and foremost the Auburn School District is a district in improvement status. The District 
Strategic Improvement Plan Committee conducted an extensive study of both student 
performance data and school perceptual data. For the school years, 2005-2006; 2006-2007; 
and 2007-2008 the committee reviewed state assessment results, discipline records, student 
and staff demographics, on-time graduation rates, extended graduation rates, and the drop-out 
rates for the Auburn School District. Additionally, school perceptual survey data aligned to the 
Nine Characteristics of High Performing Schools was collected from thousands of district staff, 
students, parents, and community members. The Center for Educational Effectiveness in 
Redmond, Washington conducted and tabulated the perceptual survey results for the district 
and each of our twenty-two schools. The extensive survey results were correlated to the Nine 
Characteristics of High Performing Schools. Data from student assessments and the school and 
district perceptual surveys was triangulated to develop a clear picture of the overall performance 
of the district. Although the perceptual survey results portrayed our schools favorably, the 
improvement plan committee was concerned with overall student academic performance levels, 
the achievement gaps, and the schools currently in school improvement status. Therefore, the 
District Strategic Improvement Plan was developed to focus our district and schools to become 
a high-achieving culture where each student meets or exceed standards of learning.  
 
Links to the results of the staff, parent, and student surveys, conducted and tabulated by the 
Center for Educational Effectiveness for the Auburn School District, can be accessed from our 
district website at: http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/EducEffectPercSurvey.html 
 
 

http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/EducEffectPercSurvey.html�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
The 2009-2012 District Strategic Plan requires (beginning with the 2009-2010 school year) 
district-wide progress monitoring of our students in early literacy skills, reading, and 
mathematics. As of the 2009-2010 school year, the DIBELS assessment is required for all 
students in grades K-5 and the MAP assessments in reading and mathematics are required for 
all grade 3, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 students. The 2009-2010 school year is our district’s benchmarking 
year for these assessments. Previous to the 2009-2010 school year, these assessments were 
not used with fidelity at the identified grade levels. They are now a district requirement. 
 
DIBELS - The Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills (DIBELS) is a set of procedures 
and measures for assessing the acquisition of early literacy skills from K-6 grade. DIBELS is 
designed as one-minute long fluency (the ability to read text accurately and quickly) measures 
used to regularly monitor the development of early literacy and early reading skills. The DIBELS 
measures were designed to assess the big Ideas of early literacy: Phonological Awareness, 
Alphabetic Principle and Phonics, Accuracy and Fluency with Connected Text, Vocabulary and 
Oral Language, and Comprehension. Combined, the measures form an assessment system of 
early literacy development that allows teachers to readily and reliably determine student 
progress. 
 
MAP - The Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measurement of Academic Progress 
(MAP) assessments are computerized adaptive assessments that provide accurate and useful 
information about student achievement and growth. The assessments are aligned to 
Washington State’s content standards and can be used as an indicator of preparedness for the 
state assessments. The assessments are grade independent, allowing educators to monitor a 
student’s academic growth. Auburn School District educators use MAP growth and achievement 
results to develop targeted instructional strategies and to plan school improvement initiatives. 
Each fall, winter, and spring, all students in grades 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 are assessed using MAP 
in the content areas of mathematics and reading. MAP reports score as norm-referenced, 
achievement and growth, providing perspective on an individual student’s learning. 
 
The data from our DIBELS and MAP assessment results is organized as meaningful information 
and reported in dashboard format. The dashboards are organized as individual school and 
district-wide dashboards. The dashboards are disaggregated by grade level and student 
demographics. To assure district and school level accountability to these required assessments, 
the district-wide results of the DIBELS and MAP assessments are presented and interpreted for 
the school board (following the fall, winter, and spring assessment windows) during regular 
scheduled school board meetings. The district-wide results are posted to our district website to 
inform parents and community members. Individual school and student level results are 
presented to the principals during their principal cadre meetings. Teachers have access to their 
student assessment results via the DIBELS and NWEA websites,    
 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
The expectation of the school board and district is that each student will achieve proficiency in 
the Washington Comprehensive Assessment Program (WCAP) and all schools will meet 
adequate yearly progress by meeting or exceeding the Washington State uniform bar in reading 
and mathematics in grades 3 through 8 and 10. In order to accomplish this goal, both formative 
and summative assessment data will be vital to monitor student progress and indicate 
attainment of learning goals throughout the school year. A variety of local assessment tools are 
needed to appropriately gauge learning and provide assurance that gains have been realized. 
Common formative assessments for all content areas are being developed by the schools to 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

monitor student learning progress. The district strategic plan provides support for schools to 
develop the assessment tools for monitoring and adjusting classroom instruction and to assess 
student attainment of identified standards. Beginning with the 2009-10 school year, the Auburn 
School Board has requested updates reporting student academic achievement district-wide. 
DIBELS is being used to indicate progress in reading fluency for K-5 students. Progress in 
mathematics and reading at grades 6-8 will be monitored using Northwest Evaluation 
Association’s Measurement of Academic Progress (MAP) assessments. Our ninth grade 
students will be monitored regarding their success in earning three high school credits toward 
graduation.  
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
The 2009-2012 Auburn School District Strategic Improvement Plan provides the framework 
through which the district will support our schools in ensuring the academic success of each 
student. The district plan signaled the start of a collaborative process that links the vision and 
goals set forth by the district with the school improvement plans developed by each of our 
twenty-two schools.  
 
The process emphasizes continuous improvement that engages all stakeholders in the quest to 
improve learning for all students. The district defines the “what,” or destination, and the schools 
determine the “how,” or the best approach to get there. This is a shared commitment to 
accountability based on collaborative structures to improve learning for each student. The 
framework of the district plan supports student achievement through the formation of 
professional learning communities. A professional learning community supports a culture of 
collaboration, mutual trust, openness to improve, disciplined inquiry and nurturing leadership. 
The district plan includes strategies to support teams within buildings; relationships between 
and among schools; and a culture between schools, the school district, parents/guardians and 
community, which is characterized by trust and mutual respect.  
 
The district plan sets the expectation that each student—regardless of ethnicity, language, and 
disability or income level—can achieve high standards. Strategies incorporated into our district 
improvement plan represent research-based practices that provide appropriate interventions 
and extended learning opportunities so students will achieve or exceed standards, graduate on 
time and are successful beyond high school. 
 
District Mission 
In a safe environment, all students will achieve high standards of learning in order to become 
ethically responsible decision makers and lifelong learners. 
 
District Vision 
The vision of the Auburn School District is to develop in students the skills and attitudes that will 
maximize their potential for lifelong learning and ethically responsible decision-making. 
 
District Beliefs 
The district improvement plan establishes belief statements that declare the commitment of 
Auburn stakeholders to improve learning for each student and to narrow the achievement gaps 
within the district. The beliefs developed by the improvement committee parallel the principles 
embedded in the Nine Characteristics of High Performing Schools. 
 
The improvement plan contains four goals each with objectives, strategies, evidence of 
outcomes and established timelines. The four goals and accompanying objectives are: 
 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

GOAL 1: Student Achievement 
With district support, leadership, and guidance each student will achieve proficiency in the 
Washington Comprehensive Assessment Program (WCAP) and all schools will meet Adequate 
Yearly Progress (AYP) by meeting or exceeding the Washington State uniform bar in reading 
and mathematics in grades 3 through 8 and 10. 
 
Objective 1.a: Professional Learning Communities 
Schools use Professional Learning Communities within grade levels and between grade levels 
to increase student achievement using common assessments, interventions, and extended 
learning. 
 
Objective 1.b: School Improvement Plans 
School improvement plans address the needs of each student and narrow the achievement 
gaps for at-risk students and underperforming subgroups. 
 
Objective 1.c: K-12 Standards-Based Focus 
Schools implement standards-based teaching and learning. 
 
GOAL 2: Dropout Rate and On-Time Graduation 
Schools will reduce dropout rates and meet additional AYP indicators as determined by K-8 
attendance and high school on-time graduation rates. 
 
Objective 2.a: Reduce Dropout Rates 
Schools implement prevention, intervention and retention strategies to reduce student dropouts. 
 
Objective 2.b: On-Time High School Graduation 
High schools increase on-time graduation. 
 
GOAL 3: Parents/Guardians and Community Partnerships 
The district and schools will continue to develop partnerships to support student academic 
achievement and success. 
 
Objective 3.a: Public Relations 
District employees contribute to a respectful and welcoming environment. 
 
Objective 3.b: Communication to Parents/Guardians 
The district and schools communicate academic expectations, student progress and support for 
student learning to maximize parent/guardian involvement in student academics. 
 
Object 3.c: Partnerships 
The district and schools develop new and strengthen existing partnerships to promote student 
achievement. 
 
GOAL 4: Policies and Resource Management 
The district will focus on improving student academic achievement and narrowing the 
achievement gaps in its policy decisions and resource allocation. 
 
Objective 4.a: Fiscal Stability and Resource Allocation 
The district provides fiscal stewardship and alignment of resources to support student 
achievement. 
 
Objective 4.b: Policies and Procedures 
The district’s policies and procedures support student achievement. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
Objective 4.c: Safe Schools 
Student achievement is fostered through safe learning and work environments. 
 
Objective 4.d: Technology 
The district and schools promote student achievement through expanded use of technology. 
 
The Auburn School District 2009-2012 Strategic Improvement Plan with the strategies and 
evidences of outcomes defined for district, school and/or staff level can be accessed from our 
district website at http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Superintendent/200912StratPlanSummary.pdf 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
Each strategy incorporated into our district improvement plan represents research-based 
practices that provide appropriate interventions and extended learning opportunities so students 
will achieve or exceed standards, graduate on time and are successful beyond high school.  
 
Beginning with the 2009-2010 school year, the school board, superintendent, central office 
administrators and departments, principals, and individual school improvement goals, objectives 
and strategies have been aligned with the district strategic improvement plan. The goals and 
objectives of the school board are posted to the district website at: 
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/SchoolBoard/SchlBrdimages/Board%2009-
10%20Stated%20Dist%20Obj.pdf 
 
Regular monitoring and reporting of progress on the strategies outlined in the district strategic 
plan are on-going. Dashboards have been developed and are presented to the school board, 
district and school administrators, and posted on our district website to inform parents and 
community members at: 
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/AcademicsImages/StratPlan/District%20Strategic%2
0Plan%20Implementation%20Updates%202-12-10.pdf 
 
To increase capacity and district support for the cultural shift to sustain continual improvement 
in student learning and achievement, the Auburn School District, in partnership with the Center 
for Strengthening the Teaching Profession (CSTP), are developing a teacher leadership 
academy. The academy centers on an intensive institute for teacher leaders to deeply learn 
skills detailed on the CSTP Teacher Leadership Skills Framework and to provide on-going 
collaborative networking and support as teacher leaders implement plans for change in their 
settings.  
 
The three goals of the teacher leadership academy include: 1) equipping teacher leaders with 
knowledge and skills needed to implement change initiatives in their settings that will build 
teacher capacity to impact student learning; 2) build leadership capacity across the district in 
order to increase involvement of teacher leaders in initiatives beyond their own classrooms; and 
3) better connect a network of teacher leaders to each other and to needed resources.  
 
The first cohort of 50 teacher leaders is scheduled to begin August 2010 and continue on 
throughout the 2010-2011 school year. Three hundred or more teachers will participate in the 
leadership academy over the next several years. 
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
As established on April 13, 2009 by the Auburn School District Board of Directors, our district 
focus and emphasis will be the goals and objectives described in the 2009-2012 Auburn School 
District Strategic Improvement Plan. All activities and initiatives engaged at both the district level 

http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Superintendent/200912StratPlanSummary.pdf�
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/SchoolBoard/SchlBrdimages/Board%2009-10%20Stated%20Dist%20Obj.pdf�
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/SchoolBoard/SchlBrdimages/Board%2009-10%20Stated%20Dist%20Obj.pdf�
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/AcademicsImages/StratPlan/District%20Strategic%20Plan%20Implementation%20Updates%202-12-10.pdf�
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/AcademicsImages/StratPlan/District%20Strategic%20Plan%20Implementation%20Updates%202-12-10.pdf�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

and school level will align to this plan. 
 

15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
In order to accomplish the goals outlined within our strategic plan and individual school 
improvement plans, time within the 180-day school year to restructure and implement is 
essential. Our district, schools, departments, and individual staff require time within the 180-day 
school year for collaboration centered on student learning and achievement. We hold ourselves 
accountable for the academic success of each student K-12, and in their meeting or exceeding 
the standards of learning as measured by the State assessment system.  
 
The Auburn School District Strategic Plan is the blueprint for our district’s continuous 
improvement and academic success for all students K-12. It is the framework for our planning, 
resource allocation, staff development and decision making. The school board and school 
district define the “tights” while allowing for the “loose” essential to individual schools, 
departments and instructional staff needed to implement the best practices and available 
resources to address the learning needs of all students. This is a shared accountability based 
on collaborative structures to improve learning for each student.  
  
The district improvement plan includes strategies characterized by trust and mutual respect to 
support teams within buildings; relationships between and among schools; and a culture 
between schools, the school district, parents/guardians, and the community. The district 
improvement plan sets the expectation that each student, regardless of ethnicity, language, 
disability, or income level, can achieve high standards. Strategies incorporated into the 
improvement plan represent research-based practices that provide appropriate interventions 
and extended learning opportunities so students will stay engaged in school, achieve or exceed 
standards, graduate on time, and are successful beyond high school.   
 
As defined in the district strategic plan, beginning with the 2009-2010 school year, ten Auburn 
elementary, middle, and high schools are completely revising their school improvement plans. 
The revision work began in September 2009 and continues throughout the remaining months of 
the school year. One hundred administrators, teachers, parents, and community members 
representing these ten schools are working with central office staff, OSPI school improvement 
facilitators, and nationally recognized educational consultants to revise their school 
improvement plan. Prior to the end of this school year, the revised school improvement plans 
will be presented to the school board for approval and adoption. The remaining twelve Auburn 
Schools are aligning their current improvement plans with the district plan and are presenting to 
the school board or are participating in school improvement site visitations. Six of the twelve 
schools will participate in a complete revision of their school improvement plan during the 2010-
2011 school year. The remaining six schools will completely revise their school improvement 
plans during the 2011-2012 school year.  
 
This is important work and requires time within the 180-day school year to implement. Our 
district, schools, school departments, and individual staff need waiver time within the 180-day 
school year to carry out collaboration centered on student achievement and to restructure and 
implement school improvement efforts.  
 
Hard copies of the individual school plans are available upon request. Following school board 
approval and adoption, all twenty-two school improvement plans will be posted to the district 
website.  
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
have been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
In August 2008, the Auburn School District Board of Directors commissioned a committee to 
develop a three-year District Strategic Improvement Plan to address the learning needs of all 
students and to close learning gaps. Membership of the District Strategic Improvement Plan 
Committee represented a diverse group of stakeholders, including an OSPI district improvement 
facilitator, education consultants, parents, community members, students, teachers, and 
administrators. To include student voice and feedback, elementary and secondary student focus 
groups were also included throughout this process. At a minimum, the committee met twice 
each month from September 2008 through March 2009. Throughout their work, stakeholders at 
all levels were regularly informed of the processes, outcomes, and necessity of providing time 
within the 180-day school year for successful implementations. The improvement committee 
presented its final work and recommendations to the school board during their March 2009 and 
April 2009 school board meetings. The District Strategic Improvement Plan and committee 
recommendations were adopted for implementation by the Auburn School District Board of 
Directors on April 13, 2009. The 2009-2012 District Strategic Improvement Plan was designed 
and approved by the school board as a three-year plan.  
 
17.  Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
Our district negotiated agreement for September 1, 2009 through August 31, 2011 provides for 
the following: 
 
District Designated Time  
District designated time totals 38.5 hours per diem;  3.5 hours for district/building meetings; 7.0 
hours for elementary report card/conference preparation; 7.0 hours for secondary grading day; 
21 hours for building determined days; 7.0 hours for individual determined day (occurs 
immediately after labor day. Individual Responsibility Hours are prorated based upon an 
employee’s FTE status. 
 
Individual Responsibility Contract  
Each employee will receive an Individual Responsibility Contract. Employees who are on Steps 
0-6 of the State Allocation Model (SAM) have a total of 93 Individual Responsibility hours for the 
2009-10 school year. Employees who are on Steps 7 and above on the State Allocation Model 
have a total of 115.5 Individual Responsibility hours for the 2009-10 school year. Individual 
Responsibility Hours are prorated based upon an employee’s FTE status.  
 
Responsibility Contract activities can be documented from August 1 through June 30. These 
individual responsibilities are outlined below: 

1. Attendance at meetings (i.e., faculty meetings, open house, grade-level/department 
meetings) 

2. Individual professional development (i.e. Impact of School Improvement Plans, ESEA, 
new adoption curricula, education reform, best practice standards)  

3. Student assessments 
4. Classroom, lesson, and job preparation 
5. Parent contacts 

 
Commitment Stipend  
Each employee will have the opportunity for a commitment stipend. Each employee will be 
given a commitment stipend according to their placement on the State Allocation Model (SAM) 
In the 2003-2006 Negotiated Agreement, employees who were on Steps 0-6 of the SAM 
received a commitment stipend of $100. Employees who were on Steps 7-16 of the SAM 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

received a commitment stipend of 3 per diem days. By the conclusion of the 2006-2009 
negotiated agreement, each employee received seven (7) additional days of per diem pay 
added to the Commitment Stipend. In addition to the above and starting in 2009-10, a longevity 
commitment stipend of $1,200 will be added to every staff member beyond year 16 on the SAM 
in columns 1-9. 
 
Early Release Days 
The Auburn School District has two early release days during the school year. The day before 
Thanksgiving vacation and the last day of the school year. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
The activities of 2009-2010 waiver days focus on the implementation of the school improvement 
plan to address these essential questions: 1) What is it we want our students to learn? 2) How 
will we know if each student has learned it? 3) How will we respond when some students do not 
learn it? 4) How will we extend and enrich the learning for students who have demonstrated 
proficiency? During the 2009-2010 school year, waiver day trainings are scheduled to occur 
September 25; October 23; March 8; May 10; and June 14.  
 
The following describe school improvement waiver day activities: 
• Aligning instruction to the district identified Power Standards   

(In the Auburn School District, the Power Standards are the most essential learning 
outcomes based on the Washington State Standards. The Power Standards are our 
district’s guaranteed and viable curriculum at each grade level and have been established 
for mathematics, reading, language arts, science and writing. Power Standards for the other 
content areas including Career and Technical Education are under development. The Power 
Standards are what we guarantee our students will learn from classroom to classroom and 
grade level to grade level). 

• Implemented Algebraic Thinking coaching along with professional collaboration and 
continue mathematics support at the middle school level. 

• Provided training in Key Elements to Algebra Success program, and professional 
collaboration between middle school and high school Algebra I teachers. 

• Provided training at grade 3-5 district developed weekly mathematics problem solver 
lessons, activities and assessments aligned with the State Performance Expectations for 
Mathematics.  

• Developing classroom based common formative assessments in reading, mathematics, 
Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II, and science aligned to Power Standards.  

• Restructuring extended learning programs for better alignment with math, reading, writing, 
and science standards. 

• Focus on student learning plans in math, with emphasis on content essentials, pedagogy, 
and student personalization. (Math targets were focused on achievement gap learner, 
including low income, Hispanic and Native American student groups). 

• Differentiating learning for low-income demographics aligned with state standards and best 
practices. 

• Incorporating GLAD strategies for ELL students within our classrooms to improve learning 
and performance on the WLPT, MSP, and HSPE. 

• Restructuring schools to provide tier-one, tier-two, and tier-three intervention models for the 
2009-2010 school year. 

• Analyzing student performance data obtained from DIBELS, MAP and classroom developed 
common assessments for instructional decisions, intervention, extended learning, and 
regrouping Walk to Math and Walk to Read groups. 

• OSPI school improvement grants were used at two secondary schools and one elementary 
school for school improvement professional development activities and initiatives. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

• Implementation of student led conferences at the high school level. 
• Developed programs and services for parents of students in the graduating class of 2010 

about graduation standards. 
• Provided additional training for administrators on standards based teaching and learning, 

professional learning communities, and interpreting assessment data and information. 
• Preparation for 2010-2011 implementation of OSPI Striving Readers program at two Auburn 

School District Middle Schools. 
• Alignments with State mathematics and science standards at elementary and secondary.  
• Preparation for third year implementation of OSPI CBAs and CBPAs in social studies, health 

and fitness, and the arts. 
• Integration of technology into the classroom (electronic data bases, web accessible library 

collections, document cameras, LCD projectors, wireless laptop carts, and organizing 
classroom websites) for student learning and increased communication with parents, 
students and community. 

 
19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
The waiver days provide time within the 180 day school year to systemically and strategically 
restructure our schools to address students who are beyond standard, Tier 1 and Tier 2 learners 
and to develop intensive strategies necessary for our Tier 3 learners to become successful.  
 
District leadership has provided teachers with training on “Understanding by Design”, 
Differentiated Instruction, Standards Based Teaching and Learning, using assessment data for 
instructional decisions, Professional Collaboration, and revising school improvement plans. This 
model continues to provide the framework for individual schools to improve academic 
performance for all students. Currently under development for implementation in August 2010 
and throughout the 2010-20011 school year is the Teacher Leadership Academy.  
 
The Auburn School District high school dropout rate for all students increased from 3.6% in the 
2006-2007 school year to 4.3% in the 2007-2008 school year. On-time graduation for all 
students decreased from 85.2% in the 2006-2007 school year to 82.4% in the 2007-2008 school 
year. Although these are small percentages they are concerning to the Auburn School District. 
To address this, beginning with the 2009-2010 school year baseline data is being collected to 
monitor middle and high school student progress toward graduation. Dashboards that 
disaggregate our demographics will be developed to monitor credits earned toward graduation 
at first semester and at second semester by our ninth grade students; successful completion of 
Algebra I; completion of honors courses; completion of advanced placement courses; and 
completion of advanced career and technical education courses. The information will focus 
intervention efforts and extended learning opportunities to decrease dropout rates and increase 
graduation rates. Dashboards will be developed and presented to our school board for their 
monitoring and posted to our district website to inform parents and the community of our district 
progress.  
 
The baseline data we are collecting during the 2009-2010 school year for DIBELS and MAP 
indicates we are making good progress toward closing the learning and achievement gaps for 
our at risk populations and enriching learning for students at or beyond standards. DIBELS 
results from Winter 2010 reveal that students in K-5 are making reading gains and closing 
learning gaps. From Fall to Winter 2010 all grade levels have shown improvements in reading 
fluency. Auburn School District English Language Learners (ELL) across all grade levels have 
also demonstrated significant gains in early literacy skills.  
 
Links to the District 2009-2010 Fall and Winter DIBELS Dashboards are posted on the Auburn 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School District website at: http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/DIBELS.html. Links to the 
District 2009-2011 Fall and Winter MAP Dashboards are posted on the Auburn School District 
website at:  http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/MAP.html 
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
Annually, the school district publishes a school-year calendar for parents listing and describing 
the waiver days granted to the Auburn School District by the State Board of Education. Hard 
copies of the 2009-2010 school year calendar are distributed to parents and the calendar is 
posted electronically to the school district website. Additionally, the district website contains 
announcements regarding upcoming State Board of Education waiver days. Parent 
communication and information regarding the waiver days is provided in school newsletters, 
emails from the school to parents, shared during the parent and teacher conferences and 
student led conferences, posted to individual school websites and their outdoor reader boards. 
Waiver days are also topics during PTA meetings. Furthermore, each school prepares a follow-
up report describing the activities and outcomes for each waiver day. These are available to 
parents upon request. Schools and district personnel present professional development and 
waiver day activities to the school board members keeping them apprised with the focus, 
integration, implementation, and impact of this time.  
  
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 14,896 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

6,605 44.3% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  4.3% 3.6% 2.6% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  82.4% 85.2% 82.5% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  87.2% 89.6% 90.7% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 76.2% 52.3% 60.7% 
 

7th Grade 54.9% 51.4% 67.8% 
 

10th Grade 77.9% 39.0% 84.2% 22.8% 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 72.8% 53.1% 55.5% 
 

7th Grade 57.1% 49.3% 71.1% 
 

10th Grade 78.2% 45.1% 82.9% 34.1% 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 74.7% 55.5% 59.7% 
 

7th Grade 65.1% 52.3% 71.2% 
 

10th Grade 
 

79.5% 45.8% 85.3% 29.3% 
 

http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/DIBELS.html�
http://www.auburn.wednet.edu/Academics/MAP.html�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

District  Battle Ground School District  
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction 20  
Reduction 0 (during the first year of our waiver, we 

eliminated 6 half days; approval of this 
subsequent request will maintain this reduction) 

Remaining number of half days in calendar 14, mostly for parent-teacher conferences 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
The purpose and goals of the waiver are to provide on-going training on the use of standards 
based instruction, assessment and grading, which we believe will increase student achievement 
in mathematics, reading and science as well as in all other disciplines. We believe that through 
this on-going, embedded staff development we will be able to increase our students’ 
achievement on state assessments in reading, mathematics, and science for all grades tested, 
reduce the achievement gap for student subgroups (specifically our students in special 
education and who come from low income households) and improve our on-time and extended 
high school graduation rates. The reason we are pursuing a waiver over multiple years is 
because research demonstrates that significant changes, such as the ones we are working to 
make in our educational system take multiple years to show results. We intend to persist in 
pursuing these goals over multiple years in order to maximize our ability to make successful, 
meaningful and long lasting changes. We believe that making these changes in instruction 
through standards based practices in all of our curricular disciplines and especially in 
mathematical pedagogy will reap our desired goals over time.  

 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
We reviewed our student achievement data as measured by the WASL and our progress toward 
our Annual Yearly Progress (AYP) goals. We are concerned that we are not making sufficient 
progress toward meeting our AYP goals (see our results as compared with our AYP targets). 
We believe that improving our pedagogy and focusing our efforts on standards based instruction 
will help us to achieve these targets. 
                                          Reading       Math       Reading Goal (AYP)     Math goal (AYP) 
Primary Grades (3-5):       73%             58%        88%                               83% 
Middle Grades (6-8):         68%             54%        83%                               80% 
Grade 10:                          84%             51%        87%                               81% 
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
We anticipate that our efforts toward focusing on standards in each curricular area will result in 
an increase in achievement equal to five percent over the course of the next two years of the 
waiver. We also anticipate that we will see a significant increase in the use of instructional 
practices that evoke higher order thinking, analysis, and reflection in mathematics as a result of 
our on-going training with the Teachers’ Development Group. This will be reported by principals 
through observation and discussed by teachers and principals in professional learning 
community settings, collaborative planning sessions, and through pre- and post- observation 
conferences with principals and teachers. 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
We will assess the attainment of our goals through analysis of a variety of data. These sources 
will include examination of WASL results, end of unit assessments, and common formative 
assessments. Informal, anecdotal evaluation of the impact of this professional development will 
be done by principals through the analysis of in-class teaching practices and through analysis 
done collaboratively within the context of professional learning communities. We will also 
assess our success through our ongoing evaluation process conducted upon completion of all 
of our in-service and training activities. Examination of this information and the feedback we 
gather from it will help us  
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
Content will include research based best practices in the area of standards based instruction 
and assessment in all curricular areas with a special emphasis on mathematics. Resources will 
include the Assessment Training Institute in Portland, Oregon, materials from Dr. Thomas 
Guskey, University of Kentucky, materials from the Association Supervision and Curriculum 
Development (ASCD), and training from the Teachers’ Development Group, West Linn, Oregon.  
Content and processes employed will provide modeling that assures participants first hand 
experiences with standards-based instructional practices and effective mathematics instruction. 
For example, in mathematics, participants will learn to use questioning techniques designed to 
elicit deep thinking in students and encourage reflection in their work. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
The standards based instruction movement is key to our students’ success, not only in school, 
but in their future lives. “There is mounting evidence that effective instruction must mesh with 
three other aspects of learning: the standards and resulting curriculum outlining what student 
should learn; the assessments students will use to demonstrate their knowledge and skills; and 
the needs, interests and learning styles of the students themselves.” National Education Goals 
Panel Weekly Report (November 30, 2000 -- Vol. 2 -- No. 81). Therefore, we believe it is our 
obligation to prepare our students using a standards based approach. In addition, we believe 
that the mathematics studio model, which our training with the Teachers’ Development Group 
espouses, can be used as a context for transforming the culture of mathematics professional 
learning and teaching in our district by incorporating mathematical dialogue and reflective 
practice to deepen our students’ knowledge and understanding.  
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
We believe that the key to student success is to have well trained, highly skilled teachers in 
every classroom. Our aim in applying for this waiver is to provide ongoing, high-quality, job-
embedded professional development to staff to ensure that they are equipped to provide 
effective teaching. Our waiver for the 2009-2010 school year gave us the opportunity to train a 
team of teachers in the Best Practices in Teaching Mathematics. Training was provided by the 
Teachers’ Development Group of West Linn, Oregon. If we receive approval for waiver days on 
subsequent years, we will continue our work by expanding our training in Best Practices for our 
teachers and our administrative team in a studio (demonstration) classroom format using 
consultants and math coaches. This year, we introduced our entire K-12 staff to the philosophy 
and practices used in a standards-based educational system. In order to continue our work on 
developing and using a standards-based instruction, assessment and grading, we will conduct 
further training on the use of standards based instruction, assessment and grading. We will 
further compliment this training with in-service aimed at increasing our teachers’ knowledge in 
the use of formative assessments, rubrics, and standards. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans (do not mail or fax hard copies). 
Each of the school improvement plans in the Battle Ground School District has a goal aimed at 
increasing our students' achievement in mathematics. Rather than each school working 
individually to identify ways to improve our staff's mathematical content knowledge and 
pedagogy, these waiver days will provide consistent instruction and support in the 
implementation of new knowledge and skills that are consistent across our entire district. We 
believe this will improve the quality of mathematics instruction for each and every child. 
Copies of our school improvement plans can be accessed at www.bgsd.k12.wa.us.  
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
A committee was convened to review our goals for the waiver days. Our committee consisted of 
administrators, teachers, classified employees, parents, and community members. This team 
reviews the goals of the district in the area of mathematics and standard based instruction, 
assessment and grading. It was noted that these goals are reflected in our schools’ School 
Improvement Plans, and therefore were shared district-wide. The committee reviewed the 
proposal for waiver days and provided feedback. Feedback has also been gathered from the 
community through public forums with the superintendent.  
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
Our collective bargaining agreements include two learning improvement days; however, during 
the 2009-2010 school year, we were only able to conduct one of them due to lack of funding.  
Legislative action this spring eliminated funding for future LID days. There is no language in our 
collective bargaining agreement that allows for professional development days based on 
individual teacher choice. Our draft calendar for 2010-1011 has 166 full instructional days, and 
14 half days most of which are dedicated to parent-teacher conferences. We have no other non-
instructional time in our calendar or collective bargaining agreements. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
Our waiver days were used for two purposes as outlined in our previous application. First, our 
entire K-12 staff received training in the philosophy and use of standards based instruction, 
assessment, and grading practices. We further supported this training throughout the course of 
the school year in our professional learning communities, through curriculum committee work, 
and in the process of revising our report cards to parents. In addition to this work, our second 
waiver day was focused on follow-up activities to our initial training. We were also actively 
engaged in developing focused curricula and common assessments, and improving instructional 
practices which will lead to increased achievement for all of our students, especially in the area 
of mathematics. Collaborative planning, teacher training, data analysis, research, curricular 
alignment, and reflection are required in order for these goals to be achieved. To this end, our 
teachers were trained in relevant, high quality staff development aimed at the acquisition of 
improved instructional skills, content knowledge, and pedagogy. Our final waiver day, as well as 
our last LID day, was focused on this mathematics training for teacher of mathematics while our 
other teachers continued to work on standards based instruction. 
 
 

http://www.bgsd.k12.wa.us/�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using at meeting each of 
the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver.  
Our first goal was to introduce our staff to the philosophy and application of standards based 
instruction, assessment and grading practices. Our entire K-12 staff was introduced to this 
concept through in-service provided by Dr. Thomas Guskey, University of Kentucky and 
internationally recognized expert in this field. We then followed up and expanded our staff’s 
knowledge through continued in-service and application of this knowledge during our waiver 
days throughout the course of the school year. Our second goal was to improve our instructional 
practices so that we might increase achievement for all of our students, especially in the area of 
mathematics. To this end, a team from every school was extensively trained in research based 
best practices in the area of mathematics by the Teachers’ Development Group of West Linn, 
Oregon. This team provided in-service to our other teachers of mathematics on our LID and 
waiver days. In doing so, every math teacher in our district was provided with high quality, 
relevant professional development. With our work this past year, we have laid a significant 
foundation for continuing to build our knowledge and application of educationally sound, 
research based practices in the areas of standards based instruction and grading and 
mathematics. Our teachers across the district now have a common base of knowledge from 
which to work as we collaborate together to create a strong and viable curriculum for every 
student in every school. 
 
20. How were the parents and community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
Parents and community were kept informed through our district’s website and through 
communication from our schools. 
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 13,169 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

4,371 33.2% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  5.7% 5.5% 3.8% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  78.5% 78.1% 75.3% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  86.5% 86.9% 83.0% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 73.4% 44.9% 56.8% 
 

7th Grade 63.0% 55.9% 72.4% 
 

10th Grade 84.2% 50.8% 91.7% 31.3% 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 70.6% 52.9% 62.6% 
 

7th Grade 66.1% 52.6% 78.5% 
 

10th Grade 85.2% 53.8% 90.7% 34.6% 
 
     



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School Report Card Information from OSPI 
2006-07 WASL Results  

    
Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 74.8% 57.1% 61.0% 
 

7th Grade 69.7% 57.2% 75.2% 
 

10th Grade 79.1% 50.7% 86.1% 29.9% 
 

 
District  Columbia School District #206  
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
No 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
The three waived school days will be used for professional development activities and reviewing 
student achievement data for planning response to intervention strategies. Columbia School 
District is a member of the Panorama Rural Education Partnership (PREP) a consortium of nine 
small rural school districts for the purpose of combining efforts and resources to improve 
student improvement in all nine school districts. Teachers and administrators meet together 
from all nine schools during two of the waived school days. Resources are pooled to bring in 
high quality professional development opportunities for each staff member. Teachers meet 
together in professional learning communities to share best practice teaching methods that have 
proven to increase student achievement. The goal of these activities is to continue to increase 
student scores on state and local assessments. For the past three years of conducting these 
trainings, our school has been recognized as a recipient of the Title I School Improvement 
Award, School of Distinction Award, and most recently a National Blue Ribbon School. We are 
proud of these awards, but there is much work to be done. Strategies for this coming year 
include professional development offered by Kim Sutton on K-6 engagement of students in the 
classroom, Response-To-Intervention strategies for K-6 reading achievement, and 
Advancement Via Independent Determination (AVID) for grades 7-12. The collaborative efforts 
of using these two waived days to meet with other schools implementing these same strategies 
have been very beneficial. The third waived school day is spent in-district carefully reviewing 
student achievement data, developing response strategies where improvement is needed and 
bringing staff together to celebrate successes and generating resolve to help students improve 
in low areas. Our district cannot afford to fund these three important staff development days 
needed to stay focused on improving student achievement. 
 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
State assessment data at each grade level is our major focus of improvement. We continue to 
add local assessment capability to help identify areas of weakness to allow intervention 
strategies to help each student. Math continues to be our biggest challenge. Our middle school 
math scores are below standards and continue to be a major focus for improvement. Our ESD 
professional staff members bring professional development opportunities to our consortium on 
the waived training days targeted at improving math scores. Our reading achievement data 
continues to improve thanks to very deliberate instruction in grades K-3 as a result of our 
Reading First grant and AmeriCorps volunteers. The waiver will allow us to share our response-
to-intervention methods of success with the other eight school districts and share ideas of how 
to continue the effort without the grant funding. 
 
 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
Our standards in math will be measured by state assessments and meeting adequate yearly 
progress. Our standards in reading will be measured by local DIBELS assessments of each 
student to determine reading skills at grade level and by state assessments for meeting 
adequate yearly progress. We will use state benchmarks for adequate yearly progress to 
determine the success of our student achievement results. We will begin the year by examining 
specific assessment data for each student and developing individual strategies for improvement 
where needed. We will track reading growth using DIBELS and math assessments on power 
standards developed through our ESD consortium called the Northeast Washington Math 
Alliance. ESD math professionals will participate in the PREP professional development days 
made possible through this waiver request. We anticipate continued growth in reading by at 
least five percent at each grade level as a benchmark for progress. Our district will continue to 
meet Adequate Yearly Progress in reading and writing. We will track progress in math using 
assessment software purchased this past year called EDUSS. We anticipate a five percent 
increase in math achievement in grades K-6. In grades 7-8, we will use AVID strategies to 
motivate students to apply themselves. Our benchmark for progress in those grades will be 
measured by the number of students who improve state assessment marks from a score of 1 to 
a score of two. We expect an increase of 25% as a benchmark for success. In grades 9-12 we 
will measure success by the number of students who meet state assessment standards. Our 
benchmark for success is an improvement of ten percent assessed areas. 
 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
The school report card for determining adequate yearly progress and student scores at each 
grade level will provide evidence whether goals were attained. Local assessments will also be 
used to monitor student learning throughout the year. DIBELS information will be tracked three 
times per year for grades K-6. Math assessments for K-6 students will be captured with the 
EDUSS software. At the end of the year the District Leadership Team will gather local 
assessment data and state scores to brief the school board of the progress in each area. 
Reading, writing and math goals will be evaluated to determine if they were achieved. 
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
Professional development activities directed at improving student achievement will be the 
content of the activities made possible by the waiver. The nine school districts and ESD 
personnel will bring in professional presenters such as; Kim Sutton, AVID presenters, RTI 
experts and others. Teachers will share ideas in a professional learning community environment 
to improve their teaching skills. Principals will learn to use assessment data to drive instructional 
strategies. Teachers will learn to evaluate assessment data of their students and develop 
intentional strategies to target areas requiring improvement. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
Professional Learning Communities are an innovative strategy to break down barriers for 
teachers to depend on each other in a non-threatening environment to seek improvement in 
their teaching skills. Teachers and administrators from nine consortium schools build support 
groups that help improve the skills of everyone. AVID develops students to take charge of their 
own learning success by teaching them and coaching them along the way. AVID students are 
taught organization techniques, study habits, research tools, and many other ways to make 
them better students in all subjects. Kim Sutton teaches K-6 teachers excellent math 
instructional techniques in the classroom to engage students for success. 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
We are only requesting a one year waiver to continue the activities that have been proven 
effective over the past three years. We intend to process a request for waiver in subsequent 
years under the new pilot application process after the rubrics have been published. Activities in 
subsequent years will be determined in cooperation with the PREP school districts and ESD to 
continue to pool resources for the benefit of all. AVID strategies for 7-12 will continue as part of 
a consortium grant obtained to develop advanced placement course offerings and increase the 
number of students who succeed in post-secondary school. 

 
15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
The District and School Improvement Plan is a unified document that stresses the importance of 
maintaining adequate yearly progress in reading, math and writing. For each of these student 
achievement goals, there is an embedded need for professional development activities that will 
help teachers and administrators. Each of these goals also has a component for reviewing 
student assessment data to determine needs and for developing strategies designed to improve 
scores. The waiver makes possible our involvement with the PREP school districts in a 
collaborative effort to bring the best available professional development opportunities to Eastern 
Washington for the benefit of all our students. 
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
This request for waiver was first developed by the District Leadership Team comprised of district 
administrators, teachers, and parent representation. As part of the annual renewal process of 
the School Improvement Plan, the community and School Board discussed the importance of 
having the waiver to allow professional development days for staff. The School Board then 
approved a resolution requesting the three day waiver. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
Our collective bargaining agreement provides 180 contract days, plus any state funded learning 
improvement days. Since the last remaining state funded school improvement day was not 
funded by the state, any days beyond the 180 days would have to be funded by the district. We 
are unable to fund days beyond the 180 contract days. Our teachers meet frequently before 
school and after school in small groups to develop strategies that improve student success. 
They do this for no additional pay. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
The three waiver days were used exactly as planned and reported. Two days were used for 
professional development days with the other consortium school district staff and one day was 
used as a district in-service day to review student assessments and develop strategies to 
improve low areas. 
 
19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
The purpose and goals of continued improvement of student scores in reading, math and writing 
were met. Our school was awarded the National Blue Ribbon School Award in 2009 for meeting 
adequate yearly progress in a high poverty school. Adequate yearly progress was met for 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

reading and writing. Our K-3 students are reading at grade level and have earned us recognition 
by OSPI staff. Grades 6-8 math did not show improvement and will be a major focus for the 
coming year. Our school was just awarded a Title I School Improvement award with a monetary 
award of $12,825. We plan to use this award in the classroom by purchasing computer 
workstations in grades K-6 that will allow the EDUSS software to run on them. The EDUSS 
software will allow us to provide directed remediation in math to help students achieve higher 
math scores. AVID strategies will provide directed assistance for the students in grades 7-12 to 
provide them with motivation, organization, and methods to improve in math and other subjects. 
We are proud that the efforts made possible by this waiver over the past three years have been 
recognized through the various awards from Department of Education and OSPI. But, we are 
most proud that they have made a difference in the lives of our students. 
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
Articles written in the district newsletter were used to discuss student achievement and the 
importance of the waiver to allow time for staff training. School Board meetings were also used 
to discuss these issues. Parents and community members regularly attend school board 
meetings and are encouraged to participate in the discussions of student progress attained 
through the professional development made possible by this waiver. 
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 207 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

156 75.4% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  1.6% 1.5% 1.4% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  93.8% 94.4% 94.4% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  93.8% 94.4% 95.2% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 58.8% 41.2% 47.1% 
 

7th Grade 25.0% 18.8% 31.3% 
 

10th Grade 86.7% 40.0% 100.0% 46.7% 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 35.7% 28.6% 35.7% 
 

7th Grade 66.7% 61.9% 47.6% 
 

10th Grade 85.7% 66.7% 100.0% 40.0% 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 60.0% 35.0% 45.0% 
 

7th Grade 61.1% 44.4% 61.1% 
 

10th Grade 84.6% 53.8% 92.3% 23.1% 
 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

District  Nespelem School District #14  
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction Twelve 
Reduction Ten 
Remaining number of half days in calendar Two 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
We are committed to increasing the achievement of all of the students in our District. Our new 
superintendent is providing the consistent and transformational leadership necessary to 
maintain and sustain this focus. He has asked staff to form Professional Learning Communities 
that will stress building relationships with parents and students to increase student motivation to 
achieve. Teachers will focus on the use of specific interventions from our curriculums to create 
differentiated instructional groups based on data derived from multiple assessments. Teachers 
are learning to identify the intentions of their lessons, to measure the success of their teaching, 
and know where to go next in the curriculum. We are increasing our use of technology as a 
student motivator. This requires our staff to understand how to carefully analyze and use data, 
to create and monitor differentiated groupings within their classrooms, to effectively utilize new 
technology and motivate their students to higher achievement. To accomplish these tasks our 
Superintendent has carefully thought out the needs of our staff and students, and has come up 
with a professional development plan which incorporates the use of data experts from NWEA 
and NCESD, curriculum experts from Math Connects, NCESD and the Success For All reading 
program, and technology experts from NCESD to comprise a sequential, methodical, and 
comprehensive program for improvement. We have already scheduled two of our proposed 
waiver days with our NWEA data, curriculum and intervention specialist, assisting us at the 
beginning of the year in planning for the individual needs of students. We will follow up with 
additional consultation and training after each MAP testing window with further data analysis 
and alterations and modifications suggested by student growth. Teachers will be provided the 
assistance they need to create relevant lessons and to create rubrics to assess the efficacy of 
their efforts.  
 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
We recognize the need for change based on the results of WASL/MSP and NWEA MAP data. 
A total of 49% of students met standard in Reading and 19% met standard in Math on the 2008-
09 State tests. Using the DIBELS assessment, 51% of students’ grades 1-3 met benchmark. 
Growth on the fall to spring MAP tests was negligible in the primary grades and negative 
in the intermediate, and only a small percentage of students in each class were at standard 
according to RIT data.  
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
The MAP assessment is aligned to our current Washington State benchmarks. Reading, Math, 
Science and Language Usage RIT scores are broken down into the strands identified in our 
State GLE’s. We will use student scores on the different strands to target specific academic 
weaknesses, strategically targeting instruction in differentiated classroom groups, before and 
after school tutoring, and in pull-out interventions. Success will be measured by increasing to 
60%  the students meeting standard on the MSP in reading and math, and increasing RIT 
scores to nationally-normed levels on the MAP,  
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
On proposed waiver days, the teaching staff will carefully monitor growth based on the MAP 
(administered three times per year), the MSP, and classroom-based assessments, to measure 
student scores and adjust interventions as appropriate. 
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
Strategy 1:  The use of assessment data to target interventions for struggling students. 
Content:  Identification of students scoring below standard on specific strands in reading and 
math, science and language usage.  
Processes:  Differentiated grouping based on identified needs of students. Movement of 
students through curriculum levels with intentional teaching and careful assessment of 
meaningful learning. Additional intervention, in the form of before and after school programs for 
those students requiring additional assistance. 
Strategy 2: Intentional, differentiated teaching methods 
Content:  Teacher awareness of student knowledge, development of intentional lessons and 
corresponding rubrics to measure student mastery, and differentiated learning models,.  
Processes:  Use of Descartes, the NWEA learning continuum, OSPI resources, curriculum 
guides, supplemental materials, and experts in curriculum to create lesson plans and rubrics. 
Strategy 3:   Development of an actively engaged, success-oriented, staff with high 
expectations for all students. 
Content:  Support for shared leadership and decision-making, development of a collective vision 
for the school, a sharing of ideas and wisdom, and cooperation and support among colleagues. 
Processes:  Professional Learning Communities 
Strategy 4:  Technology as a supplemental and motivational tool 
Content:  Teachers need to view technology as adding diversity to the classroom, allowing 
students to learn by doing,  
Process:  Teachers will be exposed to a variety of techniques to integrate technology in the 
classroom through specific training by technology experts. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
Our new superintendent brings with him a history as a successful leader using proven methods 
to raise student achievement. He has instituted a new math curriculum (Math Connects), begun 
a new data collection regimen (MAP three times per year), strategic and targeted  instruction 
based on assessment results, has planned sequential, relevant, and specific professional 
development, organized Professional Learning Communities, and instituting a Positive 
Discipline Program. Our students and staff have never experienced this type of organized, 
intentional approach to improving student achievement. We had never had a school-wide math 
assessment with monitoring of growth throughout the year, and our professional development 
has never been so focused and strategic. Budget and program decisions are now made based 
on achievement data and technology expenditures have increased to meet the needs of 21st 
century teaching.  
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
We know that the second-order changes implemented by our Superintendent and staff will not 
result in immediately dramatic improvement in student achievement. On proposed waiver days, 
we will continue to emphasize the acquisition of a thorough knowledge of our students’ 
academic progress through analysis of data in conjunction with expert help, and will plan (with 
guidance from NWEA Descartes (a learning continuum aligned to Washington State standards) 
model, OSPI, Math Connects consultants, and NCESD specialists) relevant, experiential 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

lessons targeted to student learning levels.  
 

15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans (do not mail or fax hard copies). 
We are not currently in school improvement, however all of the goals, objectives and activities 
outlined in this application can also be found in our School wide Plan which is available at 
www.nsdwagles.org. The strongest connections between the waiver plan and the School wide 
Plan include: 

• Operating as a true Professional Learning Community 
• Using assessment data to inform instructional change  
• Developing interventions for individual students  
• Utilizing district-approved and targeted professional development based on proven 

practices 
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
The waiver plan was discussed during monthly meetings with the Parent Advisory Committee 
prior to the board meetings. The meetings included parents, administrative staff and board of 
directors’ officers. The waiver plan was also provided to staff and discussed and revised during 
weekly staff meetings throughout the school year. We are supported in our request for this 
waiver by all stake holders because we are all in agreement that student achievement is our 
number one priority. Annual needs assessments support this position. The methods we are 
proposing to achieve our goal are supported by the most current educational research, and 
have proved successful in other schools. We all recognize that the efforts required to achieve 
this success require considerable time and effort beyond the school day and the assistance of 
experts to help with analysis of data, creation of differentiated learning models, development of 
rubrics measure effective teaching, and the latest technology to motivate and engage students. 
For these reasons, our community fully endorses this effort. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
The Collective Bargaining Unit has three half-days to prepare report cards, 50 minutes to plan 
and organize each day, two early-release days on Thanksgiving and Christmas and one day of 
staff orientation and preparation before school begins. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
We used two waiver days to receive training in the use of our new math curriculum (Math 
Connects), with emphasis on a thorough understanding of the relationship between the 
Washington standards and benchmarks inherent and the activities in the curriculum. We 
analyzed the assessments and interventions available in the program to determine their 
usefulness. Those faculty not involved in the math curriculum worked on analysis of reading and 
science data to target student needs. We used two waiver days to get extensive all-staff training 
from NWEA experts on data analysis and interventions using MAP reports. Two other waiver 
days were devoted to statistics experts from the NCESD to analyze MAP and WASL data to 
target interventions for individual students. Another half day was used for the analysis of reading 
assessment data to pinpoint necessary interventions based on student scores. Because we had 
a change in administration and in strategic planning, direction and educational philosophy, our 
planned waiver days strictly adhered to our application request.  
 

http://www.nsdwagles.org/�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
Nespelem School is located on the Colville Indian Reservation, has an almost 80% free and 
reduced lunch rate, is 99% Native American, and almost without exception, our students have 
scored well below grade level from K-8 for many years. Due to our relationship with NWEA, we 
have started to view our student progress in terms of growth in RIT scores between the fall and 
spring of the school year. The testing process was new to both the staff and the students so we 
were cautioned not to draw too many conclusions from our first year. Additionally, we had to 
schedule MAP testing and MSP testing on consecutive weeks in May which probably affected 
scores, especially for the older students. In Math, our 3rd graders made average growth of ten 
RIT points (average expected growth nationally was ten). Fourth grade students averaged an 
increase of 11 (national average eight). Fifth graders averaged growth of one RIT point, 6th  
graders made no appreciable growth, and 7th and 8th grade students showed a decline of minus 
three. In Reading, 3rd graders increased by seven RIT points (national increase of seven), 4th 
graders increased by one point, and 5th graders by seven RIT points (four points nationally). 
Sixth, 7th and 8th grade students remained unchanged. We were encouraged by the growth of 
some individual students, and within strands in Math and Reading; one student’s RIT score in 
Reading increased by 30 points, 3rd graders did well above average in Algebraic thinking, 4th 
graders did the same in geometric thinking. 7th grade students were above grade level in 
Probability, 8th graders in Algebraic and Geometric thinking. This type of data analysis provides 
the staff with  
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
We have frequent contact with families in this small community. They are often in the building 
and involved in the Parent Education Committee. We explain our process and procedure for 
improving academic success through activities on Waiver Days in letters home, at 
parent/teacher/student conferences, and on our school website. 
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 175 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

137 78.3% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 60.0% 13.3% 33.3% 
 

8th Grade 41.7% 25.0%   16.7% 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 50.0% 18.8% 56.3% 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School Report Card Information from OSPI 
8th Grade 40.0% 6.7%   0.0% 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 65.0% 14.3% 50.0% 
 

8th Grade 43.8% 25.0%   6.7% 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 
 

 
District  Orondo School District 
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction 10    
Reduction 1 
Remaining number of half days in calendar 9 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
To provide staff time to analyze student achievement data, monitor progress toward school 
improvement goals and modify and adjust services to support increased achievement for all our 
students. We review summative state assessment data annually. Each grade level targets 
specific concepts and vocabulary related to the state standards, reinforcing these in lessons and 
classroom assessments. Students track their progress toward these academic goals using the 
NWEA MAP assessment as a benchmark three times per year. Students know their previous 
MAP score and the point gain they are targeting before each assessment period. Our staff will 
use the professional development day we are requesting to analyze trends in student 
performance and determine areas of strength and weakness from the perspective of our school, 
our grade level groups, sub groups within each grade (ethnic, socioeconomic status, English 
language learner etc.) and individual students. Orondo School serves a student population that 
is more than 70% Hispanic, with more than 75% of our students qualifying for free and reduced 
price lunch. Our School Improvement Team has targeted the development of data driven goals 
to increase the achievement of all our students as a school wide priority. In the last three years 
we have developed data management systems that measure this achievement on a 
daily/weekly basis in classrooms. We have initiated school wide formative assessment cycles to 
track progress three times per year. These efforts are helping us to target annual student growth 
on the state assessment. We have found that we need time to analyze the assessment 
information we have to focus on “timely results” and to set “next step” goals at the midpoint in 
the school year. These efforts will assist us in meeting our annual growth targets as described in 
question #9, below.  
 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
Our school did not make AYP in 2009-2010 in the grade band 3-5 in both reading and math. 
Our NWEA MAPs testing indicates that we are performing below national averages in both 
reading and math. In the 2009-2010 school year we narrowed that gap in reading by 25% 
however the gap widened in math by 19%.  
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
We will increase by 5% those students meeting state standards on the MSP in both reading and 
math in grades 3-7. We will narrow the gap between Orondo NWEA MAP scores and national 
norms in both reading and math by 20%. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
NWEA MAP scores will be monitored three times per year in the 2010 school year. MSP scores 
will be reviewed in fall 2010 and fall 2011.  
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
All teachers in our school meet weekly in grade level teams. These teams review student 
progress and coordinate student needs with interventions aligned to our learning targets. In 
addition, each of our teachers is assigned to a curriculum team that oversees reading, math, 
writing and assessment in our building. These teams meet eight times per year. The available 
time for this work is limited. While weekly meetings allow us to stay on top of pertinent needs, 
they do not allow time to synthesize the breadth of relevant information and to augment the 
range of options available to intervene when students struggle. The collaborative work in our 
school is tied to an ongoing review of our student’s achievement data in these professional 
learning communities. We will use the midyear planning day made possible by this waiver to 
review student progress to date, review the success of our interventions, modify and adjust 
these services and set targets for individual attainment by the end of the year. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
During the 2009-2010 school year our school increased the leadership role of the School 
Improvement Planning Team (SIP). Prior to this the team had met intermittently. We determined 
that we needed to meet weekly in order to focus on clear achievement targets and to build a 
comprehensive support system for the instructional support teams in the building. In these 
weekly meetings the SIP team guided the work of curriculum teams who identified “non-
negotiable” learning targets for reading, math and writing. Each teacher grade level team was 
represented on the SIP team, and these representatives ensured that the priorities of the school 
wide learning targets were included in weekly teacher’s meetings as well. With more frequent 
collaboration, we found that productive discussion had to be anchored in the analysis of student 
achievement data. Although we had taken steps to implement many professional learning 
community concepts prior to this time, the regular collaboration around student data moved us 
toward a greater common understanding of quality instruction and the need for systematic 
interventions when students did not reach the achievement we were seeking. As the year 
moved forward, it became clear that we needed a well articulated system of interventions that 
would tailor instructional support to the specific learning needs of the students. With the 
formative and summative assessment data we are collecting and with the ongoing collaborative 
structures that we have put in place in the last year we have a better understanding of the next 
steps needed to improve achievement. We have found that careful analysis of our students’ 
data is required to build effective interventions. Aligning our core program (Tier I) with short term 
targeted support (Tier II) and intensive / longer term programs that overcome significant learning 
challenges (Tier III) depends on a thoughtful and reflective review of student achievement data 
and program review. As a part of our efforts to build this system of RTI (Response to 
Intervention) we believe it will essential to meet midyear as a full staff. We will use this time to 
review our successes and challenges and to target specific student needs and goals for the 
remainder of the school year.  
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
At this time we are requesting a one year waiver.   
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
Our School Improvement Plan calls for the Professional Learning Community Activities of our 
grade level teams and curriculum teams to set annual improvement goals in reading and 
mathematics. These teams are charged with oversight of the school’s progress toward meeting 
these goals. For the 2009-2010 school year our goal called a 5% increase in the number of 
students meeting state standards in reading and math. We have also targeted a 20% reduction 
in the difference between our school’s scores on the NWEA MAP Test and national norms on 
that test. The activities of our Professional Learning Community to be conducted on the waiver 
day support these goals by providing time to monitor mid-year progress and the opportunity to 
use student data to evaluate the effectiveness of services to achieve these goals. These goals 
and activities support our school’s vision statement which is copied below 

Our school is an interdependent community that places high priority on learning and student 
success. We use this priority as a guide when making decisions about time and resources. All 
staff members contribute their expertise and vision to the collaborative commitment to learning 
and student success. Administration, staff and community stakeholders maintain fidelity to this 
focus in decision making.  
All of our students receive instruction that challenges them to greater achievement, focused 
on specific learning targets. Students know what these goals are and readily express their 
goals and progress toward them. Students, staff and parents work together to support these 
learning targets. Students meet these targets and push beyond them.  

 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
The superintendent and the school improvement team prepared a school calendar in keeping 
with our school wide plan. The team determined that strategic midyear planning would support 
the learning goals of the plan. The recommended calendar was provided to staff and parents for 
review. Finally, the school board reviewed the recommendations of these groups and approved 
the recommendations. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
Orondo Teachers are contracted for 184 days. One of these days is available for individual 
teacher choice to prepare classrooms at the beginning of the school year. Two days are district 
planned at the beginning of the year for mandatory training and to collaborate on student 
placement, services and schedules. One professional development day is reserved for the last 
working day of the year, when staff complete report cards and inventory and store their 
classrooms. The school calendar includes ten half days, two of these are reserved for early 
dismissal before Thanksgiving and on the last day of school. Three half day release day are 
reserved for records preparation. Five half days are reserved for professional development 
planned by the district and for staff collaboration to address the school improvement goals. One 
hundred seventy days are scheduled as days of full instruction.  
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 226 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

226 100.0% 
  

     
 

2007-08 2006- 2005-
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School Report Card Information from OSPI 
07 06 

Annual Dropout Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  N/A N/A N/A 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 46.4% 25.0% 46.4% 
 

7th Grade 62.5% 37.5% 87.5% 
 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 47.4% 36.8% 42.1% 
 

7th Grade 55.0% 25.0% 60.0% 
 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 59.4% 37.5% 25.0% 
 

7th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 

10th Grade N/A N/A N/A N/A 
 

 
District  Pomeroy School District #110 
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction 13 
Reduction 2 
Remaining number of half days in calendar 11 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
Pomeroy School District No. 110 (PSD) embarked on the concept of applying for requesting a 
180-Day Waiver during the 2007/08 School Year. Since then, the school board, administration, 
and faculty found waiver days to be an excellent use of time for professional development. 
During the 2008/09 School Year, para-professionals were included in professional development, 
to help with their individual development and network with faculty. The application is considered 
new because PSD completely starts fresh with a new plan each year, allowing state 
assessment results to drive the plan’s activities. Also, a few years ago, the State Board of 
Education approved a one-year plan, so PSD is aware of this process and has tried to update 
its plan each year. This request is being made again for the 2010/11 school year with the 
following purposes in mind: 
• Identify strategies to help all students become successful 
• Define effective classroom teaching and learning 
• Organize the school environment to increase the number of students who attain 

standards, measured by the state assessments, in reading, writing, and mathematics 
PSD is requesting (as provided for in WAC 180-18-040) a waiver of the minimum 180-day 
school year requirement of WAC 180-16-215. The District is requesting that four school days be 
waived from the required 180 school days for the 2009-10 school year for grades one through 
twelve. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

Within the purpose outlined above, the Board of Directors  supports professional development 
through waiver days so that student achievement can be improved through all three levels 
throughout the district, as described below: 

 
Goals at the district level are as follows: 

1) Develop an effective teaching model 
2) Collaborate to align curriculum, instruction, and assessment in various subjects as well 

as develop Classroom Based Assessments (CBA’s) 
Goals at the building level are as follows: 

Pomeroy Elementary School 
Goal 1 Evaluate various aspects of curriculum, instruction, and assessment in 

relation to current practice 
Goal 2 Implement Response to Intervention (RTI) as a method of identifying 

students who may be at-risk academically 
Pomeroy Jr./Sr. High School 

Goal 1 Align all curricula with state standards 
Goal 2 Modify Student-Led Presentations for all students 7-12 to use portfolios or 

e-folios as a presentation tool to help students with individual presentations, 
adapting current senior exit interviews into Navigation 101 

Goal 3 Complete a yearlong study of missed class time due to meetings, 
assemblies, and transfers for the 2010-11 school year, to determine 
changes for the 2011-12 school year 

Goal 4 Monitor academic progress of all students especially those with D’s or F’s,  
developing a monitoring system that rewards those students who are 
passing classes and completing homework assignments and provides 
additional support for those who are not 

Goals at the individual/small group staff level are as follows: 
1) Provide for individual staff and small group staff members to work on self-improvement 

through a goal setting process, see the attached form 
2) Provide time for individual staff and small group staff members to complete goals 

 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
State assessment results drive the purpose and motivation of our professional development 
plan. The data included in the supplemental materials show three-year trends taken from the 
Washington State Report Card website. These trends indicate assessment scores above and 
below the state average. Each group taking the state assessment is compared against a 
different group each year. With this data a clear target is to be near the state average as it 
moves up and down each year. 
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
Being near the state average is not a good enough goal or benchmark. In Pomeroy, the 
graduation rate for the last ten years is 92.9%. PSD knows that to maintain this rate, all students 
must pass the state assessment. With this application, PSD proposes to look at the following 
longitudinal data and set a goal of 10% improvement in scores from the previous state 
assessment. To compensate for unforeseen factors, poor test takers, etc., PSD will also 
consider being within + five percent of the state average as meeting its goal. For each class, 
typical trends show improvement until junior-high, then a decrease, with high school ending 
strong. The goal is for all students to reach standard by passing the state assessment by 10th 
grade. PSD’s graduation rate is evidence that students continue preparation for their state 
assessment in order to pass it in the 11th or 12th grade. These passing rates are not reported on 
the Washington State Report Card website and therefore not public knowledge. The 
supplemental materials include statewide assessment data for math and reading. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
Evidence is collected in the fall of each year when state assessment results are reported 
publicly. PSD submits its plan for waiver days about three months before results are known. As 
soon as they are known, the professional development plan is finalized. The administration 
(Superintendent/Elementary Principal and Junior-Senior High Principal) looks at the plan to 
determine whether it is on target. If not, a LIT (Learning Improvement Team) meeting is called to 
discuss specific updates. All teachers receive results of all students in each grade level. This 
provides immediate feedback on how their students did from the year before. The process 
allows them to ask the teacher from the previous year strategies that work either for an 
individual or group of students. Prior to this application, there was less emphasis place on test 
scores. Through the current application, a greater emphasis was placed on test scores in driving 
this application. PSD can then report on how well it met its goals through subsequent 
applications or the plan for the year after the results were posted. 
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
Professional development is the strategy used to meet the goals of the waiver. The purpose 
was laid out in Question #8. When goals are outlined at the district level, building level, and 
individual/small group level, it becomes very clear that PSD is focused on wise utilization of this 
time. This time provides all three levels of the system the flexibility to concentrate on what 
needs to be accomplished. Ultimately, with time as a factor, this plan is written on scores about 
a year old and adjusted in the fall when recent assessment scores are reported. This is why the 
plan is written in general terms as process and strategies are given as an overview and made 
specific at the beginning of the school year. Mathematics curriculum was purchased this year in 
grades 5-9. Professional development time will be used to have teachers in both buildings get 
together to discuss implementation. The adopted curriculum was one of the state recommended 
math series. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
The application is innovative to the extent that it provides ongoing, high-quality, job-embedded 
professional development to staff to ensure that they are equipped to provided effective 
teaching (WAC 180-18-050 (3)(i)(ix)). This is evidenced by the results of the feedback from staff 
on the professional development plan. In recent years, the elementary school and junior-senior 
high school developed School Improvement Plans (SIP’s) to focus faculty effort on education 
reform during professional development time. Individual staff goal setting continued as a part of 
professional development activities. (See the attached form.)  There will be three levels of 
activities taking place as described in Question #8. Feedback was obtained on each SIP this 
spring. A survey was taken using the “parent/community” survey from the Nine Characteristics 
of Highly Effective Schools. Faculty used the data to update and develop the building’s SIP for 
the upcoming year. For individual goals, the feedback criteria will be used each professional 
development day to determine whether professional development activities hit the following 
target: 
1. It fosters a deepening sense of subject-matter knowledge and greater understanding of 

learning and student needs. 
2. It deals specifically with the critical activities of teaching and learning, such as lesson 

planning, student evaluation, improving classroom practices, or developing curriculum. 
3. It uses specific cases of practice to build better understanding through questions, analysis, 

reflection, and substantial professional discussion. 
4. It values and cultivates a culture of collegiality, including the sharing of knowledge and 

experience among educators. 
5. It is sustained, intensive, and continuously woven into the everyday fabric of teaching, 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

through modeling, coaching, and collaboration. 
 
Overall feedback on the 2009/10 School Year professional development plan was collected. 
The supplemental materials include the raw data of the feedback.  
 
Individual/Small Group Goals 
The purpose of these goals is to foster improvement at an individually directed level. About 40% 
of the goals were finished. Many of the remaining goals were recognized to be ongoing or in 
need of more time to complete. 
 
The results of feedback indicate this year’s professional development has started to change 
instructional practice. District goals are on the road to becoming sustained, as well as building 
goals. Individual/small group goal time was worthwhile to the three purposes of professional 
development, outlined in Question #8.  These results clearly show professional development at 
PSD is vital to student achievement. The LIT determined the district level goals were not 
sustained and needed to continue. This was decided at a LIT meeting where overall feedback 
was discussed. Previous goals are listed below with their status. 
Status of goals at the district level are as follows: 

1) Develop an effective teaching model, started during the 2007/08 school year (in 
progress) 

2) Collaborate to align curriculum, instruction, and assessment in various subjects as well 
as develop Classroom Based Assessments (CBA’s) (in progress) 

During the last professional development day of the 2009/10 School Year, each building faculty 
and staff reviewed the status of its SIP goals. Status of those goals are listed below: 

Pomeroy Elementary School 
Goal 1 Evaluate various aspects of curriculum, instruction, and assessment in 

relation to current practice (in progress) 
Goal 2 Implement Response to Intervention (RTI) as a method of identifying 

students who may be at-risk academically (in progress) 
Pomeroy Jr./Sr. High School 

Goal 1 Implement a curriculum adoption cycle. Align all curriculum with state 
standards especially Math with the new PE (Performance Expectations) 
standards (in progress) 

Goal 2 Modify Student-Led Presentations for all students 7-12 to use portfolios as 
a presentational tool to help students with presentations. Adapt current 
senior exit interviews into the Navigation 101 process and utilize community 
members exclusively in the judging process (in progress) 

Goal 3 Develop a new student discipline system that improves consistency among 
teachers. Discipline system would focus on minor infractions and be the 
first step in a progressive discipline system (completed) 

Goal 4 Complete a yearlong study of missed class time due to meetings, 
assemblies, and transfers for the 2009-10 school year. The study would be 
used to determine changes for the 2010-11 school year (in progress) 

 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
PSD is applying for a one-year waiver, for the 2010-11 School Year. 
 
15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
PSD is seeking time to work on real initiatives to help implement school reform. PSD and the 
Garfield County Education Association (GCEA) recognize that rural school districts are often 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

strapped for resources to pay staff for additional days of professional development above and 
beyond the LID’s (Learning Improvement Days) funded by the state of Washington. The 180-
Day Waiver provides much needed time for staff to collaborate on the implementation of goals 
that will help student learning. Best practice suggests that the best way to improve learning is to 
improve teaching. That can be accomplished through designing a comprehensive and tiered 
professional development plan. 
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
In a school district as small as Pomeroy, the communication network is informal. The community 
relies on its professionals to use their expertise to help students prepare for the world beyond 
high school. That trust is shared through circles of friends that school employees may have. 
Informal parental feedback to teachers, school administration, and members of the school board 
indicate that these types of days help in planning for daycare and other family-related issues. 
The calendar negotiations between PSD and GCEA led to requesting the 180-Waiver be 
continued. Both recognize that full days for professional development allows for a coordinated 
and focused program. In addition, at a recent board meeting, the board took comments from the 
community before passing Resolution #212. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
PSD negotiates the school calendar with the Garfield County Education Association (GCEA). 
The current negotiated agreement pays certificated teaching staff for 180 school days plus the 
number of state funded LID’s (Learning Improvement Days). PSD and GCEA have collaborated 
on this application for a waiver from the 180 day school year requirement since the 2007-08 
School Year. With this application, the breakdown of days is listed below: 
Full Instructional Days = 169 
1:00 PM Early Release Days = One (day prior to Thanksgiving Day) 
11:30 AM Early Release Days = Nine (elementary school = four grade prep days, three 

professional development days/secondary school = five 
grade prep days, 2 professional development days/ two 
days are for time served for additional work on student 
conference days) 

10:00 Early Release Days = One (last day) 
 
Two days are for student conferences with teachers and parents. All students have a scheduled 
conference in the fall for elementary and all students have a student-led presentation in the 
spring at the junior-senior high school. PSD and GCEA are satisfied with this work plan as 
evidenced by our continued application. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
All activities met with the purpose of the waiver: 
• identify strategies to help all students become successful 
• define effective classroom teaching and learning 
• organize the school environment to increase the number of students who attain standards, 

measured by the WASL, in reading, writing, and mathematics 
Development of an effective teaching model needs to continue. The RTI implementation 
process came to a point of building focus, rather than district focus. After each professional 
development day, the LIT (Learning Improvement Team) met to assess the day and plan for the 
next day. The 2009/10 School Year 180-Waiver application is redesigned to provide flexibility to 
expand on the completion of one goal and start a new goal as described in Question #8. It 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

focuses on two topics at the district level and encourages school and individual staff 
improvement efforts. 
 
19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
A questionnaire was sent to the faculty to judge effectiveness of professional development. It 
asked teachers to rate professional development efforts on the five principals of professional 
development, found in Question #13. Feedback indicated that the professional development 
model needed to continue to allow the district to finish off one of the initiatives started two years 
ago, as well as each building to get SIP goals completed. Those results are outlined in Question 
#13. Preliminary state assessment data indicated that mathematics is a concern at all grade 
levels. However, the reason PSD is making a request is to continue the work previously started. 
Raising student test scores has been on part of the reason for professional development. These 
scores are now becoming more of a focus and means for targeting work that needs to be 
accomplished. Data collected in Question #11 will be a basis for prioritizing professional 
development activities. 
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
 
The Parent Newsletter, a monthly newsletter, informed parents of the work that was being done 
several times throughout the school year. Informal communication also occurred. This was 
when community members engaged school district staff with conversation about the waiver 
days. 
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 337 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

151 44.8% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  0.8% 3.1% 0% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  97.4% 87.3% 100.0% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  97.4% 87.3% 105.4% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 83.3% 37.5% 54.2% 
 

7th Grade 59.3% 29.6% 88.9% 
 

10th Grade 78.3% 29.2% 100.0% 37.5% 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 63.6% 50.0% 68.2% 
 

7th Grade 48.0% 12.0% 72.0% 
 

10th Grade 80.0% 48.3% 89.7% 27.6% 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School Report Card Information from OSPI 
Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 65.2% 56.5% 60.9% 
 

7th Grade 74.1% 48.1% 88.9% 
 

10th Grade 80.0% 59.4% 86.7% 37.5% 
 

 
District  Tacoma School District  
New Application or  
Renewal Application 

Renewal application – We are requesting fewer waiver days than the 
previous year 

 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction 3 (Early Release) 
Reduction None 
Remaining number of half days in calendar 
 

3 (Early Release) 

 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
The purposes and goals of this Waiver are to use the extra time requested to provide teacher 
professional development focused on standards based instruction in all content areas. We have 
been working with the University of Washington’s five Dimensions of Teaching and Learning 
Tool to clearly define and implement the components of quality teaching and learning. We will 
use the two requested Waiver Days for these purposes. Ultimately by increasing our teachers’ 
instructional capacity during Waiver Day professional development, student achievement will 
increase. The Tacoma School District uses a web-based application to access current and 
historical assessment data. During the first waiver day this database will include the most recent 
state assessment results and all historic test records for students enrolled in the Tacoma School 
District. Teachers will be expected to review assessment data for students enrolled in their class 
to help develop an understanding of the skill sets of the students they will be teaching in the 
upcoming year. This will establish a foundation for the district initiative of professional 
development for standards-based instruction in all content areas. Our school principals will 
incorporate the work of the University of Washington’s 5 Dimensions of Teaching and Learning 
Tool which was part of their professional development in this past year. Using these 
components as guiding principles they will outline the expectations of quality teaching and 
learning as put forth by the 5D model. The rubric identifies five Dimensions and 13 Sub-
Dimensions of Teaching and Learning. The 5D framework for professional development are 
drawn from research on what constitutes good teaching. The Research base for 5D includes, 
but is not limited to: 

• Wiggins and McTighe:  Understanding by Design 
• Newman, King & Carmichael:  Authentic Intellectual Engagement 
• Resnick & Zurawsky:  Accountable Talk 
• Danielson & Bizar:  Enhancing Professional Practice 
• Marzano, Pickering & Pollick:  Classroom Instruction That Works 
• Stiggins:  Assessment for Learning 
• Bransford, Brown & Cocking:  Developing Expertise 

The two requested Waiver Days will provide a large group instructional development, smaller 
learning groups and professional learning communities as a model to implement the standards-
based instructional goals for the Waiver Day. 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
(See Attachment A) Data shows that the majority of the schools are not meeting the ten percent  
Growth Status Goal of the district. Because of the results, the professional development we plan 
for our two requested waiver days will be focused on standards-based instruction in all content 
areas. The district will continue to monitor the ten percent Growth Status goal during the 2010-
2011 school year. Our WASL scores over the past several years have gradually increased; 
however, we are still below the general goal of 10% increase in students meeting standard from 
last year to this year. We would like to think this is in some part due to the professional 
development and collaboration that has been able to happen on the waiver days. In Reading 
grade 3 (64.8-67.8), 6 (58-63.3), 8 (55.3-62.3) and 10 (69.6-73.4) have shown progress, while 
grades 4 (70.4-66.8) and 7 (61.4-48.4) have shown slight declines. In Math, we have seen a mix 
of slight increases and decreases. In Writing, all grades have shown increases. Grade 4 (53.9-
55.7), 7 (58.2-60.4) and 10 (70-81.3) have seen steady gains. In Science, grade 5 (23.3-32.3), 8 
(28.3-36.8) and 10 (23.9-25.7) have also shown increases. There have been larger increases 
and decreases at individual schools, but our focus has been a district-wide support of curriculum 
and practices to increase student achievement. We also have specific goals around increasing 
student attendance, decreasing the dropout rate and increasing our graduation rate overall as 
well as between different subgroups. 
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  
Each school will be provided a Data Dashboard which will be the structure for collecting regular 
data such as: failure rates in Algebra, 3rd Grade Reading Proficiency, and other measures that 
serve as benchmarks of attainment of our overall ten percent growth status goal. Our 
assessment and data research department provides an electronic data system to optimize ease 
of use for all data used by students, parents and district staff.  
 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
We expect our achievement results to increase based on increased teacher quality. For 
example, we will analyze Algebra pass rates and state assessment results to monitor our 
progress. Data Dashboard results will be analyzed at the district level every six weeks and 
principal meetings will be focused on this analysis. Principals and their leadership teams will 
create plans to address learning needs of students identified through the Data Dashboard 
structure. 
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver. 
• Teacher Development Group (Mathematics) 

This program is based in Oregon and was founded by a group of Math teachers. The focus 
of their program is to change mathematical practice through side by side coaching with math 
teachers. They focus on establishing mathematical norms and analyzing student learning 
through student discourse and daily formative assessments. 
 

• Inquiry by Design (Literacy) 
This program provides training and curriculum for Language Arts teachers. Teachers use a 
rigorous curriculum and strategies that promote individualized instruction for each student.  
 

• Center for Educational Leadership (University of Washington – Seattle, Washington) 
Teachers, principals and district level administrators are working with coaches from the 
University of Washington in analyzing effective teaching practice through the 5 Dimensions 
of Teaching and Learning. The University of Washington has developed teaching strategies 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

in the area of: Purpose, Student Engagement, Curriculum and Pedagogy, Assessment for 
Student Learning and Classroom and Culture. These five Dimensions have been the subject 
of all Staff Professional Development in the District and is the basis for aligning teaching 
strategies around Standards Based Instruction.  

 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
Our Board of Education approved the adoption of Houghton Mifflin’s Mathematics Expressions 
program for grades K-5 based on the recommendation from 100 teachers and principals and 
150 parents and community members. This program was selected as one of two top programs 
at the state level because of the strong alignment between its content and Washington State 
Standards. The professional development organized for these two waiver days will be focused 
on grade level and school-wide conversations and planning to support cohesive and 
comprehensive curriculum delivery. 
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
This request is for one year only. Our Waiver Days during the 2010-2011 school year will build 
on the knowledge teachers gained from previous professional development sessions focused 
on standards based instruction. Staff and teachers in the Tacoma Public Schools are working to 
align our instructional programs to state standards. In the fall of 2009 we conducted an 
environmental scan of all classrooms and this qualitative classroom practices data reveals that 
further focus on learning targets, assessment of student learning and intervention for students 
who need further support is necessary. 

 
15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
Each school’s improvement plan is aligned with our newly drafted district improvement plan that 
is focused on three goals, namely, increased student achievement and reduced achievement 
gaps; increased college-ready, college-access, and college success rates; and, accessing 
family and community resources to educate all students. The professional development offered 
during waiver days will be focused on the attainment of the goals in each school’s improvement 
plan. 
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
The Teachers’ Education Association and Principals’ Association were involved in the 
development of the request for this waiver. Tacoma is decreasing the number of days from 
three to two and only asking for a one-year waiver. This will provide us with the ability to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the waiver day professional development time. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  

• Number of Optional Professional Development Days – two (District); two (School); three 
(Personal) 

• Number of Full Instruction Days – 178 
• Number of Early Release Days - 3 

 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
The three Waiver Days for the 2009-2010 school year were used as planned and reported in 
our prior request. We used the days to provide content specific professional development on 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

student attainment of state and district standards. 
 
19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
Scores on the state level assessment increased in many schools at various grade levels during 
the 2008 – 2009 school year as documented in the attachments. In addition to these results, the 
extra time for professional development facilitated the strengthening of teacher and principal 
leadership capacity and the time to develop an understanding of the need for change. We judge 
the success of our waiver day seminars based on quantitative and qualitative data. 
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
All of our assessment data is available through the district website. (The website is updated 
daily/weekly). We also give frequent updates at public school board meetings regarding our 
progress on student achievement as well as the latest professional development opportunities 
we have available for staff. We can always improve and will continue to post information and 
give updates to the public at school board meetings as well as other public events. 
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 29,714 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

17,464 58.8% 
  

     

 
2007-08 

2006-
07 

2005-
06  

Annual Dropout Rate  6.8% 8.1% 7.5% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  71.8% 68.4% 67.6% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  77.6% 74.4% 74.8% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 66.8% 39.2% 55.7% 
 

7th Grade 48.4% 37.7% 60.4% 
 

10th Grade 73.4% 30.9% 81.3% 25.7% 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 66.5% 47.1% 58.5% 
 

7th Grade 58.3% 40.9% 64.9% 
 

10th Grade 72.4% 32.2% 81.6% 26.8% 

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 

4th Grade 70.4% 45.7% 53.9% 
 

7th Grade 61.4% 43.3% 58.2% 
 

10th Grade 69.6% 36.1% 70.0% 23.9% 
 

 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
District  Thorp School District #400  
 
6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days?  
Number of half-days before any reduction None 
Reduction 0 
Remaining number of half days in calendar 0 
 
8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?   
The purpose of the waiver days will be to: 1) Allow instructional staff to collaborate on the 
processing and study of the “Common Core Standards” which have been tentatively adopted by 
OSPI as part of the State’s Race to the Top Application. This is an important step for our staff as 
we need to understand and address any differences from our work with the state standards; 2) 
To allow staff to review elementary and high school math materials for possible piloting and 
adoption. The process to complete this task will involve several meetings with all elementary 
staff members, our high school math teacher and me. The following dates and times will be 
used to review the selected math materials prior to deciding which materials to pilot:  September 
8, October 8 (If waiver is granted), November 12, and December 10. The materials we are 
reviewing for the elementary level include: a) Everyday Math, b) Math Connects, c) Bridges, d) 
Math Expressions, and e) Investigations. Once the staff has reviewed the materials and 
selected two series to pilot, the pilot will take place during the reminder of the school year, 
giving each of the selected curriculum materials equal time. Following the pilot the committee 
will make a recommendation to the board as to which set of materials best meets the needs of 
Thorp students. Parents will be part of the materials review. At this time we have not selected 
the high school materials that will be reviewed. The process will be the same. Collaboration time 
designed to provide staff with an opportunity to review the “Common Core Standards” and to 
align instruction with state standards will be accomplished during the remainder of the two 
waiver days and one early release Friday each month. The entire instructional staff will be 
broken into elementary and secondary teams by subject. The end of the process will involve two 
separate vertical teams to discuss how and what is being done at one grade level affects the 
next. This will allow us to ensure that we have addressed any gaps in instruction or curriculum.  
All of this work is related to increasing student achievement from K through 12th grade. 
Developing an instructional framework with consistent and research based practices which 
target established standards will allow students to perform at their best on state and local 
assessments, and more importantly to be prepared for the next step in their education or 
careers after their formal schooling is complete.  
 
9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver? 
Data sources used to support this request include: 1) WASL data; 2) MAP testing data; 3) 
Student course taking and completion data; 4) Student attendance data; 5) Parent –teacher 
conference attendance data; 6) Read Well data from LAP/Title I. In our small district we are able 
to track ever student and personalize the support we provide to each student to maximize their 
opportunity for success. 
 
10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of 
expected benchmarks and results.  

2010 HSPE and MSP data; 2) MAP Testing data from both 2010 and 2011; 3)  Read Well 
Data; 4) Student grade reports for classes; 5) Report of students on track for graduation, 
grades 9-12. We will also be reviewing formative assessments as part of formalizing an 
evaluation pan for our school district. Expected results include: 1) Maintaining the 90+ 
percent success of our students in reading and writing on the HSPE; (2) Increases of five 
percent on the HSPE Math and Science; 3) Increases in student achievement in all 
grades/subjects on the MAP test of 1+ years of growth. Our students take this test three 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

times per year, at all grade levels from 3-11; 4) Increases of percent in reading, writing, and 
math on the MSP for grades 3-8. 

 
11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were 
attained. 
We are and will gather longitudinal data to examine student performance on various 
assessments to determine if the work on curriculum adoption and alignment of instructional 
practices to established standards has been effective. We are working as a district to training 
staff so they can effectively digest available data and use their analysis to inform our 
instructional program and practices. Sources of data will include state testing data from the 
HSPE and MSP. MAP testing data, local grades, and assessment data from Read Well for 
elementary students. We are also working with our ESD to identify and select appropriate 
formative assessments that will yield data to assist instructional staff in making instructional 
changes to meet identified student needs. Part of the two waiver days and some of our early 
release Fridays will be used by staff to collaboratively analyze this data to determine our 
progress to improving students performance on state and local tests. 
 
12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the 
waiver.  
We are currently engaged in the Accreditation and SIP processes. These processes involve all 
staff, the school board and administration as well as parents.   We are seeking accreditation 
through the “Northwest Association of Accredited School” or (NAAS). We are blending the SIP 
and school accreditation processes so that we do not have to duplicate the work and our 
accreditation and SIP processes align with one another. We are following board policies for 
review of instructional materials and submission to the school board for adoption of selected 
materials. We will work with CWU and ESD 105 to develop a process for examining the 
research and developing an instructional framework for adoption by the district over the next two 
to three years. This framework will be in keeping with the intent of 6696 that a district is to have 
researched, developed, and implemented an instructional framework that ensures all students 
can achieve established learning standards. 
 
13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies. 
There is no particular innovation involved in this process. We will use resources from both ESD 
105 and Central Washington University to help facilitate our in-depth look at available curriculum 
materials and identification and alignment of our district instructional practices with currently 
established standards. Resources available from the ESD and CWU include: 1) Content area 
and instructional expertise/coaching; 2) Curriculum alignment and materials expertise support; 
3) State and Common Core Standards expertise and support; 4) Personnel-substitute support 
from Phi Delta Kappa at t CWU; (5 Facilitators for committee work from both CWU and the ESD. 
The requested waiver days will be used to replace lost Learning Improvement Days (LID). The 
work of curriculum adoption and alignment requires intensive, concentrated staff time, which 
has been lost due to cuts in state funding. 
 
14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent 
years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver? 
Our requested waiver days will be used to continue our work in curriculum adoption, alignment 
and mapping. This work will help us begin the process of indentifying a district system of 
instructional practice. 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. 
Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and 
school improvement plans. 
 
The State Board may request a copy of the District’s (SIP) plan by contacting Jim Hainer at 
hainerj@thorp.wednet.edu or by phone at (509) 964-2107.  
 
The waiver directly supports three goals of the district’s SIP.  
1. It helps us address issues regarding improving student performance on state math tests by 
ensuring appropriate materials are adopted and that these materials align with established state 
and now the “Common Core Standards”. Our goal for student achievement in this area is to 
improve student math scores by five percent per year. 
2. It helps us address the reading goal of improving student scores on the state test in the K-8 
grades. Student performance on the reading and writing at the high school levels are in the high 
90% range. Our goal in the reading area is to improve performance in this area by five percent 
per year in the K-8 grades until they are in the 90% range. 
3. These waiver days will support our district’s development of a common instructional 
framework. This supports our district’s goal of ensuring that we use instructional practices and 
materials that are researched based and support student achievement at all grade levels in core 
subject areas. 
 
16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community 
been involved in the development of the request for this waiver. 
The school board was involved in the decision to request this waiver during the regular board 
meeting. Staff members have been involved in this process during staff meetings and during our 
accreditation/SIP staff work session. I attend the district’s PTSA meetings and have informed 
parents of our intentions and solicited their support for this waiver. PTSA members are aware of 
the lost staff development days and fully support staff development time dedicated to improving 
their students’ learning experience and preparation. The staff clearly sees the need for the 
waiver days and return of LID days to continue the work of improving instruction, aligning 
instruction to meet established standards, and ensuring that the best possible materials and 
experiences are available to their students. The waiver resolution is evidence of the school 
boards support of the waiver. We see these two waiver days as critical to our ability to meet all 
the requirements that the federal and state governments, OSPI and the State Board expect of 
us, and more importantly that will allow our students to learn, grow and be prepared to take their 
place in society as productive citizens. 
 
17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of 
professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction 
days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time.  
Our district pays for one additional professional development days at the very beginning of the 
school year. This day allows us to cover training in areas required by regulations such as 
harassment policies, universal precautions, etc. We also have early release Fridays. Students 
are released at 1:30 p.m. Staff members are engaged in ongoing accreditation/SIP work, 
curriculum work, and safety training work on these early release days. There are no other non-
instructional days planned in our calendar. 
 
18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used 
as planned and reported in your prior request? 
The previous request stated that the Thorp School District expects to use the waiver days for:   
1) Train in and implement new middle school math adoption allowing us to more fully align our 
curriculum with the new state math standards; 2) Fully implement advisories and student lead 
conferences; 3) Provide K-12 instructional staff opportunity to vertically align core subject 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

curriculum with state standards; 4) Fully implement RTI in the Thorp School District; 5) 
Complete the accreditation process. The waiver days from the previous year were used as 
planned with the exceptions that we have not fully implemented RTI and have not completed the 
accreditation process. These projects are continuing into the following school year. These 
waiver days will allow for concentrated staff collaboration and will be combined with the 
remaining state LID day and the district’s early release Friday’s. These waiver days are even 
more critical with the state’s reduction of funded LID days. With the exception of full 
implementation of RTI, these stated goals have been or will be completed by the end of the 
school year. 
 
19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and 
standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and 
results of the previous waiver.  
Using MAP, Read Well data, as well as information collected from parents at conferences it is 
evident that our work to improve students’ achievement is having success. We will look at the 
HSPE and MSP data when it comes in. Evidence of our success with the waiver days from the 
2009-2010 school year are still coming in as we have not yet received our MSP data, HSPE 
information shows that 10th graders passed writing with 100% and reading with 91%. 
Additionally we had two juniors pass the math HSPE the second time. Our HSPE math scores 
improved from 36% to 42%. We have not yet received science scores for HSPE. We have a lot 
of work to do in math and science. MAP scores show that most students showed at least 1 year 
of growth and that many struggling students showed in some cases 1.5 to 3 years of growth in 
reading and math. 
 
20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use 
and impact of the waiver? 
We have kept our community informed as to the progress through our parent-teacher 
conferences throughout the school year. We will make our final report to our community after we 
receive the results of the HSPE and MSP testing for the 2009-2010 school year. The waiver 
plan has been discussed in staff meetings, at the board meetings, and during PTSA meetings.  
 
School Report Card Information from OSPI 

School District Information from OSPI Report Card Web Page 
May 2009 Student Count 168 

   
Free or Reduced-Price Meals 
(May 2009) 

64 38.1% 
  

     
 

2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 
 

Annual Dropout Rate  3.8% 13.6% 4.5% 
 

On-Time Graduation Rate  65.6% 54.9% 83.3% 
 

Extended Graduation Rate  65.6% 54.9% 83.3% 
 

     2008-09 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing 
Scie
nce 

4th Grade 81.8% 36.4% 63.6% 
 

7th Grade 60.0% 40.0% 80.0% 
 

10th Grade 100.0%   100.0% 
 

     2007-08 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing Scie



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

School Report Card Information from OSPI 
nce 

4th Grade 69.2% 61.5% 30.8% 
 

7th Grade 61.1% 44.4% 72.2% 
 

10th Grade         

     2006-07 WASL Results  
    

Grade Level Reading Math Writing 
Scie
nce 

4th Grade 75.0% 56.3% 31.3% 
 

7th Grade 61.9% 47.6% 61.9% 
 

10th Grade 75.0% 50.0% 83.3% 
33.3

% 
 

 
For comparison purposes, the Report Card for Washington State is provided below: 
2008-09 WASL Results 
Grade Level Reading Math Writing Science 
4th Grade 73.6% 52.3% 60.4%   

7th Grade 59.3% 51.8% 69.8%   

10th Grade 81.2% 45.4% 86.7% 38.8% 
 
Annual Dropout Rate (2007-08) 18,246 5.6% 

On-Time Graduation Rate (2007-
08) 

58,005 72.0% 

Extended Graduation Rate (2007-
08) 

62,042 77.0% 

 



 

Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
CORE 24/GRADUATION REQUIREMENT REVISIONS 

 

 
BACKGROUND 

The State Board of Education (SBE) adopted a proposed Core 24 graduation requirements 
framework in July 2008.1

 

 Since that time, the SBE has received extensive stakeholder input and 
the recommendations of the Core 24 Implementation Task Force. The SBE will look at the 
framework once again to determine what changes may be needed and a timetable for moving 
forward. 

 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 

The SBE will consider revisions to the Core 24 framework in the context of the following 
questions: 
 

• What changes to the proposed Core 24 graduation requirements framework are needed 
to show that the SBE has responded to the concerns of stakeholders? 

• How can the SBE reconcile its advocacy for the state to fund the opportunity to complete 
24 credits with its responsibility to ensure students have access to needed graduation 
improvements now? 

• Given the SBE’s commitments to no unfunded mandates, what no-cost policy changes 
will start the process of moving forward to improved graduation requirements? 

• How will the SBE know that funding has “started” and rules may be put in place? What 
type of funding will signal that the rule process may begin for changes with fiscal impact? 

 
Staff is recommending that the SBE consider a revision of the framework called the “Quality 
Core.” 
 

 
EXPECTED ACTION 

Adopt provisionally a revised framework of graduation requirements. 

                                                
1 
http://www.sbe.wa.gov/documents/MHSD%20Memorandum%20%20with%20July%2025%20motion%20
amendments%20final.pdf 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
CORE 24/GRADUATION REQUIREMENT REVISIONS 

The 2009 Washington Legislature made decisive revisions to the basic education act, including 
several directly relevant to the State Board of Education’s (SBE) work on graduation 
requirements. The statute1

 
 stipulated that: 

“School districts must provide instruction of sufficient quantity and quality and give 
students the opportunity to complete graduation requirements that are intended to prepare them 
for postsecondary education, gainful employment, and citizenship…. 

 
 The instructional program of basic education provided by each school district shall 

include…Instruction that provides students the opportunity to complete twenty-four credits for 
high school graduation, subject to a phased-in implementation of the twenty-four credits as 
established by the legislature.”  

 
The SBE’s work on the purpose of a diploma2

• Advocacy for the state to fund the opportunity for students to complete 24 credits for 
high school graduation. 

 is reflected in the first statement, while its 
advocacy for adequate state funding is addressed in the second. The SBE has remained 
steadfast in it’s: 

• Commitment to no unfunded mandates3

• Certainty that an essential core of graduation requirements is needed to prepare 
. 

all 

 
students for postsecondary education, gainful employment, and citizenship. 

How to maintain all three commitments and move state policy forward within the context of a 
troubled state economy is the dilemma the SBE now faces. 
 
 
 
 

                                                
1 28A.150..220 
2 The purpose of the diploma is to declare that a student is ready for success in postsecondary education, 
gainful employment, and citizenship, and is equipped with the skills to be a lifelong learner. The diploma 
represents a balance between the personalized education needs of each student and society's needs, 
and reflects at its core the state's basic education goals. The diploma is a compact among students, 
parents, local school districts, the state and whatever institution or employer the graduate moves on to - a 
compact that says the graduate has acquired a particular set of knowledge and skills. How the student 
demonstrates those skills may differ. Whether a student earns the credit by participating in formal 
instruction or by demonstrating competency through established district policies is immaterial; they are 
equally acceptable." Adopted by the SBE in January 2008 
3 In its July 2008 motion, the SBE affirmed “the intention of the Board to advocate for a comprehensive 
funding package and revision to the Basic Education Funding formula, which among other necessary 
investments should link the implementation of CORE24 directly to sufficient funding to local school 
districts for a six period high school day, a comprehensive education and career guidance system, and 
support for students who need additional help to meet the requirements.” 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.150.220�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

The challenge is straightforward. For two years, stakeholders have weighed in. No one disputes 
high expectations. No one wants a diploma not to have meaning. But some have raised 
concerns about the ways the requirements would impact struggling students, English Language 
Learners, and children who have made bad choices or given up on school. They have spoken 
about diminished resources, unfunded mandates, less local control, and limitations on flexibility 
to provide support that students need. 
 
On the other hand, stakeholders have also told stories of success and hope. The SBE heard 
from many students in July 2008 who spoke eloquently about their desire for adults to set a high 
bar, and they would meet it; for adults who would help them attain their dreams. Parents said, 
“yes,” systems should be aligned so students know more clearly what the expectations are. 
Businesses applauded improvements that would help produce graduates who could meet the 
increased demands of the workplace. The changes the SBE was considering were seen to be a 
move in the right direction. 
 
The SBE has listened to all views and recommendations, including those of the Core 24 
Implementation Task Force (ITF)4

 

, whose final report it reviewed at its May 13-14 and June 15, 
2010 meetings. The ITF recommendations provide a thoughtful array of policy changes for the 
SBE to consider, but do not address all of the concerns stakeholders have expressed. Nor could 
they; the ITF was asked to offer their recommendations only within the context of the Core 24 
framework, not to change the framework itself. 

At the June 15 meeting, the SBE also reviewed a “straw proposal” for a revised set of 
graduation requirements. In the ensuing discussion, members reiterated their intent to make the 
requirements work for all students, prevent tracking, avoid “default” language that sounded like 
failure, and preserve a “safe harbor” that would assure that all students had a foundation of 
knowledge and skills that could not be waived or substituted.  
 
The questions the SBE must grapple with now are: 

• What changes to the proposed Core 24 graduation requirements framework are needed 
to show that the SBE has responded to the concerns of stakeholders? 

• How can the SBE reconcile its advocacy for the state to fund the opportunity to complete 
24 credits with its responsibility to ensure students have access to needed graduation 
improvements now? 

• Given the SBE’s commitments to no unfunded mandates, what no-cost policy changes 
will start the process of moving forward to improved graduation requirements? 

 
And finally, 

• How will the SBE know that funding has “started” and rules may be put in place? What 
type of funding will signal that the rule process may begin for changes with fiscal impact? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
4 http://www.sbe.wa.gov/documents/Core%2024%20ITF%20Final%20Rpt%20April%202010.pdf 
 

http://www.sbe.wa.gov/documents/Core%2024%20ITF%20Final%20Rpt%20April%202010.pdf�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

What changes to the proposed Core 24 graduation requirements framework are needed 
to show that the SBE has responded to the concerns of stakeholders? 
 
The SBE’s commitment to no unfunded mandates puts it in the unique position of having to 
weigh the likelihood of funding in the immediate biennium against the compelling need to act on 
the knowledge it has accrued. With this realization come certain risks: 

• Without a realistic plan for implementation, others are likely to step in. During the last 
legislative session, legislation supporting an alternative diploma was introduced and is 
likely to resurface next session. The ability to earn a diploma simultaneously with an 
earned associate’s degree is already a reality.5

• If the legislature is unwilling or unable to fund the opportunity to complete 24 credits 
anytime soon, a vision for change, however well conceived, will not serve students well. 
Without state leadership, responsibility for progress rests solely on local decisions, and 
students will benefit differentially, depending on where they live. 

 

 
The SBE needs to show that it has listened to stakeholders and considered the realities of 
leading meaningful change in austere fiscal times. Putting forward a revised framework with 
fewer credits and a new name will signal that the SBE has listened, and has acted to address 
the concerns without sacrificing its core values for what students need for success. Staff 
recommends moving forward with a revised, 20 credit framework, the Quality Core. 
 
How can the SBE reconcile its advocacy for the state to fund the opportunity to complete 
24 credits with its responsibility to ensure students have access to needed graduation 
improvements now? 
 
The Quality Core will respond to stakeholders’ calls for greater flexibility and local control, 
increase the likelihood that students take courses which keep all options open, and require 
fewer new resources to implement. It will also permit the SBE to continue its advocacy for the 
state to fund the opportunity for students to complete 24 credits (four of them locally 
determined), but will not delay needed improvements to graduation requirements until funding 
for those additional credits is available. 
 
This revised graduation requirements framework—a “Quality Core” of 20 college and career 
ready credits, high school and beyond plan, and culminating project—will significantly move the 
state’s graduation requirements policy forward. It offers an opportunity for the SBE to rebrand 
the requirements, respond to the budget crisis, and move forward on much-needed 
requirements. The Quality Core is easier to explain and depict graphically than Core 24, but 
focuses students in similar ways on opportunities, choices, and preparation, within defined 
parameters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
5 28B.50.535 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28B.50.535�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

The Quality Core requirements work for students because they: 
 

• Provide a solid core of requirements that will position students well for technical and 
professional opportunities after high school. All students will take courses that align with 
the minimum four-year public college admission requirements, and/or provide solid 
technical preparation. 

• Allow sufficient space in a standard six-period day schedule for students to take the 
support classes needed to help them be successful. ELL students, students in need of 
credit recovery, and/or students who need extra help will have a cushion of time to get 
the attention they need.6

• Allow students to take multiple pathways and enable them to personalize their learning 
within the parameters of a solid foundation of common requirements that cannot be 
substituted; Quality Core will provide limited, student-driven choice, based on high 
school and beyond plans. 

 

• Enable students to pursue a Career and Technical Education (CTE) program of student, 
concentrate in CTE (3 credits) or pursue skills center courses. 

• Maintain the emphasis on creativity and innovation represented by the arts credits, while 
allowing flexibility for students to substitute other courses if they are more closely aligned 
with students’ education and career goals. 

• Provide students with preparation comparable to the preparation of students in the 
majority of other states. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
6 The SBE’s review of districts’ 2010 graduation requirements confirms that almost all of the 247 districts 
with high schools (238 or 96%) exceed the state’s minimum prescribed graduation credit requirements, 
while 110 (45%) require 24 credits or more. The most common number of credits is 22, required by 82 
(33%) of the districts.6  
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

QUALITY CORE 
Subject Credits 
English 4 
Math1 3 
Science1 3 
Social Studies 3 
Health .5 
Career Preparation 1 
High School & Beyond Plan2  
Career and Technical 
Education/World Languages3 

2 

Arts4 2 
Fitness4 1.5 
Culminating Project  
Total 20 

 
 

     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Given the SBE’s commitment to no unfunded mandates, what no-cost policy changes 
will start the process of moving forward to improved graduation requirements? 
 
There are several no-cost policy recommendations from the Implementation Task Force that the 
SBE discussed at the June 15, 2010 meeting and appeared to generally support. These 
recommendations will add flexibility for students to build a set of graduation requirements 
consistent with their education and career goals, and could be put in rule immediately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes. 
1 One credit of math or science must be taken in the senior year. 
 
2 The High School and Beyond Plan should be integrated in the career 
preparation course and in other relevant places in the curriculum. 
 
3 Two credits in one area. Students who want to take two or more credits 
each of both CTE and world languages classes may substitute courses 
where designated. 
 
4 Local administrators may allow students to substitute other courses that 
better meet the educational and career goals expressed in a student’s high 
school and beyond plan. Only one substitution may be made in Arts. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

Recommendation 1. Support the state’s continued move toward a competency-based 
system by removing the 150-hour requirement for a high school credit.7

 

 Substitute non 
time-based language for the current 150-hour definition and maintain the competency-
based definition. 

Few districts, as yet, routinely use the “competency” definition as a means of awarding credit, 
and even those that do, such as Clark County’s Evergreen School District, do not find many 
students taking advantage of it. For this reason, a non time-based statement would provide an 
alternative to a strict reliance on competencies. It is not uncommon for states to have several 
definitions for a credit. The SBE may want to consider substituting a statement in the WAC such 
as these examples from other states: 

• Successful demonstration of a unit of study as established by the district (Maryland). 
• Successful completion of the subject area content expectations or guidelines developed 

by the state (Michigan). 
• Satisfactory completion of all of the required work for a particular course or subject 

(Kansas). 
 
Recommendation 2: Permit students who complete Career and Technical Education 
(CTE) course-equivalent courses to earn one credit for the course and satisfy a second 
requirement; require reciprocity across districts. Work with the Office of State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction to determine what changes, if any, would need to be 
made to the standardized transcript to share information adequately across districts. 
 
This is the “Two for One” Policy considered by the ITF. This policy would create flexibility for 
students by enabling them to earn one credit and satisfy two requirements when taking CTE 
courses that have been designated by the district to be equivalent to a graduation requirement. 
By requiring reciprocity across districts, students would not be impacted negatively if they 
transferred to a district with a different policy.  
 
Statute8 already requires districts to adopt course-equivalent policies for CTE courses, and the 
state has prepared an “equivalency toolkit”9

 

 to provide guidance for establishing those 
equivalencies. 

 
 
 
 

                                                
7 The relevant language of WAC 180-51-050 is as follows: As used in this chapter the term "high school credit" shall 
mean: 
 
  (1) Grades nine through twelve or the equivalent of a four-year high school program, and grades seven and eight 
under the provisions of RCW 28A.230.090 (4) and (5): 
 
  (a) One hundred fifty hours of planned instructional activities approved by the district; or 
 
  (b) Satisfactory demonstration by a student of clearly identified competencies established pursuant to a process 
defined in written district policy. Districts are strongly advised to confirm with the higher education coordinating board 
that the award of competency-based high school credit meets the minimum college core admissions standards set by 
the higher education coordinating board for admission into a public, baccalaureate institution. 
8 http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.097 
9 http://www.k12.wa.us/CareerTechEd/pubdocs/EquivalencyCreditToolkit2.0.pdf 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=180-51-050�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.090�
http://www.k12.wa.us/CareerTechEd/pubdocs/EquivalencyCreditToolkit2.0.pdf�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

Recommendation 3: Permit local authority for the substitution of up to two credits in 
designated subjects; require reciprocity across districts. Work with the Office of State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction to determine what changes, if any, would need to be 
made to the standardized transcript to share information adequately across districts. 
 
The SBE’s decision on this recommendation may be contingent upon the final form of the 
graduation framework that it puts forward. For example, the proposed Quality Core designates 
clearly in which subjects substitutions may be made. Local districts would not need to adopt 
written district policy to make these substitutions because the parameters would already be 
prescribed in rule. However, the SBE might want to consider granting local waiver authority for 
up to two credits under “hardship” conditions; for example, when students enter the school 
district from another state or country in their senior year.  
 
Recommendation 4: Seek SBE authority for requiring middle schools to initiate the High 
School and Beyond Plan (HSBP) in middle school, and advocate for funding for 
increasing comprehensive counseling services at the middle and high school levels. 
 
The SBE currently does not have the authority to require middle schools to initiate the High 
School and Beyond Plan (HSBP). The ITF recommended that the focus of the HSBP in middle 
school be on exploring students’ options and interests. This is a systems issue, not an individual 
student graduation requirement issue. Students will graduate even if they start their HSBP later 
than middle school. 
 
Recommendation 5: Remove the .5 credit requirement for Washington State History, 
while retaining, as a non-credit requirement, the study of the Washington State 
Constitution as required by law. 
 
Students are required by law10 to study the Washington State Constitution as a “prerequisite for 
graduation.” The Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) rule11 specifies a one-
semester course in Washington State History in grades 7-12. The SBE graduation requirement 
rule requires students to earn .5 credit in Washington State History12

 

. Anything that is awarded 
credit for graduation must align with high school standards, per the SBE’s graduation 
requirements rule. 

In the SBE’s transcript study of 2008 graduates13

 

, 40 percent of the almost 15,000 students in 
the study took Washington State History before 9th grade. Approximately half of them received 
credit; the others “met the requirement.” It is not clear whether those who received credit 
participated in a class taught to high school standards. 

When the SBE increases the social studies requirement, .5 credit must be civics education14

 

. 
The study of the Washington State Constitution could be integrated into that new requirement, 
or into another social studies requirement. Districts may make that decision locally. 

 

                                                
10 RCW 28A.230.170 
11 WAC 392-410-120 
12 WAC 180-51-061; 180-51-066 
13 http://www.sbe.wa.gov/documents/TranscriptStudy2008_FINAL_000.pdf 
14 RCW 28A.230.093 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.170�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-410-120�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=180-51-061�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=180-51-066�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.093�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

How will the SBE know that funding has “started” and rules may be put in place? What 
type of funding will signal that the rule process may begin? 
 
The SBE has been clear that it will not support unfunded mandates, and legislation assures that 
graduation requirement changes, which have a fiscal impact on school districts, must be 
formally authorized and funded by the legislature.15

 

 Rules need to be in place by September of 
the year a class enters ninth grade; therefore, they must be adopted at least four years prior to 
the graduating class that they affect. Before the SBE can initiate rule-making, it will need to wait 
until after a legislative session to know if money has been appropriated.  

 
 

Lead Time Needed to Impact a Graduating Class 
Rule Put in Place First Graduating Class 

Affected 
2011 2015 
2012 2016 
2013 2017 
2014 2018 
2015 2019 
2016 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
15 RCW 28A.230.090 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.090�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

Given this schedule, staff makes the following recommendations for a timetable of rule 
implementations for new graduation requirements. 

 
Timetable for SBE Action 

SBE Action Year Funding 
Would Need to 
Begin 

Year Rule Put in 
Place 

Graduating 
Class Affected 

• Add math credit. Already in rule. 2009 2013 
• No rule changes. N/A 2010 2014 
• Add 1 credit of English. 
• Add .5 credit of social studies 

(specifying .5 in civics 
education). 

• Specify a math or science 
must be taken in senior year. 

• Implement no-cost policy 
recommendations.  

• Clarify requirements for 
Culminating Project. 

Assumes these 
changes can be 
made with 
minimal state 
fiscal impact.16

2011 

 

2015 

• No rule changes. N/A 2012 2016 
• Add 2 credits of world 

languages or career and 
technical education. 

• Add 1 credit of arts. 
• Start HSBP in middle school; 

clarify requirements. 

2013 2013 2017 

• Add 1 credit of science. 2014 2014 2018 
Note. All implementation dates would be pushed back if funding were not received. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
16 Approximately 19% of the 247 districts with high schools will be affected by the addition of English and 
social studies credits. Forty-six districts will need to add English credits (21 of those will only need to add 
.5 credit). Forty-four districts will need to add .5 credit of social studies. Fifteen districts will need to make 
adjustments in both English and social studies credits. All districts will have to add civics education, but 
civics is already part of the Social Studies Essential Academic Learning Requirements and many districts 
have already incorporated it. 
http://www.sbe.wa.gov/documents/2010.06.10%20Graduation%20Requirements%20Database.xls 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

The table below provides staff recommendations for the graduation requirements components 
of an SBE legislative package in the coming biennia: 

 
Timetable of SBE Legislative Requests 

Biennium SBE Legislative Request 
2011-2013 • Present draft rules for graduating class of 2015 to QEC and 

legislature for review (legislature must approve any changes to 
graduation requirements that have a fiscal impact). 

• Request a pool of funds as incentive money for districts willing 
to “beta test” new requirements prior to state-mandated 
implementation. 

2013-2015 • Request additional funding for struggling students, 
comprehensive guidance and counseling, and instructional 
time. 

• Request additional money for districts needing resources for 
science facilities. 

2015-2017 • Request additional funding for struggling students, 
comprehensive guidance and counseling, and instructional 
time. 

• Request additional money for districts needing resources for 
science facilities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

1 

2 

3 

NEXT STEPS: SHORT-TERM 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEXT STEPS: LONGER TERM 
 
Several ITF recommendations remain that the SBE may want to take more time for study in 
order to fully consider the recommendations. For this reason, staff recommends that the SBE in 
2010-2011: 
 
• Work with the Higher Education Coordinating Board to explore ways to deepen the “Two for 

One” Policy and extend it to courses other than CTE-equivalent courses. 
 

The ITF had recommended that the “Two for One” policy apply to either a CTE-
equivalent course or

 

 another course that has been designated by the district to be 
equivalent to a graduation requirement. Initial conversations with the Higher Education 
Coordinating Board (HECB) suggested that the HECB might be concerned about this 
policy if it were to impact College Academic Distribution Requirements (CADRs).  

• Convene a middle school study group to explore middle school preparation for high school, 
including the possibility of courses meeting “rigorous” standards that could possibly satisfy 
high school graduation requirements. 

 
The ITF had recommended that the SBE provide opportunities for students to begin 
meeting high school graduation requirements at the middle level when courses meet 
rigorous standards as determined by local districts. At issue is the question, under 
what circumstances, if at all, the Board would permit students to meet some high 
school requirements based on standards identified by the districts (not necessarily 
high school level standards). Further discussion on this topic, as well as related high 
school preparation issues relevant to middle school, would benefit from a more 
inclusive conversation with the field. 

September 2010: Consider MHSD Committee’s recommended changes 
for culminating project and high school and beyond plan; adopt revisions.  
(See Attachment A) 

 

August through November 2010: Engage stakeholders in a 
discussion of the revised framework.  

 

July 2010: Provisionally adopt a revised framework of graduation 
requirements, with final adoption at the November 2010 meeting, after a 
period of stakeholder engagement. 

 

November 2010: Make any final changes to the revised framework 
and adopt draft rules for the policy changes that require no cost. 

 

4 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

• Work with OSPI assessment staff and other stakeholders to explore more deeply the 
implications of a state policy that would allow students who meet standard on end-of-course 
state assessments to earn credit for courses, even if they failed or possibly did not even 
take the course. 

 
The ITF recommended that the SBE authorize through rule the opportunity for students 
who meet standard on state-approved end-of-course assessments to earn credit for the 
associated course, even if the student fails the class. The ITF was split almost evenly in 
its support for this recommendation. It is an important issue and bears further study, if for 
no other reason than to allow time to see the end-of-course assessments. Because 
districts can already make this decision locally, the primary value of a statewide rule 
would be to allow all students access to the same benefit. 

 
• Consider the merits of allowing students seeking an International Baccalaureate or 

Cambridge Diploma to substitute state-mandated requirements if needed.  
 
The ITF considered, but did not formally vote on the possibility that local administrators 
could waive state-mandated graduation requirements for students who receive an 
International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma or Cambridge Diploma. The ITF did not see 
this issue to be part of their charge from the SBE, but were interested in seeing the topic 
explored further.   

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 
 
 Attachment A 

 
 
 
 

Culminating Project and High School and Beyond Plans: Draft Proposals from 
Meaningful High School Diploma Advisory Work Group. 
 
After discussion over several meetings, the Meaningful High School Diploma Advisory Work 
Group considered and revised the culminating project and high school and beyond plan draft 
proposals. Both proposals differ from current policy in two ways: 

1. Each explicitly connects the two requirements. 
2. Each prescribes specific content to increase consistency in implementation across 

districts. 
 
While the culminating project proposal does not explicitly state connections to basic education 
learning goals three and four17

 

, those goals are implicitly addressed. Both proposals leave 
assessment of the requirements to the discretion of the districts. 

Culminating Project18

1. All students shall be required to complete a project or series of projects for graduation 
that is related to the student’s post-high school goals and interests per their high school 
and beyond plan. 

 Proposal 

2. The project(s) shall include a portfolio, a presentation, and a product. The project(s) may 
also include, for example: a research or reflective paper, community service, job 
shadowing, internship, or other components deemed appropriate by the district.  

3. The project(s) shall demonstrate the application of core academic skills and learning 
competencies from each of the following categories:  
• Learning and innovation skills (creativity and innovation, critical thinking and 

problem-solving, communication and collaboration). 
• Information, media and technology skills. 
• Life and career skills (flexibility and adaptability, initiative and self-direction, social 

and cross-cultural skills, productivity and accountability, leadership and 
responsibility, perseverance). 

4. Assessment of skills and successful completion of the project shall be determined by the 
local school district. 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                
17 (3) Think analytically, logically, and creatively, and to integrate different experiences and knowledge to 
form reasoned judgments and solve problems; and (4) Understand the importance of work and finance 
and how performance, effort, and decisions directly affect future career and educational opportunities. 
18 Culminating Project current rule: (i) Each student shall complete a culminating project for graduation. 
The project shall consist of the students demonstrating both their learning competencies and preparations 
related to learning goals three and four. Each district shall define the process to implement this 
graduation requirement, including assessment criteria, in written district policy. (WAC 180-51-066)  
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

High School and Beyond Plan19

All students shall be required to complete a personally-relevant high school and beyond plan 
that includes reflective practice and shall include documentation (evidence) of a student’s:  

 Proposal  

1. Personal interests and career goals. 
2. Four-year plan for course-taking that is related to the student’s interests and goals. 
3. Research on postsecondary training and education related to one’s career interest, 

including comparative information on the benefits and costs of available choices. 
4. Budget for postsecondary education or training and life based on personal and career 

interest. 
5. Participation in a postsecondary site visit(s). 
6. Completion of an application for postsecondary education and training. 
7. Completion of a resume. 

 
The student’s post-high school goals and interests, as expressed in the high school and beyond 
plan, shall become the basis for the student’s culminating project.  

                                                
19 High school and beyond plan current rule: Each student shall have an education plan for their high 
school experience, including what they expect to do the year following graduation.(WAC 180.51.066)  
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

  

 

 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S EVALUATION INSTRUMENT 

 
BACKGROUND 

Steve Dal Porto has consulted with Board members and the Executive Director to prepare an 
evaluation instrument for the Executive Director. Once this instrument is approved by the Board, it will 
go into effect for the 2010-11 year beginning in September 2010. For the current year, the Executive 
Director will continue to submit to the Board her self assessment in narrative form for their discussion 
and review at the September Board meeting. Attachment A contains the proposed evaluation 
instrument for the following year. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
The Board will review the Executive Director evaluation instrument and make final adjustments. 
 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
The Board will consider action on the Executive Director evaluation. 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
 

 
Executive Director Evaluation Instrument 

 

 
Evaluation Procedures 

1. Voting Board members will use Model #5 (or whatever is adopted by the Board) and 
comments are required in all sections. The Staff and Personnel Relationship section 
requires comments only, without ratings. 

2. Student Board members will use the same evaluation form but with no rating numbers; 
comments only. 

3. Staff members will be given the opportunity to use the Staff and Personnel Relationship 
section, but with no rating; comments only. 

4. The Executive Committee, or a very small evaluation committee, will prepare a 
summative evaluation based on the documents submitted. The Board will determine 
which committee does this. 

5. The Board, in Executive Session, discusses the Committee’s summative evaluation 
before it is discussed with the Executive Director. 

6. Also in Executive Session, the Board discusses contract status and later takes action in 
public session. 

7. The Chair of the Board meets with the Executive Director to review the evaluation. 
8. The final evaluation goes in the Executive Director’s personnel file as a permanent 

record. 
 
Model #5 
 
Instructions for SBE members: every rating requires observation comments. Numerical 
ratings are as follows: 1 = low; 3 = average; 5 = high. All indicators require your written 
observations and suggestion(s) for development if appropriate. 
 
CRITERION RATING OBSERVATION COMMENTS 
 
Leadership  
 
1. Models the highest 

professional standards. 
 
2. Creates reasonable 

timelines and guides 
Board and staff to 
completion. 

 
3. Organizes and supports 

the staff and the Board 
members to be effective 
team members. 

 

 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

CRITERION RATING OBSERVATION COMMENTS 
4. Informs Board members of 

emerging and sensitive 
issues affecting 
completion of Board goals. 

1 2 3 4 5 

 
Implementation of the SBE 
Strategic Plan 
 
1. Meets expected annual 

outcomes from the SBE 
Strategic Plan. 

 
2. Facilitates the work of 

Board members toward 
completion of the Strategic 
Plan. 

 
3. Directs the legislative 

objectives of the SBE and 
monitors potential impacts 
of proposed legislation on 
Strategic Plan goals and 
objectives. 

 
4. Uses and supervises staff 

effectively to support 
Strategic Plan goals. 

 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 

 

 
Relationship with the Board 
 
1. Presents well thought-out 

recommendations to the 
Board. 

 
2. Communicates reliably, 

accurately, and openly 
with the Board. 

 
3. Responds appropriately to 

Board member requests. 
 

4. Uses individual and 
collective talents of the 
Board members to 
maximize potential. 

 
5. Seeks and accepts Board 

members’ opinions and 
suggestions of his/her 
work. 

 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

CRITERION RATING OBSERVATION COMMENTS 
 

6. Has a respectful working 
relationship with the 
Board. 

 
1 2 3 4 5 

 
Management 
 
A. Fiscal 

 
1. Provides sound budget 

management aligned with 
Board and organization 
priorities. 

 
2. Pursues and secures 

appropriate and adequate 
sources of support for 
policy activities. 

 
3. Manages and maintains 

adequate control of funds 
and spending. 

 
B. Business 

 
4. Uses effective practices in 

human resource 
management; implements 
effective hiring practices 
and aligns staff with 
essential activities. 

 
5. Possesses and applies 

knowledge of legal issues 
affecting the Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 2 3 4 5 

 

 
Staff and Personnel 
Relationships 
 
1. The Executive Director 

provides evidence of an 
annual opportunity for staff 
members to provide 
anonymous feedback 
regarding their perception 
of relevant work related 
issues. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
No rating; 
observation 
comments 
only 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

CRITERION RATING OBSERVATION COMMENTS 
2. Develops good staff 

morale and loyalty to the 
organization. 

 
3. Delegates authority to 

staff members appropriate 
to the position each holds. 

 
4. Holds personnel 

accountable for their 
performance and takes 
action when performance 
does not meet his/her 
standards. 

Observation 
comments 
only 
 
Observation 
comments 
only 
 
Observation 
comments 
only 
 

 
Contract Status 
(Select one and explain if 
necessary in comments 
section) 
 
1. Do not continue contract. 

(comments required) 
 
2. Continue contract with 

stipulations. (comments 
required) 

 
3. Continue current contract. 

 
4. Continue current contract 

with additional benefits, if 
possible. 

 
5. Continue contract with 

additional benefits and 
salary, if possible. 

  

 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
BRIEFING ON COMPETENCY-BASED CREDIT FOR WORLD LANGUAGES 

 
BACKGROUND 

The State Board of Education (SBE) has endorsed competency-based approaches to education 
since the inception of education reform in Washington. In addition to the SBE’s support for 
performance-based assessments like the state’s High School Proficiency Exam, Washington is 
one of 35 states with a state competency-based credit rule1

 
.  

SBE’s competency-based credit rule allows high school credit to be awarded upon: 
 

… Satisfactory demonstration by a student of clearly identified competencies established 
pursuant to a process defined in written district policy. Districts are strongly advised to 
confirm with the higher education coordinating board that the award of competency-
based high school credit meets the minimum college core admissions standards set by 
the higher education coordinating board for admission into a public, baccalaureate 
institution. (WAC 180-51-050) 

 
Although this statement has been in place for a number of years, few districts2 have 
implemented it, in part because of the additional resources needed to establish comprehensive 
procedures that could be fairly applied. State funding policies also have not rewarded districts 
whose students might use competency-based credit to accelerate their studies.3

Definition. Competencies (also known as proficiencies) are generally perceived to be a cluster 
of knowledge, skills, and/or attitudes that can be measured against well-accepted standards.  
The concept of awarding credit for competencies is attractive because it can help students: 

   

1) Demonstrate and validate expertise they have already gained.   
2) Free time in their schedule to pursue other interests.  
3) Apply learning (depending upon the nature of the assessment used to demonstrate 

competency). 
 
In the process of revising state graduation requirements, the SBE looked for ways to build on 
the state’s performance-based approach. The opportunity to earn competency-based credit was 
viewed as a strategy that could create more scheduling flexibility for students. The SBE also 
sought ways to recognize assets that learners brought to the table, in particular those students 
with expertise in another language.   
 

                                                
1 http://mb2.ecs.org/reports/Report.aspx?id=740.  Policies vary in their breadth: some are specific only to 
certain subjects; others allow for the possibility of credit in all subjects. 
2 Evergreen School District is one exception. In July 2008, the SBE heard Superintendent John Deeder 
describe his district’s efforts to develop assessment measures and procedures to grant credit, in lieu of 
enrollment, for English, mathematics, science and social studies. 
3 Districts receive state funding based upon student enrollment hours in class (WAC 392-121-122). If a 
student tests out of a class, then there is no funding “event” to generate money. There is no relationship 
between the number of hours required for a credit and funding.   

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=180-51-050�
http://mb2.ecs.org/reports/Report.aspx?id=740�
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-121-122�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

Removing barriers. The dearth of state models for local policies and procedures has been a 
barrier to district implementation. The SBE, in collaboration with the Washington State School 
Directors’ Association (WSSDA) and the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), 
embarked on an initiative in 2009 to develop sample policies and procedures that districts could 
adapt to fit their local needs (see Attachment A). 
 
World languages were selected as the starting point. Because world languages are skill-based 
and have widely-available standardized assessments with national norms, the subject lends 
itself more readily to competency-based practices.  
 
The SBE used Gates funding to convene a World Languages Advisory Group4

 

. The Advisory 
Group was asked to advise the SBE about: 1) the level of competency (i.e. language 
proficiency) students would need to attain in order to earn credit; 2) the manner of assessment 
that would be appropriate; and 3) the areas (e.g., speaking, reading, writing, and/or listening) in 
which competency might be expected. The Advisory Group met three times in 2009 and was 
comprised primarily of world languages teachers and professors from K-12 and higher 
education.   

The SBE also conducted a small assessment study5

 

 to compare the proficiency of high school 
students with two years of language study to that of college students with two academic 
quarters of college study. Washington’s data was then compared to national data. The study 
was not intended to be representative of all students but rather to give the Advisory Group data 
that could serve as a catalyst for discussion. Despite these limitations, the study found 
similarities between the Washington data and the national data. For instance, writing scores 
were generally higher than speaking scores, and speaking scores were higher than reading 
scores. The Advisory Group used the data, as well as a review of selected other states’ policies 
(Connecticut, New Jersey, and Utah) to make recommendations about the level of proficiency 
needed to award credit. (See Attachment B for examples of other states’ policies.) 

Sample Competency-based World Languages Policy and Procedure.  WSSDA, OSPI, and 
SBE staff have collaborated to develop a sample competency-based credit world languages 
policy and procedure. Once published by WSSDA, the sample policy and procedure will serve 
as a guide for districts seeking to award competency-based credit. 
 
Next Steps. WSSDA will disseminate the sample policy and procedure to its members.  All 
three organizations (SBE, WSSDA, OSPI) will post the policy and procedure on their respective 
websites, so the information is available to all public, private, and tribal schools within the state. 

                                                
4 The World Languages Advisory Group included:  Amy Ohta (University of Washington, Japanese), Ana 
Fernandez Dobao (University of Washington, Spanish), Blythe Young (Bellevue School District, Spanish), 
Bridget Yaden (Pacific Lutheran University, Spanish), Chunman Gissing (University Prep, Chinese), Dave 
Cotlove (Highline School District, Puget Sound Skills Center), Hedwige Meyer (University of Washington, 
French), Joshua Hansell (Seattle School District, Japanese), Karen Eitreim (North Thurston School 
District, German), Klaus Brandl (University of Washington, German), Maria Gillman (University of 
Washington, Spanish), Rachel Halverson (Washington State University, German), Rachel Martin (Cheney 
High School, French), Rick Beck (West Valley School District, German), Sue Webber (Arlington School 
District, German), Trish Skillman (Western Washington University, TESOL), Vince Eberly (Central Valley 
School District, Russian) 
 
5 The study used the STAMP (Standards-based Measurement of Proficiency) to assess 465 students 
(196 college; 269 high school) in Spanish, French, German, Japanese and Chinese, in three areas:  
reading, writing, and speaking. 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

OSPI will publicize the policy and procedure in world languages presentations, as well.  A list of 
FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions) will also be posted on the websites (see Attachment C). 
 
SBE will work with the Higher Education Coordinating Board (HECB) to identify and negotiate 
any barriers to the acceptance of world languages competency-based credit towards meeting 
the College Academic Distribution Requirements (CADRs). This conversation has already 
begun.  SBE staff will work with OSPI staff on the manner in which competency-based credit 
would be acknowledged on the standardized transcript.   
 
With this first model in place, staff plans to pursue other subject areas to develop sample 
policies and procedures. The next subject has not yet been identified. 
 

 
EXPECTED ACTION 

Staff recommends that the SBE consider issuing a resolution to endorse the development of 
sample policy and procedures to provide guidance to districts seeking to adopt competency-
based credit (see Attachment D). 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 

Attachment A 

Policy XXXX 

 

CREDIT FOR COMPETENCY/PROFICIENCY 
(This policy is designed for competency/proficiency credit in world languages, however, a district 
can expand the policy to multiple subjects.) 

World Languages 
The board recognizes the value of preparing students to be global citizens with the skills to 
communicate in English and other world languages. In our state’s diverse communities, it is not 
unusual for students to have various opportunities to develop language skills, for example, 
through experiences of using the language at home, attendance at language programs offered 
in the community, learning online or time spent living abroad. The district encourages students 
and their families to take advantage of any language learning opportunities available to them. 

To enable students to fully benefit from the advantages of multilingualism, the district will 
encourage students to learn to understand, speak, read and write at a high level of language 
proficiency. Proficiency can also be demonstrated in languages that are only spoken or signed. 

In order to recognize the language proficiency of students, the superintendent is directed to 
develop procedures for awarding world language credits to students based on demonstrated 
proficiency across a range of language skills. 

 
Legal References: RCW 28A.230.090(4)(5)  High school graduation requirements or 

equivalencies 
 WAC 180-51-050 High school credit - Definition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption Date: 
School District Name 
Revised: 6.10 
Classification: 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

World Languages Credit for Competency/Proficiency 
A. Definition: 

For purposes of this procedure, a world language is defined according to the definition used 
by the Higher Education Coordinating Board as “[a]ny natural language that has been 
formally studied […], including American Sign Language (AMESLAN, the language of the 
deaf community), and languages no longer spoken, such as Latin and ancient Greek. 
However, neither computer 'languages' nor forms of deaf signing aside from AMESLAN are 
acceptable.”  

B. Demonstrating Competency/Proficiency in a World Language 

The district will manage the assessment process so that students seeking competency 
based credit can demonstrate competency/proficiency across language skills.  Assessments 
will be aligned to the American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages (ACTFL) 
Proficiency Guidelines in order to ensure consistency across languages. The district will 
select the appropriate assessment instrument(s) from the following:  

• Standards-based Measurement of Proficiency (STAMP) in reading, writing, and 
speaking (and listening, if available) for all languages for which it is available (as of 
2010, Spanish, French, German, Italian, Japanese, Chinese). STAMP is offered by 
Avant Assessment (http://avantassessment.com). 

• American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages (ACTFL) assessments Oral 
Proficiency Interview (OPI) or Oral Proficiency Interview Computer Based (OPIc) and 
Writing Proficiency Test (WPT) — for languages for which STAMP is not available or for 
which ACTFL assessments are deemed to be more appropriate. ACTFL assessments 
are offered through Language Testing International (http://www.languagetesting.com). 

• Appropriate assessments for American Sign Language such as the Sign Language 
Proficiency Interview (SLPI).  

• For languages that do not currently have any other nationally available proficiency based 
assessment, the district will work with local language communities and the Office of 
Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) World Languages Program to develop a 
collection of evidence process, such as LinguaFolio, that is aligned with ACTFL 
Proficiency Guidelines. 

 

 

C. Determining Competency and Credit Equivalencies 

The district will award one or more credits based on the student demonstrating an overall 
proficiency level according to the ACTFL Proficiency Guidelines as follows: 

Novice Mid – 1 credit (Carnegie Unit) 

Novice High – 2 credits  

Intermediate Low – 3 credits 

Intermediate Mid – 4 credits 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

Since students may demonstrate varied levels of proficiency across skills, credits will be 
awarded based on the lowest common level of proficiency demonstrated across the skill 
areas.  

(Example: If a student demonstrated Intermediate Mid level proficiency in Speaking, but 
Novice Mid in Reading and Writing, then credits would be awarded based on the lowest 
common level of demonstrated proficiency, i.e. one credit for Novice Mid. The student would 
not receive individual credits for separate language skills. In this example, the student would 
not receive four credits for Intermediate Mid in Speaking and one credit each for Novice Mid 
in Reading and Writing. The total award is one World Language credit.) 

D. Offering Testing Opportunities 
The district will manage the assessment process so that students have multiple (district may 
insert here the number of opportunities) opportunities to take or retake the assessment(s) 
required to demonstrate proficiency. Assessments must be offered in a proctored setting 
with appropriate technology. The district will approve the site(s) where the assessments are 
offered, which could include individual schools, district buildings, community colleges, 
universities, educational service districts, or other community settings.  

E. Paying for Assessments 
The district will set a fee for the assessments to cover administrative costs, test fees, and/or 
proctoring. Fees may vary depending on the assessment costs. The district will offer 
financial assistance to students who demonstrate need, such as qualifying for free or 
reduced price lunch. (Insert language here if the district plans to pay the assessment fee or 
subsidize the student’s cost.) 

Current fees and financial assistance information are available from (insert specific district 
location here).  

(Insert assessment fee schedule here.) 

F. Reporting Results 
The district will receive official test results for each student participating in the assessment 
process.  The district will provide a letter to the student with a copy of the test results and an 
indication of how many world language credits, if any, may be awarded. If requested by the 
student, the school counselors will record the world language credits earned on the official 
transcript.  Credits will be awarded with a grade of “Pass.”   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 6.10 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

  
                                                                                 Attachment B 

 
 
         

Comparison of Five States with Proficiency-based World Languages Requirements:   
Connecticut, Michigan, New Jersey, New York and Utah 

 
State WL Grad 

Req? 
Cost to 
Student 

Competency-based Policy World Language Assessment Proficiency Levels To Earn 
Credit 

     Level Credit 
CT Yes,  2 

credits, 
class of 
2018 

? CT permits local school boards to 
grant a student credit upon 
completion of a world language 
course offered privately through a 
nonprofit provider, provided such 
student achieves a passing grade on 
an examination prescribed, within 
available appropriations, by the 
Commissioner of Education and such 
credits do not exceed four. 
 
CT extends the proficiency-based 
credit policy to other subjects, as 
well. 
 
 
World Language Standards:  
http://www.sde.ct.gov/sde/cwp/vie
w.asp?a=2618&q=320992 
 
 

What Student Must Do: 
• Complete a world language course 

offered privately through a nonprofit 
provider 

• Achieve a pre-determined proficiency 
score  
 

Assessments: 
• American Council on the Teaching of 

Foreign Languages (ACTFL) Oral 
Proficiency Interview (OPI) and  

• ACTFL Written Proficiency Test (WPT), 
taken in the same language 
 

If the ratings differ, the credits will be 
awarded based on the lower of the two 
ratings. Students can take the tests while in 
Grades 7-12.  

Novice High 
 
Intermediate 
Low 
 
Intermediate 
Mid 
 
Intermediate 
High 
 
 
 
 
***Maximum 4 
credits may be 
earned by state 
law; ACTFL 
would suggest 
more 

1*    2** 
 
2*    3** 
 
 
4*    4** 
 
 
4*** 
 
*Category I & II 
languages, e.g.,  
I: French, Italian, 
Spanish, Dutch 
II: German, Urdu 
 
**Category III & 
IV languages, e.g., 
III: Russian, 
Vietnamese 
IV: Arabic, 
Mandarin, 
Japanese 
 

http://www.sde.ct.gov/sde/cwp/view.asp?a=2618&q=320992�
http://www.sde.ct.gov/sde/cwp/view.asp?a=2618&q=320992�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

State WL Grad 
Req? 

Cost to 
Student 

Competency-based Policy World Language Assessment Proficiency Levels To Earn 
Credit 

     Level Credit 
 

MI Yes, 2 
credits in 
2016 

? MI has a general proficiency-based 
credit policy. In addition, local board 
must grant high school credit to a 
high school student who 
demonstrates proficiency in 
American Sign Language, or who 
demonstrates "proficiency in a 
foreign language outside of a public 
or private high school curriculum" 
either by competency test "or other 
criteria established by the board." 
 
http://www.michigan.gov/document
s/mde/WL_Guidelines_FINAL_20682
3_7.pdf 
 

What Student Must Do: 
• Complete 2 units of high school study, or 
• Demonstrate proficiency prior to high 

school or 
• Provide formal documentation of 

proficiency through assessments listed 
below or through transcript 
documentation of continuous and 
successful experiences of at least one 
academic semester (for one credit) or 
two academic semesters (for two credits) 
at a school in which classes were 
conducted in the language for which 
credit is sought. 

 
Assessment: 
• Standards-based Measurement of 

Proficiency (STAMP) 
• National language organization exam 

such as the American Association of 
Teachers of Spanish and Portuguese 
(AATSP) national Spanish exam 

• Combination of district assessments AND 
commercially-prepared assessments 
(e.g., Simulated Oral Proficiency 
Interview—SOPI); Student Oral 
Proficiency Assessment –SOPA; Early 
Language Learning Oral Proficiency 
Assessment—ELLOPA; Standards-based 
Measurement of Proficiency—STAMP; 

Novice Mid, 
Level I, 
European 
Level A1 
 
Novice High, 
Level II, or 
European 
Level A2 
 
 

1 
 
 
 
 
2 

http://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/WL_Guidelines_FINAL_206823_7.pdf�
http://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/WL_Guidelines_FINAL_206823_7.pdf�
http://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/WL_Guidelines_FINAL_206823_7.pdf�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

State WL Grad 
Req? 

Cost to 
Student 

Competency-based Policy World Language Assessment Proficiency Levels To Earn 
Credit 

     Level Credit 
Signed Communication Proficiency 
Interview—SCPI; Oral Proficiency 
Interview—OPI)  

NJ Yes, 1 
credit 

? NJ has a general state policy that 
permits students to earn credit by 
establishing proficiency.  In addition, 
the policy specifies that, in lieu of 
completing the five credit graduation 
requirement (equivalent to 1 WA 
credit) in world languages, a student 
may demonstrate proficiency.  
 
http://www.state.nj.us/education/ap
s/cccs/wl/guide.htm#II1 

What Student Must Do: 
• Experience world language instruction in 

K-8 
• Test out of the world language 

graduation requirement at the end of 8th 
grade by demonstrating a Novice High 
level of proficiency  or 

• Earn credit by taking world language 
classes in high school 

 
Assessments: 
• Standards-based Measurement of 

Proficiency (STAMP) or 
• Oral Proficiency Interview (OPI) or 

Modified Oral Proficiency Interview 
(MOPI) 

 
 

Novice High 5  
(equivalent to 1 
WA credit) 

NY Yes, 1 
credit 

? NY has a general state policy that 
permits students to earn credit by 
establishing proficiency.  Students 
can demonstrate mastery of world 
language learning outcomes by 
completing a unit of study, earning 
credit by examination on the New 
York State Second Language 
Proficiency Exam, or documenting 
school attendance in an other-than-

What Student Must Do: 
• Complete a unit of study, or 
• Successfully complete a state exam, or 
• Have documented school attendance in 

an other-than-English speaking 
environment. 

 
Assessment: 
New York State Second Language Proficiency 
Exam 

  



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

State WL Grad 
Req? 

Cost to 
Student 

Competency-based Policy World Language Assessment Proficiency Levels To Earn 
Credit 

     Level Credit 
English speaking environment. 
 
http://schools.nyc.gov/RulesPolicies/
GraduationRequirements/default.ht
m 
 
 
 
 

UT No $85 per 
assess-
ment 
section 

UT has a general state policy that 
permits students to earn credit by 
establishing proficiency.  UT defines 
“demonstrated competence" as 
"subject mastery as determined by 
school district standards and review. 
School district review may include 
such methods and documentation as: 
tests, interviews, peer evaluations, 
writing samples, reports or 
portfolios." Students may complete 
units of credit by demonstrated 
competence and/or assessment, "as 
determined by the school district or 
school" and/or "review of student 
work or projects consistent with 
school district or school procedures 
and criteria.... School districts or 
schools shall designate by written 
policy at least three methods by 
which students of the district may 
earn credit." 

What Student Must Do: 
• Submit a written request for taking a test 

to the school counselor. 
• Pay the non-refundable fee. 
• Go to a testing center and complete the 

reading, writing, and speaking sections of 
the Standards-based Measurement of 
Proficiency (STAMP) (Students can take 
an assessment only once per school 
year.) 

 
Assessment: 
• Standards-based Assessment of 

Proficiency (STAMP) 

Novice Mid 
 
Novice High 

1 
 
2 
 
Maximum 2 
credits may be 
earned 

http://schools.nyc.gov/RulesPolicies/GraduationRequirements/default.htm�
http://schools.nyc.gov/RulesPolicies/GraduationRequirements/default.htm�
http://schools.nyc.gov/RulesPolicies/GraduationRequirements/default.htm�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

State WL Grad 
Req? 

Cost to 
Student 

Competency-based Policy World Language Assessment Proficiency Levels To Earn 
Credit 

     Level Credit 
 
http://www.rules.utah.gov/publicat/
code/r277/r277-703.htm#T3 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 

 
aAttach 

 
 

 

 
 

World Languages Competency-Based Credit (DRAFT) 
Updated: July, 2010 

 
1. How is the State Board of Education supporting competency-based credit? 
2. If a student speaks a language fluently, will he or she automatically be awarded credits? 
3. How will students demonstrate their proficiency? 
4. What about languages that don’t currently have a standardized assessment developed? 
5. Does earning credits by demonstrating proficiency suggest that the student knows less (or 

more) than students who attended a regular in-school language program? 
6. What will be the impact on language classes once this process is implemented? 
7. How will competency-based credits impact students’ applications to college? 
8. In the model procedure’s definition of “World Languages” what does “formally studied” 

mean? 
9. May districts collaborate to offer a testing site? 
10. In what ways can the community support paying for assessments? 
 
 
1. How is the State Board of Education supporting competency-based credit? 

 
State Board of Education (SBE) rule6

 

 permits districts to award credits based on 
satisfactory demonstration by a student of clearly identified competencies, if the district 
has a process defined in written district policy. Although the policy has been in place for 
years, few districts award competency-based credit.  

The SBE, in collaboration with the Washington State School Directors’ Association 
(WSSDA) and the Office of State Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), embarked 
on an initiative in 2009 to develop sample policies and procedures that districts could 
adapt to fit their local needs. World languages were selected as the starting point.  
Because world languages are skill-based and have widely-available standardized 
assessments with national norms, the subject lends itself more readily to competency-
based practices. 
 
By providing sample competency-based credit policies and procedures, more districts 
may develop written processes for awarding credits for competency/proficiency. 
Competency-based credit has the potential to create more scheduling flexibility for 
students, which may become increasingly important as new minimum credits for 
graduation are phased in. 

 
2. If a student speaks a language fluently, will he or she automatically be awarded credits? 

 
Although these decisions are ultimately up to the district, the sample WSSDA policy and 
procedure recommend that students demonstrate proficiency across a variety of 
language skills, including speaking, reading, and writing. (Listening is also important, but 

                                                
6 WAC 180-51-050 http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=180-51-050, 

Attachment C 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=180-51-050�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

due to technological limitations, it is not always included in generally available online 
language assessments.) Therefore, it will be important for students who speak a 
language fluently to also make the effort to learn to read and write in the language in 
order to earn world language credits. 

 
3. How will students demonstrate their proficiency? 

 
The model procedure recommends that districts identify nationally available proficiency 
assessments to use as the basis for awarding credit for proficiency. This is the most 
cost-effective, fair, and consistent way to make decisions about proficiency. In general, 
the assessments should be aligned to the American Council on the Teaching of Foreign 
Languages (ACTFL ) Proficiency Guidelines 
(http://www.actfl.org/i4a/pages/index.cfm?pageid=4236).  ACTFL uses a proficiency 
scale from Novice (low, mid, high) to Intermediate (low, mid, high) to Advanced (low, 
mid, high) and Superior. Most K-12 language learners perform at the Novice or possibly 
Intermediate level, but students who are native or heritage speakers or have attended K-
12 immersion programs may reach the Advanced level in some skills. 
 
The Standards-based Measurement of Proficiency (STAMP), developed at the Center 
for Applied Second Language Studies (CASLS) at the University of Oregon and offered 
to schools and districts through Avant Assessment (www.avantassessment.com), is an 
example of a nationally available standards-based assessment. STAMP currently covers 
six languages: Spanish, French, German, Italian, Japanese, and Chinese. For other 
languages, there are other nationally available assessments, such as the ACTFL Oral 
Proficiency Interview (OPI) and Writing Proficiency Test (WPT) offered through 
Language Testing International (www.languagetesting.com).  

 
4. What about languages that don’t currently have a standardized assessment developed? 

 
Districts may want to include the option of developing a Collection of Evidence aligned to 
the ACTFL Proficiency Guidelines for languages that do not currently have any other 
nationally available proficiency-based assessment. This Collection of Evidence model 
could be developed jointly with the assistance of the Office of Superintendent of Public 
Instruction World Languages Program and the involvement of local language 
communities. OSPI is working on a project to make LinguaFolio Online, an online tool for 
student self-assessment and posting of evidence, available to language learners 
throughout the state. This could be an effective tool for supporting students seeking 
credit for competency/proficiency. The LinguaFolio Self-Assessment grid, which is 
aligned to the ACTFL Proficiency Guidelines, is available to download from the 
LinguaFolio Online website:  https://linguafolio.uoregon.edu/documents/LFGrid.pdf.   

 
5. Does earning credits by demonstrating proficiency suggest that the student knows less (or 

more) than students who attended a regular in-school language program? 
 

The sample WSSDA world language policy and procedure recommend a standard for 
awarding credits for world languages proficiency after examining actual proficiency data 
collected at the national level and in Washington State. The goal is to set the standard at 
a high enough level without being unrealistic. Generally, students who earn credit for 
proficiency would be demonstrating a performance level similar to the top 15%-45% of 
the students in a traditional high school world language class, depending on the 
language, level, and quality of teaching. (For example, after two years of high school 

http://www.actfl.org/i4a/pages/index.cfm?pageid=4236�
http://www.avantassessment.com/�
http://www.languagetesting.com/�
https://linguafolio.uoregon.edu/documents/LFGrid.pdf�


Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

language study, students of Spanish are more likely to reach higher proficiency levels 
than students of Japanese or Chinese, which are more difficult for native English 
speakers to learn.) It is quite possible that a student earning credit for proficiency would 
have a higher level of proficiency than some (or many) of the students who earn credits 
based on seat-time in a traditional language class. 

 
6. What will be the impact on language classes once this process is implemented? 

 
There is no immediate impact to current language classes in the schools because the 
policy applies to students who have generally acquired or learned a language outside of 
school. For schools with a large number of heritage speakers (such as students who 
speak a language other than English with their families), having this option may increase 
their motivation to develop the ability to read and write in that language. Currently, many 
of those students are placed in first or second-year language classes although they are 
totally fluent in the spoken language. It is the intent of the Office of Superintendent of 
Public Instruction World Languages Program to help districts provide resources that will 
help such students develop reading and writing skills to complement their speaking skills 
and to gain recognition of their skills by earning world language credits.  

 
7. How will competency-based credits impact students’ applications to college? 

 
Highly competitive colleges and universities like to see three-four years of world 
language study (including Advanced Placement) at the high school level. Since 
competency-based credits will appear as a grade of "Pass" on the high school transcript 
(and not be factored into the student’s overall Grade Point Average), that may seem to 
be a disadvantage over earning seat-time credits. The hope is that many students who 
would qualify for credit for competency/proficiency would be seeking to do so early (e.g., 
end of 8th grade/9th grade). That would give them time for additional study of the same 
or a different language in high school. In addition, over time we may expect that colleges 
will begin to shift their focus from seat-time credits to demonstrated proficiency, so 
students with evidence of language proficiency (through official assessment results) may 
find that to be an advantage. 

 
8. In the model procedure’s definition of “World Languages” what does “formally studied” 

mean? 
 

Generally, it is assumed that to develop literacy skills in a language requires some type 
of formal study. This may be, for example, attendance at a language class in a school or 
the community, study with parents or family members, online learning, or student self-
study.  

 
9. May districts collaborate to offer a testing site? 

 
Yes. In fact, OSPI and the SBE would encourage them to do so in order to reduce costs 
and increase opportunities for students. 

 
10. In what ways can the community support paying for assessments? 

 
 
 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

Districts are expected to set the fee for offering assessments for credit for proficiency. 
The community could provide financial support, for example, to cover the costs for 
students to take the assessments in a given language (or in all languages). This would 
be an excellent way to support students who are not native speakers of English but have 
developed proficiency in their mother language or to encourage students who have 
shown initiative to learn a second or third language beyond English. 

 



Prepared for the July 2010 Board Meeting  
 

 
 
 

Attachment D 
 
 

Draft Competency-based Policy Resolution 
 

 
WHEREAS, the State Board of Education has long supported Washington’s move 
toward a performance-based system of education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State Board of Education high school credit rule allows districts to 
award credit to students who satisfactorily demonstrate competencies according to 
written district policy; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State Board of Education seeks to encourage districts to develop and 
implement competency-based credit opportunities for students; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the State Board of Education endorses the 
publication of the Washington State School Directors’ Association’s (WSSDA) first 
sample competency-based policy and procedure in the area of world languages. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the State Board of Education will continue to 
collaborate with WSSDA and the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) 
to develop additional sample competency-based policies and procedures in other 
subject areas for districts to use as a guide for establishing local policies. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jeff Vincent, SBE Board Chair 
 
 
  
 

 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
COMMON CORE STANDARDS 

 
BACKGROUND 

The Common Core State Standards Initiative is being led by the Council of Chief State School 
Officers (CCSSO) and the National Governors’ Association (NGA) to promote state adoptions of 
common core standards in mathematics and English Language Arts (ELA). In spring 2009, 48 
states, two territories and the District of Columbia committed to “developing a common core of 
state standards in English-language arts and mathematics for grades K-12.”1

 
  

Although commonly referred to as “national” standards, the federal government is not leading 
the effort, and states will adopt the standards voluntarily. States that adopt common standards 
by August 2, 2010 will receive additional points as part of their federal Race to the Top (RTTT) 
application that was due June 1, 2010. In addition, Washington’s application as a lead state with 
the SMARTER Balanced Assessment Consortia (that consists of 31 states including 
Washington) in competing to receive RTTT Assessment funds (up to $350 million for state 
consortia to develop a comprehensive assessment system) has adoption of the common core 
standards at its foundation. 
 
Washington has had several opportunities to review and provide feedback on initial drafts of the 
common core standards. The draft K-12 standards were released March 10, 2010 for public 
comment. Feedback was due by April 2, 20102

 

. The final standards were made public on June 
2, 2010.  

As of June 2010, approximately 12 states have formally adopted the common core English 
language arts and mathematics standards. Four states have publically announced their intention 
to not adopt the standards: Virginia, Minnesota, Texas, and Alaska.  
 
States must adopt 100 percent of the common core standards. The common core standards 
may represent 85 percent of the state’s total standards, as states may add 15 percent more to 
customize the “package” of state standards. (Note: States cannot adopt only 85 percent of the 
common core standards.) As of June 2010, most states are still undecided about whether to add 
15 percent additional content to the standards. Two states (Kansas and Arkansas) intend to add 
additional content to the standards as part of their adoption processes. 
 
In Washington, the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) has authority to adopt standards. 
However following the 2010 session, as outlined in section 600 of the state’s Education Reform 
Plan (Engrossed Second Substitute Senate Bill 6696), the Superintendent was given authority 
to “provisionally adopt” the common core standards. Per the legislation, SPI is required to 
deliver a detailed report on the common core standards in January 2011 to the state 
Legislature. The report will include a comparison of common core and state learning standards, 
and an estimated timeline and costs to the state and districts to implement them. 
 

                                                
1 http://www.corestandards.org/ 
2 www.corestandards.org 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/documents/billdocs/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Law%202010/6696-S2.SL.pdf�
http://www.corestandards.org/�


Prepared for March 2010 Board Meeting 
 

In order to provide the most current information to the Board, OSPI staff will bring additional 
information about the provisional adoption, initial alignment between the common core 
standards and Washington’s current standards, and more details about how other states are 
navigating this initiative. 
 
The State Board of Education (SBE) may elect to comment on the adoption of the common core 
standards, but has no direct authority for the adoption. 
 

 
EXPECTED ACTION 

None. Information only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for March 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                             Attachment A 
 
 

Brenda Welburn 

2/2/2010 

REPORT OF THE NASBE 

WESTERN REGIONAL 

CONFERENCE 
Common Core Standards 
 
 



Prepared for March 2010 Board Meeting 
 

 
REPORT OF THE NASBE WESTERN REGIONAL CONFERENCE 

Common Core Standards 

Eleven states and one territory from the NASBE Western Region participated in a conference 
focused on the initiative led by the Council of Chief State School Officers (CCSSO) and the 
National Governors’ Association (NGA) to promote state adoptions of common core standards 
in mathematics and English language arts (ELA). In the majority of states, the state board of 
education is the entity responsible for the adoption of standards, thus the conference played a 
critical role in providing board members with an opportunity to clarify the process for developing 
and adopting common core standards and for raising and discussing issues that boards might 
encounter once the standards are finalized and the adoption process has been completed. 

Speakers for the conference covered a wide range of topics including the process used to 
develop the standards and the vetting process by content experts. Additional speakers 
addressed why this topic is pertinent and so galvanizing among and across sectors; the timeline 
for adoption within states; and the importance of aligning communication, adoption and 
implementation actions. One of the most useful aspects of the conference was the work session 
among participants exploring and discussing challenges, resources that will be required for a 
transparent and straightforward adoption and implementation process, remaining questions and 
additional support that NASBE could provide as states move forward. A synopsis of those 
issues follow: 
Anticipated Challenges 

• Push back from various interest groups 
• Teacher development 
• Setting cut scores 
• Impact on states’ current adoption processes and standards 
• Impact on current assessments  
• Standards fatigue 
• How best to communicate and roll out 
• Establishing a meaningful vetting process to address the concerns with partners to 

include the fiscal impact of adopting new standards outside of the normal cycle 
• General process alignment with current standards adoption practices and other policies 

 

Required Resources for the Adoption of Common Core Standards 

• Money 
• Staff time and availability for review a review of the standards 
• Time for public engagement 
• Funds for professional development and release time for teachers 
• Funds for policy alignment and assessments development 
• Funds for curriculum resources 
• Overall Expertise 
• Sufficient teachers 



Prepared for March 2010 Board Meeting 
 

How NASBE Can Support States in the Adoption and Implementation of Common Core 

• Share information across states 
• Provide guidance on how to move forward 
• Conduct a common core standards session at the NASBE Annual Conference  
• Promote the role and importance of state boards of education in the adoption process 
• Assist with communication strategies including multi-media access for all constituencies 
• Provide speaking points on key common core issues 
• Advocate for the concerns of the stakeholders 
• Host more regional meetings 

What Further Information on the Common Core Standards Process is Needed 

• Career and college ready – what do we really want for all high school seniors; including 
non-college bound an how will they be affected by the common core 

• How will common core standards be used with special needs students 
• How will states approach the alignment of instructional materials and how it will evolve 
• How will states calculate the cost of new common core standards 
• What will the impact of common core standards be on Career and Technical Education 
•  How will the differences in state timelines affect the process 
• How will the process address the lack of common definitions across states for the 

elements of standards; for example, not all states use the term English Language Arts 
• What is the criteria for measuring the additional 15% above the common core 
• What happens if a state doesn’t adopt the common core if they have been selected to 

receive RTT funds 
• How will the federal role expand in this arena 
• How will international benchmarking be used 
• What are the procedures for modifying the standards in the future 
• What instructional materials will be developed for the common core standards 

Additional Questions on the Common Core 

• How will the common core standards affect other disciplines 
• How to provide support and resources to make the common core meaningful 
• How will schools be better because of common core standards 
• What does higher, clearer, fewer really mean and how will this be interpreted by parents 
• What impact, if any, will the November elections have on the common core movement 
• Is 15% above the common core sufficient for math and science 
• How it will common core standards affect other federal programs  
• How will the standards affect states’ policy review cycles 

Anticipated Adoption Timeframe 

• Utah – immediately –if resources are available  
• Colorado – August if alignment with the current standards is possible 
• Washington – 6 months (provisional), a standards cross walk is required by the 

legislature for the 2011 sessions 



Prepared for March 2010 Board Meeting 
 

• Wyoming TBD 
• Montana – 6 months to a year and a half 
• Guam – in the process of adopting standards; must determine if the common core can 

be integrated into what is happening 
• Alaska – not likely in immediate future, but will examine the alignment issues 
• Idaho - TBD 
• California -2010-11; it will be an overall 4 year process 
• Hawaii – this year, once the standards are released 
• Oregon – end of 2010 

  
A copy of the conference agenda is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

 

 

 
 

 
RACE TO THE TOP AND EDUCATION REFORM PLAN UPDATE 

 
BACKGROUND 

Race to the Top Application 
 
At the May Board meeting, the Board passed the following motion requesting the following information 
as part of the Race to the Top Application: 
 
Authorization of State Board of Education Chair to Sign Race to the Top Education Reform Grant 
Application 
 
Motion was made to authorize the Board’s Chair to sign the Washington Race to the Top Education 
Reform Grant Application, provided that the Chair deems the following three conditions are met: 
 

1. The Race to the Top application clearly shows: 
a. How the state education agency will organize itself to implement the state’s education 

reform plan. 
b. How the state will organize the overall governance structure to oversee the execution of the 

state’s education reform plan. 
2. The Race to the Top application contains clear baseline information, action strategies, and ways 

to measure progress for each of the state’s four major reform goals. 
3. A final state education reform plan complete with implementation detail will be completed by 

September 15, 2010 with a more full, robust engagement with our stakeholders. Work plan 
tasks and timelines will be signed off by each member of the steering committee prior to the 
Race to the Top application sign-off. 

 
The final application met the Board’s requirements in its motion, stated above, with the exception of 
the date of September 15, 2010 for completion of the Education Reform Plan. The Race to the Top 
Steering and Coordinating Committees agreed that the feedback and development of the education 
plan should continue this fall and then be presented to the legislature in 2011 for their approval 
before the Education Reform Plan in finalized. Attachment A provides an executive summary of 
Washington’s Race to the Top Application, including the timeline for completion of the education 
reform plan.  
 
Under the State/ Local Partnership Agreement, 265 local districts representing 97 percent of the 
school districts signed onto the grant application. The Race to the Top Steering Committee (the 
Governor, Superintendent of Public Instruction, and State Board of Education Chair) signed off on 
the grant application and it was delivered to the U.S. Department of Education on June 1. Mary 
Jean Ryan represented the Board at the June 1 press conference announcing Washington’s grant 
submittal. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

 
A total of 35 states and the District of Columbia applied for Round Two of the Race to the Top 
Education Reform Grant. Our grant along with the other states is posted at:  
 
http://www2.ed.gov/programs/racetothetop/phase2-applications/index.html 
 
The U.S. Department of Education will notify applicants if they are in the final pool for interviews by the 
end of July. If you visit the above U.S. Department of Education website at that time, you will be able to 
see the scores Washington received. Sometime during the week of August 9, states will go to present 
their applications and answer questions. Each team will bring five people from their state to present. 
 
The Steering Committee will meet July 6 to discuss the application, preparation for the potential 
interviews, and the education reform plan. Information from that meeting will be shared with the Board 
at the July Board meeting. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
The Board will discuss its role in advancing the draft Education Reform Plan. This is one item of the 
Board’s strategic plan. A draft of the Education Reform Plan revisions should be available at the July 
Board meeting. 
 
EXPECTED ACTION 
 
No action is expected. 

http://www2.ed.gov/programs/racetothetop/phase2-applications/index.html�


Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Attachment A 
 

June 2010 Executive Summary of Washington’s Race to the Top Application 
 

On June 1, 2010 the state of Washington submitted a $250 million, four-year application to the United 
State’s Education Department’s Race to the Top competitive grant program, Round Two. The Race to 
the Top program is funded under American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA). Race to 
the Top encourages and rewards states that are implementing significant reforms in four education 
Reform Critiera:  
 

o Adopting standards and assessments that prepare students for success. 
o Preparing, recruiting, supporting, and retaining effective teachers and principals. 
o Improving the use of data to inform and improve practices.  
o Turning around the lowest performing schools. 

 
The 2009 and 2010 Washington State legislative sessions accelerated state education reform efforts on 
two major fronts: 1) a redefinition of Basic Education and a comprehensive review of the state 
education finance system through Engrossed Substitute House Bill (ESHB) 2261 in 2009 and 
Substitute House Bill (SHB) 2776 in 2010, and 2) the passage of Engrossed Second Substitute Senate 
Bill (E2SSB) 6696 in 2010.  
 
These laws are crucial elements of the state effort to ensure high-quality teaching and learning 
environments for all students in all schools in Washington. A Steering Committee – comprised of 
Governor Gregoire, Superintendent Dorn, and the State Board Chair Ryan – indicated that if E2SSB 
6696 had not passed in early March 2010, Washington State would not be able to make a viable Round 
Two Race to the Top Program application (it had already made that decision in regard to sitting out 
Round One of the competition, which awarded competitive funds to just two states: Delaware and 
Tennessee). When E2SSB 6696 did indeed pass and was signed into law by Governor Gregoire, the 
Round Two Race to the Top Program application effort expanded as did discussions about developing 
an Education Reform Plan Framework. In addition, the Steering Committee –with newly elected State 
Board Chair Vincent– accelerated communications in relation to required and optional/competitive 
elements of Washington’s Race to the Top Partnership Agreement, which is Washington’s name for the 
federally-mandated Memorandum of Understanding with participating districts. 
 
Following the federal Race to the Top Program and i3 models, Washington decided on an approach to 
the Partnership Agreement that supports both required and optional/competitive elements. This 
includes the idea of supporting model programs or research–based local school district efforts that are 
considered innovative or break-through – evolving into the concept of innovation clusters tied to the four 
federal Reform Criteria.  
 
The optional/competitive elements, or innovation clusters, represent the only “conditional items” that 
could extend beyond current collective bargaining agreements. By nature, they are bolder and more 
ambitious in nature, and necessitate school districts to indicate a specific interest in competing for 
additional optional/competitive funds. 
 
As foundational elements of the state’s Education Reform Plan Framework and its Race to the Top 
application, four goals reflect the importance of aligning statewide P-20 education practices and 
systems; shifting from a compliance monitoring to a customized technical assistance and professional 
support approach; addressing ongoing student achievement gaps; enhancing student and educator 
prowess in Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM); and preparing students for 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

success in college and beyond. The four state goals are for all Washington students to: 1) enter 
kindergarten prepared for success; 2) compete in math and science nationally and internationally; 3) 
attain high academic standards regardless of race, ethnicity, income or gender; and 4) graduate able to 
succeed in college, training, and careers. 
 
The framework includes a vision, the four goals, five capacities, and nine outcome measures (note that 
additional development of some strategies and measures, particularly in the post-secondary and early 
childhood arenas will occur as a 2010 Education Reform Plan is finalized and vetted with stakeholders 
during 2010). The five essential capacities characterize what school, district, regional, state, agency, 
board and commission staff need to excel at. Furthermore, the capacities highlight strategies for 
enabling, or implementing, comprehensive and deep education reform. 
 
The state bases its four goals, five capacities and outcome measures on several research activities: the 
results from a fall 2009 diagnostic of the state’s various strengths and weaknesses relative to the four 
federal Reform Criteria; an analysis of current conditions and recent student performance data; input 
from work teams organized around Reform Criteria and Washington priority areas; current funding and 
initiatives; and the new education reform legislation. The vision, graphical depiction of the framework, 
and specific performance targets follow. 

Vision 

All Washington students will be prepared to succeed in the 21st century 
world of work, learning, and global citizenship. 

 

Education Reform Plan Framework 

 
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Performance Targets 
 

Goal                Performance Targets 
1. Students 

enter 
kindergarten 
prepared for 
success 

Increase percentage of Washington public school kindergarten students 
participating in full-day kindergarten* from 33% of total kindergartners in 2009 to 
40% in 2013, and 85% in 2018** 

*There will be results starting in 2010 from early learning and development benchmarks and a 
kindergarten readiness assessment process; full-day kindergarten is used as a proxy to reflect 
state commitment to early learning. 
 
**2018 is used because that is the new definition of Basic Education, which includes statewide 
implementation of full-day kindergarten, is expected to be fully funded as per Engrossed Substitute 
House Bill 2261 and Substitute House Bill 2776. 

  

2. Students 
compete in 
mathematics 
and science 
nationally and 
internationally  

Raise math and science performance levels overall by four percentage points 
per year between 2009 and 2018: 

• Fourth grade increase in passing rates on state mathematics exams from 52.3% 
overall in 2009 to 68.3% in 2013 and 88.3% in 2018. 

• Fifth grade increase in passing rates on state science exams from 44.9% overall in 
2009 to 60.9% in 2013 and 80.9% in 2018.  

• Eighth grade, increase passing rates on state science exams from 51% overall in 
2009 to 67% in 2013 and 87% in 2018. 

• Eighth grade increase passing rates on state mathematics exams from 50.8% in 2009 
to 66.8% in 2013 and 86.8% in 2018.  

• Tenth grade, increase passing rates on state science exams from 38.8% in 2009 to 
54.8% in 2013 and 74.8% in 2018. 

• Tenth grade, increase passing rates on state mathematics exams from 45.4% in 2009 
to 61.4% in 2013 and 81.4% in 2018. 

  

3. Students 
attain high 
academic 
standards 
regardless of 
race, 
ethnicity, 
income, or 
gender 

 

Close achievement gaps by increasing subgroup performance on state 
mathematics, science, reading, and writing exams by four percentage points 
each year per subgroup (Black, Hispanic, American Indian/Alaskan Native and 
Pacific Island students).  
Increase absolute student performance (and eventually student growth once 
those measures are in place) by three percentage points per year between 2009 
and 2018: 
• For science and mathematics, see above. 

• Fourth grade, increase passing rates on state reading exams from 73.6% overall in 
2009 to 85.6% in 2013 and 98% in 2018; and in writing from 60.4% overall in 2009 to 
72.4% in 2013 and 87.4% in 2018. 

• Eighth grade, increase passing rates on state reading exams from 67.5% in 2009 to 
79.4% in 2013 and 94.4% in 2018. 

• Seventh grade, increase passing rates on state writing exams from 69.8% in 2009 to 
81.8% in 2013 and 96.8% in 2018. 

• Tenth grade, increase state passing rates from 81.2% on state reading exams in 2009 
to 93.2% in 2013 and 98% in 2018; and in writing from 86.7% in 2009 to 95% in 2013 
and 98% in 2018. 

  



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Goal                Performance Targets 
4. Students 

graduate able 
to succeed in 
college, 
training, and 
careers  

Increase AP course and exam participation rates of students of color by five 
percentage points in each subgroup each year between 2009 and 2018.  

Increase AP exam passing rates of students of color with scores of 3, 4 or 5 by 
two percentage points in each subgroup per year between 2009 and 2018.  

Raise cohort (four-year) graduation rates from 73.6% overall in 2009 to 80% in 
2013 and 87% in 2018. 

Reduce cohort dropout rates from 19.4% overall in 2009 to 16% in 2013 and 
10% in 2018 

Raise number of students going to postsecondary education and training within 
one year of high school graduation from 63% in 2008 to 71% in 2013 and 81% in 
2018. 

Increase first to second year retention in Washington’s four-year colleges from 
83.6% in 2008 to 86% in 2013 and 89% in 2018. 

Raise Washington’s rank status among states for students going right to college 
after high school graduation, from the bottom quarter in the nation in 2008 to the 
US average/national midpoint in 2013, and to above the national average by 
2018 (based on NCHEMS data). 

Note: Post Secondary degree completion for Washington high school students will be included 
when the longitudinal data system is fully implemented. 

 

These data and targets demonstrate the need for Washington to accelerate its progress and increase 
trends so that students of color and those living in poverty are performing at much higher levels in all 
subject areas. Additionally, all Washington students need to perform at higher levels in mathematics 
and science. Furthermore, tremendous disparities exist among rural, urban, and suburban 
communities, and among racial and ethnic groups in terms of how well K-12 graduates are prepared for 
life after high school. College and career readiness is essential to students’ future life, work, and 
earnings. However, in many Washington communities far fewer than half the students go on to any 
form of post-secondary education. And many who do go on require considerable remediation before 
beginning college-level courses – and then they quickly drop out. Additional challenges include: 
preparedness of kindergartners for success; achievement gaps, particularly in mathematics and 
science; and graduation and dropout rates. Washington’s Race to the Top Program application outlines 
strategies for redressing achievement gap and performance issues.  
 
The Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction is the primary organization for leading, supporting, 
and overseeing the K-12 education system in Washington State. However, there are also a variety of 
legislatively mandated-departments, boards, commissions, and committees that possess a policy, 
legislative, governance, professional standards, or delivery role in relation to education in Washington 
State. Washington’s model for governance and implementation of Race to the Top builds on the 
strengths of Washington’s educational system and takes a staged approach to addressing systemic 
organizational and performance challenges. There will be dedicated offices and functions within the 
Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction devoted to Washington’s Race to the Top implementation. 
“Education Reform and Innovation” is used in the titles and offices responsible for education reform 
governance, oversight, coordination, leadership, and implementation. Furthermore, there will continue 
to be a shared governance structure (the Steering Committee, which will expand to include 
Professional Educator Standards Board Chair Rushing) to keep Washington leaders apprised of and 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

making strategic decisions about Washington’s Race to the Top/ Education Reform and Innovation 
progress and deliverables. 
 
The state of Washington applied for federal Race to the Top funds in support of specific portions of the 
Education Reform Plan Framework in conjunction with its “participating school districts”. Signing on to 
the Partnership Agreement to become a participating school district entitles a school district to a 
proportionate share of one-half of the state Race to the Top grant funding should Washington State 
receive a Race to the Top grant award and eligibility to apply for optional/competitive funding. 
 
The Race to the Top application budget model focuses on the level allowed for the State of Washington 
($250 Million) and the support of a combination of state and locally driven strategies. The Title I formula 
allocations to school districts were reviewed based on the current dollar limit. This review guided the 
decision to adjust downward the state’s 50% grant portion ($125 Million) by $12.3 Million to create an 
equalization factor resource that was allocated to districts with little or no Title I funding.  
 
Efforts across the state to involve districts in the Washington Race to the Top Partnership Agreement 
required and optional/competitive elements were overwhelmingly successful and demonstrated 
significant levels of commitment to the four Race to the Top Reform Criteria from across the state with 
90% of districts in the state (265 of 295) signing the Partnership Agreement. These districts represent 
95% of schools across the state, 97% of Washington’s K-12 students, and 98% of Washington’s 
students in poverty. Of those districts that signed the Partnership Agreement, 90% included a local 
school board president signature; 69% a teachers’ union president signature; and 86% a principals’ 
representative. These percentages are derived from those districts with teachers unions and and/or 
principal representative groups. 
 
Fifty percent of the participating districts also indicated interest in competing to participate in one or 
more innovation cluster: 30% (79 of 265) of participating districts are interested in the Teacher and 
Leader Development and Effectiveness Innovation Cluster; 18% (47 of 265) of districts in the Struggling 
Schools Innovation Cluster; 40% (106 of 265) of districts in the College and Career Readiness and 
Closing the Achievement Gap Innovation Cluster; and 38% (100 of 265) of districts in STEM Innovation 
Cluster. These optional/competitive innovation clusters are designed to promote and support local 
district and partner initiatives and spur improvements in student achievement through shifts in practice 
in classrooms, schools and districts. 
 
The State’s Commitment to Districts (which include the required elements included on the “State” 
column of the Partnership Agreement) is as follows:  

• If identified as a finalist, form a presentation panel and present to and answer questions from 
federal evaluators. 

• If an award recipient, form a transition team, provide technical assistance to districts and create 
selection teams for 90-day plans and innovation cluster competitions. 

• Submit its own 90-day plan. 
• Build the infrastructure, systems, organizational capacity, procedures, and staff to support grant 

implementation at local, regional and state levels. 
• Implement and provide support to districts to implement: 

- Common Core Standards. 
- Aligned Formative and Summative Assessments and Systems. 
- Instructional Improvement Data System and Technical Assistance. 
- Improved Mathematics and Science Instruction and Comprehensive STEM Models. 
- Model Teacher and Leader Evaluation Systems. 
- New, District-based Teacher Preparation Models. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

- Regional Professional Development Delivery Network and New Professional Development 
Cooperative. 

- Math and Science Specialty Endorsements (elementary) and Credentialing (middle and 
high).  

 
Districts that sign the Partnership Agreement are required to: 

• Implement required elements of plan outlined in Partnership Agreement. 
• Participate in Race to the Top sharing activities. 
• Follow U.S. Department of Education guidelines for posting products developed through the 

Race to the Top competition and completing evaluation requirements. 
• Be supportive and committed to working on all or a significant portion of the state reform plan. 
• Provide a “Final Scope of Work” to the state no later than 90 days following the awarding of the 

grant. 
• Align provisions of Race to the Top with applicable district/association collective bargaining 

agreement. 
• In regard to the Standards and Assessments reform area (Section B of application): 

- Adopt and implement the Common Core Standards in mathematics and English/Language 
Arts. 

- Use state-provided formative and summative assessments. 
- Align Early Learning Development Benchmarks to Kindergarten programs. 
- Provide access to college readiness exam (Transition Math Project). 
- Increase student participation in courses that earn college credit. 

• In regard to the Data Systems reform area (Section C of application): 
- Districts with local instructional improvement systems will enhance usefulness through state-

developed tools. 
- Districts without local instructional improvement systems will implement a system developed 

by the state. 
- Districts will, as appropriate, use regional data coaches supplied and supported by the state. 
- Districts will make instructional improvement data available for research purposes. 

• In regard to the Great Teachers and Leaders reform criteria Section D of application: 
- Under the 2010 education reform law: 

o Implement the new principal and teacher evaluation system. 
o Participate in annual regional work force planning session. 

- Choose one or more reform priorities for a local improvement initiative: 
o Turning around low-performing schools. 
o Closing the P–12 achievement gap and reducing dropouts. 
o Enhancing P–12 STEM instruction. 
o Improving college and career readiness. 

• In regard to the Turning Around Lowest Achieving Schools reform criteria (Section E of 
application: 

- Districts (with lowest achieving schools designated for required action and that are funded) 
are required to implement one of four federally approved intervention models. 

• In regard to improving Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (Competitive 
Preference Priority of application): 

- Ensure adequate preparation for mathematics and science end-of-course assessments 
- Increase science exposure in elementary grades. 
- Support integration of STEM instruction across grades and subjects. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

- Create a STEM support mechanism using resources of Educational Service Districts 
(ESDs); practitioner experts; Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics Partners; 
museums; and researchers. 

 
Washington has adopted the optional/competitive innovation cluster concept to catalyze and accelerate 
statewide education change in four distinct areas: improving Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Math (STEM); developing great teachers and leaders; jumpstarting improvement in struggling schools; 
and improving college and career readiness, as well as reducing achievement gaps. 

 
A short summary of each of four innovation clusters follows: 

 
1. The Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) Innovation Cluster will use a 

customized competitive grant and technical assistance approach to identify and support projects 
designed to narrow the achievement gap in STEM content areas; prepare underrepresented 
students for college in STEM careers; increase the availability of opportunities for students to 
apply and integrate STEM content areas; and enhance elementary and secondary school STEM 
offerings, programs, coursework, rigor, and teacher and leader skills. These schools and 
districts will be provided in-depth technical assistance and additional funds to implement 
innovative and evidence-based models designed to significantly increase student achievement 
in STEM areas that can be used by other schools and districts. (See Section A and Competitive 
Preference Priority of Application.) 

2. The Struggling Schools Innovation Cluster targets just those districts with schools in the bottom 
6-10% of persistently lowest-achieving schools. Up to 15 schools in the bottom 6-10% of 
persistently lowest-achieving schools and their districts will be eligible for technical assistance 
and support focused on the required and permissible elements of the federal intervention 
models. The intent is to prevent those schools that have the potential to become persistently 
lowest-achieving schools in the future. Participants will receive technical assistance and support 
to implement rapid improvement and turnaround practices consistent with required and 
permissible elements of the federal innovative intervention models, including implementing 
rigorous and aligned curricula; using assessments and interventions; building teacher and 
leader capacity for effective and rapid school turnaround; using student data to inform and 
differentiate instruction; and creating district/school structures and conditions for ensuring 
equitable distribution of effective teachers, leaders and other resources. The lessons learned 
will enable the state to scale up practices effective in closing persistent achievement gaps and 
turning around student achievement. (See Sections A and E of Application.) 

3. The emphasis of College and Career Readiness and Closing the Achievement Gap Innovation 
Cluster has the broadest scope of the clusters because the concept of “readiness” covers the P-
20 spectrum. Innovative solutions to problems such as closing an achievement gap for a 
specific subgroup of students may be very different than increasing college access for that 
same subgroup. Interested school district applicants will be given great leeway in outlining a 
project design that produces measurable outcomes and targets specific transition points of the 
P-20 system: pre-k; early grade levels to middle school; middle to high school; high school to 
post-secondary education; and alternative pathways. (See Section A and B of Application.) 

4. The Teacher and Leader Development and Effectiveness Innovation Cluster encourages a bold 
accelerated opportunity for districts to design systems that challenge current policy to address 
compensation and evaluation linked to the placement of teachers and principals in rural, high-
poverty and/or low-achievement schools. These may include compensation-related career 
ladders and differential pay. Districts may also join the state’s evaluation pilots. These pilots will 
lead the state’s efforts to define and implement new evaluation models for teachers and 
principals. Districts in this cluster may also partner with an alternative route provider to create 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

and implement a residency-model teacher preparation program designed to serve a district’s – 
or groups of districts – workforce development and school improvement strategies. These 
alternative route partnerships will place priority on the preparation of teachers in STEM subject 
areas. (See Section A and D of Application.) 

 
If Washington State is awarded a Race to the Top grant, each participating district will have 90 calendar 
days to develop a specific plan for implementation and explain how it will use Race to the Top grant 
funds. Similarly if the district has indicated interest in participating in one of the optional/competitive 
components, participation and additional funding will be determined following the district’s response to 
a separate grant application for the optional/competitive activities. 
 
The following timelines and actions are demonstrative of Washington’s state leaders commitment to 
education reform and the implementation of an ambitious and cohesive 2010 State Education Reform 
Plan.  



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Timeline for Washington’s Race to the Top Restructuring 
 

June - December 2010 January - June 2011 July - December 2011 
• Create RTTT transition team to 

support districts as they 
develop their District Race to 
the Top Implementation Plans 
and RTTT staff is brought on 
board. 

• Establish Office of Education 
Reform and Innovation, hire 
key project staff, and develop 
common protocols, practices, 
reporting tools, and 
communications. 

• Launch District Race to the Top 
Implementation Plan planning 
guidelines and review district 
plans. 

• Establish team leads and 
project teams and integrate 
existing functions with the 
RTTT work. 

• Establish centralized Education 
Reform and Innovation 
professional development 
function. 

• Establish Education Reform 
and Innovation Data 
Management Office.  

• Finalize 2010 State Education 
Reform Plan, including 
recommendations for offices, 
departments, boards, 
commissions, committees and 
councils.  

• Develop approach to 
performance management, 
evaluation, and knowledge 
management. 

• Approve and analyze District 
Race to the Top 
Implementation Plans.  

• Develop innovation cluster 
Request for Proposal criteria, 
process and expert session(s) 
for interested districts. 

• Conduct technical assistance 
and professional development 
needs analyses based on 
District Race to the Top 
Implementation Plans. 

• Launch Innovation Cluster 
RFPs and select participants. 

• Forward (and seek support for) 
legislative and organizational 
recommendations resulting 
from Education Reform Plan 
finalization. 

• Implement additional 
organization and practices 
changes, linked to the 2010 
State Education Reform Plan, 
across education offices, 
departments, commissions, 
boards, committees, and 
councils.  

• Follow timelines for 
implementation within 
application sections (B) through 
(E).  

• Launch innovation clusters. 
• Continue to implement 

additional organization and 
practices changes, linked to 
2010 State Education Reform 
Plan. 

• Implement performance 
management model.  

• Launch report card. 
• Follow timelines for 

implementation within 
application sections (B) through 
(E). 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Updated Timeline for Completion of 2010 State Education Reform Plan 
 

Activity May June July August September October November December 2011 
Legislative 
Session & 
Follow Up 

1. Draft 2010 State 
Education Reform 
Plan Document 

 X X      
 

2. Assign Lead and 
Team Responsibility 
and allocate funding 
for Coordinating 
Stakeholder Input, 
Meetings, and 
Communication 

 X       

 

3. Convene Education 
Reform and 
Innovation Steering 
Committee to 
Discuss Planning 
Steps and Process 

  X      

 

4. Conduct Education 
Advocacy 
Stakeholder 
Meetings and Focus 
Groups 
(philanthropies, 
businesses, 
community groups, 
advocacy 
organizations) 

   X X X   

 

5. Conduct Parent and 
Student Stakeholder 
Meetings and Focus 
Groups in 9 
Educational Service 
Districts  

   X X X   

 

6. Conduct meeting 
with Quality 
Education Council 
leadership to review 
2010 Education 
Reform Plan 
process and draft 

   X   X  

 

7. Convene Education 
Reform and 
Innovation Steering 
Committee to 
discuss input to 
date, status of 
stakeholder input 
process, and 
implementation 
planning – invite 
other state-level 
education 
stakeholders to 
discuss 
implementation 

    X    

 

8. Conduct Educator 
Stakeholder 
Meetings and Focus 
Groups in 9 
Educational Service 
Districts 

     X   

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 

 

Activity May June July August September October November December 2011 
Legislative 
Session & 
Follow Up 

9. Conduct State 
Legislator, Agency, 
Board, Commission, 
Committee, and 
Department 
Stakeholder 
Meetings and Focus 
Groups 

     X X  

 

10. Convene Education 
Reform and 
Innovation Steering 
Committee to 
discuss contents of 
2010 State 
Education Reform 
Plan, and potential 
legislative agenda – 
include Quality 
Education Council 
leadership meeting 
to discuss 
implementation of 
the plan 

     X   

 

11. Craft Related 
Legislative Agenda, 
Organizational 
Changes, and 
Budget 

     X X  

 

12. Write and Edit New 
Version of 2010 
State Education 
Reform Plan 
Document; and 
Implementation 
Plan 

      X  

 

13. Share 2010 
Education Reform 
Plan with 
Legislative 
Education 
Committee Chairs 

       X 

 

14. Develop 
Communication and 
Dissemination Plan 

       X 
 

15. Convene Education 
Reform and 
Innovation Steering 
Committee for 
Formal Sign Off on 
2010 State 
Education Reform 
Plan 

        X 

16. Print Formal 
Document         X 

17. Commence 
Implementation and 
Communication 

        X 

 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

 
 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 

 
BACKGROUND 

The State Board of Education hired Berk and Associates to help it create a strategic plan in 
March 2010.  The SBE has discussed ideas for the Strategic Plan at three meetings in March, 
April and May.  
 
Based on those three meetings, executive committee and staff internal discussions, a draft 
strategic plan for 2011-14 has been prepared for the Board to discuss at its July Board meeting 
during the retreat. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
The Board will review and provide feedback on the draft strategic plan for 2011-14 that contains 
five new goals with objectives, timeline and anticipated results. These five goals would replace 
the goals in the current strategic plan. The draft strategic plan provides a cross walk to the draft 
Washington Education Reform Plan as well as how the SBE plan fits into all the other state 
efforts. In addition to the draft strategic plan, Berk has worked with SBE staff to create SBE 
roles for the Strategic Plan. Both documents are behind this memo: 
 

1. The State Board of Education Strategic Plan 2011-14 – Attachment A. 
2. State  Board of Education Strategic Roles – Attachment B. 

 
  

EXPECTED ACTION 
 
The Board will give final feedback on these documents and provide guidance to staff on the 
creation of a one year and two year implementation plan.  Staff will prepare a final strategic 
plan, a work plan and a potential budget request for board approval at the September Board 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN: 2011-2014 
 
introduction: policy roles, authority, and policy context 
 
SBE Mandate and Roles 
 
In 2005, the Legislature significantly changed the role of the State Board of Education (SBE). 
While the Board retains some administrative duties, it is now mandated to play a broad 
leadership role in strategic oversight and policy for K-12 education. RCW 28A.305.130 
authorizes SBE to: 

• Provide advocacy and strategic oversight of public education. 
• Implement a standards-based accountability system to improve student academic 

achievement. 
• Provide leadership in the creation of a system that personalizes education for each 

student and respects diverse cultures, abilities, and learning styles. 
• Promote achievement of the goals of RCW 28A.150.210: 

The goal of the Basic Education Act for the schools of the state of Washington set forth 
in this chapter shall be to provide students with the opportunity to become responsible 
citizens, to contribute to their own economic well-being and to that of their families and 
communities, and to enjoy productive and satisfying lives. To these ends, the goals of 
each school district, with the involvement of parents and community members, shall be 
to provide opportunities for all students to develop band knowledge and skills essential 
to: 
1. Read with comprehension, write with skill, and communicate effectively and 

responsibly in a variety of ways and settings. 
2. Know and apply the core concepts and principles of mathematics; social, physical, 

and life sciences; civics and history; geography; arts; and health and fitness. 
3. Think analytically, logically, and creatively, and to integrate experience and 

knowledge to form reasoned judgments and solve problems. 
4. Understand the importance of work and how performance, effort, and decisions 

directly affect future career and educational opportunities. 
• Approve private schools. 
• Articulate with institutions of higher education, workforce representatives, and early 

learning policy makers and providers to coordinate and unify the work of the public 
school system. 
 

SBE Roles. With its new charge from the Legislature and the Governor, the Board’s role in the 
state education system continues to evolve. The Board’s involvement with a range of education 
issues defines its multi-faceted role in Washington’s K-12 system, including:  

• Policy leadership: formulating principles and guidelines to direct and guide the 
education system. 

• System oversight: monitoring and managing the education system by overseeing its 
operation and performance. 

• Advocacy: persuading for a particular issue or idea. 
• Communication: providing information to help a common understanding. 
• Convening and facilitating: bringing parties together for discussion and collaboration. 

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Statutory Requirements and Ongoing SBE Work 
 
Statutorily Required Responsibilities. SBE has several specific statutory responsibilities 
related to the establishment of standards for student achievement and attendance, graduation 
from high school, and the accountability of schools and districts. The Board has led and 
participated in a number of important statutorily-related initiatives in the past four years, 
including:  

• A More Comprehensive Accountability Framework: SBE created a framework for 
statewide accountability; developed recognition program for schools with SBE 
accountability index; and obtained intervention authority through Required Action for Low 
Performing Schools. 

• Revised Graduation Requirements: SBE developed the Core 24 Framework for High 
School Grad Requirements and continues to work towards graduation requirements that 
will best prepare today’s graduates. 

• Administrative Responsibilities. SBE also sets the cut scores for student proficiency 
and other performance levels on the state assessments; monitors local school district 
compliance with the basic education act and approves waivers of the required 180 days 
of student instruction. 
 

Special Legislative Assignments. In addition to the Board’s statutory responsibilities, in recent 
years the Legislature has assigned SBE to undertake several specific tasks or responsibilities, 
including: 

• Developing a revised definition of purpose and expectations for a high school diploma. 
• Adding a third credit of math for high school graduation, and defining the content of all 

three credits of high school math in SBE rule. 
• Completing a science standards review; science curriculum review; and a math 

standards and curriculum review. 
• Drafting several policy-oriented reports, including: the End of Course (EOC) assessment 

report; a policy options report on Science EOC; High School Transcripts, a joint report 
with the Professional Educator Standards Board (PESB); and the Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) program completion report. 

• Implementing a new efficiency waiver pilot for small school districts. 
• Participating in building a coalition around HB 2261 and SB 6696 to address basic 

education funding and education reform issues. 
 

SBE also holds seats on the following boards and workgroups: the Quality Education Council 
(QEC); Data Governance Committee; Education Research and Data Center Workgroup; 
Building Bridges Student Support Work Group; Race to the Top grant steering and coordinating 
committees; and the Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) work group. 
In addition, SBE consults with the Achievement Gap and Oversight Committee and Office of 
Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) on the Science EOC for Biology. 
 
SBE Has Many Stakeholders  
 
Defining SBE’s Stakeholders. SBE is an organization with many stakeholders and 
constituents across the state. Stakeholders include the Legislature, the Governor, school board 
directors, superintendents and administrators of the state’s 295 school districts, teachers, the 
Washington Education Association (WEA), the ethnic commissions, community and business 
leaders, parents and students. All of the people and groups identified care about the work of 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

SBE and have an interest in its outcome. In conducting its work, SBE is attentive and mindful of 
its many stakeholders and their various interests. Board members have assignments as liaisons 
to specific agencies and associations. 
 
Coordinating with Other State Agencies. SBE works within a network of multiple agencies 
including the Governor’s Office, the Legislature and its committees, OSPI, PESB, and the 
Higher Education Coordinating Board (HECB). The more connected and aligned the various 
agencies’ strategies and priorities are, the greater the benefit will be to the citizens of the State 
of Washington. 
 
The Federal Context: Race to the Top Policies and Funding 
 
Race to the Top (RTTT) funding is a competitive state grant program administered by the U.S. 
Department of Education, designed to encourage and reward states that are implementing 
ambitious plans in four core education reform areas. These four federal assurances represent 
aspects of high-performing school systems: 

1. Standards and assurances. Adopting standards and assessments that prepare 
students to succeed in college and the workplace and to compete in the global economy. 

2. Data systems to support instruction. Building data systems that measure student 
growth and success and inform teachers and principals about how they can improve 
instruction. 

3. Great teachers and leaders. Recruiting, developing, rewarding, and retaining effective 
teachers and principals, especially where they are needed most. 

4. Turning around lowest-achieving schools. Intervening in persistently lowest-
achieving schools through four federal prescribed models: turnaround, closure, restart 
and transformation. 
 

The Board participated in forming a coalition to obtain approval of Race to the Top grant funding 
in the 2010 Legislative session to help make Washington more competitive for this federal grant 
funding. SBE serves on the Race to the Top Steering Committee. 
 
The State Context: Development of the Washington State Education Reform Plan 
 
The 2010 draft State Education Reform Plan is designed to significantly advance Washington’s 
K-12 achievements levels. SBE has served as a catalyst to help define and create the 
Education Reform Plan and move it forward. The State Education Reform Plan’s Vision is: 
 
All Washington students will be prepared to succeed in the 21st century world of work, learning, 

and global citizenship. 
 

The Plan identifies four large goals for Washington:  
1. Enter kindergarten prepared for success. 
2. Be competitive in math and science nationally and internationally.  
3. Attain high academic standards regardless of race, ethnicity, income, or gender; and 

close associated achievement gaps. 
4. Graduate able to succeed in college, training, and careers.  

 
Obtaining broad stakeholder input and buy-in on the Plan, advocating for its adoption by the 
Legislature, ensuring adequate funding for the Plan’s priorities, and assessment of the state’s 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

progress in achieving its goals will be a major focus for SBE in the next several years.  
 
Current State of Washington’s K-12 Education 
 
SBE staff has created a Current State of Washington K-12 Education series of charts and 
information. (The Board’s July FYI packet will include the full packet of information.) The major 
conclusions from that work are: 
 

• Washington performs above average on national measures (i.e. NAEP and AP test 
scores) of K-12 academic achievement. 

• Our incoming kindergarteners are often underprepared for success in five major 
domains: physical well being, health, and motor development, social and emotional 
development, approaches toward learning, cognition and general knowledge, and 
language and literacy. 

• Despite some academic success on national measures, our students struggle to meet 
the Washington math and science standards. 

• There is a significant and persistent academic achievement gap.  
• Graduation rates and dropout rates remain relatively constant over the past six years. 

Ethnic and racial minority students and low-income students are much more likely to 
drop out than their white and Asian peers. 

• Compared to other states, lower percentages of high school graduates go immediately 
to college; Washington ranks 45th in the nation. 

• Funding for K-12 education has grown steadily, but Washington is ranked 45th in the 
nation for per pupil expenditures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

State Board of Education Strategic Plan: 2011-2014 
 
Vision, Mission, and Summary of Goals 
 
VISION 
 
The State Board of Education envisions a learner-focused state education system that is 
accountable for the individual growth of each student, so that students can thrive in a 
competitive global economy and in life. 
 
MISSION 
 
The mission of the State Board of Education is to lead the development of state policy, provide 
system oversight and advocate for student success. 
 
SUMMARY OF GOALS  
 
Goal 1: Advocate for an Effective, Accountable Governance Structure for Public 

Education in Washington 
 
Goal 2: Collaborate with OSPI and Local School Districts to Close the Academic 

Achievement Gap for Underperforming Students  
 
Goal 3: Provide Policy Leadership to Increase Washington’s Student Enrollment 

and Success in Post-Secondary Education  
 
Goal 4: Promote Effective Strategies to Make Washington’s Students Nationally 

and Internationally Competitive in Math and Science  
 
Goal 5: Advocate for Policies to Develop the Most Highly Effective Pre K-12 

Teacher Workforce in the Nation 
 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Goals and Action Strategies 
 
GOAL 1: ADVOCATE FOR AN EFFECTIVE, ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE 

STRUCTURE FOR PUBLIC EDUCATION IN WASHINGTON. 
 
A. Collaborate with the Governor, OSPI, and PESB to finalize the State Education 

Reform Plan and obtain Legislative approval.  
• Conduct broad stakeholder outreach to build understanding, obtain meaningful input, 

and achieve buy-in of the Plan. 
• Together with the Governor, OSPI, and PESB develop an actionable work plan for 

the Reform Plan’s implementation, delineating clear roles and responsibilities. 
 
Timeline:  2010-2011 
Results:   
 A visible, credible, and actionable Education Reform Plan that has significant 

buy-in from key stakeholders will be finalized by May 2011. 
 Legislature will approve the Education Reform Plan by April 2011. 

 
B. Take a lead role in implementing the State Education Reform Plan and Race to the 

Top Grant, if awarded. 
• Adopt the State Education Reform Plan’s performance targets as SBE’s performance 

improvement goals. 
• Help create and implement a system to track the State’s performance in 

implementing the Education Reform Plan’s work plan and Race to the Top Grant. 
• Advocate to the QEC and the Legislature for a phased funding plan to support 

Education Reform Plan priorities. 
 
Timeline:  2010-2017 
Results:   
 The education priorities to reform Washington’s education system will be funded 

by the Legislature and implemented by local school districts. 
 SBE will adopt the Education Reform Plan’s performance targets as its own 

performance goals by 2011. 
 SBE will have a tracking system in place for reviewing its performance goals 

against the Reform Plan by 2011. 
 A phased funding plan to support the Education Reform Plan will be in place by 

2011-13, will be funded by 2013-15, and will be evaluated by 2015-17. 
 
C. Catalyze educational governance reform in Washington. 

• Communicate the current state of Washington’s education system, including 
developing a systems map that creates a visual picture of inter-relationships and how 
the system operates. 

• Engage stakeholders in an examination of the state’s educational governance 
system and make recommendations. 

• Seek stakeholder agreement to develop a process and obtain funding to conduct a 
comprehensive system assessment. 

• Collaborate with agencies and stakeholders to develop a Legislative proposal that 
will streamline the system, making it more effective and clarifying roles and 
responsibilities. 
 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Date Accomplished: 2011-12 
Results: Legislative proposals to enact a more effective governance system will be 
adopted in 2012 

 
GOAL 2: COLLABORATE WITH OSPI AND LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS TO CLOSE 

THE ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT GAP FOR UNDERPERFORMING 
STUDENTS. 

 
A. Focus on students of diverse racial and ethnic backgrounds, students in poverty, 

and English language learners to develop and implement specific strategies to 
close the achievement gap. 
• Assist in oversight of State Education Reform Plan goals and measurable objectives. 
• Implement the Required Action process for lowest achieving schools.  
• Create recognition awards for schools that close the achievement gap and showcase 

best practices.  
• Revise the school improvement plan rules (and add district improvement plan) to 

address research-based strategies to close achievement gap and build meaningful 
family engagement.  

• Develop and recommend to the Legislature state models that complement federal 
models for required and voluntary action for the bottom 5 percent of lowest achieving 
schools. 
 
Timeline:  2010-12 
Results:  
 Schools and their districts will receive recognition and intervention based on their 

performance by 2011. 
 School improvement plan rules will be revised by 2012. 
 State models for the bottom 5 percent of lowest achieving schools will be 

developed by 2012. 
 

B. Advocate for high quality early learning experiences for all children along the 
educational continuum, Pre K through 3rd grade.  
• Advocate to the Legislature for funding of all-day Kindergarten and reduced class 

sizes. 
• Support strategies to maximize children’s’ potential for learning, including the 

establishment of intervention mechanisms for children that are struggling. 
• Advocate for high family engagement and the importance of parents’ roles as their 

children’s first teachers. 
 
Timeline:  2010-2018 
Results:  
 85 percent of students eligible for kindergarten will attend a full time kindergarten 

program by 2018.1

 Early intervention strategies will be in place for all students grades K-3 in all 
elementary schools by 2013. 

 

                                                           
1 Performance targets are based on draft Washington Education Reform Plan and subsequent funding 
from the Legislature. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

 85 percent of all families will receive training on developmentally appropriate 
activities to help stimulate their young child’ growth socially, emotionally, and 
physically by 2013.  

 
C. Monitor student achievement data and communicate progress on the State 
Education Reform Plan. 

• Communicate current data including the Washington Language Proficiency Test 
(WLPT2) data on the academic achievement gap.   

 
Timeline:  2010-14 
Results:  SBE and stakeholders will have current data to turn the spotlight on areas 
that need to be addressed, and to improve schools that are not closing the 
achievement gap. 
 

D. Invite students of diverse cultures, abilities, and learning styles and their parents 
to share their perspectives and educational needs with SBE. 
• Make space at Board meetings and conduct outreach to parents and students that 

are grappling with achievement. 
 
Timeline: 2010-14 
Results: SBE will advocate for personalized education strategies to help students 
improve their learning. 

 
GOAL 3: PROVIDE POLICY LEADERSHIP TO INCREASE WASHINGTON’S STUDENT 

ENROLLMENT AND SUCCESS IN POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION.  
 
A. Provide leadership for a quality core of state-prescribed graduation requirements 

that prepare students for post-secondary education, the 21st Century world of 
work, and citizenship. 
• Revise the Core 24 framework based on input received, create a phased plan, and 

advocate for funding to implement the new graduation requirements. 
• Advocate for system funding investments, including comprehensive guidance and 

counseling beginning in middle school; increased instructional time; support for 
struggling students; and curriculum, materials, and additional applied learning 
opportunities. 

• Work closely with OSPI, Washington State School Directors' Association (WSSDA), 
the Higher Education Coordinating Board (HECB), and others to create opportunities 
for world language proficiency assessment to earn high school credit. 
 
Timeline: 2010-18 
Results:   
 New rules for revised graduation requirements and related policies will be 

adopted by 2012, and funding will be appropriated by Legislature for the phase-in 
by 2018. 

 World language proficiency assessments will be available for students by 2015. 
 

B. Create a statewide advocacy strategy to increase post-secondary attainment. 
• Advocate for the new national Common Core Standards for math and English 

language arts, and an aligned national assessment.  



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

• Form strategic alliances with groups, including building trades, the commissions, 
Workforce Training and Education Coordinating Board, EDCs, the HECB, and the 
State Board for Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC) to inform students, 
parents, and business and community leaders about the importance of obtaining 
postsecondary education to have the skills necessary to earn a living wage. 

• Collaborate with the HECB to examine the impact of college incentive programs on 
student course taking and participation in higher education. 
 
Timeline: 2010-14 
Results:  Washington will be a top performing state in national rankings for 
graduation rates, direct rates to postsecondary education or apprenticeships, and 
persistence in college. 

 
C. Provide policy leadership for examining the role of middle school preparation for 

high school success.  
• Seek authority to institute the High School and Beyond Plan in middle school. 
• Convene an advisory group to study and make recommendations for ways to 

increase the number of middle school students who are prepared for high school.  
 
Timeline:  2011-2013 Biennium 
Results: SBE will obtain graduation requirement authority from the Legislature 
regarding middle school by June 2011. 

 
D. Assist in oversight of online learning programs. 

• Examine policy issues related to the oversight of online learning for high school 
credits, and criteria for online private school approval with OSPI. 
 
Timeline: 2011-2012 
Results:   
 New rules for online learning private school approval will be adopted in 2012. 
 Appropriate policies to increase oversight of online learning will be developed by 

2012. 
 
GOAL 4: PROMOTE EFFECTIVE STRATEGIES TO MAKE WASHINGTON’S STUDENTS 

NATIONALLY AND INTERNATIONALLY COMPETITIVE IN MATH AND SCIENCE.  
 
A. Consistent with the goals of the State Education Reform Plan, collaborate with 

OSPI, PESB, the STEM Center, and other stakeholders to develop a Math & 
Science Action Plan that results in 69 percent or more of students meeting math 
standard and 63 percent or more of students meeting science standard on high 
school exit exams by 2015.2

• Research effective strategies within Washington and in other states that have seen 
improvements in achievement. 

  

• Identify and convene stakeholders to prioritize key state strategies and recommend 
benchmark goals for improving achievement. 

                                                           
2 Performance targets are based on draft Washington Education Reform Plan and subsequent funding 
from the Legislature. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

• Provide system oversight through review of annual progress to identify what’s 
working, and communicate results broadly. 

• Identify the resources needed to advocate for and implement the strategies. 
 
Timeline: November 2010 to develop the Math & Science Action Plan. 
Results: An intentional plan and realistic timetable for improving achievement in 
math and science will be developed by November 2010. 
 

B. Take a lead role in facilitating the implementation of a Math & Science Action Plan, 
including tracking the state’s performance.  
• Use the Math & Science Action Plan as a starting point to identify what additional 

strategies and resources may be needed. 
• Use K-12 math and science performance achievement targets from the Washington 

Education Reform Plan, including international benchmarks, and begin monitoring 
Washington students’ performance, competitive position, and continuous 
improvement against other states and countries. 

• Advocate to the Legislature for new funding to support the Math & Science Action 
Plan. 
 
Timeline: 2011-2014 
Results:  
 SBE will monitor its students’ performance against these Education Reform Plan 

targets and international benchmarks.  
 Funding plan to support the Math & Science Action Plan will be developed by 

2012. 
 
C. Increase high school students’ knowledge of science by strengthening high 

school graduation requirements. 
• Increase high school science graduation requirements from two to three credits by the 

class of 2018. 
• Determine funding implications for adding a third credit and a second lab in science. 
• Align with the HECB in requiring three science credits for four-year college 

admissions requirements.  
• Review OSPI work on developing and implementing an end of course assessment 

for biology. 
 
Timeline: 2010-15 
Results:  
 Rule change to add third credit in science will be made for Class of 2018; will be 

aligned with the HECB by 2011. 
 Funding will be requested as phase-in for new graduation requirements by 2013-

15 biennium. 
 
GOAL 5: ADVOCATE FOR POLICIES TO DEVELOP THE MOST HIGHLY EFFECTIVE PRE 

K-12 TEACHER WORKFORCE IN THE NATION.  
 
A. Support incentives that result in placing highly effective teachers in the lowest 

performing and rural schools. 
• Identify incentives that result in an increase of placement of highly effective teachers 

in the lowest performing and rural schools. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

• Advocate to the QEC to make a new teacher compensation model a high priority 
action. 
 
Timeline: 2010-14 
Results:   
 QEC will adopt new teacher compensation model in 2012. 
 The number of highly effective teachers in the lowest performing and rural 

schools will increase by 2014. 
 

B. Review state and local efforts to improve quality teaching and educational 
leadership. 
• Collaborate with OSPI and PESB to secure Legislative funding for new teacher 

assistance support by 2013. 
• Support the QEC and Legislative action to restore and increase Local Improvement 

Days (LID) funding for five professional days by 2015; SBE will then no longer be 
required to grant districts waivers to reduce their days of student instruction. 
 
Timeline: 2010-18 
Results:  
 Funding for new teacher induction program will be secured for FY 2013, three 

LID days will be funded by 2013, five LID days by 2015, and ten LID days by 
2018. 

 Board will discontinue 180 day waivers by 2013. 
 

C. Enhance Partnerships with OSPI and the PESB. 
• Form strategic alliances to assess and promote policies and incentives for teacher 

and leader quality in areas of mutual interest, such as:  
o New teacher and principal evaluation models. 
o Definitions of highly qualified teachers.  
o Reduction in out of endorsement teaching. 
o Alternate route to becoming teachers or principals. 
o Increasing the number of teachers from diverse race/ethnic backgrounds. 
o Increasing the pipeline of teachers in shortage and high need areas. 
o Advocate for teachers to have demonstrated pedagogy and content learning in 

cultural competencies and second language acquisition. 
 

Timeline: 2010-14 
Results: Aligned policies for teacher and leader quality that will improve student 
performance will be developed. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

SBE Strategic Plan Alignment 
 
Alignment with the Washington State Education Reform Plan 
 
The State Education Reform Plan’s vision is that “All Washington students – regardless of race, 
ethnicity, income, or gender – will be prepared to succeed in the 21st century world of work, 
learning, and global citizenship.” The Plan identifies four key goals for Washington.  
 
SBE’s four-year Strategic Plan is aligned with these four goals in the following manner: 
 
Goal Alignment and Cross-Walk 

State Education Reform Plan 
Goals 

Alignment of SBE Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives 

1. Enter kindergarten prepared 
for success. 

GOAL 2. Objective B. Advocate for high quality early learning 
experiences for all children along the educational 
continuum, Pre K through 3rd grade. 

2. Be competitive in math and 
science nationally and 
internationally.  

GOAL 4. Objective A. Consistent with the goals of the State 
Education Reform Plan, collaborate with OSPI, PESB, 
the STEM Center, and other stakeholders to develop a 
Math & Science Action Plan that results in 69 percent or 
more of students meeting math standard and 63 percent 
or more of students meeting science standard on high 
school exit exams by 2015. 

 
GOAL 4. Objective B. Take a lead role in facilitating the 

implementation of the Math & Science Action Plan, 
including tracking the state’s performance. 

 
GOAL 4. Objective C. Increase high school students’ knowledge 

of science by strengthening high school graduation 
requirements. 

3. Attain high academic 
standards regardless of race, 
ethnicity, income, or gender; 
and close associated 
achievement gaps. 

GOAL 2. Objective A. Focus on students of diverse racial and 
ethnic backgrounds, students in poverty, and English 
language learners to develop and implement specific 
strategies to close the achievement gap. 

 
GOAL 5. Objective A. Support incentives that result in placing 

highly effective teachers in the lowest performing and 
rural schools. 

4. Graduate able to succeed in 
college, training, and careers. 

GOAL 3. Objective A. Provide leadership for a quality core of 
state-prescribed graduation requirements that prepare 
students for post-secondary education, the 21st Century 
world of work, and citizenship. 

 
GOAL 3. Objective B. Create a statewide advocacy strategy to 

increase post-secondary attainment. 
 
GOAL 3. Objective C. Provide policy leadership for examining 

the role of middle school preparation for high school 
success. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

 
SBE’s Objectives to Complete and Implement the Education Reform Plan  
 
GOAL 1. Objective A. Collaborate with the Governor, OSPI, and PESB to finalize the State 

Education Reform Plan and obtain Legislative approval. 
 
GOAL 1. Objective B. Take a lead role in implementing the State Education Reform Plan and 

RTTT grant, if awarded. 
 
GOAL 2. Objective C. Monitor student achievement data and communicate progress on the 

State Education Reform Plan. 
 
SBE Plan Alignment with Various Components of Education System 
 
While developing its Strategic Plan: 2011-2014, the State Board of Education considered 
federal and state educational policy context and multiple stakeholders:    



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Attachment B 
 

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN: 2011-2014 
Strategic Roles Framework 

SBE Roles Definitions 
 

• Policy leadership: formulating principles and guidelines to direct and guide the education system. 
• System oversight: monitoring the education system by overseeing its operation and performance. 
• Advocacy: persuading for a particular issue or idea. 
• Communication: providing information to help a common understanding. 
• Convening and facilitating: bringing parties together for discussion and collaboration. 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

GOAL 1: ADVOCATE FOR AN EFFECTIVE, ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR PUBLIC 
EDUCATION IN WASHINGTON. 

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 
Convening & 
Facilitating 

• Collaborate with the Governor, OSPI, and PESB to finalize the State Education Reform Plan and obtain legislative 
approval. 
• Conduct broad stakeholder outreach to build understanding, obtain 

meaningful input, and achieve buy-in of the Plan. 
     

• Together with the Governor, OSPI, and PESB develop an 
actionable work plan for the Reform Plan’s implementation, 
delineating clear roles and responsibilities. 

     

• Take a lead role in implementing the State Education Reform Plan and Race to the Top Grant, if awarded. 
• Adopt the State Education Reform Plan’s performance targets as 

SBE’s performance improvement goals. 
     

• Help create and implement a system to track the State’s 
performance in implementing the Education Reform Plan’s work 
plan. 

     

• Advocate to the QEC and the legislature for a phased funding plan 
to support Education Reform Plan priorities. 

     

• Catalyze educational governance reform in Washington. 
• Communicate the current state of Washington’s education system, 

including developing a systems map that creates a visual picture of 
inter-relationships and how the system operates. 

     

• Engage stakeholders in an examination of the state’s educational 
governance system and make recommendations. 

     

• Seek stakeholder agreement to develop a process and obtain 
funding to conduct a comprehensive system assessment. 

     

• Collaborate with agencies and stakeholders to develop a legislative 
proposal that will streamline the system, making it more effective 
and clarifying roles and responsibilities. 

     



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

GOAL 2: COLLABORATE WITH OSPI AND LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS TO CLOSE THE ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT 
GAP FOR UNDERPERFORMING STUDENTS. 

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 
Convening & 
Facilitating 

• Focus on students of diverse racial and ethnic backgrounds, students in poverty, and English language learners to 
develop and implement specific strategies to close the achievement gap. 
• Assist in oversight of State Education Reform Plan goals and 

measurable objectives. 
     

• Implement the Required Action process for lowest achieving 
schools. 

     

• Create recognition awards for schools that close the achievement 
gap and showcase best practices. 

     

• Revise the school improvement plan rules (and add district 
improvement plan) to address research-based strategies to close 
achievement gap and build meaningful family engagement. 

     

• Develop and recommend to the legislature state models that 
complement federal models for required and voluntary action for the 
bottom 5 percent of lowest achieving schools. 

     

• Advocate for high quality early learning experiences for all children along the educational continuum, Pre K through 3rd 
grade. 
• Advocate to the legislature for funding of all-day Kindergarten and 

reduced class size. 
     

• Support strategies to maximize childrens’ potential for learning, 
including establishment of intervention mechanisms for children that 
are struggling. 

     

• Advocate for high family engagement and the importance of 
parents’ roles as their children’s first teachers. 

     

• Monitor student achievement data and communicate progress on the State Education Reform Plan. 
• Communicate current data on the state of the academic 

achievement gap using the Washington Language Proficiency Test 
(WLPT2) data. 

     

• Invite students of diverse cultures, abilities, and learning styles and their parents to share their perspectives and 
educational needs with SBE. 
• Make space at Board meetings and conduct outreach to parents 

and students that are grappling with achievement. 
     



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

GOAL 3: PROVIDE POLICY LEADERSHIP TO INCREASE WASHINGTON’S STUDENT ENROLLMENT AND SUCCESS IN 
POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION. 

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 
Convening & 
Facilitating 

• Provide leadership for a quality core of state-prescribed graduation requirements that prepare students for post-
secondary education, the 21st Century world of work, and citizenship. 
• Revise the Core 24 Framework based on input received, create a 

phased plan, and advocate for funding to implement the new 
graduation requirements. 

     

• Advocate for funding system investments including comprehensive 
guidance and counseling beginning in middle school; increased 
instructional time; support for struggling students; and curriculum, 
materials, and additional applied learning opportunities. 

     

• Work closely with OSPI, Washington State School Directors' 
Association (WSSDA), the Higher Education Coordinating Board 
(HECB), and others to create opportunities for world language 
proficiency assessment to earn high school credit. 

     

• Create a statewide advocacy strategy to increase post-secondary attainment. 
• Advocate for the new national Common Core Standards for math 

and English language arts, and an aligned national assessment. 
     

• Form strategic alliances with groups, including building trades, the 
commissions, Workforce Training and Education Coordinating 
Board, EDCs, the HECB, and the State Board for Community and 
Technical Colleges (SBCTC) to inform students, parents, and 
business and community leaders about the importance of obtaining 
postsecondary education to have the skills necessary to earn a 
living wage. 

     

• Collaborate with the HECB to examine the impact of college 
incentive programs on student course taking and participation in 
higher education. 

     

• Provide policy leadership for examining the role of middle school preparation for high school success. 
• Seek authority to institute the High School and Beyond Plan in 

middle school. 
     

• Convene an advisory group to study and make recommendations 
for ways to increase the number of middle school students who are 

     



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 
Convening & 
Facilitating 

prepared for high school. 
• Assist in oversight of online learning programs.      

• Examine policy issues related to the oversight of online learning for 
high school credits, and criteria for online private school approval 
with OSPI. 

     

 



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

GOAL 4: PROMOTE EFFECTIVE STRATEGIES TO MAKE WASHINGTON’S STUDENTS NATIONALLY AND 
INTERNATIONALLY COMPETITIVE IN MATH AND SCIENCE. 

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 

Convening 
& 

Facilitating 

• Consistent with the goals of the State Education Reform Plan, collaborate with OSPI, PESB, the STEM Center, and other 
stakeholders to develop a Math & Science Action Plan that results in 69 percent or more of students meeting math 
standard and 63 percent or more of students meeting science standard on high school exit exams by 2015. 
• Research effective strategies within Washington and in other states 

that have seen improvements in achievement. 
     

• Identify and convene stakeholders to prioritize key state strategies 
and recommend benchmark goals for improving achievement. 

     

• Provide system oversight through review of annual progress to 
identify what’s working, and communicate results broadly. 

     

• Identify the resources needed to advocate for and implement the 
strategies. 

     

• Take a lead role in implementing a Math & Science Action Plan, including tracking the state’s performance. 
• Use the Math & Science Action Plan as a starting point to identify 

what additional strategies and resources may be needed. 
     

• Use K-12 math and science performance achievement targets, 
including international benchmarks, and begin monitoring 
Washington students’ performance, competitive position, and 
continuous improvement against other states and countries. 

     

• Advocate to the legislature for new funding to support the Math & 
Science Action Plan. 

     

 
• Increase high school students’ knowledge of science by strengthening high school graduation requirements. 

• Increase high school science graduation requirements from two to 
three credits by the class of 2018. 

     

• Determine funding implications for adding a third credit and a 
second lab in science. 

     

• Align with the Higher Education Coordinating Board (HECB) in 
requiring three science credits for four-year college admissions 
requirements. 

     

• Review OSPI work on developing and implementing an end of course 
assessment for biology. 

     



Prepared for July 2010 Board Meeting 
 
 

GOAL 5: ADVOCATE FOR POLICIES TO DEVELOP THE MOST HIGHLY EFFECTIVE PRE K-12 TEACHER WORKFORCE   
IN THE NATION.  

Action Strategies 
Policy 

Leadership 
System 

Oversight Advocacy 
Communi-

cation 

Convening 
& 

Facilitating 

• Support incentives that result in placing highly effective teachers in the lowest performing and rural schools. 
• Identify incentives that result in an increase of placement of highly 

effective teachers in the lowest performing and rural schools. 
     

• Advocate to the QEC to make a new teacher compensation model a 
high priority action. 

     

• Review state and local efforts to improve quality teaching and educational leadership. 
• Collaborate with OSPI and PESB to secure legislative funding for 

new teacher induction support by 2013. 
     

• Support the QEC and legislative action to restore and increase 
Local Improvement Days (LID) funding for five professional days by 
2015; SBE will then no longer be required to grant districts waivers 
to reduce their days of student instruction. 

     

• Enhance Partnerships with OSPI and the PESB. 
• Form strategic alliances to assess and promote policies and 

incentives for teacher and leader quality in areas of mutual interest, 
such as:  
o New teacher and principal evaluation models. 
o Definitions of highly qualified teachers.  
o Reduction in out of endorsement teaching. 
o Alternate route to becoming teachers or principals. 
o Increasing the number of teachers from diverse race/ethnic 

backgrounds. 
o Increasing the pipeline of teachers in shortage and high need 

areas. 
o Advocate for teachers to have demonstrated pedagogy and 

content learning in cultural competencies and second language 
acquisition. 

     

 


	Search This Document
	Recognition Awards Memo - Aaron & Pete.pdf
	Binder1
	Final Memo  Required Action Districts Rule  July 2.pdf
	2010.07.07 Board Packet
	03. July Board Meeting Final
	05. May 2010 Minutes
	06. June 15 2010 Minutes
	07. Private Schools Memo
	POLICY CONSIDERATION

	08. Private Schools for Approval  Listing
	09. Final Memo  Required Action Districts Rule  July 2
	POLICY CONSIDERATION

	09.1 Recognition Awards Memo - Aaron & Pete
	POLICY CONSIDERATION
	Under Attachment B is a memo from Pete Bylsma with his final recommendations for changes to the SBE Accountability Index. The key revisions are:

	10. Math Rule Revisions Memo Final
	Minimum requirements for high school graduation — Students entering the ninth grade on or after July 1, 2009.

	11. 180 Day Waiver Applications - Brad
	SUMMARY OF POLICY ISSUE /STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION (SBE)
	POLICY CONSIDERATION
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community have been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17.  Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	School Report Card Information from OSPI
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans (do not mail or fax hard copies).
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	No
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans (do not mail or fax hard copies).
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver.
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?
	6. Will the waiver days result in a school calendar with fewer half-days? 
	8. What are the purpose and goals of the waiver?  
	9. What is the student achievement data motivating the purpose and goals of the waiver?
	10. Describe the measures and standards used to determine success and identification of expected benchmarks and results. 
	11. Describe the evidence the district and/or schools will collect to show whether the goals were attained.
	12. Describe the content and process of the strategies to be used to meet the goals of the waiver. 
	13. Describe the innovative nature of the proposed strategies.
	14. Waiver requests may be for up to three school years. How will activities in the subsequent years be connected to those of the first year of the waiver?
	15. Describe how the waiver directly supports the district and/or school improvement plans. Include links or information about how the State Board of Education may review the district and school improvement plans.
	16. Describe how administrators, teachers, other staff, parents, students, and the community been involved in the development of the request for this waiver.
	17. Provide details about the collective bargaining agreements, including the number of professional development days (district-wide and for individual teacher choice), full instruction days, early-release days, and the amount of other non-instruction time. 
	18. Describe how the district or schools used the waiver days and whether the days were used as planned and reported in your prior request?
	19. How well were the purpose and goals for the previous waiver met? Using the measures and standards, describe the district’s success at meeting each of the expected benchmarks and results of the previous waiver. 
	20. How were the parents and the community kept informed on an on-going basis about the use and impact of the waiver?

	12. Graduation Requirements Revisions cover memo
	13. Graduation requirements revisions memo FINAL
	16. World Language Memo - Kathe
	Attachment A
	Policy XXXX
	CREDIT FOR COMPETENCY/PROFICIENCY
	World Languages
	World Languages Credit for Competency/Proficiency


	17. Business Items
	19. Common_Core_Standards_Jessica
	20. RTTT and Ed Reform Update Memo
	Race to the Top Application  At the May Board meeting, the Board passed the following motion requesting the following information as part of the Race to the Top Application:
	A total of 35 states and the District of Columbia applied for Round Two of the Race to the Top Education Reform Grant. Our grant along with the other states is posted at:
	http://www2.ed.gov/programs/racetothetop/phase2-applications/index.html
	POLICY CONSIDERATION

	21. Strategic Plan Final Memo
	POLICY CONSIDERATION
	introduction: policy roles, authority, and policy context
	SBE Mandate and Roles
	Statutory Requirements and Ongoing SBE Work
	SBE Has Many Stakeholders
	The Federal Context: Race to the Top Policies and Funding
	The State Context: Development of the Washington State Education Reform Plan
	Current State of Washington’s K-12 Education

	Vision, Mission, and Summary of Goals
	Goals and Action Strategies
	Goal 1: ADVOCATE FOR AN EFFECTIVE, ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR PUBLIC EDUCATION IN WASHINGTON.
	Goal 2: Collaborate with OSPI and local school districts to CLOSE the academic achievement gap for underperforming students.
	Goal 3: provide policy leadership to increase washington’s student enrollment AND SUCCESS in post-secondary Education.
	Goal 4: promote effective strategies to make WASHINGTON’S STUDENTS NATIONALly AND INTERNATIONALly COMPETITIVE IN mATH AND sCIENCE.
	Goal 5: ADVOCATE FOR POLICIES TO DEVELOP THE MOST HIGHLY EFFECTIVE PRE K-12 TEACHER WORKFORCE IN THE NATION.

	SBE Strategic Plan Alignment
	Alignment with the Washington State Education Reform Plan
	Goal Alignment and Cross-Walk
	SBE’s Objectives to Complete and Implement the Education Reform Plan

	SBE Plan Alignment with Various Components of Education System

	SBE Roles Definitions
	Goal 1: ADVOCATE FOR AN EFFECTIVE, ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR PUBLIC EDUCATION IN WASHINGTON.
	Goal 2: Collaborate with OSPI and local school districts to CLOSE the academic achievement gap for underperforming students.
	Goal 3: provide policy leadership to increase Washington’s student enrollment AND SUCCESS in post-secondary Education.
	Goal 4: promote effective strategies to make WASHINGTON’S STUDENTS NATIONALly AND INTERNATIONALly COMPETITIVE IN mATH AND sCIENCE.
	Goal 5: ADVOCATE FOR POLICIES TO DEVELOP THE MOST HIGHLY EFFECTIVE PRE K-12 TEACHER WORKFORCE   IN THE NATION.





